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WHAT IS STRATEGY AND STRATEGICAL PLANNING?

(For definitions of notions)

Strategy is initiative, a manifestation of leadership. It is a manifestation of leadership
even when the same strategy was used several times in various organizations. If you are
playing the game that no one has played before, all strategies are very risky. Strategies are
a complex system of definitions of what should be done. Strategy is a declaration of
intentions to make a certain choice in the future, when the moments of choice are
achieved.

By Peter Veil. The Art of Management,

Moscow, Novosti, 1993

Strategic planning is a process of defining what the organization wants to be like in the
future, and how it will achieve it. It means finding a better future for your organization
and a better way of fulfilling its mission.

This kind of planning includes the following important decisions about the future of your

organization:

* The mission and the goals that you will follow

* Programs, services and products that you will offer while fulfilling the mission
* How will you attract and use necessary resources - people, money, experience,

experts, professional skills, etc.
Bryan W. Barry. Strategic Planning Workbook for
Nonprofit Organizations. Amherst H. Wilder Foundation. 1986

Strategic planning implies adapting resources and campaign goals to various and
changing conditions of activity.

John D. Daniels, Lee H. Radeba. International Business.

Moscow, Delo, Lid., 1994

Strategy is such a combination (correspondence) of resources and organizational skills on
the one hand and opportunities and risks, generated by the external environment, on the
other, which acts in the present and the future and which the organization uses to achieve
its main goal. -

The main features of strategic planning are as follows:

- it includes the main problems and tasks of the organization

- it creates the framework for detailed planning and current decision-making

- it is most long-term in comparison with other types of planning

- it makes activity orderly and intemnally uniform at different stages

- it makes the top officials accelerate their work.

T. Santalainen et al. Managing by results.
Moscow, Progress, 1993

World Leamning/PCC, Financial Management



4

/ Strategic Planning Cycle

*
Sus——,

Prdrng

areaiip,

» v ous
v - -

.v-"o

‘b—

1

Action Planning ‘

)

6

Future vision

&

- World Learning/PCC, Financial Management

€ institute ci Cuttural Attairs, 1533, 1881 -



5

HUNMAN FACTOR IN STRATEGIC PLANNING
by Ken Whimey, Consultant (Denver, Colorado, USA)

I have leafed through the pages of thres booklets with the company’s logo and titled
“Strategic Planning for 1992”. They had evervthing: summary report on services, overview
of interviews with emplovess, analysis of costs and expenses. description of the
organization's status. perspectives for the coming year, recommendations, ewc. And a
remarkable proposal. The planning deparmment have done a great job.

“What's the problem?” I asked. Strategic planning department answered that they could not
implement it. They had had five mesrtings with representatives of several departments. They
all were finding faults with it and looked for mistakes in the main chapters. Only one
department was interested in running in a couple of their recommendations.

I am sure that it will be difficult to implement strategic plans developed by an isolated group.
especially if you did not participate in the creation of these plans, but really need them. It is
not surprising: those who listen to instructions have a very low level of enthusiasm.

Great plans are a living thing, it is difficult to imagine them in a booklet. They take a final
shape in the imagination of those who aim at success. Strategic planning can be a process that
strengthens and consolidates the organization. It happens there, where people participate in
strategic planning, contribute their experience, hopes and their ideas to the common strategic
drive to the furure.

Successful planning helps the group meks a imaginative trip into the furure, choose the
results that are easy to remember and that can be achieved.

1. THE MAIN QUESTION
Without clear vision of where the organization
is moving, discussions about rhe furure will not
8o bevond the enumeration of questions without answers.

The following signs indicate that the organization needs a new strategic plan: meetings end
with feverish decisions, executives’ enthusiasm runs low, emplovess have more questions,
than answers about their mission and what tasks theyv are to perform and how to do it.

My technology of planning starts with raising these questions for the general discussion and
joint decision about the most important question. Strategic planning will be focused on this
guestion.

A quickly developing engineering company had a planning mesting. Someone asked: “How
shall we increase the profii?”. Another question was: “How shall we raise the morale?”. The
third question was: “What plans we are going to develop?”. Then followed: “What will our
business plan be likz?”. All in all there were nine questions on the whiteboard, when 1 asked
the team to choose the only one that will link up all the others.

After several attempts someone said: “I liked to come to work when everybody was smiling
to each other and we had common dreams which we discussed together. Now we do not have
such a common vision. We are too busy with routine work to talk to each other. I think our
strategic plan should concentrate on the question: How shall we enjoy life and thus make our
company the best one in the industry?”



.. This question drew the line. Everybody was eager to get an answer. When you formulate the
main question. the planning process becomes important for all members of the group and
becomes a living thing. )

2. HISTORICAL ANALYSIS
Courage comes from the kmowledge of
who you are and where you come from.

I asked a young enginesr why he liked his work. “We are the best in the industry”, he said
and told me about several projects, implemented by the company during the past years. Those
projects and stories were myths. They expressed the essence of employess’ attitude to their
company, which could be Jdefined by “we can do everything” and this made them enjoy their
work.

The past is a storage of victories, examples of courage and struggle. This is a source of
knowledge and personal experience and a step into the future. This is the basis of our furure.
The time does not have to be an oppressing factor, if people remember what thev wers
through and how theyv won.

At this stage of planning I ask people to enumerate the key events and results from the past.
write them down on cards and put in a timeline from 3 to 20 years, which passed before the
meeting. While we are getting to know what and why was so important for them and their
organization. the people change: a fezling of involvement and pride for what they were and
what they did appears.

When people look back on the examples and tendencies in the past. coordinare them with
dates, and think over the changes that took place in their environment and how they changed
themse!ves, they become a knowledgeable organization. When they re-evaluate their mission
and reestimare the values of their organization, thev can discover, why their work is worth
spending their lives for it.

3. THE VISION OF THE FUTURE
If you imow where you are going,
you will find a way to get there.

One ne=ds certain courage to define what you will do in one or five or seven years. The
analysis of the past is a decisive factor for a far-sighted person, because one needs a fesling of
continuity of historical process to create the vision of the future. The knowledge of “what we

did before” wipes away our doubts, which prevent us from implementation of our hopes and
dreams.

Hopes and dreams take us to the future. Without them we can lose the goal and enthusiasm.

On the personality level creating the picture of what we want is more attractive than the
vision of the furure. This is also true for organizations. When the people ses their dreams
included in the vision of the furure of the organization, such an organization will move
forward and you can be sure that all their dreams will come true.
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The vision of the future is not what it “should be”. “Must” and “should” seldom fill people

.-with enthusiasm. The most powerful vision of the future are creative ideas born in brain

storms.

The motivating vision of the future comes from the heart. It corresponds to human nesd for
security, success, recognition and self-realization.

At this stage of the planning process [ asked the owners and employess of a construction
company to tell me what they would like to ses in one or three years. Someone wanted to
have a higher personal income, someone dreamed about a special prestigious bonus for
quality. The planning manager saw all contractors and subcontractors working like partners.
Foremen wanted to have opportunities for growth and recognition of their achievements. All
in all there were 38 specific elements of the vision of the furure, which we used to build a
picture of inspired people in a winning company. This motto still works, because both the
owners and the employess link their hopes with it.

4. PROBLEMS. OBSTACLES.

If we understand where we want to come,
then why aren’t we there yer?

Dreams are not achieved. They are unlocked and set free. This is not a question of how we
should achieve the desired vision of the future, but what does not let us reach it.

Some activities and events create obstacles and biock people on the way to the desired future.
They are similar to mines on the road. There is an old saying which was once pinned to my
wall: if’ there is a dragon in the neighborhood, you'd beter include it in vour plans.
Organizations may find themselves in a difficult position because dragons were igriored at the
stage of planning.

These dragons are not external factors like “government actions™ or “taxes”, “living
standards”, “employees consciousness” and so on, which can be blamed for our problems. In

fact, the habit of accusing other people of your own failures does not let us take the
responsibility upon ourselves.

Obstacles do not mean a shortage of something. Obstacles do exist. They are real factors,
which can cause real damage and if they are not identified and defined, a high risk for the

future of the organization may be created. The full definition of the obstacles is the first step
to avoiding them.

Edward Deming, the famous consultant on raising the quality of products and services,
instructed his clients and suggested they look for contradictions in the organization of
industrial activity and the management style. Many of those of leaders who stand for total
quality, contradict themselves. In reality they do not let ordinary employess take the
responsibility and do not support their initiarive.

Companies that wish to grow often contradict their vision of the future, if they continue
acting as a small company. They make mistakes when they develop industrial facilities and
do not use the advantages of dynamic growth.
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It is necsssary that contradictions are identified by the people who are involved in them. It is
~ appropriate to remember the famous words of Pogo: We have met an enemy, and the enemy
is ourselves.” The right way to find obstacles is to answer the question: how do you
participate in creation (support) of this problem?”

We start to understand the problems through the stress points in the organization. I ask people
to enumerate the questions and irritating factors, which create disappointments. “Where is
your creative work blocked on the way to the goals?” Team members group the answers
around similar reasons. Then they check them by examples from their past and determine the
main reasons which give rise to these problems. Contradictions and obstacles - they are both
bad and good news. No one wants to recognize the fact they are in a biind alley. But you will
be relieved when vou admit the fact.

A properly formulated problem is a window to the future, a point which can help to
implement the vision of the future in our fife and in our organization.

5. STRATEGIC GUIDELINES
“March forward” is uniikely
to be the best way to the desired future.

There is a difference berwesn long-term planning and strategic planning. Long-term planning
often implies the development of clear-cut, we!l-defined. established directions and ways of
managing the orzanization. These are clearly defined samples that should be achieved. and
hers swategy is not a serious issue. This is an example of classical linear thinking, used in
many organizations irrespective of the fasi-changing environment.

Strategic planning, unlike long-term planning, is not aimed at how everything should be

orzanized in 2 or 3 vears. It is aimed at the search of new initiatives, new directions,
overcoming obstacles and conrradictions.

In the process of defining the problems and obstacles people start thinking how to overcome
them. Japanese managers noticed that if you take the problem with all yvour heart, the decision
becomes obvious. This is the fastest part of the process. Ideas, invented or discovered by
people, hit the targe:.

Brainstorming helps to enumerate both innovative and tested ideas. Then ideas are classified
by groups according to the meaning of injtiatives and goals. Proceeding from this, strategic
guidelines for future activities are formulated.

The process of going desp to the detail allows people to invent ways of moving forward to
the vision of the furure in accordance with the present-day situation and its contradictions,
problems and opportunities.

6. IMIPLEMENTATION
Start with description of your future victories.
The task of the next stage of the planning process is building up the way to achievements of

the coming year. The team is divided into groups. Each group discusses one of the strategic
guidelines and decides which goals shoulc_l be achieved in 12 months.



-~ When talking about the current work they describe check points and intermediate

achievements for every three months. It is necessarv to describe these achicvements with a
special language: precisely and with a possibility of evaluation, specifying the time periods.
Such check points are located on the timeline. Then the team checks if this can be achieved
by the determined date.

The groups describe the events and achievements for the first quarter. plan activity on the
timeline and demonstrate them to all members of the group. The team updates each plan to
avoid conflicts and misunderstandings. Finally. all the timelines are checked for
correspondence with the general direction of organizational development. Measures for
mutual support are planned.

By the end of the discussion the documents of the mesting are summarized. These documents
include the brain storm results, as well as group analysis and decisions.

This is the final stage of a planning mesting.
7. GO FORWARD

One of the simplest and most effective ways

of management is regular gquestioning

your people abour how they are moving ahead,
what problems they faced, whar decisions

they develop and whar support they need from you.

In order to support the energy of movement, the team gets together in the end of the quarter.
They discuss their achievements and think about the things they learned. They discuss the
future victories. They make new plans of actions, discuss them with each other and exchange
helpful information. ’

When the year is over, the teamn celebrates its achievements and confirms its vision of the
furure, checks if the organization stiil aims at it and makes plans for the first quarter of the
next year.

RESULTS _

The construction company have created a special department for mutual obligations of
company owners and company emplovess. Managers and foremen have recorded their murual
expectations and constantly exchange reports in order to understand each other better and
receive murual support in achieving results. The team evaluates its achievements every
quarter and specifies its plans.

Actions in the engineering company go faster than the elaborated plan. This is the nature of
their business. The president says, “The main thing is that we make money, talk to each other
and most of us are in jovful mood. However, there is a couple of enginesrs who do not know
what joy is.....”
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MANAGEMENT BY OBJECTIVES: A PERSPECTIVE FOR NEW NGO MANAGERS

Scott Charleswarth

Management by Objectives, commonly known as MBO, is a management system which
has been on the American scene since the mid 1950’s, introduced principally by Peter
Drucker the well known authority on organizational management practices (1). Certainly
since my earliest days working with non-profit organizations, starting in the 1970’s, MBO
or elements thereof have typically been implemented -- both in my work in the US and
internationally. While MBO is not the only way to “conduct business”, and variations do
exist especially in regards to evaluating staff performance, if carried out faithfully this type
of management does impart and reinforce the values of participation and feedback which
are essential in human relations and human development work. Furthermore, in my
opinion, by working in the field of human development organizations (e.g. community and
human service organizations) have a responsibility to carry out this work in a participatory
and developmental way. Effective MBO has these characteristics.

The purpose of this paper is to share some of my thoughts and interpretations of MBO
and its appropriate use in the work of non-profit and non-governmental organizations
(NGOs). While | am an MBO advocate, systems don’t solve problems or create successes
-- people do. But as useful management systems are developed and implemented by
committed and thoughtful managers, | believe that all organizational stakehoiders will
benefit.

WHAT IS MBO?

In preparation for this topic | recently came across the following definition: “Management
by Objectives is a system that features a periodic agreement between a superior {or
supervisor) and a subordinate (a staff person being supervised) on the subordinates
objectives for a particular period and a periodic review of how well the subordinate
achieved those objectives” (2). In plain terms, MBO provides the opportunity for
supervisors and staff to mutually agree on the staff person’s job objectives for a period of
time, and through concerted effort and ongoing feedback ensure the greatest opportunity
to achieve the stated objectives. Furthermore, the review or job appraisal is a way to
adjust or correct certain deficiencies, and to plan for both training needs and in the
development of the future job objectives.

What the above definition does not elaborate on is the link between organizational
priorities and objectives, and the specific job objectives of individual staff members. The
following discussion will address this broader MBO issue.

IMPLEMENTATION OF MBO

In a current management text, | came across a discussion of “collaborative MBO” (3). The
key message here is that throughout the MBO process, collaboration among various units
or departments, supervisors and those whom they supervise, and among staff peers is
essential if the maximum organizational benefit is to be realized. A look at the key stages
of implementing MBO will shed further light on the elements of this system.

1.) Collaborative Organizational Diagnosis - First there needs to be a collaborative look at
an organizations major problems and priorities, by a variety of persons in the organization,
to develop a generally agreed upon prognosis of the organization.

2.) Information and Education - During this stage, various work groups are formed and
specific information is discussed concerning the purposes and strategies of MBO. This is
to ensure that there is broad understanding and consensus for the implementation of such
a system,

World Learning/PCC, Financial Management
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3.) Analysis of Organizationa! Readiness - With the information derived from the first two
steps, an organization is able to assess its ability to implement the system, the time table,
the required staff orientation sessions, etc. These first three steps are the ground work
needed before the development of organizational and individual objectives.

4.) Goal Setting - Oraanizational Level - At this point, a collaborative process is employed
looking at the “big picture” - what the organization wishes to accomplish in the iong and

short-term. Longer term targets are generally classified as goals, while the more specific
and shorter-term (generally within a 12 month period) projections are objectives.

In my own planning work, | look at two kinds of objectives: 1) program or output objectives
and 2) management or process objectives. Examples of program objectives include:

- To involve 1000 youth in the city in drug prevention education programs by
October 1, 1996

- To reach 400 less advantaged households by providing opportunities in a variety
of counseling and prevention programs by December 1996

- To construct wheel chair access ramps for all city secondary schools by
December 1996

Management or process objectives might include:
- Recruit 6 new board members and complete board orientation by July 1996

- Conduct an annual fundraising cémpaign raising a minimum of $20,000 from local
by September 1996

Another kind of management or process object, a “value objective”, is difficult to
guantify but nonetheless should be written as an organizational objective. These objectives
are value statements which are essential to the well-being of an organization. One example
might be: '

- To develop an organizational code of ethics (or statement of principies) and
ensure that all staff and volunteers exemplify the organization’s principles of
cooperation and honesty.

While more difficuit to evaluate objectively, these value objectives should not be
overlooked while striving to achieve other more quantifiable program and management
objectives.

5) Goal Setting - Unit Level - In organizations with more than just a few people the work is
often divided into different units or departments. Lets consider the earlier organizational
objective of “reaching 400 less advantaged households by providing opportunities for a
variety of counseling and prevention programs by December 1996”. Given the scope of
the work, an organization might create two divisions; a family counseling division and a
youth services division. In this case, the family counseling division might establish an
annual unit objective of: establish a peer counseling program involving a minimum of 400
heads of households by December 1296. The youth services division would then identify a
series of programs for youth such as summer camps, youth employment training, sports
programs, etc., listing the number of youth to be served as well as the related time frame.

6) Goal Setting - Individual Level - This is the point where supervisors and staff meet to
establish how much, how well, by when, and by whom work will be accomplished. All the
decisions from the previous stages, if done in a thorough a collaborative manner, will feed
directly into individual work plans. The key benefit to collaboration is that staff will see
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these objectives (organizational and individual) as their objectives, thus serving as further
motivation to accompiish the work.

Returning to the previous example of the youth services division’s objectives, individual job
objectives might include:

- involve 250 youth-at-risk , ages 8-14, in a summer camping program by August
15,1996.

- Involve 150 low income high school students, throughout the school year, in small
business training and provide them with apprenticeship opportunities with local
businesses by December 1996,

Another factor, not previously mentioned, is the establishment of personal and
professional goais and aspirations of the staff person, and to seek the commitment from
both the staff person and the supervisor to make progress in this area. This commitment
goes beyond the “bottom line" objectives of the organization, with a focus on the
motivation and well-being of all those involved with the organization.

7) Performance Review - This is the formal process where supervisors and their staff
review the progress being made in comparison with the established objectives. This is the
time to make any changes to the plans, identify further training needs, and in general offer
further clarification of expectations for both parties. It is important that attention also be
given to the “values” objectives as well as the personal and professional goals established
by the staff member, as stated above.

While the formal review process should take place at least twice a year, informal feedback
is critical and ongoing communication among staff and supervisors is an important part of
the process.

8) Be-diagnosis - At the completion of reviews throughout all leveis of the organization,
wage increases, promotions, and any disciplinary actions are instituted and the
organization once again looks at the first step of the process; to diagnose probiems and
priorities for the next cycle. By following the same steps collaborative planning begins
once again.

SOME CLARIFICATION OF TERMS

As one can see, there seems to be a striking similarity between MBO and strategic
planning in some of the terminology and the process. This similarity is by design as MBO
is @ method of linking annual objectives to long-term goals (developed in a strategic
planning process). While an organization's strategic plan looks 3-5 years into the future,
MBO is key in the annual implementation phase which enables an organization to move
toward its long-range goals.

While goals are long-term and less specific, objectives are more specific and have a time
frame generally of one year or less. Job objectives, performance standards, job segments
or targets are interchangeable terms which establish how much, how well and by whom
the work will be achieved. Various examples of these have been stated above.

Job descriptions, however, describe what is to be done and outline various tasks or
functions. Job descriptions should be used to organize and clarify the work of staff, but
not as an evaluative tool. Its important to have a clear understanding of the difference
between job objectives and job descriptions.
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ADVANTAGES AND DISADVANTAGES OF MBO

It is my belief that when conducted in the proper manner and with a considerable level of
commitment throughout the organization, there are numerous benefits to MBO.

- Evaluations are based on results and thus are more objective
- Staff have a clearer picture of what is expected of them

- As major participants in the process, individual staff members help determine the
work to be done

- Builds stronger relationships among supervisors and staff
- Enhances staff motivation, staff responsibility and staff development

- Enables an organization to establish a more fair and objective salary administration
system

- Is an integral part in strategic planning and organizational development

There are, however, potential problems in all management systems including MBO.

- When done properly, the process can be very time consuming - at all levels.

- Without proper care, it is possible that the setting of individual staff objectives may
shift the focus from the big picture to individual results, thus reducing the spirit of
team work,

- While guantitative objectives are what are sought, certain qualitative indicators
(such as team work) must not be lost in the process.

PRINCIPLES FOR SUCCESS IN THE IMPLEMENTATION OF MBO

- Top management supports the process

- Mutual goal setting (by supervisor and staff) both quantitative and qualitative in
nature

- Supervisors work to remove obstacles to staff performance and growth

- Success is recognized as it occurs, not just twice a year during the formal
appraisal sessions

- Performance appraisals given periodically, both formal and informal
- Collaboration and team approach used in planning and problem solving

- Personal and professional goals and aspirations of staff are supported by
management, as appropriate

- The environment within the organization (organizational culture) is supportive and
developmental.
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CONCLUSION

In my view, the most successful managers place a high priority on the development of
their human resources (staff and volunteers), and establish the kind of systems that foster
motivation, commitment and skill building. If applied with the proper spirit, Management by
Objectives can have a positive impact on the an organization’s performance as well as on
the people within the organization. But systems have their limitations, therefore it the
responsibility of thoughtful managers to ensure that the values of the organization and the
weli-being of the individuals involved not be overlooked as daily struggles challenge
organizational viability.

Research Notes:

(1) Drucker, Peter, “Practice of Management”, Harper & Row, New York, NY 1954,
(2) French, Wendall L., “The Personnel Management Process - Human Resources
Administration and development”, Sixth Edition, Houghton Mifflin Co., 1987, pg 341.
(3) Ibid, pg.344.
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DE-MYSTIFYING THE BUDGET PROCESS
Scott Charlesworth

A number of years ago | began my work with non-governmental organizations (NGOs) as a
director for youth programs for the YMCA organization in Florida, USA. When | started my
new job it was a very busy time of year with many new programs underway. As the
program director of this organization | was the only full-time person on staff. This required
that | handle not only the program functions but many administrative functions as well.
Once | got settled, | said to my supervisor, “I know how to organize these programs but |
know very little about setting up the budget.” His response to me was that the budget was
the easy part of the job. It was the logical the act of assigning numbers to the stated
program priorities. In other words, once the program objectives and design are specified,
developing a budget requires only “plugging in” numbers or costs in order to carry out
specific activities. Once the costs are known, then the income side of the budget can be
developed in order to cover the projected costs. While developing budgets, especially
large organizational budgets, can be a bit more complex than stated above this initial
experience helped to de-mystify many of the concerns | had about the budget process.

Some years later | began working for the national office of the YMCA in the United States.
The focus of my work was program and organizational development of YMCAs {NGOs)
around the world. During this time | conducted a number of training workshops in various
parts of the world including Latin America, Africa and some new work in Russia. | recall
one training workshop when we were discussing program development. | asked the
participants to think of a small program (they worked in small groups) and then to develop
a budget for the program activity. After describing the exercise, | asked if anyone had any
questions. One gentleman raised his hand and said, “how much money do we have to
conduct these programs?” | answered, “ | don't know. That is for you to decide. It
depends on the kind of program you want to run.” This caused much confusion, and many
others began to ask the same question. Finally one person said, “You tell us how much we
can spend and then we'll make a plan. Without knowing that we cannot plan a program!”
My response was that this person had the notion backwards: “Plan the program first and
then see what level of funding is needed.” Even after further explanation | still had
difficulty convincing some of the people in the room of the value of this approach.

The events that | have just described taught me early on in my career three important
lessons regarding budgeting and financial planning.

e First, the budget should directly reflect the program priorities of an organization. If the
organization has as its priority the well-being of youth, for example, then the amount
of total funds spent on youth programs compared to total funds spent by the
organization should consistently reflect this priority.

» Secondly, plan the program priorities first and then develop the budget. NGOs are in
business to offer programs and services to people and communities. Therefore, the
program being developed should be in response to a need or interest of a specified
group of people. The development of the budget, therefore, is the means by which the
organization translates the language of the program planning into financial terms. By
so doing, the organization can then determine how much will be needed and verify if
the program, as initially designed, is feasible financially.

+ Finally, a budget should not be seen as a trap or harness but rather as a fiexible and
helpful management tool in looking at program and financing options. Specific budget
line items (costs) can be adjusted to ensure a better functioning program. Once the
program begins, new situations may arise which make it helpful or necessary to adjust
the projected budget figures.

World Leamning/PCC, Financial Management
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Take, as a case in point, a small NGO which has as its principle purpose to create positive

educational and recreational opportunities for children with disabilities. To achieve that

purpose, this NGO has decided that it will organize a summer camp for these chiidren.

Therefore the program objective might be: to conduct a two week summer camp for

60 children with disabilities by August 1996 (see the following article on MBO). To

put this program objective into financial terms a camp program budget may look as

follows: (This is a simplified example using imaginary costs for a day camp program for 10

days, where the children leave and return home each day - Monday through Friday) .

EXPENSE

Staff

1 program coordinator @ $200 per week x 2 weeks $ 400
2 program assistants @ $125 per week x 2 weeks $ 500
6 volunteers ' $ 0

Day Camp Site Rental

$200 per week x 2 weeks $ 400 B
Eguipment

Sports equipment (this should be detailed in an actual budget) $ 250

Crafts equipment (paper, paint, glue, etc.) $ 100

Food and Drink

Lunch provided each day @$2 per child x 60 children x 10 days $1,600
Transportation

Bus rental - 1 66 passenger bus @ $250 per week x 2 weeks $ 500

Camp staff training/orientation

2 meals/day, 10 people, 1 night lodging @ $12 per persons x 2 days $ 240

Miscellaneous Expenses ) $ 150

Administrative Qverhead

10% of direct cost of $3,140 $ 314

TOTAL COST $3,454

With the total estimated cost of $3,454 the organization can now look at the various
strategies or sources of revenue (income) to cover these costs.
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INCOME

Camp Fees

60 children @ $10 per child per week (subsidized rate) x 2 weeks $1,200

Sponsorship from the Mayor’s office $ 750
Fundraising required $1,004
TOTAL INCOME $3,454

This simple example is intended to illustrate the flexibility of the budget process. First of
all, it is important to always estimate the expenses first (estimate costs “comfortably” on
the high side™) and then consider the income (estimate on the low side). If the projected
income meets or exceeds the cost of the 2 week program, then it can be conducted as
designed. If the fundraising amount required, the $1,004 indicated for example, is not
achievable then a number of variables can be introduced. These include:

1} Reducing certain expenses on the expense budget such as securing donations of food
and equipment or involving more volunteers and less paid staff, thus reducing the amount
of income needed to balance the budget:

2) Increasing, in a realistic manner, certain line items on the income budget such as
invoiving more children in the program, raising the camp fee slightly, or securing
additional financial donations: :

3) Using a combination of both approaches by reducing certain expenses and increasing
elements of the income budget.

To conclude, my past experiences working with NGOs have shown me that the most
effective organizations are those which successfully carry out their program priorities
which enable them to fulfill their missions or purposes. As a management tool,
organizational budgets should directly reflect the program priorities of the organization.
The budget should not be viewed as separate from its program or activities but rather a
numerical interpretation of such activities. Developing and using budgets is not a
restrictive action but an informed and flexible process which leads to more effective
program and organizational management.
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BUDGETS

FUNCTIONS:
1. A budget shows what an organization hopes to achieve

within a certain time frame, and the way of using its available
resources to achieve organizational objectives.

2. A budget is a means of carrying out financial activity; it helps
an organization to make effective financial operations.

3. A budget is an action pian. Its key task is to plan the use of
financial resources in time.

USERS:

1. The organization's top management: to control the right use
of the available funds.

2. Executives: to successfully plan and guide the organization's
operations.

3. Donor organizations: to evaluate the proposed programs.
BUDGET ELEMENTS:

1. The budget has two parts:

revenue budget

expenditure budget

2. The revenue budget shows all the possible sources of
financial support available for the organization in the budget
period.

3. The expenditure budget groups expenditures in easily

definable categories, i.e., expenditure items. The standard
group of 15 categories is sufficient for most organizations.

World Learning/PCC, Financial Management
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4. The last line in the budget shows the difference between the
projected revenues and costs for the budget period.
5. The preceeding year's budget is provided for comparison.
6. There are two approaches to drawing the budget:

- budget by programs

- budget by costs

In the budget by programs the organization first decides what it
strives to achieve, and then determines the related
expenditures. In the budget by costs the organization first
determines the amount of available resources, then decides
how to use them.

World Learning/PCC, Financial Management
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Arnold J. Olenick, Philip R. Olenick A Nonprofit Organization Operating Manual, The Foundation
Center,1991

Chapter 5

The Operating Budget:
Key to Planning and Control

We are about to look at the basics of developing a reliable operating budget. The brief overview
precading this chapter, of what is involved in financial management, has important ideas needed to
understand its important role in running your organization effectively.

This chapter and the one that follows focus on the operating budget, which is basic to the other
three budgets defined in the preceding overview. We begin with basic budgeting: how it relates to
planning and evaluating performance, the mechanics involved, whether your objective should be
just to break even. and how to predict cost behavior, pricing issues, and the timing problem in bud-
geting. It will deal with vour overall agency budget, while also considering problems involved in
budgsting for different programs or contracts.

FIVE STEPS IN BUDGETING

Oncs the operating plan for the coming fiscal period is approved by your board (see Chapter 3),
the budget can be worked out from the logistics involved:

1. Expenses are commonty estimated {irst. This is the simpie process of multipiving the number
of people. quantity of supplies. amount of space nesded, etc.. by the estimated cost per unit of
each such item. Normaliy this procsss is handied by the staff, who are the most familiar with the
details. A tentative expense budget should then be submitted to the board for review and approv-
al. There are some instances. covered in the next section. in which the income side comes first. The
expense budget is only tentative at this point.

2. Next comes an assessment of potential sources of income. This is best accomplished by the
people involved in fundraising. including the board. 1t may well involve different kinds of fund-
ing: grants, fund drives, and fees for service, among others.

Some groups have relatively stable and predictable kinds of income, such as from govern-
ment contracts, recurring annual grants from United Way or similar funds, or earned income
from client fess. or they can relate the total of major expenses to ticket sales. When this is the
case. the income side of the budget may be calculated first, and then expenses projected.

3. Ineither situation expenses must be brought into line with reality. Attention may have to be
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the business manager, etc.) more time will be needed to get this laver of input, to negotiate, revise,
and resubmit requests. Where grant or contract proposals to funding agencies are basic to the
budget, the planning schedule must include the necessary time to develop and submit them and
obtain approval, which commonly takes many months. Other fundraising efforts, such as direct-
mail or telephone campaigns, print advertisements, or personal solicitation, take time to plan, or-
ganize, and carry out. (See Fig. 6-1 in Chapter 6 for an example of a budgsting timetable.)

THREE BASIC APPROACHES TO BUDGETING

Using Last Year as a Base

Other than newly minted organizations, the most common way budget estimates are made is
what professionals call “incremental budgeting™ “How much was this item last vear and what
changes should we make?” This has only one thing to recommend it: it’s easier than detailed plan-
ning, which requires converting plans to logistics, logistics to dollars. Incremental budgeting works
fairly well only in stable situations, with the same levels of the same ongoing activities each year. Its
flaw as the sole way to budget, in most situations, is that it is backward-looking.

1. It assumes that what we did last vear was the best we can do. It is better to base our projec-
tions on the most up-to-date estimates of possibilities and opportunities—in terms of income as
well as outgo. How much could we bring in. and what economies could we make without reduc-
ing program quaiity or level?

2. What if pians or costs have changed since last vear? That could mean increased (or de-
creased) program levels. such as number of clients or patients. new programs or services. in-
creased staff or facilities pianned: increased prices. pay scales or fringe benefits. Such changes
must be taken into account.

3. There is a probiem of timing: since we have to do our budgeting before the vear ends, we
don't vet know what “last vears™figures are. A budget workshest is a useful device for reviewing
the vear-to-date figures and projecting income and expenses for the rest of the vear (see Fig.
5-1).

Estimated Amounts

Actual Temative
Amounts Balance Current Increase Final
Yzar-10-Date of Year Year or Decrease  Budget

REVENUE AND SUPPORT
(listed by type or source)

OPERATING EXPENSES
(listed by types)

NET INCOME

FIGURE 51. INCREMENTAL BUDGET WORKSHEET
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shifted back and forth between projected income and outgo before a balanced budget can be
written.

4. The final proposed budget must then be reviewed and approved by the board, after any
fine-tuning required.

5. During the vear the budget must be evaluated periodically to determine whether projected
and actual income and expenses are in line. If not, and the variances (amounts over or under
budget) are substantial. due to incorrect estimates or new developments. the budget must be up-
dated and revised if it is to be of any use at all.

The heart of budgetary control is studying and investigating the cause of variances between
budgeted figures and actual income and expenses. To use a budget known to be out-dated by
events or known errors is to invite wrong conclusions and decisions.

THE BOARD'S ROLE IN BUDGETING

Here is where the board’s uitimate responsibility for the well-being of the organization, discussed
in Chapter 4. becomes essential and inescapable. The annual plan is assumed to embody the
board’s decisions and policies as to the kind. level, and priorities of program activities nesded to ad-
vance the mission and objectives of the agency (see Chapter 3). The budget is the plan expressed
(primarily) in dollars: it incorporates decisions regarding the allocation of what are always scarcs
resources. Thus the budget and the plan must be inseparable. To say, “We plan to increase the num-
ber of clients served by 209, but not provide sufficient monies for the increased expenses that will
result. is just talk. To say. “Okay, vou'li have an assistant next vear” is an empty promise unless the
proposed staff member's salary and benefits are in the budget.

These are matters too important and complicated to be handled at a regular board mesting, un-
less it is dealing with a real financial crisis. The well-run organization has a budget or financs com-
mittee, whose job it is to work with the CEO and CFO in developing the budget. and during the
vear to monitor and help revise it, if necessary. The board itself must of course approve the initial
budget and any such revisions. This approval should never be a mere rubber-stamp formality.

WHEN SHOULD BUDGETING BECIN?

Perhaps a better question is when should planning begin, since the two are one. An obvious an-
swer is “Not after the new fiscal year starts!™ (We've seen that happen, believe it or not.) Not even
the month before. Planning and budgeting are complex processes. If they are to be more than going
through the motions, they demand adequate time—to think, research, discuss, solicit, and recsive
input from those who must live with (and within) the budget, do the calculations, and identify
funding sources. Even in the simplest, single-program nenprofit, that process should take at least
two months, unless the organization is stable with regard to both activity level and funding.

A budget timetable or calendar is a useful working tool, to make sure it all gets done in time. It
should include the first four of the “Five Steps in Budgeting™ presented earlier in this chapter. A
date should be attached to each, allowing a realistic amount of time to accomplish it, preferably
based on past experience. When there is more than one program or segment, and input is nesded
from segment managers (program directors, department or unit heads, the fundraising director,
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Note that this approach is not based squarely on converting the annual plan’s logistics into what
they will cost. except to the extent the proposed increases and decreases can do that. Because the es-
timates for the balance of the vear may not be absolutely accurate, we still won't have this vear's
true amounts as a basis for next year's budget. )

A tip: Don't project the balance of the year mechanically. For example. at the end of September,
don't simply add one third to each of the year-to-date amounts; rather, use your most up-to-date
budget projections for the fourth quarter, or better vet. try to predict what will actually happen
through the end of the year. Be sure that your books are up to date. o that you will have the latest
actual figures as your basis for any projections.

Logistics-Based Budgeting

A better way to budget is to “price out™ the logistics for all activities planned for the next year. This
approach is sometimes (incorrectly) called “zero-based budgeting™ (ZBB), apparently because it
starts from zero rather than building on the previous vear’s figures. (Actually ZBB is a much more
complex and sophisticated method suited primarily to very large organizations such as govern-
ments.) It is a forward-looking method that first considers the plan and then determines how to fi-
nance it.

A Combined Approach

A practical compromise is used by many organizations. Stable costs like core staff payroll. rent.
and other recurring expenditures can be estimated on an incremental basis and adjusted for known
increases or decreases in rates and prices. Expenses that vary with the level of activity, such as addi-
~ tional payroll. space rental. program supplies. and increased utilities usage (telephone and electric-
ity), are then projected on the basis of the annual plan. Worksheets are shown below using the logis-
tics-based method for expenses as well as for revenue and support, using hypotheticai figures.

Yet another approach, flexible budgeting, can also be used. It involves cost behavior analysis
and is examined later in this chapter.

THE BUDGET: A DELICATE BALANCE

It's easier to figure out how much you need than how much youll get. Though we've said most
nonprofits budget expenses first, to get it out of the way, let’s first ook just at the mechanics of bud-
geting revenue and support, since Chapter 8 will deal with how you go about generating income. The
rest of this chapter and the next one will deal with the more complicated problems of budgeting expenses.

To avoid going in the red. it’s better to estimate income (our generic term for both revenue and
support) on the conservative side, expenses on the high side. While income limits what you can af-
ford, expenses determine what you need to bring in. Which comes first? The two sides of the dollar
equation must be worked together for a balanced budget. Operating plans must be realistic, based on
anticipated income; new or increased sources may have to be developed to make priority plans possibie.

Is Breaking Even Good Enough?

Most small nonprofits would feel great just to be able to break even. But let’s look a bit deeper
and look ahead, past that happy day. Would that be good enough? One school of thought holds
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that breaking even is the only legitimate financial goal of a nonprofit: that whatever funds are re-
csived should be spent on delivering services, and therefore that any “profit” is somehow illegiti-

mate.
I is 10 be hoped that this viewpoint is on its way out. Though it may seem a contradiction in

terms for a nonprofit to “make a profit,” that is more a semantic question than a matter of sub-

stance.
What distinguishes a nonprofit from a business is not whether it earns a profit, but what becomes

of it. For a business, profit is the primary goal, the main incentive to invest, since all profits legally
elong to the owners. Profits are paid to them either in dividends or high salaries.
No one owns a nonprofit in the legal sense. Uniess profits are used to enrich its leaders—a viola-
tion of the law exempting it from taxes—they will be used to carry out its mission. Making a profit
should be a performance indicator of your organization, It should never be the most important

one.
Practically speaking, a nonprofit must earn profits to survive. Assuming that correct accounting

methods are used (ses Chapter 10), profits are the only way to generate funds for the following:

1. Repavment of loans or advancss.

2. Investment in capital improvements like equipment and property

3. Working capital: i.e., funds nesded to pay the rent and payroll until approved funding ac-
tually comes in.

4, Reserves to carry the organization through periods of underfunding.

5. Funds to invest in program expansion or in income-producing ventures or activities.

Woe betide the nonprofit therefore that just manages to break even each vear: any of the above
needs that are not provided for may well cripple the organization.

Pricing and Rate-Setting Issues

Someone must pay for whatever a nonprofit provides in the way of goods or services. Some
agencies function like charities. in that they provide free services and look to funding agencies and
donors for all their resources. Others charge for what they provide. in one or more of the following

ways:

1. At full market value, like a business.

2. At cost plus some percentage 1o cover overhead (indirect or general expenses).

3. At cost. But how is that defined? Only the direct costs of the goods or services? What do
these include? What about shared occupancy costs? Indirect. shared costs such as administrai-
ive expenses? (See Chapter 6.)

4. Below cost (however defined). at a price subsidized by grants or donations?

5. Some combination of ail these. perhaps using “scholarships™ or “sliding-scale™ fee sche-
dules, which are related to ability 10 pay.

The above methods are suggested as policy options. How to deal with them in a technical sense is
examined in Chapter 6. Prices charged 1o clients. patients. or customers is a board decision that is
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part of its strategic and annual plans. It will often be based on objective factors such as how well
you are funded. whether you nesd to meet competition, and client’s ability to pay.

Price subsidies paid to the nonprofit by government or other funding agencies—often cailed
rates—are decided by the funding agency or negotiated. Having a good handle on actual costs can
be a major factor in gerting an adequate return.

Pricing with Multiple Programs

Here is a dilemma that has faced many nonprofits, one with philosophical as well as practical
aspects: What if yvou have two programs. one of which is operating “at a profit™ the other. “at a
loss™? Should you raise prices in the “losing™ program? Cut its expenses to where it breaks even?
Find a way to shift some expenses to the other program?

The ultimate decision may result from philosophical rather than practical considerations. but
first the practical aspect:

® How have you defined the sxpenses that are being charged to each program? (This is a com-
plicated process that is explored in Chapter 6.)

® [f vou're considering raising prices in the “loser™ program. what if clients can't afford to pay.
or simply won't? They may either go somewhere else. or just do without.

Businesses recognize that they should not expect every product to make a profit. and they
often set prices on one product or service deliberately low to help sales of a more profitabie one.
(Kodak got started by giving away box cameras so that people would buy fiim. Stores use adver-
tised “loss leaders™ to bring in customers.)

In a nonprofit setting, one program or department might subsidize another. If a program is
important to your mission. it need not break even.-Why risk losing vour target market. either by
raising prices or cutting the amount or quality of service? Would changing to a more popular
service to increase the total revenue be consistent with vour mission. or would it betray it?

The best answer may be one of the following:

1. Adopt the view that it doesn’t really matter if one program subsidizes another.

2. Look for legitimate cost savings in the “losing™ segment that do not hurt the program—
for example, through economies, increased efficiency, use of volunteers, or in-kind contribu-
tions of services, facilities, or supplies.

3. Se=k increased funding or donations for that program that will balance income and
outgo.

Never forget that vou're not running a business. Your primary goal is not profit for its own sake,
but to succeed in your mission by mesting the needs of those it se=ks to serve. It is here that what we
call “the bottom line mentality” can endanger your whole cause. [t could alienate your community,
your clieats, and your donors or funding agencies, who might begin to see you as a business and
withdraw their support. (On the other hand, you can't go on operating at an overall loss either!)

Estimating Income Realistically

A successful business bases its sales forecasts, which represent its primary income, on a combina-
tion of such methods as market research; test marketing; sales estimates by its marketing and sales
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personnel; studies of demographics, economic conditions. and trends; competitors' efforts; prices
and products affecting its market share. The result is at best an educated guess, unless the firm hasa
corner on the market.

It is the fortunate nonprofit that can use many of these techniques, although they should be used
wherever appropnate, especially where the organization is engagad in a for-profit venture. This is
an area in which nonprofits differ greatly, depending on the nature of their mission and organiza-
tional structure,

As discussed in Chapter 8, human service nonprofits are often captive agencies of a state, which
has found it more cost-effective to contract out services than to provide them directly. In such cases,
an agency’s funding source is relatively stable and predictable. Human service agencies in some
fields may therefore find it difficult to raise additional funds to use in strengthening programs or
support services, supplementing inadequate salaries, or adding new, non-contract programs be-
cause they are perceived by donors and funders as being sufficiently “wealthy.” Similar problems
occur in other nonprofit fields, as in the case of community development corporations trving to de-
velop affordable housing.

Other types of nonprofits may have more freedom of operation, but their funding is less reliable.
Because this book seeks to be of value to the maximum number of nonprofit leaders, we now deal
with a wide range of problems that affect funding. '

To begin, what follows is a generic list of the common types of income and the factors involved in
estimating each type for the budget: ’

1. Routine types of income (dues, individual contributions, investment income). Unless vou
are starting from scractch, use last vear's figures, broken down by quarter (or monthly), as a
base. Consider how economic conditions and plannad activities. such as drives. can be expected
to affect them. Changes in available funds will affect investment income.

2. Service income (fess and admissions charged to patrons or clients). Again, use last vear's
amounts and monthly patterns, if such income is stabie. and the anticipated effzcts of the same
factors as above. Take account of planned changss in prices and activity level. Revenues of
short-run projects—such as those of performing arts groups—should be estimated conserva-
tively.

3. Fundraising events and drives should be considered. and the funds expected to be raised
should be estimated conservatively. Again, consider the economic conditions and the level of
effont planned. Previous results can be used as a starting point.

4. Foundation, government, or corporate grants should be classified by tvpe (unrestricted and
restricted, or program grants) and each evaluated as to how definite it is. Instaliment pavments
due from prior grants must, of course, be taken into account. Grants to fund entire programs
should be linked in the budget 1o related expenses, so that both aspects can be cancelled if the
funds are not granted. This is one value of program budgeting, described in Chapter 6.

The need to raise revenues adequate to pay for budgeted costs must be constantly kept before the
planners. The board must take all necessary steps to assure adequate funding. The timing of cash
flow on a quarterly or monthly basis is also a matter of considerable concarn: you cannot pay Feb-
ruary’s bills with a grant due next November.

To project the timing of regular monthly revenues, the new estimated total can be broken down
according to percentages derived from the past. (Table 5-1). Assume that routine revenues such as
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membership dues or service fees totaled $100,000 last year, and were collected in the quarterly
amounts shown below. If the estimate for these revenues for next vear is 3125.000, then quarterly
revenues can be projected by applying the percentages derived from last year's quarterly collections
to the new total.

TABLE 35-1. PROJECTED QUARTERLY REVENUES BASED ON PERCENTAGE DISTRIBUTION
OF PREVIOUS YEAR'S INCOME

Last year's % of last year's total Projected

actuzl revenue received each quarter revenues

Ist quarter $ 20,000 20% $ 25,000
2nd quarter 20,000 20 25.000
3rd quarter 20,000 20 25.000
4th quarter : 40.000 40 50.000
$100.000 10055 $125.000

A Working Example

To give vou an idea of how budgeting techniques work in practice. let’s look at a hypothetical
example of a nonprofit organization. Well callit ...

CENTER FOR COMMUNITY SERVICE, INC!

Revenues Anticipated: The Center has been in existence for several vears, and until
the current year ending Deczmber 31, it had a single program, Program A. A grant of
$15,000 has again besn approved for the coming year by ABC Foundation.

In addition, a state agency grant of 38,300 has been approved. This will cover the salary
and fringe benefit costs of an administrative assistant needed to lighten the workload of
the executive director. At this stage. all paid staff work on a part-time basis.

Other revenues have been from annual fundraising events held during the spring and
winter months, annual dues from about 100 members, and a small amount of interest on
the bank account. Program A is making a modest charge for its services. Program A reve-
nues are expected to total $15,000 this year, and $17,000 next year, A neighborhood bank
has also provided 2,000 square feet of space, rent-free, with an estimated value of 3500 a
month. .

The XYZ Foundation is reported to be in the final stages of approving a $46,000 grant
for Program B, a new type of service to be provided by the Center without charge.

Services and Facilities: Assuming that the XYZ grant comes through, the next year’s
paid staff will consist of an executive director (ED), an administrative assistzant, program
directors for Programs A and B, plus an administrative assistant, secretary for Program
B. Fundraising is done by the ED, with the help of a paid outside consultant.

Program B will also have a paid outside program consuitant, Other essential outside
services will include an attorney and public accountant, zach paid a regular fee for services

'Note that budgeted and actual amounts for this agency are integrated throughout this book. to permit tracing data.
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during the year: the CPA is also paid extra for annual audit services, provided at a reduced
fee. A maintenance company provides a weekly janitorial service for a regular monthly
fee.
As for other facilities, Program A has a station wagon and some equipment, which ori-
ginally cost about $8,000; another $4,800 of office furniture and equipment is used for ad-
ministration and fundraising. Program B will rent all additional equipment necessary: an
automobile, copyving machine, and typewriter.

Expenses Projected: The Center carries basic insurance, including employee health,
workmen’s compensation, liability, and fire protection. All employess are covered by con-
tributions made under the Social Security (FICA) and state unemployment laws, and de-
ductions are made from weskly payroll checks for FICA and federal income taxes with-
held. The board has also authorized $1,000 a year as a budget “cushion,” or contingency
reserve, to take care of unexpected items.

Other expenses are the ones common to nonprofits, such as travel and conferences, sup-
plies, telephone, printing and stationery, postage, utilities, and miscsllaneous office ex-

penses.

Putfing the Budget Together

Now that vou have been formally introduced to the Center for Community Services, Inc., it is
time to pull all the relevant information about the Center together in a svstematic form, and use it
to start our exploration of the budgst process itself. First, we will nead a projection of revenues for

the coming vear. as illustrated in Table 5-2.

TABLE 5-2, SCHEDULE OF ESTIMATED REVENUES

Estimated Estimated amount per quarter
amount
Source for year 1Q 2Q 3Q 4Q
Foundation grants
ABC Foundation
(Program A—approved) $ 15,000 $ 5.000 5 5.000 $ 5,000
XYZ Foundation
{Program B—pending) 46.000 15.000 11,000 10,000 $10.000
State government grant
tapproved) 8.800 2.200 2,200 2.200 2.200
Free rent (definite)) . 6,000 1.500 1.5G0 1.500 1.500
Fundraising events 11,000 5.000 6.000
Program “A" revenuss - 17,000 4,000 35.000 3.000 5.000
Membership dues (100 @ $27) 2.700 1.000 500 200 1,000
Interest income 500 125 125 125 125
Estimated total income $107.000 $28.825 $30.325 $22.025 S25.825

Later in this chapter, when we get down 1o prepanng the budget for the organization, well pick up these figures and incorporate them

into the operaung budget.
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How to Estimate Expenses

Projected expenses for a coming year depend on the planned activities for that vear, and on the
specific goods and services required. Working out the necessary details is commonly the job of the
staff. but is always subject to board approval.

It’s clear that you will want to develop a logical and reliable way to estimate what your various
expenses will be next vear, and more than that, by quarterly or monthly periods.

In putting the annual plan to work, start with the detailed plans of program activities and sup-
port services worked out by the board. You'll need the following information to begin:

¢ How many peopie will you need to carry out these activities? With what skills. and for how
long? When will any new people come on staff? What employee benefits and emplover payroll
taxes will be incurred?

® Where will they work and what facilities (space and equipment) will they need?

® Will they need transportation? How often. how far, and by what means?

® How often do you expect to advertise or do mailings. and how big is vour mailing list?

® What part of these nesded resources can you have donated as an “in-kind™ contribution”

These are not ail of your costs, but some of the larger ones that are most affected by pians and de-
cisions of the board.

Notice that up to this point, money hasn’t been mentioned-—but oniy those things vou automat-
icaily have to think about. Nexz, well talk about money.

LOGISTICS-BASED BUDGETING: SAYING IT ALL IN DOLLARS

Once the nesded resources and their uses have been defined. each must be translated into doilars.
Those closest to the process should be in the best position to caiculate or estimate what each ele-
ment in the plan (facilities, goods, and services) will cost. For example: payroll costs are the product
and the sum of the number of people, the pay scales they will accept, the total hours per day and
periods of time theyll be employed, plus “payroll fringe costs.” These include payroll taxes and any
benefits the nonprofit can offer (vacation pay, health insurance, pension costs, etc.).

Remember that only the mechanics of logistics-based buduenng will be covered here: should you
project any expenses on an incremental basis, use the procedures explained previously.

Before attempting to write the new budget, it is useful to analyze budget variances (amounts over
and under budgets). Analyzing such variations for the current budge: period can be of help in bud-
geting for the next period, because they may reflect one or more of the weaknesses in the last bud-
get, rather than poor performance or later events which required its revision.

The Five Most Common Errors in Budgets

1. Mistakes in arithmetic when pricing goods or services.

2. Known changes in prices or pay scales not taken into account. On the income side, this can
also apply to changes in grants or contract rates,

3. Known changes in plans affecting quantities of goods and servicss, not taken into account.
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4. Expense (or revenue) items overlooked in the budget.
5. Expense or revenue items included in error, that are no longer relevant.

Budgeting should be a collective effort; it will be harder for such errors to go unnoticed if enough
people get in the act, or if someone has the job of checking prices, quantities, and arithmetic. Once a
system is firmly in place, experience will guarantee that the leadership will get sharper in detecting
errors, Budgeting is a skill you develop with experience.

Typical Examples of Budget Calculations

Salaries. Salaries are usually the largest and most important expense of a nonprofit, and they
are often the easiest to project (Table 5-3).

Make a list of personnel vou expect to have on the payroll (by job titles), and indicate their rate of
pay for next year, and also by quarter and month. If you have hourly staff, you should calculate
planned hours = hourly rate. Don’t overlook overtime and provisions for covering vacation or
other paid leave,

TABLE 5-3. SAMPLE ESTIMATE OF SALARIES

Position Monthily salary" Annusl salary Saiary per quarter

Administration )
Executive Director $1.667 $20.000 $ 5.000
Administrative assistant : 7 8.000 2.000
Program A Director 1.33 16,000 4.000
Program B Dirzctor 1.500 18.000 4.500
Administrative assistant secretary 750 9.000 2.250
Total salartes $3.917 $71.000 $13.750

P
Source: Board resolution, contract or current payrol} records. Thase are all part-time scale.

“Pretty obvious and elementary,” you might say. True, but not all expense items are that easy.
Suppose that the staff were not all fuil-time. permanent emplovess. but one or more worked only
part of the year. It would take a bit more figuring to get the total for the vear, and for each quarter,
or for each month. if you are preparing 2 month-to-month budget.

Note: Unless your revenue and expense levels are the same each month, budget items should be
estimated—or at least broken down—by quarterly period. even month by month. The obvious
way to derive monthly or quanerly estimates—dividing the vear's totals by twelve (or four)—is
more dangerous than helpful. because seasonal or periodic fluctuations cannot be taken into
account. .

Printing and stationery costs. Another example that’s a bit more complex would be calculat-
ing printing and stationery costs. A problem might be deciding whether the expenses should be in
the month the materials were bought, or if they should be spread over the periods in which they
were used. As a practical matter, the latter procedure is usually not worth the time and effort in-
volved. Table 54 offers a practical guide to making an annual estimate.
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TABLE 5-4. SAMPLE ESTIMATE OF PRINTING AND STATIONERY COSTS

Quantity per Price” Annual Bought
Item year amt./per cost per quarter
Letterheads 500 $30: 1,000 s 15 Allin Ist Q
Envelopes S00 321,000 16 Allin Ist Q
Brochures for Program B 1.000 30, 100 300 $150 1st Q & 2nd Q
Fundraising letter (self-mailer) 500 50/100 _250 S5 1st Q& 2nd Q
$581

‘Esum:uing expenses trequently involves checking prices with suppliers of goods and services. The more carcfuily these are analyzed.
the more accurate your esttmates will be,

Making Means and Ends Meet

It is often desirable to consider both minimum and maximum (or optimum) amounts for many
items. This is so because exact costs are hard to anticipate, and certain activities can sometimes be
done either better or cheaper, which may mean using either more or less expensive resourcss. In
such cases, budget strategies depend on how adequate and firm the funding prospects are. If {inanc-
ing looks promising, estimating expenses at generous levels will provide a cushion that may heip
prevent running short of funds later. as well as providing funds to do the best job possibie. On the
other hand. if there is a resistance 1o the proposed budget by the board, or if funding falls short, set-
ting expenses at generous levels leaves room to cut back items, if necsssary.

If preliminary totals of anticipated expenses are considerably below anticipated revenues—even
using optimum expense levels—the board should consider whether to add or expand activities. or
whether to replace or acguire additional capital equipment, or whether to accumulate funds for
such acquisitions later on.

Should even minimal levels of expense exceed projected revenues, the board must develop ways
to increase funding. Otherwise one or more activities cr expense items must be scaled down or
dropped. For example. substituting a temporary or part-time staff member for a full-time one,
renting equipment rather than buying it. or using cheaper supplies. Perhaps certain required items
of goods or services could be secured as an “in-kind™ contributions, or some staff functions might
be provided by volunteers,

The Qualitative Effect of Budgeting Changes

While efficiency and economy are important, the nonprofit is not a business, and cannot afford
to lose its effectiveness to achieve them. That is why we put firsz, among the possible alternatives
above, that of the board’s shouldering its basic responsibility for providing essential funding,

A STEP-BY-STEP GUIDE TO PREPARING A BUDGET WORKSHEET

A budget workshezt offers an orderly and systematic way of doing well what is often done badly
on the backs of old envelopes! The workshest helps to organize the budgeting process in a way that
helps to minimize errors and oversights.
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step 1—Expense Budget Worksheet

The expense budget worksheet (Table 5-5) is used to price out details and accumulate totals for
each of the items in a budget. The detailed information itself is the key; a worksheet can only
organize the process. The estimates of quantities and prices of goods and services are up to you. No
worksheet can improve them.

TABLE 5-5. LOGISTICS-BASED EXPENSE BUDGET WORKSHEET

Base Annual Quarter Ending
Item Amount total’ Mar. 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
Salaries
Exec. Dir. $1667: mo $20.000 $ 5.000 $ 5.000 $ 5.000 $ 5.000
Admin. assist. 667/ mo 8.000 2.000 2,000 2.000 2,000
Prog. Dir A 1333/mo 16,000 4.000 4,000 4.000 4,000
Prog. Dir B 1500 mo 18.000 4.500 4.500 4,500 4,500
Admin. asst. B 750; mo 9.000 2.250 2.250 2.250 2250
Total salaries 71.000 17.750 17.750 17.750 17.750
Pavroll fringe costs”
FICA 4.352 1.088 1.088 1.088 1.088
State unemp. ins. tax 810 479 236 95 —
Health ins. 2.500 625 625 625 625
Total fringe 7.662 2192 1.949 1.808 1713
Occupancy
Rent (donated) $500 mo 6.000 1.500 1.500 1.500 1.500
Utilities .
Eiect. & heal 200 mo 2400 600 600 600 600
Water 20 mo 240 &0 60 &0 &0
Janitoniai sves. 150 mo 1.800 450 450 450 450
Total occupancy 10.440 2.610 2.610 2610 2610
Telephone
Administration S50 mo 570 150 150 120 150
Program A 25 mo »s 75 7 50 75
Program B 25 mo 275 78 15 50 75
Total 1eiephone 1.120 300 300 220 300
Printing & stationeny”
Leuerhead—3500 @ 30 M 15 15  (Based on acquisition,
Envelopes—500 @ 32 M 16. 16  not usags)
Brochures, Prog. B, 1000 @ 30-C 300 150 150 (periods in
Fundraising letter 500 @ 50/C 250 125 125 which used)
Totai pnnting & stationery 581 306 275
Postage
Administration—300 @ 25¢ ; 75 20 20 15 20
Program B—600 @ 25¢ 150 75 75
Fundraising—200 @ 25¢ 300 150 150
Total postage”’ 525 245 245 15 20
Travel & conferences
Administrative $ 60:mo 650 180 180 120 180
Program A 50. mo 550 150 150 100 150
Program B [20¢yr 110 30 30 20 30
Total travel & conferences 1.320 360 360 240 360
Subtotais (carried forward) $92.648 $23.763 $23.489 $22.643 S22.753
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TABLE 3-5. LOGISTICS-BASED EXPENSE BUDGET WORKXSHEET (continued)

Item Base Annual Quarter Endinp
Amount total’ Mar. 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
Subtotals (brought forward) $92.648 £23.763 $23.489 $22.643 $22.°583
Supplies
Program A: “x™- 60 @ SI9 1,140 570 300 270
Program B: (unknown) — — — — —
Total supplies (timing based on
acquisition.not usage) 1,140 570 300 270 —
Equipment rentals (Prog. B) :
Otfice typewriter $300: yr 300 75 75 75 75
Copving machine $9601 vr 960 2 240 240 240
Automaobiie . $95 mo 1,045 285 285 190 285
Total equipment rental 2.305 600 600 505 600
Professional fess
Consultants
Fundraising $2.400: vr 2.400 600 600 600 600
Program B 2400 yr 2400 600 600 600 600
Legal 500 vr 500 125 125 125 128
-Accounting
Quarterly fee 150 Q 600 150 150 150 150
Annual audit 500 vr 500 500
Total professional fess 6.400 1.975 1475 1475 1475
Miscallaneous expenses
Otfice =xpense $30. mo 330 90 90 60 90
[nsurance
Liabiiity 200 yr 200 50 50 50 50
Workmen's comp. 300 yr 300 75 75 75 75
Fire 100 vr 100 25 25 25 25
Contingency reserve 1.000. vr 1.000 250 250 250 250
Total misceilaneous expense 1,920 490 490 460 490
Grand Totals S104.423 $27.398 $26.354 $25.353 $25.318

“Lower amounts in certain categories in the 3rd Quaner are due to closing shop during July.

®Pavroll fringe costs (taxes and benefitsi: FICA is the IRS abbreviation for Social Security Tax. Not many nonproiits caiculate sach of
these items separately as shown above, preferring the shoricut of using a flat percentage of payroll for all periods. The average for the
year shown above would have deen 10.79%; it varies each quarter, as employess exceed the cut-off ceiling on unempioyment insurance.
(A flat amount using 115 could have been used for all quaners to simplify the job.)

“The zost of letterheads and envelopes is shown in the period to be bought, not in the period used. To show the alternative method.,
brochures and fundraising letiers were treated as expense in period used.

‘1990 first class rate. Lower nonproiit rate may be available.

You'll notice on the worksheet that the list of budgeted salaries shown earlier in Table 5-3 makes
up the first group of words and figures. The only difference is that we've set up four quarterly
columns so that we can derive quarterly totals later on.

You'l aiso see that the caiculations for printing and stationery expenses from Table 5-4 make up
another group. The other expense categories and amounts are intended to represent typical
examples, and are by no means all the items that might be included. All items except the “Payroll
Fringe Costs™ group should be self-explanatory. Payroll fringe costs, which include payroll taxes

I
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and, in this case, health insurance, are explained in detail in Chapter 17. (See also footnote b, Table
5-5.)

step 2—Preparing the Operating Budget

The first thing you will have to decide is which form of budget to use. There is no single standard
or best form. Because it must reflect the activities of organizations that come in many sizes and
shapes. and which conduct activities of innumerabie types, a budget is more a concept than a stan-
dard format. Although general-purpose formats for budgets and budget worksheets are iliustrated
later in this chapter, they must be designed or adapted to meet the specific needs of the nonprofit
using them.

How to “Invent” a Line-ltem Budget

Once vou have the raw data you need for budgsting (revenues and expenses), what should vour
budget look like? First of all. you're probably wondering if vou need all those complicated calcula-
tions in the budget itself. Chances are you'll agree the answer is “no.” Second, it is obviously
necsssary 10 compare expensss against revenues to see if they are “covered.” Finally. since vou'll
need to use the budget more than just once a year, you'll want to divide it into a series of monthiy or
quarterly budgets,

Putting these ideas into operation. vou'll end up with the simplest budget format—the one used
most widely by small or new nonprofits, the “line-item™ budget (Tabie 5-6). It consists of columns
of figures for the year and by quarter, showing the total amount budgeted for each kind of expense
(salaries. rent, e1c.) without regard to program or activity. This form may be adeguate for a small
and non-complex nonprofit. one with only a single kind of activity.

There is one rule that applies to every form of budget: if the budget is to be of any vaiue in =valu-
ating actual results. it must be prepared using the same classifications, categories, and accounting
methods as those used in the financial reports. For exampie. the budgeted cost of appies cannot be
readily compared with the actual cost of the apples bought. if the latter are included in an expense
item cailed “Fruit.” (This will be spelled out more clearly in Chapter 12, under the explanation of
Chars of Accounts.)

The data in Tabie 5-6 come from the Schedule of Estimated Revenues (Table 5-2) and the Ex-
pense Budget Workshest (Table 5-5).

Now, trace the figures. item by item, from the Revenue Schedule and Expense Workshests to the
Operating Budget. and you will notice that the amounts have merely been transferred (or “posted.”
in accounting jargon) from the workshests to the budget itself, using the quarterly columns
provided to make it easy to obtain a total for each quarter.
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TABLE 3-6. CENTER FOR COMMUNITY SERVICE. INC.
QUARTERLY OPERATING BUDGET (LINE-ITEM FORMAT)

Quarter ending"

Annual total Mar, 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
Estimated Revenues
Foundation grants

ABC (Program A—approved) S 15.000 S 5000 $ 5.000 S 5.000 -

XYZ iProgram B—pending) 46,000 15.000 11.000 10.000 $10.000
Government grants : .

(Admin. assistant—approved) 8.800 2.200 2.200 2.200 2.200
In-kind contribution (free rent) 6.000 1.200 1,500 1.500 1.5
Fundraising events 11000 5.000 6.000
Revenues from Program A

Services (show by program) 17.000 4.000 5.000 3.000 5.000
Membership dues (100 @ 527 2.700 1.000 500 200 1.000
Inerest income 500 125 125 125 125

Total estimated revenues 107.000 28328 30.325 22.028 25.325

Budgeted expenses

Salaries 71.000 17.750 17.750 17750 17.750
Payroll fringe costs 7.662 2.192 1.949 1.308 1713
Occupancy 10440 2610 2,610 ©25610 2,610
Telephone 1120 300 500 220 300
Printing & stationery 581 306 27s

Postage 525 245 25 15 20
Travel & conferences 132 360 360 240 360
Supplies 1.140 570 300 270

Equipment rentals 2.205 600 600 505 600
Professional fees 6,400 1.975 1,475 [475 1475
Office expenses 330 90 %0 60 90
[nsurance 600 150 150 150 150
Contingency reserve 1.000 250 250 250 250

Total expenses before depreciation” 104.423 27.398 26354 25353 25.318

Depreciation’ 2,577 645 6dd 6l 644

Total budgeted expenses $107.000 =3.043 $26.998 $25397 - §25.962

Excess of revenue over expense - s 782 $ 1327
Excess of expense over revenue’ -~ S 3972 s 137

'Quanerlv rather than monthly, columns have besn used here. to save space. An operating budget finds maximum usefuiness for
conlrol and evaluation purposes when it is set up and compared with actual revenues and expenses on a month-io-month basis.

"Ia prepaning budgets from worksheets, make use of the grand totai or any other group totals as a cross-check of accuracy in transfer-
nng figures. For examplie, the five coiumn totais above marked “Total expenses before depreciation™ should agree with the correspond-
mg figures on the “Grand totals™ line in the worksheet (Table 5-5).

Dcpmauon is included for the sake of compieteness and comparability with financial reports, For the reasons for using it and
where the figures come from, see Chapter 10.

“Interim excesses of expenses over revenues, as shown in the third quarter. are not significant in an operating budget. which is usually
prepared on an accrual basis (sez Chapter 6); iLe.. the timing of expenses is based on date incurred, not when paid. They are crucial.
however, in a cash budget, or where the operating budget takes such timing into account.
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USING COST BEHAVIOR PATTERNS IN BUDGETING

Just to get the feel of this subjcct just suppose you had only one program, and vour board
planned to increase its activity level, in terms of the number of people served next year, by 25%, If
this year’s total expenses are $80,000, would you advise the board that you will need $20,000 more
(25% more money) to cover increased costs? Most people, even if it's a new question, gwe the right
answer to that question intuitively. They point out that not all expenses would increase in the same
proportion as the number of clients.

While some costs are variable (change in proportion to activity level), others are fixed (do not
change with the activity level). Thus vour rent is usualy fixed, unless you add space; program
supplies used generally vary with the number of clients.

Now suppose vou've determined that a quarter of your current expense is variable, the rest fixed.
You'd then be in a position to give your board a more reliable rough estimarte of how much more
funding you'd need, as follows:

Present costs  Increase Next vear
Variable costs $20.000 (25) $5.000 $25.000
Fixed costs 60.000 ~0- 60.000
Total $80.000 $5.000 $85.000

Without considering this distinction. you'd be exaggerating the size of the problem.

Keep somewhere in the back of vour mind. nevertheless, that even fixed costs are only fixed
within a certain range of activity. which accountants call the “relevant range.” For example. with
your present program space. vou can often handle up to a certain number of clients. Above that
number you might need more space: considerably bzlow it, you may need less—meaning possibly
less rent to pay.

Knowledge of how your agency’s own costs behave can be an important budgeting tool. Note at
this point that all expenses can be classified into one of the following behavior patterns:

1. Variable costs, which change in proportion to some activity level (not always number of
clients).

2. Fixed costs, which are unaffected by changes in activity level.

3. Mixed costs, which are part variable, part fixed. Telephone expense, for example: a fixed
minimum charge, plus variable charges depending on usage—which incidentally may vary with
fundraising activity rather than number of clients. (Some people call these “semi-variable
costs.™)

4, Stcp—vanable fixed costs are used to describe fixed costs that go up in jumps (steps) when
activity increases by certain numbers. An example would be salaries of case workers, teachers,
or nurses, who could each handle up to a certain number of people; above that number, you'd
need to add salary for another person in that job category.

(These cost behavior patterns are illustrated graphically in Fig. 5-2.)

Using these cost behaviors makes possible still another budgeting approach, flexible budgeting.
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Chapter 7
Cash and Capital Budgeting

If there is any subject seen as a life-and-death matter by nonprofits, cash flow is it! Staying afloat
isthe name of the game here. and our phrase for how you sometimes have to do it is “beg, borrow or
stall!"—But that comes after vou're in trouble. This chapter is about survival planning, by antici-
pating cash flow—to the extent vou can do so in the nonprofit's uncertain world.

In case vou think you've already taken care of that with your nifty operating budget, think again,
or vou may be in for a big (and unpleasant) surprise.

THE CONCEPT OF CASH FLOW

Cash flow is a much misused and misunderstood term, in the business world as well as that of the
nonprofit. Correctly used. it means the excess of cash received over cash paid out during a given pe-
riod. Organizations sometimes approximate it bv adding to the net income (“profit”) any expenses
that did not require the current use of cash. such as depreciation expense. That has misled a lot of
peopie, since it ignores cash received and paid that does not directly affect the bottom line.

What is important to understand about cash flow is its timing and its cyclical nature. Fig. 7-1 il-
lustrates the flow of cash: where it comes from and where it goes. It is interesting that credit is a con-
cept that has a place in the cash flow cycle. One way 10 view the purpose and effect of credit on the
cvcle is to see it as merely delaying the timing of cash payments from when they would be made if all
transactions were strictly for cash. A way to view the role of vour craditors in that respect is to
imagine that they have loaned vou the money to pay for current supplies and expenses, which vou
will pay back later. That puts the repayment in a different period than the expense itself.

A well-run organization can make good use of three different working tools in staying on top of
cash flow:

1. An annual cash flow budget, for over-all financial planning, since the operating budget
only deals with the income and expense part of your activities.

2. A month-by-month cash budget, 10 anticipate possibie cash shortfalls during the year that
won't show up in the annual cash flow budget.

4
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3. A monthly worksheet, for scheduling payments, assigning priorities if necessary, and for
making sure you'll have enough in the bank to cover the payments.

CASH INFLOWS CASH Op’TFLOWS
{Sources) Beginning Balance (Uses)
Borrowing

Cash
> ——— Invested
lnvestments CASH IN BANK
. (collections) >
Receivables: A (debts )
Fees Billed, ' _E_aid_)_’ Creditors
Pledges. and
Grant Awards Lznders
A i
| |
! Y
Revenue and OPERATIONS ( Goods and
e . .
Support Generated | Expenses: Goods | Services Raceived
(for cash and credit) & Servicss Used (for cash and credit)

FIGURE 7-1. THE CASH FLOW CYCLE.

Note that the cash balance is decreased if total outflows exceed total inflows.

A CASH BUDGET ENHANCES AN OPERATING BUDGET

In our overview of the role of financial management that preceded Chapter 5, we briefly made
the point that a cash budget is necessary. Now let’s ses why the two are different, and why both are
needed:

1. To project your incoming and outgoing cash, vou can’t stop at income and expenses, as you
do in an operating budget. There are deposits and payments that are neither income nor ex-
penses. Take for example money borrowed. That’s a debt, not income, since it must be repaid
eventually. ,

Other examples are payments of amounts owed, loans or advances by the agency, and pur-
chases of equipment or property. These are not expenses, yet they must be taken into account,
therefore all such cash transactions must be covered in the cash budget.

2. Even the monthly amounts of income and expenses are not exactly the same in a cash
budget as in an operating budget. For example, when you prepare your operating budget, your
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mind is on what income you expect to earn or be granted, and what expenses vou expect to
incur—not when you expect the cash to be received or paid. Both income and expenses may fall
in a later month—sometimes even in the next fiscal year. It is also possible that you will receive
or pay for something in an earlier month, such as collecting a grant in the last month of one year
that applies to a program beginning in the first month of the following year. (In Chapter 10 we
will come back to this mind-set, a description of the accrual method of accounting.)

Note also that the operating budget deals, as its name indicates, only with income and expenses,
regardless of when cash changes hands. To repeat, it is therefore not an overall financial budget,
which would include other sources and uses of cash. It is prepared on a basis we will later refer to as
the accrual basis,

Your cash budget differs from the operating budget both in what it contains and in the timing of
when income and expense items are included (Fig. 7-2). In fact, timing is the crucial difference.
There's no point in using an operating budget that might show a “profit™ for a given month or
quarter, when in fact there might be a cash shortage that will have to be covered.

A chart summarizing the differences between operating and cash budgets is shown below at Fig.
7-2.

Operating Budget } Cash Budget
Tvpe of Item Included? When? ~ Included? When?

Revenue & support: .

Services for cash Yes Date earned Yes Date of collection

Servicss on credit Yes Date earnsd Yes Date of collection

Grants awarded Yes Date earned Yes Date of collection

Pledges Yes Date sarned Yes Date of collection

Cash donations Yas Date samned . Yes Date of collection

Investment income Yes Date earned Yas Date of collection
Other sources of cash:

Borrowed money No — ; Yes Date cash recsived

Investments sold Gain only At sale . Yes(all)  Date cash received

Other assets sold Gain only At sale ¢ Yes (all) Date cash recsived
Operating expenses: :

Paid in cash Yes Atpayment Yes Date paid

Incurred on credit Yes Incurred : Yes Date paid

Paid in advance Yes As used Yes Date paid
Other uses of cash: :

Loans repaid No — i Yes Date paid

Cash invested No . - | Yes Date paid

Equipment purchases No As used Yes Date paid

(via depreciation) |

FIGURE 7-2. COMPARISON OF ITEMS INCLUDED. OPERATING AND CASH BUDGETS.
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A BUDGETED CASH FLOW STATEMENT: POWER TOOL
IN FINANCIAL PLANNING

Let's start with the big picture: your financial plan for the year as a whole. When your operating
budget for the vear is completed. to do a cash flow projection you still must add to it the nonincome
and nonexpense items already mentioned. even before considering the more detailed question of
timing.

You'll probably need to consult all of vour annual planning documents. The operating budget
tells vou how much you plan to spead for expenses and where you plan to get it. (In this case. you
can work on revenue and support first. expenses afterwards.) The organization's annual plan
should reflect any planned purchases of equipment and increases or reductions of debts; if not.
these are matters to be determined and provided for. Work plans should normally consider when
new equipment is to be bought, which will help with the timing. Your capital budget, formal or in-
formal, which we will cover later in this chapter, is the source of information about how much vou
plan to spend on new capital equipment. and how vou plan to pay for it, which affects the timing.

When vou've pulled together all of the above figures, there is one more step: the timing of income
and expense payments. You need to consider whether there are any items omitted that may affect
the first month or two of the fiscal vear you are budgeting. These would include any expected in-
flows or outflows of cash that relate to the current vear. (Let’s number the vears we are talking
about for clarity: the current year. Year [; next vear, Year 2: the vear after next, Year 3.) Here are
examples: collections in Year 2 of grants. pledges or service fess set up as recaivables in Year |, or
payment in Year 2 of expenses or other obligations of Year 1. These payments should be added to
the income and expense figures derived from your operating budget for Year 2, which will not
include payments of amounts that apply to Year [.

The same process in reverse should be undertaken for the final months of Year 2 (the budgeted
fiscal year): income and expenses inciuded in the operating budget that will not be paid until Year 3.
These items should be subtracted from the amounts of income and expense derived from the
operating budget, which include Year 2 income and expense that will not become cash transactions
until Year 3,

At best, this is a wide-angle view, since trving to anticipate how much cash will come in each
month for a whole year is virtually impossible. And if the cash doesn’t come in. you can’t spend it;
that means that your month-by-month cash budget for expenses is even less reliable than your bud-
geted cash inflow. A budgeted cash flow statement for a year, before developing monthly amounts,
is shown in Table 7-1.
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TABLE 7-1. CENTER FOR COMMUNITY SERVICE, INC.
BUDGETED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flow from operations

Budgeted net income per operating budget’ 0~
Add back noncash expenses®
Depreciation 82577
Amortization of prepaid insurance 300
Add. deduct changes in balances of receivabies/ payables®
Net (increase); decrease in receivables -0-
Net increase/(decrease) in accounts pavable -0-
Increase/(decrease) in accrued expenses 200
Increase; (decrease) in accrued taxes —-0-
Increase! (decrease) in withholding taxes payable S 500
Total adjustments $3.577
Net cash from operations 3.577
(“Net cash used for operations™ if negative)
Cash flow from planned investments
Proceeds of pianned sale of fixed assets® -0-
Payments for planned purchase of fixed assets’ (2.000)
Money market account investment, transfer -0-
Net cash from (used for) investments . $(2.000)
Baiance : S1.577
Cash flow from planned financing
tann=d borrowing EX
Pianned payments on loans. morgages, etc. 5(2.000)
Net cash from (used for) financing $2.000
Budgeted net increase (decreasel in cash 3.577
Add: cash balance—beginning of vear $2.000
Budget cash balance—end of vear §5.577

‘It 1s possibie. but far more time-consuming. to work with the details of income and expenses insteag. however, tngse amounts are
shown on the Operating Budget. This shont<cut ts usually used.

"Changes in these balances adjust the Net Income from an accrual basis 10 a cash basis.

"Actual cash proceeds of sale are substituted ior gains or losses on the saie of assets. Only down payments and cash purchases are
shown here,

Using the Budgeted Cash Flow Statement

At this point you have a financial overview useful for answering some basic financial questions.
For example. as a general proposition, will our projected cash inflows for the vear cover our
planned cash payments for expenses, plus other nonexpense outlays?

If the answer is no. as it may well be, how do we bring the two into agreement? Can we realistic-
ally plan for increased fundraising, and if so, what type? This will give us early warning to start the
planning, which takes time (sez Chapter 8). If we cannot raise funds. what outlays can be deferred
or even reduced (an equipment purchase, for example)? If none of the above, we know that
arranging for borrowing may be the only answer, Since that too takes time, we are in a position to
start the process early.

e b A
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If the answer is ves (inflows will cover outflows), it probably means the previous work that made
the cash flow statement possible—our annual pian and operating budget—was done carefully and
thoroughly. Before deciding to go on a spending binge, however, don't overlook the timing factor.
Never forget that all accounting statements and budgets chop up the past and future into arbitrary
windows of time: a year. a quarter, or a month. That fat cash balance projected for the vear’s end
may be a beautiful illusion that will evaporate the following month when some big outlay is
necessary!

If that is not a problem, meaning vou’ll have more cash than nesded. you'll now have the
pleasant problem of deciding what to do with the excess cash. Your options are fairly clear:

. Increase the budgeted aliowances. where appropriate, to put some or all of it to use—such
as bringing staff and. or salaries into line.

2. Buy that equipment you nesd, but didn’t think you'd have enough money for this time
around.

3. Pay off back debt to improve your credit rating and reduce or eliminate interest charges.

4. Invest it (conservatively) to earn revenue. Use this investment as a cash reserve. to be drawn
on when vou have a future shortfall.

The thing to sez here is that the cash flow budget is a power tool for overall financial planning. It
should. to the 2xtent possibie. be worked on in paralle! with the operating budget. since operations
and finances nezd to go hand in hand. At the end of vour fiscal vear. an actual cash flow statement
should be prepared. to ses whether vour overall financial plan was carried out as intended (ses
Chapter 15). If your actual ending cash balance is a lot different than was projected. a line-by-line
comparison of the actual cash flow statement with the budgeted one will pinpoint why that hap-
pened. That will then serve as a review of your agency's overall financial performance. as dis-
tinguished from the results of its program and support activities. As the only financial report that
makes this possibie, the cash flow statement should be used far more often than it usually is.

YOUR MONTH-BY-MONTH CASH BUDGET

A month-by-month cash budget can serve to fine-tune the annual cash flow budget. There’s no
point going to sleep happy that your total cash inflows budgeted for the year will exceed your bud-
geted outflows. Money doesn’t flow like a river, but often comes in spurts—or perhaps “dribs and
drabs”would be more descriptive. When you look at it on a month-to-month basis, therefore, you
may find one or more months in which your outflow exceeds vour inflow. Unless you start out with
enough in the bank to cover a shortfall, you'd be in trouble. That’s why you ne=d a month-by-
month cash budget. You may be abie to get by with an operating budget that shows quarterly
amounts, but without a cash budget laid out by months, you are risking problems.

As with the operating budget, it’s best to start preparing your cash budget with the money to be
speat, then the funds you expect to receive, month by month. If any month shows a shortfall, that’s
something you'll have to plan how to cover. It may mean drawing on invested funds, if you have
any, arranging {or a short-term loan or a special fund drive, or perhaps changing the timing of one
or more expenditures. We'll be looking at cash management as such in Chapter 14. Here it is 2
matter of anticipating such probiems in the planning stage.
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[ABLE 7-2. CENTER FOR COMMUNITY SERVICE, INC.
MONTHLY CASH BUDGET WORKSHEET*

Operating Date Cash budget for month of:°
budget payment dan. Feb. March
Cash Balance—beginning’ Ist quarter due’ S 2.000 $ 3.285 5 7919
Estimated cash receipts
Revenues (operating budget)
ABC Foundation grant $ 5.000 Feb. $ 5.000
XYZ Foundation grant 15,000 (monthly) 5000 5.000 5.000
State grant 2,200 (monthly) 800 700 700
In-kind (rent) 1,500 (noncash) - - -
Program “A" services 4,000 (as shown) 1.000 2.000 1,000
Dues 1.000 {as shown) 500 400 100
Interest 125 (monthly) 20 20 85
Total estimated revenues 28.825
Estimated cash revenue 7.320 13.120 6.885
Nonrevenue receipts*
Temporary loans borrowed Jan. (repay in Apr.) 2,000
Est. total cash received 9.320 13.120 6.885
Est. total cash available 11.320 16.405 14.804
Estimated cash disbursements
Expenses (operating budget plus
workshest)
Salaries tall) $17.750 (monthiy) 2917 5917 5916
Less taxes withheld (3057) 1.775 1.775 1.775
Net salaries 4142 4142 4.141
Payroll fringe costs*
Payroll taxes 1.567 tfor previous Q.) 674 — -
Heaith insurance 625 {for previous Q.) 375 - -
Rent tdonated)’ 1.500 {noncash) — — —
Electricity & heat’ 600 (montily) 200 200 200
Water' 60 {March) - - 60
Janitorial services” 450 {monthly) 150 150 150
Telephone (all) 300 {monthly) 100 100 100
Printing & stationery 306 (Feb.) - 306 —
Postage 245 (Jan.) 245 — -
Travel & conferences 360 (as shown) 60 180 120
Suppiies 570 (Feb.) - 570 -
Equipment rentals 60 (monthiy) 200 200 200
Professional fees*
Consuitants 1.200 (monthly) 400 400 400
Legal 125 {March) —_ —_ 125
Accounting (Q/annual) 650 (Feb.'Mar.) - 150 500
Office expense 90 {monthly) 30 30 30
Insurance’
Liability (prepaid | vear) 50 (March) - — 200
Workmen's comp. 75 (prior quaner) 75 — -
Fire {prepaid 1 vear) 25 (Dec.) - - -
Contingency reserve 250 (“cushion™) 84 83 83
Depreciation 645 (noncash) -— — —
Total estimated expenses
(carned forward) $28.043 $6.735 $6.511 $6.309
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BLE 7-2. CENTER FOR COMMUNITY SERVICE, INC.
IJNTHLY CASH BUDGET WORKSHEET" (continued)

Operating Date Cash budget for month of:
budget pavment Jan. Feb. March
sh Balance—beginning’ Ist quarter due’ S 2.000 $ 3285 s 7,919
Total estimated expenses
{brought forward) 23.043 $6.735 $6.511 $6.309
Add: nonexpense pavments: For Dec.. Jan,
Withholding taxes paid & Fzb. 1.100 1,775 LT
Equip. installment payments {monthly) 200 200 200
8.035 8.186 8.284

Est. otal cash disbursements
t. balance end of month

S 3.285 $ 7.919 $ 6.320

“Cash balance at beginning of January comes from December 31 checkbook baiance—actual or estimated. February | and March |
lances are carried over from “Estimated Balance—End of Month™ (January and Feoruary). “Estimated Total Cash Availabie™ equais
inning balance plus cash receipts. “Estimated Balance—End of Month™ is total cash available minus 1otal cash disoursements.
"Iniormauon in “Date Payment Due™ coiumn is based on analysis of pavment arrangements or possibilities affecting timing, Note

ms paid in advance, such as insurance for the whole vear, and items due creditors willing to defer payment: e.2.. audit fee.

“Note especially noncash items (in-kind contribution of free rent and rent expense, also depreciation) and handling of withholding

xes (deduct from current period salary, pay in foilowing peniod. January payment for December W.T. and payroll taxes reflecied lower
wrolls last year, before Program B increase).

“Data for nonrevenue receipts and nonexpense pavments: from the books, supplementary records (pavroil. amounts receivabie or
syable, etc.). Budgeted equipment purchases would appear nere. (It is assumed that there were no other unpaid expenses or revenues as

“January L)
“Data derived from Tables 5-5 and 5-6, “Mar. 31™ column.

Still. you must start somewhere, in order to anticipate the best you can any months in which vou
aay run dry. You can't afford to let that happen unexpectedly, because unpaid bills can damage
‘our credit, and unpaid salaries can ruin morale. An illustration of a monthly cash budget is given
n Table 7-2. It is developed from the monthly or quarterly operating budget, taking into account
he timing of items they contain (see “Mar. 31" column in Tables 5-5 and 3-6), the Budgeted
statement of Cash Flows (Table 7-1), and the text precsding it. The footnotes to Table 7-2 give
letailed explanations.

Cash flow budgets can be prepared more easily with microcomputer spreadshest programs (see
Appendix 11C).

WHERE TO FIND THE DATA YOU NEED

Now that you've broken your operating budget down by month, you have a fair idea of how much
expense you'll incur each month. But how much will you nesd to pay out in the same month? Is the
budgeted amount of income each month the same as the amount of cash you expect to deposit?
Probably not. Don’t forget about the differences in timing, or about other obligations and plans.

Timing Differences

To calculate timing differences and their effects, use the same approach as described above for
preparing the income and expense parts of the annual cash flow budget. Adjust the beginning and
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end of each month to a cash flow basis. Shift amounts from the month expenses are incurred to the
month that cash will be paid for them. Use the same technique for shifting income. The footnotes
pelow Table 7-2 give further information about some of the detailed procedures necessary.

If vour annual statement is prepared on an accrual basis, vour balance sheet may contain items
such'as Accounts, Pledges or Grants Receivable or Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses. If
your monthly or quarterly statements are prepared the same way during the year (regardless of how
your books are kept), you should find the same balance sheetitems. You can use them nicely to help
vour cash budgeting. All vou nezd to know or anticipate is what your coliection or payment pat-
terns are.

For example, if you usually pay all vour bills the following month, January’s Accounts Payable
and Accrued Expense shouid be February’s Payments for Expense. The same approach may be
used—probably somewhat less reliably—with vour receivables, unless you have a good idea of
how long they usually take to collect.

You can often come pretty close by examining past patterns: if grants are generally recorded as
receivables when approved, and received, say, two months later, vou can enter their budgeted
collection two months after the actual or anticipated approval date, If 20%, of the service fess billed
are usually collected in the same month, 70% the following month and the balance two months
later, you can apply these percentages to the fee income budgeted each month to find the monthsin
which to include them in the cash budget.

Here’s a worked out example for service fees, based on the above percentages:

Total To be collected in
Amount January February March
Aczounts recsivable $63.000 $56.000 S 7.000 s 0
Balance 1231
Budgzted fess
January 50.000 (1005%) 10,000 (206%) 35,000 (70%) 5000 (Bal.)
February 40.000 (100%) 0 8.000 (20%;) 28.000 (70¢%)
March 60.000 (100%) 0 12,000 (20%)
Esumated Fees Coliected $66.000 550,000 $45.000

————J

This example assumes that December 31 Accounts Recsivable consisted of the remaining
balances of November and December fees earned. It also assumes that 20% of fees are collected
in the month earned, 70% the following month. and the remaining 109 the month after that.

This type of calculation is used in automated cash flow budget spreadsheets used on micro-
computers (sometimes via the use.of a so-called “template”™). Using the computer saves a lot
of time. (See Appendix 11C.)

Don’t overlook other sources of information about incoming cash. Items that may be contained
in “off-the-books™ records include pledges, unrecorded receivables for grants awarded or for
reimbursements on contracts or grants, anticipated payments to your organization on the principal
of notes or loans receivable, on instaliment sales you have made, on mortgages receivable
vou hoid as investments, or on past sales of realty. (Any interest that will be earned should
have been included in your operating budget.)

A similar approach can be used if vou usually pay part of vour bills in the month received,
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and for pavments due on the principal of installment sales, loans, notes, and mortgages you
owe to others. (Again, any interest expense should be in your operating budget.)

Cash Budgeting in the Real World

The work of the CFO (financial manager) should involve monitoring vour cash needs on
a weekly (or bi-weskly) basis, depending on how often you pay your staff. To do a good
job of this, two working toois are needed:

1. The monthly cash budget. shown in Table 7-2, would usuaily show a whole vear.
Because of space limitations, we have shown only threz months. The best way to use the
budget is to keep adding a new month at the end, dropping the first month: that way
you always have the long view ahead.

2. A worksheet covering only the current month, which gets down to the detailed planning
within that month: whom do we pay when, based on how much we'll have in the bank
each wesk. is a tool of cash management, rather than budgeting in the usual sense. It is
explored further in Chapter 4.

{tems Not from the Operating Budget

Notice in Table 7-2 that “cash receipts™ includes monies borrowed as well as income: the
temporary loan to be borrowed in April. Note also the nonexpense pavments: pavment of
taxes withheld and of equipment installments. The loan repayment scheduled for Apnl would
also appear in this section, during the month of April.

HOW ACCRUAL BASIS ACCOUNTING AFFECTS THE BUDGET FIGURES

We gave a brief definition of accrual basis accounting in Chapter 6; however, if the subject
is new to vou, the following introduction may be useful. The cash budget illustrated in Tabie
7-2 made use of certain unstated assumptions about the operating budget on which it is based:

1. That expenses were projected basically (though not fully) on an accrual basis, and
revenues essentially on a cash basis. (For example, the three grants, if approved by January
1, might be considered first quarter revenues, but the anticipated amounts due quarterly
have been shown instead.) A few items in the operating budget were, for the sake of simplicity
and realism, actually recorded on a cash basis: e.g., letterheads and envelopes (under Printing
& Stationery) and Supplies, which were based on date purchased, not date consumed.

2. That there will be little quarterly or month-to-month variation in expense items and
that most expenses will be paid in the same quarter as incurred. Any exceptions have bee?
taken into account in the operating budget, or in the cash budget worksheet (Table.7-;-'
2). Note for example the effect of increased payroll for Program B on the amount of withholding
and payroll taxes paid in January vs. February. 7

3. That no salary payments are due after the end of the month earned; otherwise the
cash budge: would have to take that into account, and January’s salary payment woul :
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oe lower than February’s due to accrued (unpaid) January salaries under the new program

exceeding similar amounts carried over from December. The accrued payroll taxes for the

previous quarter (ended December 31) are lower than those accrued for the current year's

first quarter, which will be due in April. (It has been assumed that all payroll taxes and
health insurance premiums are due quarterly; in practice, they may be due monthly.)

Caution: It is important to note that where any of these assumptions do not apply, the
step-by-step process of adjusting from operating to cash budget would be affected accordingly.
Thus, where any expenses do vary substantially in amount between periods, the time lag
between incurring and paying them will show the amounts in the wrong period, unless
this pattern is taken into account.

WHEN YOUR BOOKS ARE ON THE ACCRUAL BASIS

We haven’t discussed the distinction betwesn budgets or financial statements prepared
on the accrual basis and keeping vour books that wav. which is not the same thing. That
comss up in Chapter 10. Since we won't be talking about budgeting again after that, this
is the only appropriate place to deal with that situation. This material will be clearer later,
when vou nezd to deal with it.

Where the books are kept on a full accrual basis, the unpaid sxpenses at the end of
each month are shown as accrued expenses or accounts pavable (ses Chapter 11), which
then do not show up as expenses in the month paid. The same applies to any revenues
that have besn accrued on the books but not collected.

A cash budget worksheet prepared from an operating budget prepared on a full accrual
basis 1s illustrated in Table 7-3. Differences in amounts from Table 7-2 result from the
timing differences noted in the worksheet itself. Its compiexity suggests preparing the cash
budget independently.



4%

A NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION OPERATING MANVUAL

TABLE 7-3. CENTER FOR COMMUNITY SERVICE. INC.
CASH BUDGET WORKSHEET FROM FULL ACCRUAL BASIS OPERATING BUDGET

Quarter ending March 31

Cash budget. month of

Operating Cash
budget budget Jan. Feb. March
Cash balance—beginning of period” $ 2.000 $ 2.000 $ 8.797 $13.431
Estimated cash recsipts
Total est. revenues:
derived from operating budget
(see Table 5-6) 28.825 27,325 7.320" 12.120° 6.385"
Add: accounts receivable
beginning balance {collected) 5.000° 5.000°
32,325 12.320 13,120 6.385
Less: acct. rec.—ending

balancs {uncoilected) 5.000" 5.000°

Cash basis revenues 27325 12,320 13.120 1.385
Nonrevenue receipts

Temporary loans (due Apr.) 2.000 2.000

Estimated cash recsived 29.325 14,321 13.120 1.885

Estimated cash availabie 31.325 16.320 21,917 15316

Esumated cash disbursements
Expenses (operating budget

pius worksnest)

Salaries (earned: all) 17,750 17.750 3917 5917 3916
Less taxes withneid (30¢%) 5.325 1.775 1,575 1.775
Net saiaries (take-home pay) 12425 4,142 4142 4141

Pavroll taxes (incurred) 1.567 1,567 522 522 23

Heaith insurance 625 625 208 209 208

Rent {donated) 1.500  (noncash) — —_ —

Electricity & heat 600 600 200 200 200

Water (due Mar. for jan.. Febd.) 60 60 - —_ —

Janitortal service 450 450 150 150 150

Telepnone 300 300 100 100 100

Printing & stationerv (due Feb.) 306 306 —_ 306 -

Postage 245 245 245 — —_

Travel & conferences 360 360 60 180 120

Supplies (due Feb.) 570 570 —_ 570 -

Equipment rentais 600 600 200 200 200

Consuitants 1,200 1,200 400 400 400

Legal (pay Mar.) 125 125 - — 125

Acctg. (pay Feb., Mar.) 650 650 — 150 500

Office expenses 90 %0 30 30 30

Insurance
Liability (1 yr. prepay.) S0 200 — - 200
Workmen's comp. (prior Q.) 75 {accrued) - — _
Fire (1 yr, prepaid Dec.) 25  (noncash) —_ — —

Contingency reserve 250 250 84 83 83

Depreciation 645  (noncash) — — —
Total current axpense

(carmied forward) $28.043 $20.623 S 6,341 S 7.242 S 7.040
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FABLE 7-3. CENTER FOR COMMUNITY SERVICE, INC. ]
CASH BUDGET WORKSHEET FROM FULL ACCRUAL BASIS OPERATING BUDGET (continued)

e —
Quarter ending March 31 Cash budget. month of
Operating Cash
budget budget Jan. Feb. March
Total current expense
(brought forward) $28.043 $20.623 $ 6341 $ 7242 $ 7.040

Add payment of accounts payabie; accrued expenses (accrued at end of previous month)
Sajaries (4th week of

previous month 917 917 1479 1,479
Payroll taxes (prior Q.) 674 674
Health insurance {(prior Q.) 375 375
Water {two previous months due) 50 50
Insurance—Workmen's Comp. 75 75
Total accruals paid currently ' 2.091 2.091 1.479 1.479
Subtotal D714 8.432 §.721 8.519

Less accrual of accounts payabie- accrued expenses (accrued at end of current period)
Salaries (last week of

current period) 1479 1.479 1.479 1479
Payroll taxes (current Q.) 1.567 52 52 523
Health insurance {current Q.) 625 208 209 208
Total accruals eliminated 3671 2209 2.210 2.210
Cash basis expenses 19.043 6.223 6.511 6.309

Add nonexpense pavments
Withnolding taxes paid for

prior period 4.650 1.100 1.775 1.775
Instaliment payments—equipment 600 200 200 200
Estimated total cash disbursements 24.293 7.523 8.486 8.284
Estimated baiance end of period 3 7032 5 8797 S13.431 $ 7.032

“Note tha: balancs at beginning and end of the quarter (Jan. 1 and March 31) are the same as balances at the peginning of January
column and end of March column. ’

*Onily monthly totals shown here. Details would be derived as in Tabie 7-2.
“Represenis ABC Foundation grant—baiance due from prior vear grant accrued at December 31.
“To ekminate accrual of uncollected ABC grant a1 March 31,

“The ending balances differ from those in Table 7-2 as a result of differences between amounts accrued at the beginning and end of
cach penod. Also reflected are differences in the amounts of revenues and expenses that would be reported on an operating budget pre-
pared on a full accrual basis.

BREAK-EVEN CASH FLOW

This is a suggested tool that can serve as a rule-of-thumb in day-by-day financial management.
You probably won't find it in teéxtbooks. The idea is to list vour basic recurring monthly cash
outlays for such items as payrolls, payroll taxes and employee benefits. rents for space and
equipment. installment payments on loans, morigages, and equipment purchases. plus an average
figure for other recurring expenses paid monthly, such as supplies, office expense, travel, auto
expense, and consultants. among others.



A NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION OPERATING MANUAL

Business people call this the minimum “nut,” the amount of cash you need each month to cover
expenses. In the best of all possible worlds, that amount would always be available (in a checking
account plus temporary investments like savings or money market accounts). You shouid plan to
collect at least this amount each month to replenish bank accounts. If income does not at least
match the monthly “nut,” it’s a signal to do something about it now, rather than wait for the
inevitable crisis to develop.

Ideally. an organization should try to build up reserve funds of thres (or at least two) month's
“nut,” to carry it over the bad times when a grant falls through or is delayed.

MINIMUM CASH BALANCE

Whether or not vou have a reserve available, your budget should include a minimum balance (to
be decided by the board or the treasurer), budgeted for as a matter of prudence. If the budgeted (or
actual) ending balance falls below that minimum, you know steps ne=d to be taken to bring it up to
par. Your cash flow may be too tight at a given time for this miniraum to be enough to cover your
monthly “nut.” but that is a goal vou can work toward in your annual budgets. This can be thought
of as a reserve or contingency fund. if vou wish—a so-called “rainy day™ fund—perhaps one based
on the break-even cash flow figure discussed above.

If your projection shows one or more months in which the ending balance will fail below the
established minimum (or is just plain negative), you can take steps to raise or borrow enough
money to bring your balancss up to where you want them to be.

CAN YOUR BALANCE BE TOO BIG?

Although having a cash balance that is too high may seem like dreaming, it is our hope that using
what you learn in this book could bring it about. (Even if you usually have trouble just staying
afloat, you may be notified of a big grant or pledge that temporarily will create a large cash balance
when it comes in.) In such cases. the answer to the question whether it can be 100 large is yes, but
only if it refers to your checking account balance, which is what your cash budget usually projects.
To deal with such a happy event you should develop a policy for dealing with excess cash. What
you should not dois leave it in an account that earns no interest; it belongs, at least temporarily, in a
savings account (which is insured under F.D.1.C.) or a money market account (which may not be
insured). Its use for other purposes should be planned in the budgeting process, or in a budget revi-
sion. Even a temporary cash excess shouid be reflected in your budget revision because you don't
want to spend it on such things as equipment or debt repayment. It is pretty likely that vou'll need
those funds to pay regular expenses. For example, March may show an excess that will be 2aten up
by expenses in April and May. This is especiaily true with “up-front” grants (which are becoming
very hard to get!)

The best planning is to invest funds temporarily in a safe, interest-bearing account, or in a certifi-
cate of deposit that will mature just before the time you'll need it. (It’s best to invest in accounts in-
sured by F.D.1.C.). Don't overiook planning to use as much of the temporary excess as you can to
build up a “rainy day” reserve fund.

This approach to budgeting is more a form of cash management and is dealt with in depth ir
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Chapter 14. Nevertheless, you should anticipate any such “probiems” in budgeting cash, and have a
plan and policy for dealing with them when the time comes.

CAPITAL BUDGETING

Capital budgeting is a subject that can be approached on different levels, from simple to very
complex. Sophisticated techniques are used primarily by large, complex organizations. We will
within this chapter adopt a simple, common-sense approach that can be used for routine capital
budgeting. The Appendix to this chapter offers an overview of some more sophisticated methods.
Those who need them (or who don’t suffer from math anxiety!) can pursue them in greater depth if
necessary, in books aimed primarily at larger business firms and nonprofits.

A Simple Basic Approach to Capital Budgeting

Budgeting for the purchase of major items of real property or costly equipment may be looked
upon as a special variant of cash flow budgeting in a nonprofit organizaton. What s different about
it is essentially a longer time frame. and the linking of the uses of funds with their proposed sources.

Factors to consider in capital budgeting.

¢ How well the present equipment or property serves the needs of the organization, in terms of
its condition or capacity. Whether repair and maintenance costs have reached the point where it
would be economical to replace womn equipment with new, or even consider factory-recondi-
tioned ‘used equipment.

® What alternative facilities would cost under alternate plans of financing: outright purchase,
instaliment purchase, borrow-and-buy. long-term rental,

® What sources exist for financing each of these alternatives: special grants. installment pur-
chases. long- or short-term loans. From which sources and on what terms, including collateral.
could this money be raised? Is a special fund drive among supporters a possibility?

® The cash flow aspect presents itself with respect to the payment of installment loans or rentals,
including any interest factors which mayv be present, explicitly or implicitly. For example. a
piece of equipment may cost $1.000 if paid for in cash, or $1,100 if paid for in 24 monthly install-
ments. The difference is what accountants refer 1o as implicit interest, which is an additional ac-
quisition cost, in terms of cash outlay,

Examples of considerations that influence capital budgeting. Let us assume that our fictitious
organization, the Center for Community Services, Inc., needs a new $12.000 van and has the
alternative of acquiring one through any one of the following arrangements: (Note: all figures are
rounded)

1. Pay $12,000 cash.

2. Borrow funds to purchase for cash. Repay loan in one year at 129 interest in 12 monthly
pavments of 51.066.

3. Pay for it in 24 monthly installments of $565, including finance charges (interest).
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4. Rent on two-vear lease at a monthly rencai of $450.

5. Accumulate (save the funds) over the two-vear period before purchasing for cash. This is
called a “sinking fund.”
Assume that the Center could invest spare funds at 5% per annum, compounded monthly, and
that if purchased the vehicle couid be sold at the end of two vears for $5,000.
The approach to this somewhat complex decision might be as follows:

Cash outlay
Alternatives Total cost per vear
L. Purchase for cash (if cash available) $12.000 $12.000
5% interest lost (two years) if taken from savings. 1.259 (first vear only)
(compounded monthly) 13.259
2 Borrow funds (o purchase with cash 12.792
Cost of 12 monthly loan payments of $1.066 12.792 (first vear only)
3. Installment purchase 6.780
Cost of 24 monthiy payments of $565. 13.560 (2 vears)
4, Rent on two-vear lease 5.400
Cost of 5450 per month rental for 24 months. 10.800! (2 vears)
5 Sinking fund
Save up for the purchase over a two-vear period:
monthly amount ne=ded to be deposited, at 5% interest,
compounded monthiy, 1o accumulate to $13,230 in two vears is
$525.2 S12.600 $6.300
) (12 = §525)

This last alternative is not directly comparable to the first four, since it involves postponing ac-
quisition of the vehicie for two vears. It is useful as a long-range planning alternative. however.3

Intuition would tell you that anything costs less if you save for it than if you pay with borrowed
funds (which includes installment purchases). On the other hand, during an era of high inflation, it
was often argued that the erosion of the dollar at rates as high as 12 made it advantageous to pay
with borrowed funds. The loan repayments or instaliments will be made with dollars worth iess and
less, and thus easier to come by, whereas the value of dollars accumulated by savings will shrink
with time: it will therefore take more of them to buy the same item, as illustrated in alternative 3, -
above. (Inflation is moderate at this writing.)

Analyzing the results of calculations in the example.

1. Rental requires the lowest cash outlay per year, but it results in twice as much cost (or
more}, for it must be renewed annually, possibiy at an increased rate. (And you never own the
item.)

*Note that while rental appears 10 be cheaper. this rental continues each year you need a car, whereas with other options you have a fully
paid car after 2 years,

At an annual inflation rate of 56, the vehicle would cost $13.230 in two years, not $12.000. Due to the interest earned. the vehicle would
cost less than $13,230. The monthiy deposit was derived from present vaiue tables, di d in the appendix to this chap

3In order to save, revenues must exceed expenses, excluding depreciation expense, which does not involve acash outlay. Thus a break-even
result after adequate depreciation means funds are being accumulated.
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2. Instaliment purchase over two years takes a lower cash outlay per year than the one-year
loan. Repaying the loan over two years at 13%, if possible, would reduce cash outlays per year to
$6,846, which Is still more than the installment payments ($6,780.)

3. Based on the above data, and assuming the vehicle is needed now, the best options would
be:

(a) pay in installments in two years:

(b) borrow and repay over two years.

Note that this example is based on arbitrary data. Different terms could change the analysis—
and your decision. There is no substitute for working out such an analysis vourself, using the actual
terms of loans, installments, leases and interest rates, and after shopping for the best deal available.

In the first and last aiternatives, an unpredictable factor is interest rates, which change over time.
It is therefore best to use a conservative rate in such calculations.

In weighing the decision to buy, it is also wise to find out the trade-in and resale value of any
vehicle or equipment being replaced by the new one. (The Center has one vehicle in use in Program
A.) (And don't forget the new one’s eventual value.)

Business enterprises use a more complex approach to capital budgeting involving, among other
things, the time value of money.* This involves the use of compound interest, and “present value™
tables. A large nonprofit considering purchase or lease of a building or major equipment might
want to consider such an approach. Should such substantial acquisitions be planned, advice should
be sought of a professional in the field of financial management. Your bank may bz able to help
with advice. (See the appendix to this chapter for an overview.)

Capital budgeting formats checklist. There is no tvpical form for the capital budget of a
nonprofit organization, only the need for a clear and orderly presentation of the board's plans for
major asset acquisitions, including its plans for funding them. A capital budget shouid cover at
least the following points and future annual pzriods:

& Major asset acquisitions planned: descriptions. acquisition dates. suppliers, whether
additions or replacements of existing assets, and estimated casts.

® Mode of acquisition: lease or purchase: trade-in or sale of present asset being replaced. and
estimated value for that purpose.

® Source of funds 1o purchase: savings or investments, cash borrowings or installment
pavments. source of borrowings. If a special fund drive is possible, over what period? Indicate
grant proposal (if possible) and list names of funding agencies. (The latter course is dangzrous
uniess already explored with such agencies and encouragement has besn received.)

® Sinking fund: schedule of deposits or pavments on loans or installments, showing individual
amounts and grand total for each month and year covered in the capital budget.

® Capital assets and related liabilities: show whether these are to be set up as restricted funds
(e.g.. plant fund; see Chapter 13).

The capital budget then becomes an adjunct and resource in preparing both the cash budget and
the operating budget. It is both a long-range planning tool and an operating document to be used in
executing the plan, for it sets forth schedules to be followed in acquiring capital assets and paying
for them.

“Also income-tax considerations, which can affect a norprofit subject to the tax on Unrelated Business Income {see Chapters | and 16).

“1
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Such acquisitions will affect accounting and budgeting in the following areas:

® Cash flow budgeting, for their financing and presumed reduction in repair and maintenance
Costs. ‘

® Balance sheets, which should reflect both the cost of assets purchased and any related loan or
installment obligations undertaken (and elimination of assets replaced).

® Operating budgets and operating statements, which should reflect the reduced repair and
maintenance costs. and presumably increased depreciation expense covering the new assets over
that of the assets replaced. -

The role of depreciation. Although nonprofit organizations have not used depreciation ac-
counting, and many have even treated the cost of capital assets acquired as a current expense, the
new rules prescribed for external financial reporting by nonprofits (see Chapter 15) will probably
end those practices and bring nonprofit accounting into line with overall accounting theorv in these
respects.

A 1978 policy statement issued by the American Institute of CPAs made the observation that de-
preciation accounting is designed to charge each period for its share of the cost of using an asset.
making depreciation expense analagous to rental expense.5 At the same time. it points out that de-
preciation “is sometimes confused with funding replacements.” which is a separate financial
question. ’

While this is unquestionabiy true. some organizations properly reiate the two by “funding depre-
ciation™—i.c., setting up a sinking fund in which amounts egual to the periodic depreciation ex-
pense are deposited in a special “sinking fund savings account™ or otherwise invested. The invest-
ment plus accumulated investment income is then tapped for asset replacement. (The board should
designate this a “board restricted fund™: sez Chapter 13.)

The point made previously about the effect of inflation on the funding of replacements is rele-
vant here, for the amount of depreciation is based on the cost of the present asset. not what it wiil
cost to replace it at an inflated price in the future. The addition of interest or dividends to the
amounts added to the sinking fund will help offset the effect of inflation, however.

Other Basic Issues

Not only comparative costs are involved in capital budgeting, but also other factors of a serious
nature:

® A wrong decision can resuit in hiring—or not hiring—people who would be involved in op-
erating or managing the property or equipment—or worse, in eventually laying people off, if the
decision was a bad one.

® How efficient is the new equipment? How easy to learn, maintain, and repair? Will the seller
or manufacturer provide support in these areas? Service contracts? On-site or nearby authorized
service? What about ready availability of repair or replacement parts, components, or supplies’
How bigajob isinstallation? Will it require any additional costs for special wiring, plumbing, or
work on the building? How flexible is it for different uses?

® Money may also be wasted on fundraising, advertising, training, or other reiated activities, if
a bad decision is made.

$Staternent of Position 78-10 (Dec. 1978), paragraphs 107 and 111.
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e If assets are bought and are not usable, the money is tied up wastefully, and there may well be
ongoing reiated costs that cannot be easily avoided, such as insurance, security, and main-
tenance. Space can be tied up that could be used more advantageousiy.

® Money invested unproductively is money not available for productive purposes. Opportun-
ities for better use of the funds are thus lost.

® A mistaken decision not to invest the funds also represents a lost opportunity, which may
have a material effect on the organization’s future, especially if nothing as good turns up.
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~ Three Ccmoonents — Diversification

Self-financing activities:
Sale of service or procducts; membership fees; intersst from
investments

tocz]l fundraising:
General public; loczl government; private sector

Extermal fincdraising:
Leng-tarm fiexible grants

fsls-financing

= Membership cocntributions
* Inccme-generating activities
* Interast frcm investments
* Fundraising from the general public
* Administrative overhead on project grants
Szl= of Services
* Secratariat: cphotsecpying; tyring; printiag; gemerazl
sarvices
* Publiczticns: sell cthers publicziicns; publish your own
becoks/manuals; publish ycur own periccical
* Vehicles & eguizmmen:: rant trucks/lerries/vehicles; rant
machines/tsols
* Premises: space for cifices; meeting space/facilities; . .
- ) 1= & 2
warehcuse sgace
* Consultancy: toaining, evaluations, raseirch '
N Financing the Cors Budget -
Py

1. Cut dewn administrative tudget.

2. Reduce the adrministrative budget to minimum by shifting
expenses to program budget.

3. Request an “"overhead" administrative expenses allowance from
denors. .

.

4, If no overhezd available, gebit the project for all services
provided the project.

5. HNegotiate on institution building grants from donors.

6. Increase your own income sources and use this money to.cover
administrative exgenses.

______ T - . 7 . .. ... ‘World Learning/PCC, Financial Management
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MARKETING

Marketing is a process that helps you to exchange something valuable for
something you need.

Marketing helps to establish exchange relations, and the world of non-
profits has many. Non-profits exchange with the participants in their
programs or with the public, with donors, volunteers, friends, elected
officials, media representatives, other non-profits, businesses and
corporations. In each good exchange, a non-profit offers something
valuable to others in exchange of something it needs.

Exchanges satisfy both sides because they are mutually beneficial: each
gets something valuable for itself. However, such exchanges will not
happen (except for unexpected luck or coincidence) unless someone
initiates them. '

If you have something valuable and you want to exchange it for something
you need, you yourself should come out with an initiative, and cultivate the
relations of exchange.

In other words, it is time to start marketing.

World Learning/PCC, Financial Management
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Money isn't everything, but vou can’t run a nonprofit without it. And the less you
spend to make money, the more money you'll have left for your program.

Evervone has monev. According to the American Association of Fund-Raising
Counsel, 86% of all Americans give to one or more charitable organizations. They
represent all ages, incomes, occupations, and education levels,

Individual donations account for almost 90% of all charitable giving in America.
More than 83% is from living persons, and another 7% from bequests. The remain-
ing 10% of charitable contributions comes from foundations and corporations
{including corporate foundations), each giving approximately 5% annually.

Religion receives the largest share of contributions, followed by education. health
and hospitals. social services. arts and humanities, and civic and public affairs.

Donations aren't the onlv source of money for nonprofits. There also are investment
income; membership dues; earned income from businesses, goods and services;
government grants and contracts. and program related investments. Table 3 offers
a more complete listing. and potential sources.

Table 3: Monev

Resources
Internal money management
Operating economy
Cost =haring
Investment income
Membership dues
Earned income
Service fee
Income-producing business product
Individual =olicitation
Door to door canvass
Phone-a-thontelethon
Direct mail
Canister

Pa,\'.rull deduction

Matching gift
Annual giving
Memorial
Plunned giving
Bequest
Life Insurance
Trust
Annuity
Pooled Income
Securities
Endowment
Grant
Program-related inveatment

Special event

Sources

Board of directors
Empiovees
Members

Chlients
Consumers
Family and friends
Alumni
Auxiliaries
Contributors
Volunteers
Retirees
Netghbors
Vendors

Civie groups

Small businesses

Corporations

Doctors lawyers other professionals
Foundations

Government teiny. county, state, tederal
Schools colleges universities

Liuons

Professional orgunizations

Police fwe:emergency departments
Political organizations

Relizious m'ganizalions

News entertainment education media

Other nonprofits
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Looks complicated. But it's manageable. Start inside vour organization with those
who know vou best and share your goals. Then gradually move outward into the
community.

A brief summary of the primary money resources follows. Evaluate each of them
according to your needs and capabilities.

Internal Money Management -Analyze your internal financial situation. Have you cut unnecessary e:.{penses?
Making the most of the money you have ~ Are you making money with the money you have? Have you tried sharing costs
o ' with other organizations? Good internal money management not only saves
money, it also tells potential donors that you’ll use their money wisely.

Operating Economy

The first way to make money is to eliminate waste. Employees, volunteers, board
members, everyone closely associated with your organization can suggest ways to
cut costs. Place a suggestion box within easy access. Award a monthly prize for the
best idea. If vour situation is critical, ask a management expert to volunteer as a
consultant until your problems can be resolved.

Other money savers:

Get accounts receivable off vour desk and into the bank.

Avoid penalties and late charges. Pay taxes and bills on time.
» Make a payment schedule and stick to it.

* Maintain facilities and equipment on a regular basis. Deferred maintenance is
expensive.

* Review insurance coverage and costs annually. Get new bids at least every three
vears,

Avoid duplication of efforts and documents: assign staff responsibilities in job
descriptions, route and share records and other paperwork. -

Determine vour unit cost, e.g., service cost per hour, client, facility.

Salaries and benefits are a major cost. Enforce productivity standards and conduct
employee evaluations at least annually. Use volunteers at every opportunity.

Cost Sharing

Cost sharing possibilities include joint purchase of goods, equipment, and services;

shared office space, equipment, and services; group purchase of medical and other
insurance.

Example:

Louise Child Care Center in Pittsburgh acts as bulk purchasing agent for
over 55 child care providers, at an average savings of 15-30%. Individual
agencies select items from the catalogs of five suppliers. The Center consoli-
dates and places orders quarterly, and sorts deliveries. Agencies pick up
orders at the Center, paying their share of the total, plus 5% handling.
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More Internal
Management Clues

Membership Dues

Banking on their beliefin vou

Investment Income

Consider the short- and long-term investment of available cash. A Money Market
Account offers fund liquidity and higher earnings than interest bearing checking
accounts. If vou can do without your money for 6-12 months, consider investing in
a Certificate of Deposit (CD) or other fixed term, fixed rate instrument. However, do
so only if the guaranteed rate is at least 1.5% higher than the money market rate
at time of purchase. Because money market rates fluctuate with the market, these
accounts can yield higher earnings. The Working Assets Money Fund of San
Francisco offers these and the following tips to determine how much you should
invest (see Chapter 8, Print Resources):

* Do a cash flow projection to determine all cash needs for the next 12 months.

* Shop around at financial institutions for the best deal on a checking account. Some

regular accounts may be better than interest-bearing accounts due to hidden
service charges.

» Consolidate all necessary operating funds into one checking account, and possibly
a second account for payroll. Be careful to manage separate fund accounts through
bookkeeping entries.

e Invest all remaining discretionary cash in a money market account or CD.

If cash assets are sizeable, consider long-term investments such as stocks, bonds
and real estate. However, do so only at the advice of a professional.

¢ Review and understand donor requirements. Noncompliance can lead to disal-
lowances, fund returns, and can jeopardize future funding.

e Be aware of the pitfalls of cash basis accounting. Account for and report all
liabilities.

* Get to know vour banker and other financial experts. Their free advice can be
invaluable.

* Be aware that some grantors, particularly government agencies, require the
return of investment earnings.

People buy memberships because they believe in an organization and want to help
further its goals. The value goes beyond the immediate payoff of unrestricted
income. Members are a form of collateral for attracting other “investors” from the
community, Grantmakers like to know you have strong community support.
Members also are prime prospects for personal donations.

Some membership clues:

* Adjust dues to keep pace with inflation and cover membership maintenance costs.

* Price dues on a sliding scale, based on ability and willingness to pay. Start with a
basic, minimum rate, increasing the price and attendant privileges as vou move up
the scale, e.g., family, friend, supporter, sponsor, life member, etc.

¢ Offer discount memberships to students and senior citizens.

e D K
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e Inform members about the tax deductibility of their dues. This can vary considera-
bly. Dues covering the cost of benefits received are not deductible. Dues essentially
are a contribution. Ask your tax expert for a ruling.

¢ The nonrenewa] rate is high—approximately one-third in most organizations.
Reduce renewal costs by replacing expensive second and third mailings with a
membership phone-a-thon. It costs less and works better.

» Memberships must be sold. Sharpen your selling skills and develop a creative
marketing plan. Let prospects know about benefits which accompany mem-
berships. See The Grass Roots Fundraising Book by Joan Flanagan (see
Chapter 8, Print Resources).

Earned Income There's no rule saying nonprofits can't make money. only that the money must be
Amvthing worth doing is worth money ton  used for charitable purposes. Services are marketable. So are program-related
’ ) ) products. The possibilities are limited only by vour creativity, skills. and manag
ment abilities. Be forewarned that some ideas involve considerable risks. A brief
summary of tried and proven income producers follows.

Service Fee

The safest, most obvious way to earn income is to charge for services youre provia-
ing free. Base fees on a sliding scale according to income and ability to pay.

If you serve only low income persons, consider extending vour services to others.
especially if you face budget deficits. It's better to broaden your service base and
stay in business.

Example:
A local nonprofit organization faced closing because of its tradition of serving
only low income families. Administrators were slow to see that fees charged
to higher income clients could help subsidize care for those unable to pay.
They also overlooked the obvious: the interaction of individuals from diverse
income groups could be an enriching experience for all. The agency now is
successfully charging according to ability to pay and pursuing other income
generating ideas.

Other income-earning ideas:

» Sell services to government, local businesses, and corporations. Convince them you
can provide a needed service better and less expensively. This can range from a
one-time consultation to a long-term contract. Classic examples include employee
child care, health and fitness programs, and educational and research services.

¢ Offer unused space to businesses, other nonprofits, and government agencies for
conferences for a fee.

¢ Sell newsletter subscriptions to “outsiders” based on the publication’s informa-
tional value. Sell ad space, too.

¢ Share computer time, print shop, and other in-house services with other non-
" profits, for a mutually beneficial fee.

ca

Caution: Never sell services to outsiders at the expense of program goals. Staff time ,
and talents should be shared only when it does rot interfere with your primary
purpose




Income-Producing Business/Product

A program-related business can be a money-maker for nonprofits. Possibilities
include the sale of services, as mentioned earlier; the manufacture and sale of
products; and the sale of products purchased for resale. Perhaps the best known
example, combining program goals and earnings, is Goodwill Industries. By teach-
ing handicapped persons to refurbish donated household goods, this organization
fulfills its primary purpose of individual rehabilitation and helps support itself
through sales of the items in its retail stores. Goodwill also earns money by con-
tracting with businesses for such jobs as assembling, collating, and packaging to be
done in its sheltered workshops.

Other well known money-makers are Gir] Scout cookies, UNICEF cards and gifts,
art and wildlife posters and calendars, hospital gift shops, ticket sales, community
and celebrity cookbooks.

Nonprofits are venturing into nontraditional businesses as well. The Denver
Children’s Museum is perhaps most notable for its creative efforts: leasing
advertising characters to a commercial business, selling exhibit space to toy
manufacturers, and producing special children'’s books for corporate sponsors.

The Pittsburgh Public Theater has boosted earnings and pleased patrons through
a variety of program-related activities. They include the sale of t-shirts, albums,
and other featured plav memorabilia and the sale of specialty wines and box
snacks during intermission. When the theater is dark, the hall is rented for
business meetings and other activities.

Beware, however. Not all income-producing activities are tax-exempt. And there’s
increasing resistance from commercial enterprises to so-called “unfair” competi-
tion from nonprofits. Generally, any activity substantially related to your charita-
ble purpose is tax-exempt. If an activity is mostly unrelated, and provides over
15-20% of your income. you may jeopardize vour tax-exempt status. At this point,
vou must decide whether to abandon the business, or to start a profit-making
subsidiary.

Before undertaking any business venture:

Define the type of business, market, growth potential, and competition.

Identify which staff will be involved, for what percentage of their time, and at
what cost to your organization.

Develop a business plan. including preliminary budgets, funding sources, projected
cash flow, and projected profit.loss for first three years. Include a contingency plan.

Get financial and tax advice from experts such as an attorney, accountant, banker,
lender, IRS specialist, and the Small Business Administration.

Talk to other nonprofits about their successful business ventures. Contact New
Ventures, Inc. for more ideas (see Chapter 8, Print Resources).

Weigh all these factors with your organizational goals and make a decision.

The risk can be great. Over half of all new commercial businesses fail in their first
vear. Nonprofits have a higher rate of failure. But nonprofits are succeeding and
finding more and more creative ways to turn their skills into money-making
businesses.
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Individual Solicitation Because individual giving accounts for nearly 90°« of all charitable contributions

' in America, it should be a mainstay of yvour support. Develop a plan for soliciting
individual donations and al/ocate time accordingly. Like memberships. this income
tells other funding sources that the community values your organization.

If vou don't ask, you won't receive

There are many formulas for success. Regardless of the strategy vou pursue. keep
in mind these suggestions:

¢ Ask vour board members for donations first. so others will follow their lead.

e Be resourceful in choosing prospects. Develop a list from members, volunteers,
clients. businesses, neighbors. meeting sign-up sheets. alumni. phone books.
special interest directories. The Coles Directory lists phone numbers by neighbor-
hoods. The Federal Census publishes lists of neighborhoods by income level.

e Evervone is fair game. High density, middle income neighborhoods should be me:e
profitable and less time consuming than others. as should areas in which you c.
your solicitation team are known. People give more readily to neighbors than to
strangers.

» Recruit volunteer solicitors from directors, members, volunteers, clients. alumni.
and the general public. Challenge local schools, colleges, or community groups to
compete for a trophy or other prize for the most money collected.

« Provide orientation for solicitors. Include sample greeting. organizational fact
sheet. and paper to record complaints that may need follow-up. Make sure evervone
has facts about you and how their moneyv will be used.

e Check regulations regarding charitable solicitations in vour chosen areals) and

always obey local laws. Provide a copy of solicitation permits and agency ID to all
solicitors. as applicable.

* Give contributors a receipt. Give evervone vou contact a leaflet or other visual
reminder about your organization and your fundraising purpose.

» Use every opportunity to send follow-up letters, e.g., new programs, achievement
awards, research findings.

* Keep a record of each contact for future reference, according to whether they are
hot (current giver), warm (former giver) or cold (new contact or refusal).

* Weigh time and expenses in relation to value received, i.e., money and visibility—
for all solicitation methods. Allow time for success, but watch for danger signs.
Quickly revamp or drop obvious losers.

¢ Say “Thank You”

e Dare to be different. Compare your plan to others you know. Be creative. Be true to
your purpose. Remember the simplest approach can be the most effective.

Door to Door Canvass

The more direct and personal a fundraising method, the more effective. This puts =
door to door canvassing at the top of the list. But it isn't right for every organiza-

-~ tion. To be successful, a door to door campaign must be well staffed, by paid or
volunteer solicitors. Your cause should have wide appeal. And you must be willing
to commit a great deal of time to planning and management, possibly year-round.




The results can be most rewarding. Though many gifts will be small, there will be
many of them. And vou will be creating grass roots awareness and support of your
organization. People remember the causes they support, regardless of the amount
they donate.

Phone-A-Thon/Telethon

Less direct than door to door, a phone-a-thon nevertheless permits a personal
appeal for contributions. Volunteers are recruited to donate a set number of hours
or days for telephoning potential givers. Respondents who pledge a gift are mailed
a thank you letter and invoice listing the amount promised. Follow-up calls are
made to those not honoring their pledges within a specified time period. Thank
vou notes are sent when pledges are received.

Phone-a-thon costs are relatively small. and results usual(y profitable You may be
able to find a business willing to donate office space, telephones, and other needed
equipment. This method requires a firm commitment of volunteer time and good
organization.

A telethon is a televised phone-a-thon. Rather than phoning prospects, volunteers
wait for viewers to call them following regular on-air appeals. usually by celebrity
guests.

Before vou consider a telethon, be aware that it is a major erent that requires
tremendous time and resources. Television time must be donated or purchased.
Celebrities must be booked. Most telethons raise a majority of their pledges ahead
of time, and use the event to announce the gifts—for visibility and new prospects.

10

Direct Mail

Less personal than the canvass or telephone, direct mail still offers individual
communication with prospective donors. An organization develops a mailing list,
writes a form letter. and mails it, bulk rate.

It sounds easy. But there are drawbacks. Direct mail is expensive, involving print-
ing. paper, postage, and staff time. It has a low rate of return—only one percent of
the initial mailing. It requires thorough planning and follow-through. But it’s an
excellent way to reach large numbers of people, some of whom will become regular
contributors; a few others, major givers.

Direct mail has been refined to an art and a science. There are excellent books
detailing everything from how to develop a mailing list to how to choose the most
effective paper color and format. After you've done your homework, contact
another nonprofit that has conducted a direct mail campaign. Most will share dos
and don'ts. There also are professional mail services.

Example:
St. Peter's Child Development Centers more than doubled their direct mail

income in just three vears through a special test campaign. Their successful
strategy included: . '

* Seed grant to fund campaign’s first year.

* Purchased mailing list to supplement in-house list.
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e Two-tier marketing plan to encourage major gifts. New prospects and regular
givers under $25 1ece1ved computerized, third-class mailings. Major donole
$‘>5 and above) received personalized, first-class mailings (produced by St.
Peter's on word processing equipment at Mellon Bank!.

e Creative marketing, including photography, headlining and special graphic
effects, and celebrity endorsement, all carried through on letters, brochures,
response forms, and envelopes.

St. Peter's increased both the number of major donors and the average
amount given. More than 50% of their individual gift dollars now come from
major donors, compared to 30% before the campaign.

Canister

The canister offers advantages of both direct and indirect contact. Among its
numerous variations are the Salvation Army Christmas pot, UNICEF Halloween
coin box, and baseball caps and collection cans at traffic intersections and special
events. All make a personal appeal for support, while increasing the organization's
visibility.

A stationary canister, placed near a busy cash register or other high traffic area.
reminds discretionary spenders of your cause and need.

Though relatively simple to implement. this fundraising method still requires
good organization and volunteer commitment.

Federation Membership

Donor Option

Payroll Deduction

Getting to the money before vour contributors is the philosophy behind employee
payroll deduction programs. Make it easy for the employee to give, easy for the
employer to collect, and, in theory. you have easy money. But it isn't that simple.
The competition is stiff, and most employers prefer to collect for one organization,
rather than for many. However, due to high profitabilitv. you should consider at
least one of the following payroll deduction options: -

The United Way is the best known payroll deduction federation. Member organiza-
tions agree to limit individual fundraising in favor of group solicitation. The feder-
ation handles all solicitation, collection, and allocation, reserving a percentage of

funds raised for administrative expenses. Member agencies are allotted money by

citizen review committees based on various criteria, including community need.

The advantages are obvious. Both employers and members save on administrative
costs. However, there are disadvantages. Membership isn't guaranteed. Some
federations have been criticized for being slow to add new organizations. Alloca-
tions aren’t always sufficient to make up for restrictions on individual fundraising.
Still, federations continue to be a mainstay of individual donations.

Until recently, only member agencies were eligible to receive federation funds.
However, some United Ways have instituted a Donor Option Plan which permits
donors to contribute to qualzﬁed non-member agencies. Though still experiencing
growing pains, the Plan is gamlng ‘community support, for obvious reasons. It
allows greater personal choice in giving, and therefore encourages broader-based
donor participation. It also reinforces the idea of regular giving.




Do It Yourself Deduction Program

Employer Program

In southwestern Pennsylvania, the Plan works as follows. The United Way dis-
tributes Donor Option cards, upon request, during its regular annual campaign.
Employees designate their gift to the charitable organization of their choice. The
United Way deducts an administrative fee and distributes the money as designated.

Donor Option agencies must do their own soliciting. Due to employer resistance io
multiple solicitations, many nonprofits contact potential givers through direct
mail, flyers, personal contacts, union and employee meetings, and other methods.
Prospects include members, directors. patrons, clients, volunteers, others
associated with the organization, and the community at large.

Participating agencies generally report profitable returns. Donor Option is on
its way to becoming one of the basics of a comprehensive fundraising program.
Contact your local United Way office for details.

If participation in an existing federation isn't feasible, a nonprofit can start its own
payroll deduction program. You can act independently. or form a coalition of non-
profits (federation). It won’t be easy, but it is possible. Though many employers
restrict payroll deductions to one organization, there are those who don't.

Start with employers sympathetic to vour cause. If refused. be courteous, and go to
the next prospect on your list. Include local colleges, small businesses. and govern-
ment offices. Be prepared to knock on many doors, and be persistent. An employer
who can’t make a long-term commitment may be willing to help once.

Example:

The City of Pittsburgh initiated a payroll deduction program in response to a
local food emergency. Every City employee was asked to-contribute one dollar
per pavday (two dollars per month) to The Salvation Army Good Neighbor
Emergency Food Fund. Seventy percent of the employees participated. donat-
ing $30,000 during the eight-month campaign.

Once you locate a willing employer, recruit an emplovee to coordinate the cam-
paign at the work site. Provide brochures, posters, and other promotional
materials. Schedule speakers and slide shows for different departments and
employee groups. Arrange to have contributions collected through the emplover’s
personne] office.

Not all emplovee payroll deduction programs are donee initiated. One of the
largest—the combined federal campaign—is a fund drive conducted annually by
the federal government to help its emplovees give to charitable causes. Some state
and local governments offer similar assistance.

If vou aren’t receiving donations from one of these programs, contact officials at
various levels of government to learn who's in charge of pavroll deductions. Ask
how vour organization can join the list of qualified recipients. Ask to be included in
speaking engagements and other campaign activities.

Matching Gifts

Many companies encourage employee support of nonprofits through a matching
gifts program. Details vary, but emplovers generally match worker contributions
according to a set ratio, such as one or two to one, up 1o a specified maximum.
There may be minimum amounts eligible for matching. The program may be open
to retirees, direclors, and spouses. ’ '
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In addition to cash gifts, some employers match the cash value of employee dona-
tions of real estate, art. bequests, and life insurance. A few match payroll deduc-
tions. Some companies contribute to organizations where their employees
volunteer time. based on a dollar’hour formula. Mellon Bank honors its outstand-
ing volunteers through a Volunteer of the Month Program. Winners receive a
check for $500, payable to the organization for which the winner volunteers.

Most matching gifts traditionally have gone to educational institutions, but the
door is opening to include cultural, health-related, and social service groups. Many
experts see this area of giving as a rich, largely undiscovered resource, just waiting
to be tapped. It's particularly attractive to emplovers who want to extend their
philanthropy to communities beyond headquarter locations.

Though the potential is great, there are challenges. Contributions must be
solicited through the employee. This should be done on an ongoing basis, throv
regular communications with members. contributors, directors, volunteers,
clients, customers, evervone associated with your organization.

A few additional clues:

Get a list of matching gift companies from the Council for Advancement and Sup-
port of Education (see Chapter 8, Print Resources). Localize to your community.

Print a brochure or other listing of local matching gift companies. Distribute to _
potential donors.

Promote matching gifts at every opportunity, e.g.. newsletter, direct mail,
phone-a-thon.

Acknowledge gifts to both the employee and company.

Keep accurate records of gifts—pledged, received and outstanding.

Send a gentle reminder if the gift isn’t received within a reasonable time period.
Everyone makes mistakes.

There are occasions when you should contact the company directly: to initiate a
program; to expand an existing program to include your organization; to encourrge
increased company participation through a change in giving ratios.

Annual Giving

Every organization needs a core of loyal supporters who can be counted on for a gift
every year. These givers usually are developed over a period of years and include
individuals and companies.

Once a year, the contributor is sent a personal letter requesting a pledge for a

specified amount. The pledge may be paid in a lump sum or in payments. Thank

you letters are personalized and signed by the board president. Regular contact is
maintained to keep donors informed of the organization’s activities and need for -
continuing support.

If a gift is substantial, the contributor may be honored with a special award. Inex-
pensive, creative reminders of the nonprofit’s purpose often are the most valued.




Organizations differ on what constitutes an annual campaign and the best time to
solicit, but there are some basics to remember:

¢ Set a fundraising goal and collection deadlines based on your annual budget.

* Review donor records to determine if and how much pledge requests should be
raised over the preceding year.

* Don't take anyone for granted. Thank contributors for their past support and
explain why vou still need them.

* Add new prospects to your list regularly. Possibilities include directors, other
contributors, corporate and business contacts. Ask community and religious
leaders, bankers, and estate attorneys for recommendations.

¢ Maintain regular contact with contributors through newsletters, annual reports,
progress reports, invitations to special events, phone calls, and personal visits.

* Remember that evervone is a potential major giver. An annual pledge of $10
monthly is $120 per year.

Memorial

Many nonprofits benefit from the custom of honoring a friend or loved ane with a
memorial (deceased) or tribute (living) contribution. Though not a mainstay of

support, these gifts provide unrestricted income and increased community
visibility.

Memorial and tribute donations can be solicited, indirectly, through reminders in
newsletters and other regular communications with members and friends, and in
informational or fundraising brochures. Suggest occasions for making tribute gifts,
e.g., birthday, anniversary, retirement.

Send acknowledgements to both the contributor and the person or family of the
person in whose name the gift has been made. Some organizations also publish
memorials and tributes in newsletters or annual contributor reports. Major

memorial gifts can be recognized by naming a special fund, room or section of the
building in their honor.

Planned Giving As noted earlier, 7% of all charitable giving in America comes from bequests—gifts
Where there's a will. there's @ pavday received at a donor’s death. This is more money than either corporate donations

(5% or foundation grants (5%). And many experts feel it will be much higher—most
Americans still die without a will.

Many nonprofits avoid the area of bequests and other planned gifts due to fears of
high costs and the loss of regular contributions needed for daily operations.

Though a planned giving program can be costly to implement, experience shows it
more than pavs for itself for most organizations. Rather than siphoning off regular
donations, it encourages increased giving, for the present and the future. It helps
build a solid financial base, decreasing vulnerability to prevailing economic winds.
Thus it should be part of every serious development program.

Stated simply, planned giving is the making of charitable gifts through wills,
trusts. gift annuities, life insurance, securities, and real estate. Though sometimes

called deferred giving, not all planned gifts are deferred. A brief description of the
- best known planned gifts follows. '

14
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Bequest

Life Insurance

Charitable Trust

Charitable Gift Annuity
Pooled Income Fund
Life Estate Contract

Securities

A gift made to a charity through a donor’s will.

In addition to death benefits, a nonprofit can be assigned annual policy dividends.
annuity pavments, maturing endowments, and cash surrenders.

Money or property given in trust to a charitable organization, in return for tax
benefits and a fixed dollar or percentage income for the donor’s lifetime, or as
otherwise specified. Trusts can be short-term. and are irrevocable for the term of
the trust. Al have the potential for producing regular income for the nonprofit,
over and above the amount reserved for the donor.

Cash or securities given in exchange for a fixed amount of annual income and tax
benefits.

A trust formed with assets from several different donors. Each receives a pro rata
share of income based on amount given.

Real estate donated in return for tax advantages and the lifetime use of property
by the donor.

Stocks and bonds donated outright in favor of reduced taxes.

These planned gifts may sound alike, but there are distinct differences between
them, and complex variations within categories. Each type of gift offers special
advantages based on tax laws and donor needs.

This is where cost enters in. A comprehensive planned giving program requires
expertise in estate planning and law, taxes and investments. It’s advisable to have
a staff person just to solicit and manage planned gifts. This is in addition to a
development director.

A planned giving program can be initiated on a smaller scale, by the organization
director and volunteer experts. In time, with strong board of director support, you
can have a full scale program. Any planned giving program will take from three to
five years to show significant results.

Begin with research. Get all the facts and figures and sell the idea to your direc-
tors. Then develop a marketing plan, keeping in mind the following clues:

Survey present contributors to establish a general donor profile. Most planned
givers come from the top three percent of regular donors, but there are exceptions.
A small contributor may be rich in property or securities, and thus a prime pros-
pect. These and similar considerations should determine what kinds of gifts your
donors are most likely to give. Solicit accordingly.

Promote the idea of planned giving. Stress the importance of will and estate planning
in your newsletter. Follow up with articles about the planning services you offer,
changes in tax laws, and other giving updates. Announce important gifts received.

Solicit regular contributors—your prime prospects—through direct mail, special
fundraising newsletters and brochures, telephone calls, and personal visits.

Periodically contact local life underwriters and estate attorneys. Remind them of
your willingness and ability to help solve their clients’ estate planning needs.

Offer will and estate planning workshops. If individualized attention seems

appropriate, suggest personal consultation, including visits to the home or
attorney’s office.
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Endowment. Foundation
The gift that never stops giving

Grant

The munificent obsession
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* Once an individual becomes a planned giver, maintain regular communication.
Recognize special contributors through an annual dinner or other social event.

 Publicize significant gifts through news releases, with donor permission.

o Cultivate associations with planned giving experts such as attorneys, financial
trust officers, investment brokers, CPA’s, tax specialists, and insurance under-
writers. Most willingly share general information, if vou don’t ask too often.

» Be smart about investments. If you lack expertise, get it from paid or volunteer
consultants. Trust management can be arranged through a financial institution or
management firm.

» Never underestimate a donor’s potential, Many regular contributors, large and
small. can give now for the present and future. Show them how to do it to vour
mutual benefit, and they’re likely to share the good news with friends, thus creat-
ing new prospects.

Because planned giving is such a vast, complex resource area, it's imperative that
vou do extensive research before starting a program. A good place to start is Robert
F. Sharpe’s Planned Giving Idea Book (see Chapter 8. Print Resources). With
patience. persistence, and planning, vou'll be rewarded with a substantial pavoff.

Some nonprofits take planned giving one step further and establish their own
internal endowment or foundation. Large and small contributions are pooled into
a single fund and invested—ensuring permanent interest income. Some also use a
portion of the principal.

Growing numbers of nonprofits are developing such funds. Donors enjoy knowing
they're helping to perpetuate a favorite charity. Organizations gain important pro-
tections against the loss of funding in certain government contractual agreements.

Like planned giving, the creation of an endowment or foundation involves complex
legal and financial issues. It should be undertaken only after extensive research
and planning.

Somewhere in America, some time ago, someone must have started the rumor that
grants are the solution to every nonprofit money problem...because many non-
profits allocate a disproportionate amount of time and money chasing grants,
when they should be pursuing renewable resources.

True. a few grants are renewable. and grants play a vital role in the funding of
America’s nonprofits. But they can’t possibly live up to evervone's expectations.
And they aren’t casy money. The competition is getting tougher, the criteria more
explicit, and grantors more discerning.

Still, there’s a time and place for grant solicitation. To discover what that is, it's
essential to understand grants and their purposes. A grant is money given in
return for action promised. A grantor agrees to give a specified amount only on the
condition that the nonprofit use it for a designated purpose. Though names and
descriptions vary, a brief summary of the most commonly known grant types
follows:
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Capital
Challenge/matching
Conditional

Earmarked

Endowment

Funding erisis
General support/unrestricted

Research

Seed

Technical assistance

Foundation

Independent/family foundation

Company foundation

Community foundation

Usually made to established organizations to meet future service demands. Includes
funding for land acquisition, building construction. and equipment purchase.

The pledge of a specified sum, to be paid only if the nonprofit raises an equal or
otherwise designated amount.

Similar to a challenge grant. but the grantee must satisfv some condition other
than matching funds.

Grant made to a third party for use by a nonprofit just getting organized and that
has applied for 501(ck3) tax-exempt status. Allows the grantor to meet contribu-
tions requirements, and still help an organization it believes in.

Funds donated for investment to provide a nonprofit with regular income.

A number of grants to assist nonprofits experiencing unexpected or temporary
financial problems. including: cash reserve, debt reduction, and emergency grants.

The most liberal of grants, funds may be used for a broad range of organization
needs, including general operating—usually at the recipient’s discretion.

Grants for medical, educational, and other types of research and associated
research activities. Range from special projects to the construction of a research
facility.

Start-up funding for a new program or organization. Sometimes renewable.

Grant awarded to a nonprofit or to a third party to provide needed services (see
Chapter 6, Services).

After deciding what kind of grant you need, discover where to get it. There are a
number of possibilities. Though the best known grantmaker is the foundation,
grants also are made by corporations, government and civic, service, and religious
organizations. A brief outline of their basic characteristics follows.

A foundation is a nonprofit organization created for the purpose of establishing «.
maintaining charitable, educational, religious, social, and other activities for the
common good. Because foundations enjoy special tax privileges, they are required to
donate at least five percent of the market value of their assets to charitable causes.

It’s important to note that there are various types of foundations. Know the differ-
ences before making a grant request. Though exact definitions vary, they basically
are as follows:

Usually funded or endowed by a single source, such as an individual or family.
Sometimes limits support to special purposes, such as the founder’s designated
cause or charity.

Funded by profit-making companies for the purpose of corporate giving. Often
responsive to grant requests from organizations serving employee needs; research
in company-related areas, and community projects located near company head-
quarters, plants, or branch offices. Typically give a large number of small grants.

Funded by gifts and bequests from many sources who want their contribution to
benefit a particular city or region. Gifts may be restricted to a specific agency or
field of service.
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Operating foundation

Corporation

Community Organization

Government

—-Bank Trust Departments

The Grantseeking Process
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Generally established by a nonprofit to fund its own programs. External grants are
unusual.

For more information on foundations, visit the Foundation Center Collection in
vour area (see Chapter 8, Print Resources).

Not all corporations have company foundations to channel their charitable giving.
Even those that have foundations often reserve part of their gift dollars for direct
allocation by the corporation.

The grantmaking process differs from company to company. In most cases, there is
a contributions committee comprised of the chief executive officer and other senior
management. It may meet monthly, quarterly, or annually. Some corporations give
preference to organizations recommended by branch managers, or charities in
which their emplovees are actively involved. Learn who does the staff work and
ask for criteria and deadlines.

The Conference Board publishes an annual survey of corporate contributions (see
Chapter 8, Print Resources).

Civic, service. and religious organizations are good prospects for small grants for
ongoing programs or special projects. Javcees, Junior League, Rotary. and
auxiliaries are prominent examples. Contact usually is made through the local
president or other leader. though some requests may be referred to state or
national funding levels. Most likely to be funded are programs that provide for a
well-known, shared. community need.

Despite periodic changes in funding policy, government is still big business.
Government continues to make grants—large and small—to nonprofits with
creative ideas and aggressive follow-through. Though the emphasis may shift from
federal to state or local offices. public funding is available for those interested
enough to track it down.

Banks and other financial institutions manage an impressive number of trust
funds of all sizes. In some cases, the investment income is pre-designated for a

specific purpose. In others. there may be more freedom for disseminating to
charitable causes.

The decision making process differs, but tvpically includes the donor. familx
members. and perhaps. a trust officer. A phone call or visit to various trust officers
should result in a listing of trust funds and eligibility requirements.

Learn as much as possible about grants and grantmakers to increase vour

opportunities for success. They vary almost as much as grantseekers do. Some
discavery clues follow:

Research potential grantmakers thoroughly. Use the library. chamber of
commerce. local business and organization directories. vellow pages, government
development and program offices. Put your ingenuity to work.

Regularly review grant publications and perioditals. The Foundation Directory
ll:t: foundations accordmnr to preferred grant categories (capital. general operat-
ing, research) and special interests (art, educatlon health) The Foundation
Index Bimonthly provides updates on current giving. The Federal Register and
other government pubhcauom announce available grants and application require-
ments. These should be in the public library.
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« Request an annual report and funding guidelines. Review interests and require-
ments. Note special restrictions and application deadlines and procedures. List the
best prospects.

« Make an informal inquiry, by letter or phone. to the top prospects. Briefly describe
your organization and need. Offer to send a formal funding proposal. Schedule a
preliminary meeting to discuss proposal basics.

* Be realistic about the amount you request. It enhances your credibility and chance
for success.

e Be aware that some grantmakers expect to be consulted in the early stages of
project planning. This is particularly true of major project sponsors.

» Keep trying. If at first you don't succeed, go to the next grantmaker on the list.
Some projects require multiple grants, thus simultaneous submissions to several
grantmakers. Most funders appreciate knowing about all outstanding proposa”

e Don't limit yourself to local funding sources. If your proposal is unique, or of
national significance, approach major, national grantmakers.

* Send proposals only to grantmakers expressing an interest in the project. Grant —
applications greatly exceed available funds and staff review capability. Repeated
submissions of inappropriate requests may cause reviewers to pass over your
proposals for those they know to be on target.

* Consider sharing a grant with another nonprofit. Grantmakers have long joined
together to fund community projects. Creative nonprofits are gaining their support
by doing the same.

Example:

Five cultural nonprofits on Pittsburgh’s Northside secured a single grant

from Mellon Bank to publish a cooperative inter-institutional brochure

promoting educational tours to neighboring facilities. Institutions were
individually highlighted, while the overall theme stressed the value of five
learning experiences within close proximity. As a result, the single brochure ,
was less expensive, and more effective, than individual ones would have been.

» Get to know the people who make the decisions and let them get to know you.

Good research, followed by a good proposal, will gain you consideration. A great -
proposal may get you the grant. There are numerous books explaining how to
write a grant proposal. Read several. Use them for reference, along with grant-
maker guidelines, as you prepare your request. Though criteria vary, most grant-
makers expect a proposal to include the following:

Cover letter

Proposal Summary (Abstract)

Limit to one page and include the amount requested, total budget, project purpose,
and planned results.

Introduction to Organization

History, general purpose, goals and objectives, accomplishments, service area, and
population served.

Statement of Problem or Need

Project Goals and Objectives




Program-Related Investment
Getting credit for vour good work

Staffing Requirements
Job description, personal resumes, recruitment and training plans.

Implementation Method and Schedule
Evaluation Criteria and Procedures

Itemized Budget
Program and operating costs, other sources of funding.

Future F unding Plans

Appendix

Support documents, including tax-exempt status letter, board of directors listing,
annual report, current operating budget, audited financial statement, recent and
current funding sources (cash and in-kind), and community support letters.

Despite the volume of information required, keep the proposal brief and to the
point. Don't beg. You have a legitimate need, prove it. Grantmakers want to know
how their money will benefit the community, economy, and their special interests.
Tell them in as concrete terms as possible. If vou have an emotional story to tell, do
it in the appendix. or on a follow-up visit.

Submission of the proposal is not the end of your involvement. There are several

ways to remain active in the grantmaking process and enhance yvour chances for
this and future grants.

* Two to four weeks after submitting a proposal, follow up with a phone call to
confirm its arrival. Offer additional materials in support of the project. Arrange a
personal visit to the grantmaker for further discussion. Invite the grantmaker to
visit the site of the proposed project.

¢ Many corporation and foundation grant decisions are made by a board of directors
or contributions committee. Learn when they're meeting and call the day before to
provide additional last minute details.

e Grant decisions can take from a few weeks to more than a year. Plan accordingly
and be patient, but persistent, in checking vour proposal’s progress.

» Upon acceptance, remember to say thank you. Also send regular progress reports

on the project and other major activities. Keep grantmakers informed of your con-
tinuing success.

» Acknowledge rejections with a thank you (for consideration).

» Keep detailed records of all grant activities, including contacts and payments.
Make an activity schedule for report deadlines and follow-up calls. This is
particularly important for campaigns of long duration, such as capital fund drives.

The next best thing to an outright grant is a program-related investment (PRI).
Stated simply, a PRI is an equity investment, loan, or loan guarantee made by a
foundation to serve a charitable purpose. It is sometimes called a social investment.
Unlike grants, PRI's must be repaid, sometimes With the addition of a low interest
rate.
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Special Event
One for the money; o for the show

Though PRI's vary by type and complexity, a majority support low-income and
minority community development programs. Others include temporary advances
to educational or cultural institutions for projects expected to become self-
supporting, and the purchase of stock in a for-profit business that uses the money
for charitable purposes. PRI's often are used to leverage broad-based community
support for projects that otherwise might seem too risky for a single funder’s
involvement.

Strict regulations govern the making of PRI's. Foundations must prove that the

- money is being used only for a charitable purpose. and that the recipient could not
have secured funding through normal financial sources. Despite this and other
complications—and the risk of non-repayment— increasing numbers of foundations
are making PRI's.

Before requesting this type of support, get all the facts. Start with the Ford
Foundation, a PRI pioneer. and the Cooperative Assistance Fund. a PRI funding
pool formed by several foundations (see Chapter 8, Print Resources).

Overrated, underrated—special events have the distinction of being both. Over-
rated because they don't magically produce a year's operating budget at the flick of
a wrist. Special events are hard work, even when thev fail. Underrated because
they offer much more than money. Community visibility and involvement, new
donor prospects— special events have the potential to keep vou in the public’s eve
and budget.

Thus, with the increasingly competitive nature of nonprofit fundraising, no organi-
zation can afford to ignore special events. The challenge is to find the right event—
and the possibilities are unlimited. Art shows, athletic events, auctions. bazaars.
benefit performances, bingo. celebrity events, cocktail parties, dances, dinners,
excursions, flea markets, galas, holiday events—through every letter of the
alphabet there are countless ideas.

Choosing the right event(s) is just the beginning. You also need dedicated volun-
teers, at least a minimal operating/promotional budget, and good organization.
Hard work isn’t enough. Creativity, timing, even the weather can make the differ-
ence in success or failure,

Therefore, it pays to do thorough research and planning before undertaking any
special event. The place to start is The Grass Roots Fundraising Book by Joan
Flanagan (see Chapter 8, Print Resources). It offers everything from creative ideas
to planning and execution details. You might also want to remember the following
clues:

¢ Allow plenty of lead time for planning and developing community support. Too
many great ideas fail due to poor timing and organization. A year in advance isn't
too soon to start on major events.

® Be creative. Choose an event that relates to your good work. Or, take advantage of
current events. Caution: you need strong organizational skills and volunteer
support to cash in on *in” events.

-* Develop a budget and planning schedule—and stick to them. Keep detailed records

~

of contacts, expenses, and receipts.

» Recruit volunteers to form a central planning committee. Get them to ask friends
to serve as workers.
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¢ Seek broad-based community support. This can vary, depending on the event, but

there are numerous ways to involve students, businesses, employee groups, and
-  civic organizations. Ask them to be sponsors, participants, underwriters. The
March of Dimes uses all these methods to raise over $275,000 annually in their
Greater Pittsburgh Walkathons.

¢ Annualize your most successful event. Turn it into a major fundraiser.

¢ Ask community groups to sponsor special events for you. One extremely successful
_ : example is Pittsburgh’s Children’s Hospital. Countless individuals, businesses,
and community groups try to out-do one another year after year—raising millions
of dollars annually through creative, fun, grass roots events. However, this type of
support doesn’t happen overnight, nor in a year. It takes years of ongoing aware-
ness and development effort.

¢ Publicize the event through members, volunteers, evervone connected with vour
organization. and the general public. Use posters; flyers; bulletin board notices;
announcements in newsletters and emplovee/civic group publications, and on school
public address systems:; public service announcements on radio. television and cable
TV stations: feature stories in local papers, and other standard promotional
methods. Ask for pro bono service from advertising and public relations firms.

¢ Include time for fun in your planning. Though most people participate for the
cause, they re more likely to help again if they've had a good time.

¢ Show appreciation. Consider rewarding workers and top money raisers with
inexpensive mementos of the event. such as a t-shirt. Some 500 volunteer
harvesters are sporting colorful t-shirts provided by Mellon Bank which claim
I know how to pick 'em” at The Great Tomato Patch, a project which yielded
70 tons of produce for the Greater Pittsburgh Community Food Bank. Some
nonprofits award more valuable prizes to top money-makers.

* Learn from your mistakes—and successes. Evaluate each event according to timing,
visibility, cost, and financial gain. Determine how to do it better the next time. Get
rid of events that consistently lose money. or bring too little retwrn for the effort.

This concludes the outline of primary money resources. But it should be just the
beginning of vour discovery. As noted earlier, evervone has monev. The nonprofit
community hasn’t begun to reach evervone, nor even potential major givers. It is for
vou to develop these and other resources to meet your organization’s financial needs.

As vou progress, keep in mind the following major points:

* RKnou vour organization—who you are, what vou do, why you're needed and what
you need.

® Knou potential funders—who they are, why thev give and what they expect in
return.

® Be creative and organized. Neither excels alone, but great ideas supported by
thorough planning rarely fail.

» Learn to share—ideas, techniques, solutions to mutual problems.

* Remember that institutions, companies, other o¥ganizations don’t give money;
people in them do. Don't neglect the personal touches.
The final, most important, point is this: money isn’t everything. For long term
success, you must infegrate financial resources with other community resources—
people, goods, and services—into a program that makes the most of total resources.
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Chapel Hill Training-Outreach Project, 800 Eastowne Drive, Suite 105, Chapel Hill, NC 27514
Phone: 1-800-473-1727 or (919} 490-5577; FAX: (319) 430-4905
Human Services InterNet/SpecialNet Username: NC.CHOUTREACH

Marketing for Charitable Nonprofit Organizations

uring the last decade, competition between charitable
dsoprofits for diwminishing financial resources has inspired
1cmto embrace new skills that will improve their fundraising
aility whilc also serving their constituents betler.,

Jthough fundraising results arc ticd to the capacity to
dmmunicate to donors and persuade them to give, they are
Iso tied strongly to functions that occur much earlier than the
ctual request for funds. In particular, they arcticd to the level
f satisfaction with the organization's scrvices that is ex-
ressed by its primary constitucats, i.c. those served by the
rganization’s mission. A philanthropy posilionsitself best to
ompete for all kinds of support, including funds, by doing
bie following:

carefully defining who its constitucats arc;
" measuring the needs of its constitueats;
designing programs to suit those nceds;

measuring the constilucats® satisfaction with those
prograws;

using those results to fine tunc its services regularly; and,

conunuaicating the above to potential donors (and
others) clearly and simply.

This process is casily recognizable in the conunercial business
setting; it is called marketing. Translerral of marketing

principles to the nonprofit community happened about 1975 .

when business marketing genius Philip Kotler wrote Marker-
ing for Nonprofits.

Delinition
Kotler defines markeling as the analysis, planning, imple-
mentation, and control of a charitable nonprofil’s programs,

which have been carcfully designed to bring about voluntary

" exchanges of values with target markets for the purpose of
achieving organizational objectives.

Application to Operations

Let's examine that definition in scgments.

Management

Analysis, planning, implenentation, and control aee manage-~
rial functions performed by the board and staff (usuall-
through a stralegic planning process) for a lerm of ycar.

[Note: Sce Factsheet 8 for more information on strategic
planning.] The group first measures the needs of ils primary
constituents (clicats, users, etc.) and then designs (or rede-
signs, or reaflirms) services Lo suit those needs. Askiong focus
groups of constituents regularly to review programs and react
to them is the charitable nonprofit world's version of market
lesting. It is a variation of what bappens when you walk
through a shopping mall and someone asks to you drink a
sample of orange juice and react to the taste, color, consis~
tency, and smell of the product. The ability of a charitablc
nonprofit drganization continually to adjust its services so suit
client need is key to ensuring the organization’s survival and
its financial support, Tir: The existence of a Market Evalu~-
ation Committee within the board is a surc sign that the
‘organization is secking a maximum fit between programs
and constitucnt need. Potential funders look for shat sign.

LExchange

The organization and the constituent cach seck somctiu
from cach other. The constituent needs specilic services. The
charitable nooprofit has two needs: (1) maximum use of its
scrvice so as to justify its existence; (2) financial resources.
Each volustarily seeks a response from the other, and when

those responses happen, it is called an cxchange of values, or
a markes exchange.

So there are really two kinds of market cxchanges that result
from the aforementioned management processes: (1) en-

hanced appreciation and use of programs and (2) finaacial
support.

To focus on the second exchange, financial support, let us
acknowledge that there arc really two sources of financial
support: (a) donations from thosc who actually use the
programs, and (b) coruributions from others who approve of
the programs and who want to facilitate that exchange with
their own moncy on behalf of the constituents.
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TALKING POINTS By: John T, Rigby

D AND INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS IN ESTABLISHING AN ENDOWMENT

Some issues currently being explored in Mali as part of identification of vanablcs/opuons in planning a
Malian foundation for NGO support (likely to include an endowment element):

Legal climate

Identify relevant sections of Malian law, regulation, and practice bearing on the several endowment and
institutional forms (capital fund, trust fund frec-standing institution). Specifically:

¢)) What institutional forms are available in Mali for an endowment? (for example, does prevailing
law in Mali recognize the juridical form of "fidéicommis"?)

2 What are the tax and regulatory implications of the different endowment forms with respect to:
. endowment assets (e.g., is there tax exemption or abatement? can the endowment assets

include real estate? can it have foreign investments?)

° endowment receipts (e.g., what arc the relevant laws/regulations governing gifts to
associations? are ecndowiment carnings taxable?)

® endowment disbursements (c.g., are endowment payouts taxable at any point?)

] endowment management (e.g., are trustees "fiduciaires” or "dépositaires”) subject to

regulatory or judicial oversight?

3 Is there a process (and precedent) for a specnl act qf the "Assemblée Nationale” to creatc a
special msllluuon for the proposcd endowment? What'are the advantages and disadvantages of
such an "institution-by-decree” in Mali?

nvestment Climate

(N Does the Government of Mali have an officially sanctioned debt-swap or debt-exchange program?
What arce its terms and procedures?

2) What, overall, is the range of options for investments that can be accessed directly in Mali? For
example, is therc any level of a-stock exchange? What is the structure and practice, accessible

in Mali, for trading in "paper” (government or parastatal bonds, bank bonds, certificates of
deposit, mortgages, commercial paper, ctc.)?

What is the structure and practice, accessible in Mali, for trading in equities?

What are the leading firms that engage in brokerage or arbitrage (whether local or international

investments)?
3 Is there a legal regulatory scheme affecting investment activities — and actors -- in Mali?
) Near-, medium- and long-term macro- faclors likely to influence investment calculations for an

- endowment?
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ORGANIZATIONAL _CHAR,CTERISTICS OF SUSTAINABLE _(AND ENDOWABLE)

ORGANIZATIONS

The programs or Mission nust be seen as warranting a more or less "permanent” cxistence,
prog

i
The organization must har an acceptable Jevel of competence and reliability:

oe of the board ar tru. zcs, for stewardship of the endowment; and
o of the management :am and systems:
]

financial ma: gement (management and accountability of diversified funding mix
required for uslainability; cost controls; integration of planning, budgeting

systems)

n of its man:\g-.; unt_informatipn _system (timeliness, pertinence of financial
information as ¢ ded for mamgement decisions) and

x

of its mopitoriny  saluation gystem

The organization must have (witl:. its trusices and its management) a capacity and disposition

for longer-term, strategic planning-  rogran and financial) of which the endowment element is
to be but a part.

The organization should have severa -wecis of income, to include:

.o income {rom its programs
LA donations from mece than one e

)
X
While "matching” endowmic™t fanding  ue. an absolute requirement, usually there should be

some progrim and likelihcpd of fu. et endowment growth. This could be through

recapitalization of earpings as well as .l aal” growth from other donors or other income
sources.
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GLOSSARY OF ENDOYWMENT TERMS

Campaign

In fundraising, a special effort to raise a particular amount of money in a specific amount of time {or a
designated purpose.

Capitalization of Earnings '

Reinvesting the interest and dividends carned by the endowment fund rather than paying them out to the
NPO.

Cause-Related Marketing

A fundraising process wherein a commercial business and a charity form an alliance to benefit each other
resulting in higher profits going to the business and greater contributions going to the charity The
Lhanty allows its good name to be attached (o the advertising of the business; the business increases the
price on a particular product and remits the excess to the charity, Today, more than 60% of all corporate
contributions are cause-related as opposed to the traditional corporate gift.

Charity
A particular class of nonprofit organization that operates for the benefit of the general public under
Section 501 (¢)(3) of the IRS Code. Contributions to organizations in this category are tax deductible.

Note: "Nonprofit organization” and “charity” are often used interchangeably in common parlance but,
in fact, should be separate.  All charities are nonprofit, but all nonprofit are not charities.

Corpus
Funds comprising the endowment

Development Committee

A commiltee of the board of directors which oversees and assists in strategic planning, financial
management, and fundraising.

Dircct Gillt
Funds given to an organization fur immediate use.

Dircectors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

A specialized insurance policy bought by nonprofit organizations which indemnifies its board mcmbcrs
against claims of negligence or wrong doing.

Endowment

A gift that is invested to provide income, which is cither retained to allow the gift to grow or is used to
support the organizations’ programs and/or administration.

Types of Endownient

True Endowments contain provisions prohibiting the principal from being spent.
Quasi-Endowments are treated as an mdowmcnt but are not subject to legal prohibitions against
spending.

Term endowments fund with provisions that state the principal can be spent at a prespecified
time.
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Forms of Endowment

Capital Fund is typically managed by the fund’s institutional benchuary Generates several
streams of revenue for the organization.

Trust Fund is managed by independent trusices, or by the trust department of a bank. The
trustees pay out carnings to the beneficiary in accordance with the terms of the trust
and pursuant to the laws of the country concerning roles of fiduciaries.,

Fiduciary Responsibility
A legal responsibility of the board of dircctors and certain staff to oversee the use of funds in accordance
with accepted standards of the nonprofit management ficld.

Marketing
The process of assessing the needs of a constituency and designing programs as a response to those needs.

Mission
The central work of a nonprofit organization.

Nonprofit Organization N

A broad class of organizations that operate for the benefit of the general public under Section 501 (c) of
the Internal Revenue Code. Not all contributions to the 21 subgroups in this class are tax deductible.

Non Program Funds
- Funds expended or received {or the administrative or {undraising side of the organization.

Program Funds
Funds expended or received for the chanlable mission or “programs" of the organization.

Related Business Income _
Non-taxable income of a non-profit organization from a missjo;n-related venture of the organization.

Restricied Funds

A pool of funds that is held separately from other funds for specific use designated by cither a donor or
the board of directors.

Sced Moncy'
Funds received or expended for the purpose of starting a program, usually experimental.

Tangible Property

In fundraising, property other than rcal estate, such as art objects, automobile collections. racehorses,
table china, book collections, jewelry, ete.

Unrelated Business Income

Taxable income of non-profit organization which comes from a commercial business owned by the
organization, )

Unrestricted Funds

A pool of funds in a nonprofit organization that the board of directors may ‘allocate for the organization’s
work without designation.
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HOW TO RAISE FUND
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"Money makes the world go round”, as the sayz"ng goes. For consumer .
organizations this is equally true, and more. Knowing what money there Is

allows them to plan ahead.

There are four main sources of income for consumer
organizations: (1) membership fees, (2) sale of its
publications and other products (for instance posters.
T-shirts} which carry messages related to the work of
the organization, (3) direct pubiic appeals and
{4) grants from appropriate donor organizations.

It 1s possitie for the source of funding to distort the
Inaependence of the consumer organization. So con-
sumer groups canrnot be too careful atout taking
money from those who mignt influence the organiza-
tion's impartiality, independence or freedom from
bias.

Ways to fundraise are many. The choice of which
method or methods to use depends largely on wnat
kinds of acceptable potential donors there are
- foundations, a charity-minded middle class. a gen-
eral public that can make small but widespread
donations — as well as the ability of the organization to
provide the number of people and the money neeced
for the fundraising actvities.

Membership fees
Membership fees and pledges — based on members’
ability to pay so that those on tight budgets aren’t
barred from your organization — are the most obvious
sources of revenue.

A decision about the importance of fees is critical in
determining what the membership will be. Some
groups regard fees as the "backbone’ of the organiza-
tion. These groups estabiish membership fees based
onminimal operating needs. Other groups see fees as
a way of bringing in additional support, and receive
their main support through grants and the organizing
of fundraising events.

Types of membership fees: -
o fiat fee - based on anticipated expenses di-

vided by the projected number of
paying members

Basic principles of fundraising

o Rsk for contributions
Money is rarely given without being asked
for. Volunteers and staff involved in
fundraising have to be prepared to ask for
contributions.

® Get sufficient people to help
Whether volunteers or staff, there must be
sufficient people to undertake and carry out
successfully the requirements of
afundraising campaign.

¢ Communicate the need and the
programme
People who give want to be assured that
their money is going to meet a need that is
important, and to an organization that is
effective.

® Select the target-donors carefully
Volunteers and staff are too scarce and too
valuable to waste in widespread and largely
useless efforts. Too many rejections and no
. answers discourage fundraisers.

. Know what is needed

If fundraisers don't know how much money
is needed to run the kind of programme the
organization requires, don't expect
prospective donors 1o know.

e Be specific
Know the overall goal; but let the
prospective donors know how much of that
goal they are expected to meet. Vague
requests for money tend to get routine
contributions. Set a definite sum to be
raised
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¢ Be persistent Rl
If the campaign is addressed to the general
public, plan the campaign to run over
a sufficient period t6 get the appeal across. -~
If an appeal is addressed to an ndividual
donor, remember that people getalot of
mail, telephone calls and even visits, and the
best fundraising solicitation may get lost
. unlas ms iollowedup effectively. .
AT L R R e P
knows noseason -

Keep the organization and its fundraising
campaign in the public eye. Regular
communications to the general public and to
individual donors should be maintained
throughout the year. If people have already
contributed, these communications show

them that the moneyxsbemgwe]lspem, and
the way is paved for an increased .. ,
-contribution the following year. Most donor PN
crganizations on the other hand have a time- -
table for dealing with apphmons Find out
whatthetahl&care e T o

Say’thankm
Whenmdmdualg:ﬁsdocome, lettezs of
thanks are a must, as personal and warm as
possible. When a general fundraising .. -
campaign has been successful, announce it
'mﬂtepr&csoronra&o/'rv a.ndmankﬁte

o public| for their help.

e feesinkind ~ to prevent fees excluding people
who cannot afford to pay, you
might want to offer some kind of
exchange, eg, voluntearing a cer-
tain number of hours per month

® discounts - a special reduction in fees can be
offered to specific poputation
groups, eg, the eiderly or unem-
ployed

® siiding scale — set up a scale based on the ability
to pay, or on scale benefits to be
received

Promoting your magazine

This can be an effective way of increasing your
income. For ways of doing this. see article 'How to
promote your magazine’.

Direct appeals

® Mail appeals

# The despatch of a ‘personaiised’ appeal to a list of
potential generous donors. This shoutd come from
the President of the organization or from a senior
volunteer or figure in public life.

e The despatch of an 'appeal’ letter to selected
groups of potential donors, eg, doctors, lawyers,
schoolteachers. You,can obtain mailing lists fro
community. church and other groups. Keep fund-
raising letters brief and to the point — usually no
more than one page. It is helpful to have such
letters signed by a prominent and popular national
figure. Don’t expect to get nch quickly. An excep-
tionally good retum is $2 for every $1 spent.

* Personal appeats
This method is heavily depencent on the availability
of volunteers and staff, but it is the best way of
approaching a potential donor. Armed with the
facts and convinced of the organization’s case, the
fundraiser’s best chance of cbtaining a donation is
by a personal approach. In view of the expense in
volunteer/staff time, this method should be used to
approach those donors with the most to give.
Remember that considerabie preparation be-
forehand and follow-up will be required. -
Fundraising events
Walkathons, fairs, donation parties. There are many
ways of raising money. Not all are appropriate for
every organization. Special events such as fairs and
auctions are time-consuming and should be underta-
ken only if you are confident of a substantial retum.
Fundraising events should not be organized only for
the sake of raising money. They should have the dual
purpose of raising public awareness on a specific
issue or on the range of issues on which you are
working.

The major steps to take are:

® making a list of all the possible avents you could
organize

® choosing one or more of the ideas

® itemising costs of putting on the event



Outline of a fundraxsmg campaign

Statement of the case

This should state: ¢

(a) the aims of the campaign;

(b) what the problem is;

{c) how much money is needed, and when;

(d) what is being done and what will be done with the money raised.

The statement should be the official line’ of the fundraising campaign. Campaign literature,
request letters, slogans, presentations, etc. should follow this basic line.

Basic sttnctaure of the campaign

This should set out the structure of the fundraising committee. It should identify the volunteers
and organizations which will support the campaign. The structure should also deal with the
salaried staff involved in the campaign, and the relationship of this staff to the campaign
committees and to the organization. :

The target for the first year and thereafter

Fixing the target of money to be raised is very important. It should be realistic but sheuld also

provide a challenge. It should be high enough to attract prestigious leadership to the comrmittee.
Targets for subsecuent years should also be set, provisionally, to be revised, based upon the first

year’s experience. Subsequent targets should be higher each year to acknowledge skills -
acquired and to meet growing needs. :

Fundraising methods
The plan should outline the various methods of fundraising to be used, detailing the amounts to
be raised by volunteers and staff through these methods.

Administrative and support requirements

This should indicate the number of volunteers and staff necessary, the office space, office
equipment, campaign literature, travel requirements, supplies, etc. to carry out the campaign.
Public information and media requirements should also be considered.

Special events

A listing of special events should be drawn up. These might include a campaign launching
dinner; a charity ball; a fun fair; a membership drive; World Consumer Rights Day; special guest
speakers; a TV appeal; a walk; a raffle; a poster campaign; a mail campaign; a sale, and so on.

Time schedule
A campaign calendar should spell out the timing of each aspect of the plan over the 12 months of
the campaign. Public information and media requirements should also be considered.

The budget
A budget should be drawn up to include estimated campaign income; staff salaries; cost of
supplies and equipment; cost of campaign literature, postage and travel costs,

Grants development or charitable activities. They receive
Donors or funding agencies are organizations suchas  their money from individuals or govemments who give
foundations, govemnment departments. intemational it for specific purpneas

agencies or churches that have monaw #~ fon--

e I S . ¥ it 8w e



e setting an income goal
¢ preparing for the event
¢ post-event discussion

Examples of specific events

Jumble sales

Encourage the concept of reducing waste.

e Ask members and the public to contribute articles

for the sale. Specify the type (and condition) of
articles that are acceptabie. You do not want to be
a dump for junk and useless articles.

Decide on the venue, for example school or a com-
munity centre. The location is important. If the
people who are likely to come to such a jumble sale
come from a certain section of the city, organize it
there.

Publicise the sale. State how the proceeds of the
sale will be used. Concentrate the publicity in the
area where you expect most interest.

Have brochures on your organization available.
Consider putting on an exhibition about your work.

Pot luck dinners

Choose a date and assign each volunteer a dish.
Themes, such as an intemational dinner, a picnic or
a vegetarian meal are fun.

Find a large meeting room with tables, chairs and
running water. A church or school makes a good
choice.

Before the dinner, iay out the buffet table.

Set up a ticket tabie at the door.

Charge whatever is appropriate for your commun-
ity and group. '

Prepare a simple programme consisting of a wel-
come and a short talk about what your organiza-
tion does.

Have members circulate and talk with guests. Also
have membership forms available.

Donation parties

Plan a theme such as a May Day celebration or an
aftemoon tea.

Ask members to bring refreshments.

Set a minimum donation such as $5.

Publicise the event throughout your organization
and within the community by using posters and
fiyers.

Have some form of entertainment if possible. This

may include a musical group, an interesting speak-
er or a fashion show.

¢ Slage a brief presentation about your organization
and have literature available-for people to read and
discuss.

Auctions

e Select and get permission to use a site; a church or
school hall is good.

e Contact everyone in your community for donations
- fiorists, restaurants, car washes, bakeries, gift
shops. Don't forget about individual donations
such as ball game or concert tickets or a weekend
at a private country cottage.

¢ Have form letters for each donor to filt in and sign.

e Keep detailed records of donors and bidders and
arrange how items wil be picked up or redeemed.
Have a special table for redemption.

¢ Number ali items and make lists of auction goods
available to those attending.

e Start the bidding below market value for the item
- you will clear money for your group and particip-
ants will get a good deal.

® Don'tlet the donor know the amount of the winning
bid. Feelings can be hurt when a beloved item goes
for only $5!

Fairs

e Seek permission from local officials to use the
grounds you have selected.

e Estimate the crowd you anticipate, the time of the
event and plan a rubbish collection system.

¢ Plan the activities. These might include games,
cake sales and refreshments.

e Have a large booth to display fiterature on your
organization.

e Publicize the fair by distributing leafiets, posters,
balloons or banners.

o Notify the local media and keep them informed.
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This is why donors have specific requirements and
conditions for granting money. Some can only give
money for cerain types of activities (eg, education),
others only for certain kinds of beneficiaries (eg, the
poorest, music students, children, etc.), others only
for certain geographical areas (eg, the Third World,
Asia, or specific countries).

Whenever possible try to have personal contact with
donors: visit them, invite them to visit your organiza-
tion, find people who know someone in a funding
agency to introduce you, get names of people in
funding agencies, get someone who knows a donor
to submit your project proposal, get ietters of referral
from organizations that have been funded by the
donor. When you write to a donor, personalise your
letter if possible.

Donor research
If you are starting out and don't know any funding
agencies yet, start by making a list.

e Write to embassies in your country asking for a list
of donor agencies in their country.

¢ Write to intemational organizations, such as the
United Nations, the Organization of Economic.
Cooperation and Development, the European
Economic Community, for the same.

¢ Approach local churches and ask for the names
and addresses of their intemational donors.

¢ | ook up funding agencies in your local library.

e Ask other voluntary groups and organizations for
names and addresses of donors.

& Ask your colleagues and friends.

Write to all the funding agencies you can, asking them
Yor their funding criteria and areas of interest. Explain
who you are and what kind of work you do. Send them
a brochure or fiyer about your organization.

Submitting a project proposal

You can submit the same project proposal to more
than one donor. In fact, unless you are fairly sure that
a particular donor will fund your project, it is advisabie
1o send the proposal to several donors. In that case,
tell them that you have sent the proposal to other
donors too.

Send the project proposal with a covering letter in
which you briefly introduce your organization and
state the purpose of the project and the amount of

g6

money you are asking for. If it is a large project, it is
best to make it clear whether you are asking the donor
to fund all or part of it. In the information that funding
agencies send to enquirers they usually state their
fields of interest as well as the maximum amount they
can grant.

The first time that you apply to a particular donor it is
helpful to attach with your project proposal any ieaflet
about your organization as well as reports on previous
projects and, if possible, letters of referral or testimo-
nials on previous projects your organization has done.
Also enclose your latest annual report if available.

Project proposal

This is a document outlining the project and its costs
in order to seek financial support from a funding
agency (donor).

In order to get support you need to convince the
donors that you are tackling a legitimate problem and
that you can be successful. Therefore, explain:

The issue or problem you are tackling and why.
The goals you have set yourself.

The methods you will use.

The results you plan to achieve.

Who is to benefit from the project.

The structure of your group or organization.

Why your group can and should camry out this
project.

What it will cost and how much you want the donor
to give.

The way in which you present this information is
important for convincing the donors. Be precise and
Clear.

Don'’t use too many words. Make it easy to under-
stand the problem you are tackling and what you want
to do.

Source:
Adapted from:

— Lecture notes, Young Consumer Leaders Work-
shop, Penang, 1985

- 'Fundraising’ and 'Project Preparation’, papers
prepared by Jean-Pierre Allain, IOCU 12th World
Congress, 1987.

— "The Rich Get Richer and the Poor Write Propos-
als’, by Nancy Mitiguy, CITP, 1978

— 'People Power', US Office of Consumer Affairs
— Notes on Fundraisirjng, IPPF, London, 1877
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Steps in the fundraliing process . .

The grants process'

Follow-up positive
and negative
) funding
Interview or site  decisions )
visit with funding Develop long term
source

12

11
Follow-up with ]
funding source Past-

10 Proposal

~ _ Phase /
~
/ L.
Write, edit and g Proposal ~ S/ 3 Develop short term cbjectives,
submit proposal Phase - evaluate current programumes -

.

Make intal cona Svpiprpiae ¢ e
inidal ct arganizational structure T
with funding source |

Prioritise possible | \ ‘

funding sources; Research )

; g pf‘*‘n’lei \\ " Direct public appeals
time-table - N . . .
so Review annual
i o AN e
\ monthly cash needs
Evaluate activities; ‘ B
.~ ... make recommendations \ ;d resources
 for future activities me’mfy sour.

ising activities
Thank-you's to appropriate for
contributors, the group (dues,
vohunteers canvassing, etc.)_
Monitoring: record ::‘i:n‘:‘::-: _
keeping of volunteer fundraisi
time and income .. .g
Fundraising ) g
activity (member- Form commitiees;
ghip drive, direct assign tasks and

Adapted froma model prepared by the Instimte for Fundraising in California.
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WHAT DOES A FIRM CONSIDER
WHEN ASKED FOR SPONSORSHIP
By Andrei Verbitsky, Soprichastnost Charity Foundation

1. The organization or project to which the firm will provide its name should
not necessarily be national, large, or prestigious. It may be original,
impressive, interesting, innovative, known etc.

2. The public expected to attend the sponsored action, or the constituents
covered by the project, should be interesting for the firm as clients (their age,
incomes, origin, occupation, social group, number are relevant), or as
influential individuals.

3. The type of the project the firm is offered to sponsor should be interesting
as a business opportunity.

4. The firm's potential benefits from sponsoring the action (the action initiators
should make a list in advance):

- description of the public that would attend the action or that have
contacts with the sponsored organization;

- how broad the publicity would be provided (appreciation to the
sponsor in booklets, on posters, stickers, programs, ads; appreciation in the
sponsored organization's annual report);

- what mass media would be involved; whether the firm's sponsorship
would be covered;

- entertainments during the sponsored action (reception, good seats,
cheap tickets for the firm's staff, etc.);

- whether special books, souvenirs, booklets, records will be made to
remember the sponsor; when and how these will be distributed.

5. What funds are requested? How does this amount relate to the firm's
budget, and how reasonable it is from the perspective of the sponsorship
benefit to the firm? Is the amount sufficient for a good arrangement of the
action?

World Learning/PCC, Financial Management



SPONSORSHIP'S BENEFITS TO THE FIRM:

- publicity;

- the firm's improved image in the community and on the national
scale;

- promotion of goods and services;
- media coverage,

- entertainment for the firm's employees, clients, customers, and
partners; '

- improved internal relations;
- improved relations with investors;

- involvement in the social activities and formation of the positive image
in the community;

- access to a certain market;

- access to certain people;

- association with a high-quality or prestigious action;
- involvement of new employees;

- demonstration of the firm's social responsibility.
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CHARITY SUMS

Profits tax: 38 percent

Profits: Rub 1,000,000

Tax: Rub 380,000

Donation: 3 percent of the non-taxable profits

Donation exempt from the profits tax: Rub 30,000

Tax on the 97 percent of the profits: Rub 368,600

Total (donation plus tax): Rub 398,600

The donor pays Rub 18,600 more

The gift of Rub 30,000 costs only Rub 18,600 to the firm (62%)!

Rub 11,400 are covered by the government that has provided exemption
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APPROACHING THE FIRM

KEY STAGES OF EFFECTIVE FUNDRAISING

1. SELECTION OF POTENTIAL DONORS (seeking for possible meeting
points).

2. PHONE CALL (before writing a letter) to identify the employee in charge of
the requests to the firm. Try to learn as much as possible about this
employee.

3. LETTER TO THE FIRM.

4, MEETING THE POTENTIAL DONOR

5. PRESENTATION AND DEMONSTRATION OF THE PROJECT/PROGRAM

6. OVERCOMING THE ARGUMENTS

7. REACHING AN AGREEMENT.

8. GETTING THE GIFT.

9. APPRECIATION.

10. EVALUATION, FOLLOW-UP AND LONG-TERM RELATIONS.



WHAT FORMS OF ADDRESS ARE MOST EFFECTIVE
(Increasingly)

1. Distribution of leaflets.

2. Promotion (campaign).

3. News item.

4. Booklet.

5. Newsletter.

6. Xeroxed letter 1

7. Typed letter.

8. Hand-written letter.

9. Phone talk.

10. Address to a large group.
11. Address to a small group.

12. A person-to-person discussion (personal request).

1 The targeted distribution to selected and carefully identified addressees is several times
more effective than the unselected distribution.
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APPROACHING A FIRM (continued)

MEETING A POTENTIAL DONOR

A clearly-defined objective for every meeting:

- to assess the potential donor, obtain the necessary information or get
the immediate consent to make a gift.

The best time for a_contact;

- at certain times many potential donors can be busy, or they would not
have available funds.

Positive and good relations from the start:

- greetings, appreciation for the meeting, positive assessment of the
firm's. activity, expressing hope that the meeting will be interesting, useful and
beneficial to the potential donor.

KEY WORDS:
NOT | OR MYSELF BUT YOU AND YOURSELF!!

Presenting the project:
- attract attention: use visual materials, such as booklets, charts,

models, slides, albums, videos, tables. (The project should be on the table to
be seen and touched);

- keep attention: focus on the aspects that can be useful or beneficial
for the potential donor; - appeal for action.

QOvercoming the objections

- ask your vis-a-vis to clarify the objections;

- ask questions in such a way that your vis-a-vis would answer his own
arguments;

- try to disprove the objection or turn it into another argument in favor
of the gift.

Reaching the agreement;

- say that the potential donor’'s partners has supported the project (It is
useful to have the subscription list!!!);
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- ask for a gift directly;
- repeat the key items of the project and possible agreement;

- ask which part of the project/program the potential donor is prepared
to support;

- suggest that the donor would make a minor choice {(e.g., choose the
color f the rug for the playroom, or the model of a TV set for the rehabilitation
center);

- discuss the terms and form of appreciation for the gift (how to
provide publicity, where to put the poster stating the donor’ support of the
project, etc.).
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PRESENTATION AND DEMONSTRATION
OF THE PROJECT/PROGRAM

While speaking about the project and its merits, it is necessary to focus on
the aspects that could be useful or beneficial to the potential donor.

DURING THE TALK ONE SHOULD:
- attract attention
- keep interest;
- inspire the wish to participate in the project;
- call for action.
Types of Presentation:
The "rehearsed"” method

- the outline of the story are learned by heart. This method is mostly
used in the presentations made by phone.

Approach from the potential donor's needs and requirements

first, the potential donor's needs and requirements are identified, then
they are worded by the fund-raiser, and the ability of the project/program to
meet these needs and motivations is demonstrated; the fund-raiser involves
the vis-a-vis into the discussion, makes him/her speak, then expresses the
other’s needs, motivations, and relations.

The approach to satisfy the potential donor's needs and requirements

- the fund-raiser gets into the potential donor's affairs, outlines the key
problems and recommends their solution through participation in the
project/program, sometimes in other charities’ projects and programs; it is
necessary to prove to the potential donor what long-term benefits he can get
by participating in the project/program.

Visual materials should be used:

brochures models albums
booklets videos
charts slides tables.

"The project should be on the table to be seen and touched.”
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ALTERNATIVE FINANCING STRATEGIES FOR_NGOS

Introduction

- Most non-governmental organizations! (NGOs). ‘and development assosiations
in the South work on the principle that they should be promoting, and °

supporting, the self-reliant efforts of local communities-to take charge of’
their own development. ) :

Financial self-sufficiency  is, - therefore, one of the'basic-doncepts:in
development today and virtually everybody pays lip-service to Iits
importance. ' )

But reality is wvery different. Degpite several decades of develogment,
Southern NGOs and community associations are largely, if not entirely,
dependent on external aid from the North.

This contradiction cannot continue much longer. Yet few organizations,
*  whether they are from the North or from the South, are really prepared to-

consider  how, in© very practical teras, .NGOs can become genuinely
self-sufficient. : : .

The Underlving Model ‘

i
"The main. purpoée of this paper is to present an alternative financing

model= for Third World® NGOs. The model is based on two essential
components: .

#+ The creation of a capital reserve fund which can generate,
through interest earned on investments, enough money to cover
the core budget. ‘ .

“

/"’.

{Non;profit . organizations are generally known in the Third.Horld as NGOs.
Other variations are: non-governmental k development organizations, voluntary
agencies' and -voluntary development organizations. The term "Private Voluntary
Organization” (PVD) is 'mainly used in the United States. :

2This paper is based on a Tecent publication entitled "Towarqs'Breater
Finangdial Autonomy: A Manual - on Financing. Strategies and Techniques for
Development NGOs and Comﬁhnity Organizations" by Fernand.vinqent,a?d.Piers
Campbell.’ : . . ;

,ﬁéThe terms “fhird.HoEld“ and "Southern" are used éynonymously.



1

9S -

"% The development of regular sources ' of income thoth 1ncome—
‘generating projects and the sale of services, :

. However, few NGOs in  the .South are currently prepared to adopt such

activities which . they often consider to be too “commercial".. In addition,
there* is’ often substantial opposxtxon among the donors. In fact it can be
sald that the.current aid system ‘actively prevents the _creation of reserves

"and even seems to d15courage income~generating act1v1t1es..

A new concept of partnersh:p between donors and. Southern NGDs 15 therefore
required, a partners h:p that implies fundamental changes of attxtude on
both sides.

In the. South, NGOs and community " groups . should become: development

.enterprises. Instead of being welfare -or charitable associations, they *

need to see themselves as providing well-managed and 'cost-effective
services’ (or- products) for the community. - B

Inetead of dependxng on benefactors from the North, they have to develop
their own sources of funding, by selling their products and services at a
reasonable price, by generating income through investments and by local

‘fundraising.

Donors, on their side, ‘also have to change significantly.. They should bé

helping Southern NGOs much more actively, to become self-sufficient. This

means that +the donors and the Southern NGOs must create genuine ahd
effective partnerships‘ that will lead to long—term flexible grants, both
for the programmes and for the institutional. development of the NGD. '

Th1s will requxre major -policy changes Tor the ‘donor agencxes and a-
positive approach to the creation of-reserves. It also 1mp11es the end of
the "proJect approach" to development . i

The Domination of Projects

-At present, most donors - whether .they are gpverpments,_intergovernmental
organizations® or .NGOs - only provide grants. for specific, short-term
projects.  They ~may call them *micro-prjects”, small projects or:
1arge~sca1e, integrated projects. ’
It is wzdely recognized today® that the project approach is” essent1ally a

v tool used by donors to control .development assistance. In fact; .the.

‘e

-

“The debate on ‘relationships between, Northern .and Southern NGOs is

‘summarxzed in Campbell (1989a) and Yates (1988),

“The main 1ntergovernmenta1 organxzat;ons whidh “fund Soqtﬁern'NGOs,are
Un: ted -Nations agencies.' Others_ include” . the .European. Community ”.aqd. the
V'uommohwealth Secretariat. : S . o +

“See Lecomte (19867,
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project often ends up .as a straitjacket” which prevents the community
from effectively managing its own programmes.

Development is, however, a complex, unpredictable process ‘that can rarely

be divided up into neatly packaged projects with pre-determined and easily
._measured rpsult

Most xmportant, the current enthusiasm for progects puts the focus on the
activities of the NGO rather than on the. organization itself. Hence
institutional developmentﬂ is a low priority and few resources are given
for the development of the capacity of Southern NGOs to initiate and manage
large-sca.= deviiupfientl orogrammes in the long term..

In addition, donors tend to try, d1rect1y or indirectly, to influence the
.priorities of  their local partners One donor will emphasize micro-
.-projects; another will only finance concrete projects that can easily be

photographed; a . third focusses on infrastructural or cash~crop activities;

a fourth ties its assistance to the provision of technical support by its
own nationals.

Donor fashions also complicate the picture. At one time, it used to be
integrated rural development -and then it was participatory development.
Homen in Development .is still very popular, but the ,EQYETEEﬂEP?,

< .{"sustainable development"),» social forestry and 13§txtutiona1“develupment
are rapidly’ gaiping ground. .

One fipal point: the current funding system is also very inefficient. NGOs
.have to spend -vast amounts of. time and resources .in preparing fundraising

proposals, negotiating with donors, keeping separate accounts and prov1d1ngf
long, detalled reports.

Current Financing Situation

The. current financing” situation of most Southern NGOs is, therefore,

characterized by dependence on external donors. The level 'of self-financing

is .very low, local fundraising is rarely taken seriously ‘and few.NGOs are
: able to plan more than a few months ahead.

M ’ /-..-.

.7lan - Smillie (198Ba and 178Bb) describes it graphicelly as the "tvranny
.of the project”. : .

_“See Campbell (1989b),

The term ."financing" ,is preferred to "fundraxs1ng“ as the latter implies

qrants Trom donors whether they are individual members of.the geperal public or ..

institutions. "Financing®," therefore, covers fundrazsxng ang the-many °th°r
. ways of generating funds.
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"There’ is a clearly an urgent need for new financing models that are based

on the - institutiongl - development of .NGOs and community associations..This
.implies that the focus 'of development must move from the project to the

organization itself. It alsc implies the creation of genuine and viable

partnerships between donors and development.organizations.

" New funding relationships will not, however, solve thé-entire problem.‘lt

i's . equally ‘important that ~the NGO significantly increases its own self- .-

financing activities.

LY

N

\

J

An alternative. financial model. fqr social devglopment'NGDs is summarized

- below.

INCQL
Flertdle grants Lrom
esternal denera
]
Se)l-Fimnncing « 1
.
——
- -
. ." -
Lecnl xlﬁ.‘lillll‘
Treject grants
. '
o Leserve Jund
N ' ' .. * . i - . »
) 3 ygesrs . & yesem | T 9 years a 312 yenrs

»

" .In this- model, the ‘NGO - sta;ts by fundraising for_ﬁdall projects. After

about three. years, it launches an alternative strategy based on four
- .-components: . : . . ~
1. The -organization -create a capital-reserve'fgﬁd and tgéulariy
’ allocates 10-20% ‘of -its income .to the fund' (depending .on -the
source of the income). - R e

/-.oo.. '..'

o
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2. It gives priority. to self-financing activities, for example:

income-generating projects, the sale of services, and in-kind
contributions from members:®, ’ : '

3. 1t spends’ more effort in fundraising locally from . the
community, businesses, social clubs, and the government11

- 4. 1t .negotiates long-term, flexxble programme grants.from its’
* -external donors:ie, T .

As  a . result, within twelve yecars, the organization succeeds in generating
well over 350% of its income from its ownp - or local - resources. the
dependence on external donors is reduced to less than half.

Social development NGOs are unlikely to be able to eliminate depenpdence on,
donors completely and indeed. there are significent dangers in even trying
to do.so,  as such NGOs- risk turning themselves into profit-making
entreprises. ' ' : - :

'However, .an NGD with more than “505 of its income coming from its own
resources, is psychologxcally and practxcally independent.

Small Entreprises

The possibilities for small enterprises and community groups- are, of
course, much wider as they can bhave access to credit. The second model -
shows the development towards full autonomy based on three new elements:

1. Credit from revolving loan funds.

2. Cre&it'from bank guarantees.

3. Credit facilitges.from local banks.
The- revolQing loan funds and benk guarantxes are essential stages in this

process as few local banks are- prepared to give credit’ to young small.
enterprises 'in the Southt®,

loo.

1°5ee Vxncent and Campbell (1989) pp 63-73.

':“See V1ncent‘and Campbell (1989) pp 1qs 1q9

: *ESee V;ncent and Campbell (1989), PP 74—81.. Ce

'-*’:‘_%*=5ee Vzncent and Campbell (1989) pp 104 109.
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. Project ]r-nl; * Local fwndruising
reserve fund
‘ 3 yesrs - : 6;'0-71_ .. 9 yeare’ . 12',""_ .
'Ere'—condit.ions for_ Success
JIn recent years, a number .of Southern NGOs have successfully.launch?d-
themselves .on the path towards financial autonomy® ard; ffo@ . their
experiences, it is possible to identify three.critical pre—qond:t}ops for ]
. SUCCEeSS: - a o . .t .
# Effective management ' C . ' - ’ oo
-# New partnerships between North and South
* Entrepreneurial attitudes. )
. . ’ /.. oe .
] A“Examples’- include t"h'e' . Sarvodaya. Movement (Sri - Lanka)l, . Six. s -(BL‘xrkina' . :
Faso), the .Bangladesh: Rural '~ Advancement Comr_ng',ttee-.. _(E_angladl_esh) ,» - and; F.DNGS . -
(Senegal). - ’ .- T oL .o .
" . ) N : : S :
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Effective Manaqement

The shift of _emphasis away from the'pro}eciAQREQKQE_1QDQ:E?YE,F§QQL$EM§§_

and self-financing activities will inevitably necessitate more effective

management*®= practices by NGOs, particular in such areas as strategic

- planning, evaluation and financial management. In . addition, the new

* financing' strategy’ means that NGDs will have to negotiate flexible,

long-term grants from donors..They.will.only be able to do this if they can
convince the donors that they have the necessary organizational capacity.

Fartnershibs Between North and South

Both donors and Southern NGOs agreejtoday that the priority need in the

South is" for " the rapid establishment .of effective, legitimate. and
autonomous, development organizations.ie

Yet, as has already been pointed out, grants are tied to specific
short-term projects and the underlying mentality is often based on the
.traditional welfare approach. Thus, the key issue is the fact that donors
are still using out-of- date f1nanc1ng methods which are neither
appropriate to the needs of Southern NGOs mnor consistent with the stated
aims of the donor agencies themselves.

Such funding methods do not fac1lx£ate the creation of effective and
autonomous organizations. In fact, the current a1d sysfem is often d;rectly.
counter—productlve to such efforts.

For these reasuns, donors need to move- towards more flex;ble funding based
on the followxng pr1nczples.

* The main role of Northern NGOs should, be to help Southern NGOs-
establish and- strengthen themselves, and to gain a reasonable
degree of financial autonomy.

% Donors should be prepared . to Tacilitate . NGOs* attempfs to,
" generate their own resources and, -in particular, donors should

be positive towards the creatlon of rESErves.

* Sufficient funds for institutional develqpmeps should be made
available. ‘ : .

# Long-term telationsh}ps should be established.

* After an initial period, 'dono;s.should be prepared to provide
Tlexible funds in the form of programme grants, rotat1ng credxt
funds and bank guarantces.

./'t.."

"The * NGO ﬁanagement. Network 'wés, founded “in_ - 1986 to promo;elnaﬁd
;facxlxtate " improved management’ of NGOs, pr1mar11y through its quarterly
newsletter,’ NGO Management. . - et

**Campbell 15B%b.

"
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* Donors. shodld' equally finance innovative projects and research
studies. S ' '

- In .brief; the relationéhip should be based on mutual trust and a.long-term
- commitment to working together, with the "aim  of creating financial
'self-euffitiency'for the Southern'NGO. : s )

The new ways  of fxnancxng NGOS should also be accompanxed by alternatxve

- . mechanisms’ for deciding who gets the ‘money. This can be best dope by’

' formlng consortia or ctollaborative funds where the dec1s1on—mak1ng powver 15
transfered from the. 1ndxvxdual donor to’ the consort1um*7

-« Three .stages can be 1dentifxed‘°.' In the first, a group of donors form
the- consortium and decisions are taken by a project committee or:the board.
In. the "second stage, representatives of Southern NGOs -are invited to join
the: projects committee Jor the board. 1In the third. stage, the-decision-
making _power is handed over to the representatxves of the Southern NGOs.

Entrepreneurial Attitudes

The bas1c changes in attitude that have been suggested for the donors must
also occur ~among the NGOS and community groups themselVesh

- NGDs are’ used to being dependent on.the donors and. to reeeiving aid-as a
gift. Some people, in fact, seem to .believe’ that this dependence is-

permanent and they have little interest 'in looking for different sources-of
1ncome. ' - . :

HoweVer, there are alternative approaches that can work, prov1ded that the
NGDs concerned fundamentally change their attitudes.

* Instead of seeing ,themselves as char1tab1e, activities dependent on
"generous" benefactors, they must, ini  future, become. development
"enterprises that produce goods and services.- Such products should be, of
'suff1c1ent1y high quality that they can be "sold" at a realistic price and
hence lead rapidly to financial autonomy.
It is. not suggested that NGOs have to change' into businesses and to.be
governed, by the profit motive. But, they should be able.to manage their
" organizations effectively, to develop Tfinancial reserves and to offer.
' reasonablyﬁprxced effective services to .the local community in:the long
“ternm. . . : : C ‘

ok K X X

-

©175ee Smixi&e {198Ba).

::ﬁiml*°The'- Canadxan . InterpatJOnal i Develobment _Agency.. - is . one of .

“‘governmental donors’ <'that™ is, exper1ment1ng w1th new fznanc1ng mechanzsms, see-

cclc.(19e8).

BEST AVAILABLE COPY
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International Living

Section 6

Accounting of Financial Resources

World Learning/PCC, Financial Management
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTS
FUNCTIONS:

1. The Kkey function of an accounting report is to facilitate
financial management.

2. It is a means of planning, control, and decision taking.

3. Financial reports provide the necessary information to the
concerned parties and facilitate the drawing of accurate reports
of the organization’s financial activity.

USERS:
1. The organization’'s donors/sponsors.

2. The governance body which is directly responsible for the
use of resources in the determined areas.

3. The organization's executive body responsible for the
management and control of the organizational activity.

4. The government authorities to which the organization
reports.

5. The targeted groups.
REQUIREMENTS:

1. Financial reports must be understandable for professionals
and non-professionals alike.:

2. They must contain relevant information, i.e., assist in
decision-taking and help the users to have an idea of the
outcome of the past, present and future report periods, or
confirm or adjust their initial expectations. Furthermore, they
must be timely, i.e., available to the policy decision makers
before they lose the chance to influence the decision.

World Learning/PCC, Financial Management
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3. They must be refiable, i.e. provide an accurate reflection of
the organization's financial position; they must be available for
independent auditing; they must be neutral in the sense that
they would not contain any implicit intention to influence
anybody's opinion.

4. They must be consistent, i.e. comparable with the reports

provided by similar organizations or reports for the comparable
period of the same organization.

World Learning/PCC, Financial Management
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THE VITAL ROLE OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Accountabiiity: Missing Piece of the Puzzile

The words we use not only reflect our attitudes and misconceptions. they often determine our be-
havior. Take the word “give.™ as it's used in the nonprofit world: if vou really think anyone gives
your organization money, but Auvs goods and services from a business firm. vou're heading for
trouble. Some of the trouble many nonprofits are in stems from that misunderstanding.

Whether vour funding source is an individual donor, a foundation. a corporation. or a govern-
ment agency, it is merely paying for specific socially desirable activities that might not otherwise
happen. More bluntlv, your sources are buving—or investing in—activities they believe in and
want to support. even though thev are usually buving them for someone 2ise. That is what vour ex-
emption from income tax is based on in the first piacs.

In other words, the “gift™ comes with strings attached. not ribbon. The strings: accountability.,
something we have said would come up frequently in this book. and for good reason. Accountabil-
ity is a pervasive issue and a problem for nonprofits because reliable sources of funds are crucial to
survival,

Most funding agency grants 2o to nonprofit organizations that can not onlv demonstrate sound
program ideas and capability. but have the functional credibility that only sound financial manage-
ment can supply. The leadership of such organizations has the know-how to use money wisely and
to account for what it does with its funding. And the heart of effective financial managementis a
good system and procsss of budgetary controls.

The Payoit for Sound Budgetary Control

If long-run success of anv nonprofit depends on an ffective board. good budg=tarv control is the
key to effectiveness in a more immediate sense. Nonprofit professionals know that sound bud-
getary control can yieid the following resuits:

1. Force attention to the pianning procsss. including programs and their support functions. This
sort of focus makes planning it more thoughtful and concrete; it requirss attention to priorities
in the use of resourcss.

2. Insure that you provide znough resources to pay for all program and support service nesds.

3. Prevent overspending during the present fiscal year. This guarantess that the orzanization
will avoid “going in the red.” The budget is a document embodying desisions of the board re-
garding how much is to be spent, and for what. (If it’s not in the budget, it wasn't meant to be
paid for—no matter what anyone said.) The CFO does not make such decisions, but must carry
them out faithfully. That is why the budget is the key to internal accountakbility for the use of
funds.

4. Monitoring expenses against budget allowances; control, maximize. and minimize waste of
your limited resources.

5. Help in integrating all planned activities by providing an overview of the resources required
by each and the impact of each on total resourcss.

6. Help to create genuine teamwork, mutual understanding, and trust. The budgeting process,
ideally, is participatory, because competing ne2ds have to be considersd. Properly handled. a
common understanding of financial constraints will lead to reasonable budgetary compromises,
which can create a good atmosphere.

7. Provide an orderly way to cope with unplanned developments, by budget revision or adjust-
ment in the area of income as well as outgo.

8. Provide one important performancs measure of the agency and its managers at all levels;
CEO, program and fundraising director. The ability to manage resources and to mest budgetary
targes provides both an essential assessment tool and an excellent motivating device for good
financial performance.

9. A sound budgetary control process is good evidencs to funding agencies (and the best
guarantes) of both credibility and accountability.
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rour AINGs Of BUAZETs J@Q

A budget is a projection of the sourcss and uses of resourcss, A budget is always a plan expressed
in dollars (not a financial report of actual transactions}). But there are four kinds of budyets. In dis-
cussing budgetarv planning, don't have one type of budget in mind when you mean another.

I. Operating budge:. This is vour operating plan expressed in dollars: the kinds and amounts of
planned income and planned expenses for a specific projected period (usually the fiscal vear). The
operating budget is the subject of Chapters 5 and 6. [t will be yvour primary {inancial planning
tool, one that includes all income and the expenses of all programs. funds. and support servicss.

2. Grant or contract proposal budgets. Unless vour entire operation is funded by a single agency.
these budgets normally cover a single program. fund. or project. They may also cover partial
support of general operations. They are explored in Chapter 8, which deals with fundraising.

3. The cash budge: (or “cash flow budget. projection™). As demonstrated in Chapter 7. it is not
the same as your operating budget—even if vou are using the cash basis or method of account-
ing. Budgeting for cash flow is primarilv a short-range planning tool used to make sure you can
mest vour payroll and other regular bills on time by anticipating any shortfalls.

4. Capital budgers. Not used in a formal sense by everv nonprofit, except the larzer ones. the
capital budge? plans for major expenditures to add to or replace major equipment. like vehicles,
furniture, and computers. or buildings (or substantial repairs to them). The amount, timing, and
methods of financing such outlays are the principal elements of a capital budget. as described in
Chapter 7.

Accountability and Accounting

Accountabiliry means being answerable for one’s actions, and for resources put into one’s care—
having to “give an account of them.™ Accounting means more than keeping accounts: it is a whole

body of theoretical and practical knowledge about many aspects of a nonprofit’s accountability,
both internaflv and externally. Accounting relates to such activities as recziving resources, using
themn. and having custody or control over them by the organization and those who serve it.

Accounting for the use of resources is also one major way of accounting for what a nonprofit is
doing, sincs one objective way its activities ars measured is what it uses its money and other
resourcss for.

Modern accounting evolved from a book on math written by an Italian monk over 500 vears
ago, which first se: forth a double-entry bookkzsping svstem for kesping track of commercial
transactions in Mediterranean trade. It has. in its modern form. besn embraced by business. gov-
ernment. and nonprofit organizations as a systemnatic basis for recording and reporting the 2x-
change and uvse of economic resources. Accounting means keeping track and kesping score
through kesping books. though it is a lot more than that. Itshould be se=n as a means to anend. not
an ead in itself. It will help vour nonprofit achieve its goals by: 1) monitoring activities, 2) gatting
the most—and the best—{or your money, and 3) promoting confidencs in your organization and
its credibiiity. by demonstrating {ull and reliable aczountability.

Try not to look on it therefore as just a necessary evil, a headache, or burzaucratic red tape. It is
not a mystery. nor does it involve higher mathematics. (After all. there aren’t too many geniuses do-
ing it.) A basic zrasp of its concepts is 100 essential for your health as an orzanization—your fiscal
fitness—to allow it to be the private domain of accountants. bookkespers. or sven treasurers. To be
an effective nonprofit leader of any kind. you too must understand and be able to use basic ac-
counting and financial management concspts and terms in planning. managing, and decision-
making.

The char: below (Fig. 1) shows the relationship of financial management and accounting to the
operating functions of a nonprofit organization.

MANAGEMENT PLANNING MANAGING ANALYZING REVISING 5
FUNCTIONS EVALUATING UPDATING ‘
RESULTS PLANS '

RELATED BUDGETING MONITORING | ACCOUNTING. REVISING:

FINANCIAL & SYSTEM INCOME & FINANCIAL UPDATING

MANAGEMENT DESIGN - EXPENSE: REPORTING BUDGETS

FUNCTIONS CASH & ANALYSIS
' MANAGEMENT

' The fundraising (development) function is not included in Fig. 1. It is not usually thought of as

part of financial management as such, but is explored in Chapter 8 because it is closely related.
The four chapters that follow deal with financial planning and management in what we hope is
an unexpectedly “reader-friendly” way.
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Standards Count

by James Don Edwards and Joseph H. Godwin

m s more nations develop
A democratic, market-based
“& economies, adopting stan-
dards based on generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) is
becoming increasingly important to
the soundness of their financial sys-
tems. The adoption of international-

" ly recognized accounting standards

can ease privatization efforts
because of the confidence they pro-
vide individual shareholders.
Without such standards, the ability
of privately held enterprises to
attract capital from  bankers and
investors is seriously impaired.
Sound accounting standards sup-
port efficient financial management
and reporting systems that provide
vital information to creditors and
equity investors so that they can
make profitable  investments.
Investors provide much nesded risk
capital and are concerned with the
risk inherent in, and return provid-
ed by, their investments. Investors
need information that will help them
determine if they should buy, hold,
or sell an investtnent. Lenders, on
the other hand, are interested in
information that permits them to
determine whether their loans, and

James Don Edwards is J.M. Tull Professor
of Accounting at the University of Georgia.
A past president of the American
Accounting Association, he has recetved
the highest award granted by the
American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Joseph H. Goduwin is assis-
tant professor of accounting at the
University of Georgia

the interest attaching to t;hem. will
be paid when due.

Creating a Global Standard

While a nation's choice of
accounting standards is necessarily
unique, some consistencies among
various nations' standards make
them useful to investors and credi-
tors. The International Accounting
Standards Committee {IASC) and
the European Union (EU} both artie-
ulate accounting standards that
are widely respected in the major
capital markets.

Under these standards, trans-
parency is achieved by requiring
firms to issue financial statermnents
along with footnotes that indicate

the accounting techniques used for
certain transactions. The financial
statements also provide information
about management’s stewardship of
enterprise resources and thus facili-
tate managerial control. The most
common .model regarding the
issuance of financial statements
calls for the statements to consist of
a balance sheet, a profit and loss
statement, and a cash flow state-
ment (see box on page 10).

Progress in Eastern.Europe

There have besn several encourag-
ing developments on the accounting
front in Eastern Europe. Hungary
and the Czech Republic have recent-
ly adopted accounting standards

Accounting Basics

The following are some of the basic concepts that are unportant to i
generally accepted accounting standards:

> Going concern requires an enterprise to prepare financial stéie:

- Hions and other events to be recognized when they occur (mt'ne

>

than when cash is received or paxd)
>A

doing so. N

ments on the assumption that the enterpn’se’ will continue in
operation for the foreseeable future. This assumption permits .
the allocation of costs and benefits across future periods. . . - .

The accrual basis of accounting requires the effects of transac-

Conszstency requires an enterprise to use the same accounnng _
methods from one period to the next or provxde reasons"for not

Substance over form requires recordmd tra.nsactmns accprdmg
to the substance of the event rather than stnctly ac ording to
their legal form.
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that address consolida-

Enterprises did not

tion of group accounts so
that the economic and
financial situation of
group companies is
shown as if they were one
entity. Since January
1994, Romania has been

Economic Events and
Transactions

answer to investors.
bankers, or regulators for
their performance. Account-
ing consisted of adhering
to a prescribed chart of

accounts which was sub-

following new accounting
standards modeled close-
ly after the French model.
Russia's president ap-

- Bookkeeping Rules -

(Chart of Accounts) - .

proved temporary rules
on auditing in December

1993, pending passage of

law by the Federal
nssembly of the Russian
Federation. The basic
content and format of
financial statements are
set out in Russian legis-
lation and regulations
issued by the Council of
Ministers or, in the case
of banks, by the Central

Books / Accounts

ordinated to require-
ments of the central plan-
ning system and reflected
the diminished scope of
financial ~management
in a central economy. The
primary function of
accounting was to record
factual data to assess
pldn accomplishments,
rather than an enter-
prise’s finances.

The focus of Russian
accounting was more on

Interpreted through Gen,eralI'y'
Accepted Accounting Principles

Bank of Russia.
Still.,  Russia and

bookkeeping than on the
process of accounting—in
fact, they were consid-
ered to be the same
thing. Accounting, how-
ever, involves much

Eastern Europe have lit-
tle history or tradition of
using fundamental, mar-
ket-based accounting
concepts such as going
~nncern, accrual basis,

Financial Reports for
Lenders & Investors,

Management Reports, and

Tax Returns.

more than bookkeeping.
Bookkeeping only entails
the recording of economic
events while the account-
ing process includes
application of generally

~unsistency, and sub-

stance over form (see box

on page 8 dealing with

these concepts). Financial state-
ments prepared on the accrual basis
inform users not only of past trans-
actions involving the payment and
receipt of cash but also of obliga-
tions to pay cash in the future and
of resources that represent cash to
be received in the future. This type
of information about past transac-
tions and other events is very useful
to investors and lenders.

Russian Practices

In addition to using the historical
cost convention to record assets, the
old Soviet accounting methods

ECONOMIC REFORM TODAY NUMBER ONE 1995

strictly applied it so that assets were
never revalued. Thus, the more con-
servative approach that would have
reduced such items as inventory to
the lower of cost or recognized a pro-
vision for doubtful debts was not fol-
lowed. Doubtful accounts were writ-
ten off only when they were demon-
strably uncollectable. In essence, a
risk-free environment was assumed

where no thought need be given to

valuation of assets or determination
of profit (net income). Goods were
not bought and sold in a free market
and there was no risk of a decline in
value.

accepted accounting
standards to identify,
measure, record, and

report those events and their effect
on an enterprise. The accompanying
diagram on this page shows the
accounting process which includes
both the bookkeeping function and
the application of generally accepted
accounting principles in order to
take a view of the enterprise’s finan-
cial well-being.

From Old to New

Many accountants in Russia
and in other centrally-planned
economies believed that transforma-
tion to a market-oriented account-
ing system could be accomplished
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Why Financial Statements are Important to Lenders

Financial statements portray the
effects of transactions and other
events by grouping them into broad
classes (or elements) according to
their economic characteristics.

The balance sheet is the pri-

future cash flows. In addition,
profitability information helps
determine how effectively an enter-
prise might employ additional
resources.

securities, or from financing activ-
ities such as long-term borrowing
or the sale of stock, this informa-
tion will be valuable to lenders.
The cash flow statement is not
as universally required as the

mary financial statement that

helps determine an enter-

prise’s financial position—and -
crucial information for poten-

tial lenders. Information

about financial structure (rel-

ative amounts of capital pro-

vided by investors and

lenders) is useful in predicting

future borrowing needs and

how future profits and cash

flows will be distributed

among those interested in the

enterprise. Financial structure

information also helps predict

how successful the enterprise -
is likely to be in future financ-

ing transactions. Information

about liquidity and solvency is

useful for predicting an enter-

prise’s ability to meet financial

commitments. Liquidity relates to,
short-term availability of cash after
taking into consideration short-
term financial commitments.
Solvency relates to long term avail-
ability of cash to meet commit-
ments as they become due.

The primary financial statement
that provides information about an
enterprise’s profitability is the
income statement, also known as
the profit and loss statement.
Information about enterprise prof-
itability is useful to assess likely
changes in the enterprise’s control
of economic resources and the
ability of the enterprise to generate
cash flows from existing resources.
Information about the variability of
profits is also useful for predicting

A lender wants to obtain some
“confidence an enterprise can gen-
erate sufficient cash to meet
scheduled debt payments; cash
flow information helps determine
this. The cash flow statement
reports cash flows from investing,
financing, or operating activities.
Lenders are interested in the
sources from which cash is gener-
ated, the timing and certainty of its
generation, and how the cash is
used. For example, an enterprise’s
long-term prospects depend on its
ability to generate sufficient cash
from profitable operations to pro-
vide returns to investors and other
financing sources. If current cash
requirements are instead generat-
ed by investing activities such as

other statements. The EU, for
example, does not require it.
The cash flow statement is
becoming increasing impor-
tant, however, in judging man-
agement’s performance and
assessing an enterprise’s abil-
ity to repay a loan.

Accounting standards also
specify supplementary infor-
mation that accompanies
financial statements. These
items. summarily called foot-
notes, should contain addi-
tional relevant information
about items in the balance
sheet and income statement.
This information could relate
to the risks and uncertainties
affecting the enterprise,
resources and obligations of
the enterprise not recognized in
the balance sheet, or breakdowns
of figures by geographic area, cus-
tomer type, or other category.
Footnotes also contain detailed
information about the accounting
standards a firm employs, thereby
lending transparency to its state-
ments.

No one statement tells the whole
story. The income statement, for
example, provides an incomplete
picture of performance without
reference to the balance sheet or
the cash flow statement. As a
result, lenders and investors need
information from each of the state-
ments to make their decisions.

NUMBER ONE 1995 ECONOMIC REFORM TODAY
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simply by modernizing the
chart of accounts according
to internationally accepted
accounting principles. A new K
chart of accounts was intro-

A Balance Sheet Under US GAAP

Standards: Reuters Holdings PLC
{December 31, 1993, in £million)

duced in Russia in 1992 Assets

which attempted to move the Fixed tangible assets 555
Russian system closer to Current assets . 820
internationally accepted Other assets 46
standards by providing for Goodwill & other intangibles 128
use of accrual accounting, R
recognition of some of the Total assets ~ 1549

costs of production as costs

of the product and other

Liabilities & shareholders’ equity

costs as costs of the period, Current liabilities 626
.ecognition of a provision for | Long-term liabilides 40 -
bad debt and future warran- Deferred taxes & minority interest 18
ty payments, and accounts : — .
to recognize the issuance of Sharehoiders’ equity . 955
ownership shares. Lease- Treasury stock (82)

hold accounting has also

¥ MANAGEMENT FOCUS |

example, the Russian oil
glant, Lukoil, has retained
Bank of New York to serve
as its custodian in an offer-
ing in the US expected to
raise up to $3.5 billion.
Nonetheless, it is impor-
tant to note what countries
miss when they do not follow
international accounting
standards in not being able
to fully access key capital
markets such as those of
London, Tokyo and New
York. The importance of
these capital markets is
demdnstrated by the $20
billion foreign companies
raised in the US last year, of

which 71% which went to

been introduced according
to international standards.

Problems persist, however,
because some of the tradi-

Loans to employees’ share trust (8) emerging markets and pri-
. b=
- vatizing enterprises. For
Total shareholders’ equity 865 example, Teléfonos  de
Total liabilities c
& shareholders’ equity 1549 Mexico, a privatized enter

prise, became the first firm

tional approaches that do
not meet international stan-
dards have been retained. For exam-
ple, enterprises are permitted the
alternative of using cash-basis
accounting, as well as the alterna-
tive of including all product and
period costs in the cost of produc-
tion. Managers also continue to have
discretion to create special funds for
such items as employee welfare or
production development, even
though this is not acceptable under
international standards. In addition,
accounting for interest expense and
revenue continues along traditional
Russian practices of recognition only
with payment or receipt of interest.
Not surprisingly, Russia's failure
to comply fully with international
accounting standards has had a fall-
out effect on its efforts to establish a
sound banking system. Coopers and
Lybrand’s audit of the Russian
Federation Central Bank found sig-
nificant unaccounted-for sums even
though the firm did not perform a

ECONOMIC REFORM TODAY NUMBER ONE 1995

standard audit of the bank’s reports
because the *“accounting system
used in Russia does not yet conform
to international accounting stan-
dards.” Meanwhile, only a handful of
the more than 2.000 commercial
banks in operation last year met
international accounting standards.

Accessing Western Capital

For Russia and Eastern Europe,
the first step into US capital mar-
kets is likely to come through appli-
cation of US Securities and
Exchange Rule 144-A, which per-
mits lower disclosure and account-
ing standards than mainstream US
stock listings. A dowmside is that
only a limited number of institu-

tions can purchase securities -

offered under the rule. Thus, enter-
prises in these countries could have

partial access to the US capital
market until they are ready to go to
full international disclosure. For

on the New York Stock
Exchange to trade over one
billion shares in a year.

Since full participation in the
international capital markets
requires the use of generally recog-
nized accounting standards, nations
in the early stages of developing a
market economy can avoid some of
the conflict inherent in developing
standards by adopting those provid-
ed by the IASC as a basic framework
upon which to build. Alternatively,
these nations might want to adopt
the standards of their current or
anticipated trading partners that are
likely to have more similar economic
environments. This is the practice
followed by many of the former
Soviet bloc countries. They have
drawn heavily upon the standards
promulgated by the IASC or made
their laws consistent with the
European Unjon's standards in
anticipation of eventually obtaining
full membership in that group. €&
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Arnola J. VIenick, Pniip K. Ulenick A Nonprotit Organization Operating Manual, The Foundation
Center,1991 iiA

SPECIAL-PURPOSE REPORTS TO FUNDING AGENCIES

-Foundations, government agencies, and other institutional sources of grants and loans com-
monly have their own reporting formats, which may differ somewhat from those presented in
Chapter 13. Generally speaking, these will correspond with the budget formats they incorporate in
their grant application forms or “RFP" (request for proposal). The principal differences may be a
greater amount of detail. a somewhat different expense classification scheme (chart of accounts), or
a specific requirement that program revenues and expenses be separately presented. which is not
mandatory under SOP 78-10. Asice from reporting formats, they may require that books be kapt
on a fund accounting basis® or even that a separate bank account be maintained for their grant
funds. Since he who pays the piper calls the tune, it is clear that, if you want their money, you wiil
do as they say. (Although they may not be able to take it back sometimes. they will find the
relationship one that is somewhat less than habit<€orming for the future.)

Why Some Funding Agencies Require Detailed Reports

There is a serious accountability issue on the part of the funding agency, since it too may be a tax-
exempt organization whose status may be endangered by acts of its grantess. In fact, in some cases,
the Internal Revenue Code requires a specific leve! of supervision by such organizations over
nonprofits to which it makes grants, in order to help it administer these provisions of the law.” Un-
derstanding a foundation's own probiems in this respect may help lessen resentment of the added
paperwork and record-keeping sometimes involved in a grant. It is not necsssarily jus: “bureau-
cratic make-work."

Specific Requirements of Grantors

Any or all of the following may be prescribed by the terms and conditions of a grant from a oub-
lic or private funding agency.

® That a specified account classification be used (The same classifications should be used on
both the proposal budget and reports.)

® That fund accounting be used on the books for the grant

® That grant funds be kept in a separate bank account (not too common, but sometimes re-
quired)

® That accrual accounting (or possibly cash aczounting) be used with respect to the grant ac-
counts

® That depreciation accounting be used (or not used) in relation to the grant

® That interim progress reports be submitted on the use of grant funds, usually on a quarterly
basis (This may be the basis for recsiving grant installments.)

® That only specific items of overhead (administrative and joint expenses) ars allowable or that
. . & . .

such costs are allowable on the basis of a specified percentage limit, based on the total amount of

the grant, total payroil for the program, or a combination of these.

It should be clear that complete guidelines or other instructions should be obtained from the
funding sourcs, read carefully, and followed closely in submitting grant proposal budgets and re-
ports of grant expenditures to the agency. Since, unfortunately, there are wide variations in termi-
nology used in accounting, it is particularly important to understand and speak the same language
as that spoken and understood by the funding agency. Otherwise you may have trouble explaining
and/ or defending items in your proposal budget or financial reports indicating “where the monev
went.” It is also important to establish credibility as a responsible, accountabie grantes, for “repeat
business.” Aside from following the rules of the game. mesting report deadlines is important. as is
making sure that your figures are internally consistent, i.e., that related figures in differeat places
“lie in” with each other. When they do not, an impression is given of sloppiness in accounting,

which hardly encourages confidence.
BEST AVAILABLE COPY o
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When you get vour grant approval. vou will naturally contact the grant officer or found:uiop
manager to find out when vou can expect your check. whether it will be in instaliments. and what if
anything you are required to do in order to get it, such as obtaining required matching funds or
other commitments. Most of the other aspects of grant management are dealt with in the main
body of this chapter. Needless to say, if you want to stay in the good graces of your funding source,
you will make sure to stay within your budget, deliver what you have promised within the time
frame you indicated, avoid playing games with the budget, and submit interim and. or annual re-
ports as required, in the format and by the dates prescribed. Aside from ensuring that you get all tk}e
funds you expect. living up to your obligations may result in your being able to come around again
in the future.

Note: Foundation managers and grant officers also network and exchange experiences. Even if
you never plan to seek another grant from the same agency, you want to keep your credibility ar!d
good name in the foundation and nonprofit world, because they are what will keep you afloat in
long-range terms. (Consider the alternative.) Even rejection of a grant proposal should be accepted
in good grace.

It is well to keep in mind that a program grant is not a gift but a contract to deliver services in
exchange for money. Although not as widely used for foundation grants, the term “contract” is
commonly used as part of the standard jargon in government agency grants, and with good cause.

Padding Allocated Expenses (A Word of Warning)

A related issue, one fraught with danger, is that some nonprofits ses an opportunity for “profit™
in the allocation area. If unreasonable allocations are made to a program, or, worse, if the total of
an expense allocated to all programs equals more than the actual total of the line item. the non-
profit is piaying a potentially dangerous game. one that is specifically discussed and barred by the
OMB circular mentioned previously. To illustrate, the circular states the following regarding allo-
cated payrolls. .

(2) Reports reflecting the distribution of activity of each employes must be maintained {or ail staff

members ... whose compensation is charged. in whole or in part, directly to awards. ...

(a) The reports must reflect an after-the~fac determination of the actual activity of each em-
pioyves. Budget astimates . .. do not qualify as support for charges to awards.

(b) Each report must account for the total activity for which employees are compensated. ...

{¢) The reports must be signed by the individual emplovee. ... ‘

That would sesm to take care of things quite nicely, since (1) more than 100¢% of an emploves's
time could not be allocated to his or her activities: (2) actual time spent on the grant program. not a
before-the-fact estimate, must be used: and (3) the employee is the one making the determination.
This is just another way of pointing out that vou are up against “pros™ on the other side.3

The overall conclusion would seem to be that a nonprofit should seek a reasonabie and fair allo-
cation of its indirect costs to program budge:s but should resist the temptation to make a profit out
of such allocations, if it values its future credibility.

Playing Games May Cost You Money

The temptation may exist to pad or load proposal budgets and, or the charging of actual expen-
ditures against grant funds: in fact, a cynical attitude often expresses itself in this area on the part of
people who are idealistic in other respects. It is not intended here to moralize, only to point to the
differencs betwesn short- and long-range self-interest. Grant officers of funding agencies are often
skilled at detecting unreasonable charges. Sometimes they tend to become cynical on the subject
and may look with suspicion even on wholly valid items. Another potential that should not be over-
looked is that the agency with which you may consider playing games sometimes has an audit
capability, which exists in the case of government agencies and large foundations (see Appendix
15A). In the event of an audit, improper charges are not difficult to detect from your own records,
and clear evidence of this can be most embarrassing, not to mention the likely reaction next time
you come knocking at their door for funds.

Again, a reminder is in order about accountability. Not only are you spending someone else’s
money for purposes other than what they intended, you may also overiook the fact that the funding

agencies, too, are allocating other people’s money to you. These are contrib_utions or taxes given to
them to promote particular socially desirable purposes and for which they in turn are accountable.
The moral is that if you want to stay afloat in the nonprofit environment, remember th? goldfish
bowl you're in. And remember that, unlike a business, the money received by the organu_ation as
restricted grants, endowments, and contracts is not its own to do with as it sees fit, except within the

. imitations imposed by its funding sources.
restrictions and limitations imposed by 8 BEST AVAILABLE COPY
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To the Board of Directors
Nonprofit Organization
Chico, California 95926

ACCOUNTANTS’ COMPILATION REPORT

We have compiled the accompanying balance sheet of
Nonprofit Organization as of June 30, 1995 and the
related statement of revenues and expenditures and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with State-
ments on Standards for Accounting and Review Services
issued by the American Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of
financial statements information that is the represen-'
tation of management. We have not audited or reviewed
the accompanying financial statements and, accordingly,
do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance

on them.

HARRISON-DAILEY
Accountancy Corporation

May 17, 1994
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NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 1995

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

CASH 3,000.00
CASH ~ RESTRICTED 5,000.00
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 6,000.00
PREPAID EXPENSES 1,000.00
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 15,000.00
FIXED ASSETS:
EQUIPMENT : 5,000.00
LESS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~£2,500.00)
TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 2,500.00
TOTAL ASSETS 17,500.00
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 750.00
PAYROLL TAXES PAYABLE 500.00
DEFERRED REVENUE 4,000.00
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,250.00
FUND BAI.ANCE:
FIXED ASSETS 2,500.00
UNRESTRICTED 3,750.00
RESTRICTED 6,000.00
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 12,250.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE $ 17,500.00

The accompanying Accountants’ Compilation Report
should be read with these statements.
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REVENUE:

DONATIONS
FUNRAISING
GRANTS

TOTAL

EXPENDITURES:

"MVERTISING
.<COUNTING
AUDIT
CONFERENCES
DEPRECIATION

DUES & MEMBERSHIPS
EDUCATIONAL MATERIALS
EQUIPMENT RENTAL

FUNDRAISING
INSURANCE
MISCELLANEOUS

JFFICE SUPPLIES

RENT
SALARIES
TAXES
TELEPHONE
TRAVEL
UTILITIES

TOTAL

-=ACESS REVERUE

OVER EXPENDITURES

6,000.00
500.00
97,000.00

400.00
4,500.00
3,500.00
2,250.00

500.00

350.00
2,650.00
1,000.00

500.00
4,000.00

650.00
2,500.00
5,000.00

56,750.00
5,400.00
6,250.00

850.00

4,950.00

1,500.00

14%

NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

DONATIONS

500.00

1,000.00
1,000.00

500.00

500.00

500.00

dune 30, 1995

CITY
OF CHICO

10,000. 00

400.00

5,000.00
4,000.00
400.00

0.00

UNITED
WAY

15,000.00

750.00
1,500.00
250.00

150.00
650.00
500.00
1,000.00
5,000.00
250.00
1,250.00

600.00
2,500.00

600.00

50,000.00

............

............

1,250.00
500.00
2,000.00

200.00
2,000.00
1,000.00

2,000.00
1,500.00
30,000.00
3,000.00
5,000.00

250.00
1,300.00

0.00

22,000.00

............

1,500.00
500.00

1,500.00
650.00

15,000.00
1,500.00

950.00

400.00

The accompanying Accountants’ Compilation Report

should be read with these statements.
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NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
JUNE 30, 1995

FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 1994 $ 10,750.00
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 1,500.00
FUND BALANCE, JUNE 30, 1995 $ 12,250.00

The accompanying Accountants’ Compilation Report
should be read with these statements.
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NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
JUNE 30, 1995

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ 1,500.00

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE

INCREASE IN ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

DECREASE IN PREPAID EXPENSES

INCREASE IN ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND DEFERRED REVENUE
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT :

INCREASE IN RESTRICTED ASSETS
NET CASH USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
PAYMENT OF LINE OF CREDIT

NET INCREASE IN CASH
CASH AT JUNE 30, 1994
CASH AT JUNE 30, 1995

500.00
(1,000.00)
2,000.00
1,000.00

$ 4,000.00

(1,000.00)
(2,000.00)
—————————— (3,000.00!
(500.00°
" "500.00
7,500.00

The accompanying Accountants’ Compilation Report

should be read with these statements.
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NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION
A NONPROFIT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 1995

1 - ORGANIZATIONAL INFORMATION

The corporation was organized and established in 1977 as a private
nonprofit organization serving Butte and Glenn counties. The corpora-
tion’s primary purpose is to shelter women and their children from
abusive situations in their homes by offering them a safe place to stay
and receive counseling.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed in
the preparation of the financial statements.

A.

Income

The organization records income from grants in the period designat-
ed by the grantor, and donations when received. ‘

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the corporation are organized on the basis of funds
and account groups, each of which is considered a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that are composed of assets, liabilities,
fund balance, revenues and expenses. Resources are allocated to
and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose for
which they are to be used.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is
provided for in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of deprecia-
ble assets to operations over their estimated service lives, using
the straight-line method. When assets are retired or otherwise
disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are
removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is
recognized in income for the period.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable represent amounts due from state and local
grant fund sources. Losses on uncollectible accounts receivable
are recognized when such losses become known or indicated.
Management considers all accounts fully collectible.

The accompanying Accountants’ Compilation Report
should be read with these notes.
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NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION
A NONPROFIT CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 1995

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Income Taxes

The corporation, a voluntary health and welfare organization is
exempt from federal and state income taxes under Section 501(c) (3)
of the Internal Revenue Code and Section 23701(d) of the California
Revenue and Taxation Code, and therefore has no provision for
income taxes.

F. Contributed Services

A substantial number of unpaid volunteers have made significant
contributions of their time to Nonprofit Organization. Nonprofit
Organization has contracted with California State University, Chico
to accept student interns as volunteers to the program. The hours
of these interns are monitored and wvalued in the financial
statements at $10.00 per hour for matching purposes for a grant
with the cCalifornia State Department of the Office of Criminal
Justice Planning (0OCJP). Other volunteers devote time to the
organization including staffing the 24 hour crisis line, office
work and other client services. The value of this contributed time
is not reflected in these statements as it is not susceptible to
objective measurement or valuation.

NOTE 3 - DEFERRED REVENUE

The Office of Criminal Justice Planning (OCJP) has advanced grant funds
to the organization equal to 17% of the cash award for the fiscal year.
The advance will be repaid in three monthly payments during the last
three months of the fiscal year and will be deducted from the request for
funds monthly billing to OCJP.

NOTE 4 - FUND BALANCE

The fund balance at June 30, 1995 represents $3,750 in unrestricted
funds, $2,500 in fixed assets, $4,000 in deferred revenue and $2,000
restricted by the Board of Directors for future fundraising activities.

The accompanying Accountants’ Compilation Report
should be read with these notes.



REVENUE :

LONATIONS
FURARISING
BRANTS

“OTAL

EXFENDITURES:

ROVERTISING
FCCOUNT ING
AuDiT

NFERENCES
U= IR=CIATION
DUES & REMEERSHIPS
zDUCETIONAL PATERIALS
EQUIAMERT RENTAL
FUNDRAZSING
INSURANCE
MISCILLANEGUS
OFFICE SUPPLIES
RENT
SHLARZES
TAXES
TELEGHONE
TRAVEL
UTILITIES

T07AL

CESS HEVENUE
OVER EXPENDITLRES

WINVROFTT ORGARTE LAT ION
APPROVED BUDGET
June 3@, 1935

CITY UNITED STATE BUTTE
TOTHL DONATIONS OF CHICO WAY BRANT COUNTY
5, b, 0 5, 402, vd
1, %00, 82 1,000, 02
57, 00, 0 10, 0, G 15, 0@, 80 50, 400, 00 22, 000, B0
103, beR. 06 B, G0, 00 16, 04, 00 15, 002, 00 50, 460, 0 22, 000, 08
640, 00 420, 00 200. 00
4,502, 00 1, 600, &0 750. 0@ 1,250, 00 1,500. 09
3, 508 00 1,022, i 1,500, 03 500. 00 50, 06
2,250, 8 258. 20 7, 000. 00
£08, 0 500, e
350, 20 150, 0@ 200. 00
&, B3R, 60 B0, 0@ 2,000. 20
1, 006, %0 1,000, 0@
Sud. 0 500, 00
4, 002 500, 00 2, 000, 8o 1,500. 00
S, 2 560. 06
2,500, % : 1,000, 62 1,500, B2
5, 090, i 5, 000, ¢d
56, 750, 06 2, 75¢. 20 2,000, 00 5, 000, o0 30, 002, 00 15,000, 00
5, 650. 0 2. 00 400, 4 500, 08 3, 060, 22 1,5@0. 06
By 250, 0 1,250, 0@ 5, 000, 02
BER. v B0, 29 50, %0
5, 500, %0 fee.0R . 2,500.00 1,300, 09 1,50, 00
183, 0dp. o0 6, #20. 90 1¢, 000, B0 15, v, @0 56, 800, 0 22, 000, 00
2. 00 2.00 2,00 .20 0. ¢o 0.00
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AUDIT
Definitions *

Auditing is a process for a competent independent specialist to
accumulate and evaluate the properties of information subject
to evaluation in quantitative terms and related to a specific
economic system, with the view of defining and reflecting in his
report the degree of this information's compliance with the
established criteria. (E. A. Arens, G. C. Lobbeck. Audit).

Auditing is a business activity of auditors (audit firms) to carry
out independent non-ministerial inspections of economic
entities’ accounting (financia) reports, payment and settlement
documentation, tax returns and other financial liabilities and
claims, as well as provide other auditing services. (Provisional
Regulations of Auditing in the Russian Federation, approved by
Decree of the President of the Russian Federation, dated
December 22, 1993).

Tvpes of Auditing

Operations auditing is auditing of any part in the procedures
and methods of an economic system's functioning to evaluate
its productivity and efficiency. In operations auditing,
inspections are not limited to mere accounting. They can
include evaluation of the organizational structure, production
methods, marketing, or any other area in which the auditor is
gualified. '

Compliance auditing. The purpose of compliance auditing is
to determine whether specific procedures or rules prescribed
for the personnel by the senior management are observed.
Almost any private and non-profit organization has its mandated
activities, contracts, and legal norms, and compliance auditing

! Definitions given below, with the exception of the Iast one, are back translations from the
Russian version of books originally published in English. Therefore, they may differ from the
original English wording.
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may turn out to be necessary to assess compliance with these
norms.

Financial documentation auditing is carried out to define
whether financial reports are consistent with the established
criteria. Typically, the generally accepted accounting principles
are used as criteria. The most general financial documentation
includes the balance sheet, profit and loss statement, cash flow
statement, and reference supplementary documents. ((E. A.
Arens, G. C. Lobbeck. Audit).

Financial auditing is a systemic process of receiving and
evaluating objective data on economic actions and events, that
determines the degree of their consistency with a certain
criterion and provides the results to the relevant users. (G.
Robertson. Audit).

World Learning/PCC, Financial Management



4.30

Prepared by Process Consulting Company

Audit Program: Key Units

1. AUDITING OF THE LEGAL FRAMEWORK FOR THE
ORGANIZATION'S ECONOMIC ACTIVITY

- Expert study of the organization's constituent documents
(charter/articles of incorporation, consituent agreement).

- Auditing of other internal documents (minutes of the
Board meetings, orders, directives).

- Auditing of economic operations’ legal character.

2. AUDITING OF ACCOUNTING PRACTICES

- Auditing of accounting situation

- Auditing of cash operations

- Auditing of settling accounts with the reportable entities
- Auditing of the company's operations in its bank accounts
- Auditing of settlements

- Credits and loan accounting

- Capital investment accounting

- Long-term financial investment accounting

- Payments to the budget and extra-budgetary funds

- Auditing of the fixed and non-tangible assets

- Auditing of stocks _

- Auditing of small value and wearable items

- Auditing of wages and salaries

- Production costs accounting

- Finished goods and sales accounting

- Auditing of financial reserves and the use of profit

- Auditing of the balance sheet

3. AUDITING OF TAX ACCRUAL AND PAYMENT TO THE
BUDGET; MANDATORY PAYMENTS TO EXTRA-
BUDGETARY FUNDS

- Expert study of the documents that determine the
company's relations with the government tax inspectorate and
extra-budgetary funds (registration in the tax inspection office,
notification of extra-budgetary funds about the dates of
transferring the company’s mandatory payments, etc.).

World Learning/PCC, Financial Management
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- Auditing of tax accruals and summary notes submitted to
the tax inspection office, statistics office, bank institution,
Pension Fund, Employment Fund, Social Insurance Fund,
Medical Insurance Fund, and other funds and organizations).

- Auditing of compliance with the schedule of tax payments
to the budget and mandatory payments to extra-budgetary
funds.

- Expert study of the company’s statements that record its

settlements with the budget and extra-budgetary funds.
4. AUDITING OF THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL SITUATION

- Expert study of the form of ownership and charter capital
distribution |

- Expert study of the company's financial situation

- Expert study of cooperation contacts and sales

- Expert study of wages and salaries

- Expert study of the company's social infrastructure

- Expert study of the balance sheet structure to reveal the
company’'s solvency :

- Expert study of the company's financial performance
indicators

5. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Conclusions age given about the overall performance and in
each section of the audit program, and recommendations are
provided to correct the revealed defects.

6. POST-AUDIT CONSULTING

Consultations are provided on the company's legal and
economic performance, its finances, accounting and reports,
tax issues, and electronic data processing.

The user's long-term servicing is provided by the auditing firm.

(M. Rappoport. Audit Objects and Instruments. Moscow,
Audit-Training, 1995, p. 77).
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TEMPLATE OF AN EXPERT AUDIT REPORT
ON A COMPANY'S FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC POSITION
(Western model)

INTRODUCTION

- auditor's name

- purpose

- when the auditing is carrie\d out; the report period
- brief history (who set up the firm; when)

- data on core and non-core activities

ECONOMIC DIAGNOSIS

A general characteristic of the products (services) is given, as
well as their advantages and weaknesses, the company’s
market share, and evaluation of the company’'s distribution,
pricing, and promotion policies.

SOCIAL DIAGNOSIS

Evaluation is given of the company's employee corps in terms
of their age, social and professional characteristics, and
employment policies (downsizing, job creation).

FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC DIAGNOSIS

This section is the central one. It contains conclusions on each
of the following stages:

Stage 1 - an expert moves from the company’s turnover
to its net assets.

Stage 2 - assets analysis in terms of economic
profitability and the outcome of economic activity.

Stage 3 - financial aspect. The study is focused on the
outcome of the company's financial operations.
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Stage 4 - the results of the analytical study are
synthesized. The expert makes general conclusions on:

- the company's achievements and potential
development;

- the level of its’ viability

AUDIT RESULTS

The company's advantages and weaknesses in its financial and
economic performance are reported, and recommendations are
given to improve the situation, as well as a forecast of the future
financial and economic position.

SUPPLEMENT

Contains computations on each of the four stages of the
financial and economic diagnosis.

From: Expert Diagnosis and Auditing of a Company's Financial
and Economic Situation. Moscow, Perspektiva, 1995.
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Government Auditing Standards, United States General Accounting Office, 1994

Types of Government Audits

Purpose

2.1 This is description of the types of audits that government and
nongovernment audit organizations conduct and that organizations arrange
to have conducted, of programs, activities, functions, and funds. This
description is not intended to limit or require the types of audits that may
be conducted or arranged.

2.2 All audits begin with objectives, and those objectives determine the
type of audit to be conducted and the audit standards to be followed are
classified as financial audit and performance audits.

2.3 Audits may have a combination of financial and performance audit
objectives or may have objectives limited to only some aspects of one audit
type For example, auditors conduct audits of government contracts and
grants with private sector organizations, as well as government and
nonprofit organizations, that often include both financial and performance
objectives. These are commonly referred to as "contract audits” or "grant
audits.” Other examples of such audits include audits of specific internal
controls, compliance issues, and computer-based systems. Auditors should
follow the standards that are applicable to the individual objectives of the
audit.

Financial Audits

2.4 Financial audits include financial statement and
financial related audits.

a. Financial statement audits provide reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements of an audited entity present fairly the financial
position, results of operations, and cash flows in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principies. Financial statement audits also include
audits of financial statements prepared in conformity with any of several
other bases of accounting.

b. Financial related audit include determining whether () financial
information is presented in accordance with established or stated criteria,
(2) the entity has adhered to specific financial compliance requirements, or
(S) the entity’'s internal control structure over financial reporting and/or
safeguarding assets is suitably designed and implemented to achieve the
control objectives.

2.5 Financial related audits may, for example, include audits of the
following it_e_ms.

World Learning, Financial Management
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a. Segments of financial statements; financial information (for example,
statement of revenue and expenses, statement of cash receipt and
disbursements, statement of fixed assets); budget request; and variances
between estimated and actual financial performance.

b. Internal controls over compliance with laws and regulations, such as
those governing the (I) bidding for, (2) accounting for, and (S) reporting on
grants, contracts (including proposals, amounts due on termination claims,
and so forth).

e. Internal controls over financial reporting and/or safeguarding assets,
including controls using computer-based systems.

d. Compliance with laws and regulations and allegations of fraud.
Performance Audits

2.6 A performance audit is an objective and systematic examination of
evidence for the purpose of providing an independent assessment of the
performance of a government organization, program, activity, or function in
order to provide information to improve public accountability and facilitate
decision-making by parties with responsibility to oversee or Iinitiate
corrective action.

2.7 Performance audits include economy and efficiency and program
audits.

a. Economy and efficiency audits include determining () whether the entity
is acquiring, protecting, and using its resources (such as personnel,
property, and space) economically and efficiently, (2) the causes of
inefficiencies or uneconomical practices, and (S) whether the entity has
complied with laws and regulations on matters of economy and efficiency.

b. Program audits inciude determining (1) the extent to which the desired
results or benefits established by the legislation or other authorizing body
are being achieved, (2) the effectiveness of organizations, programs,
activities, or functions, and (S) whether the entity has complied with
significant laws and regulations applicable to the program.

2.8 Economy and efficiency audits may, for example, consider whether the
entity a. is following sound procurement practices; b. is acquitting the
appropriate type, quality, and amount of resources at an appropriate cost;

c. is properly protecting and maintaining its resources;

d. is avoiding duplication of effort by employees and work that serves little
Or nNo purpose;

e. is avoiding idleness and overstuffing;
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f. in.using efficient operating procedures;
g. is using the optimum amount of resources (staff, equipment, and

facilities) in producing or delivering the appropriate quantity and quality of
goods or services in a timely manner;

h. is complying with requirements of laws and regulations that could
significantly affect the acquisition, protection, and use of the entity's
resources;

i. has an adequate management control system for measuring, reporting,
and monitoring a program’'s economy and efficiency; and

j- has reported measures of economy and efficiency: are valid and reliabie.
2.9 Program audits may, for example

a. assess whether the objectives of a new, or ongoing program are proper,
suitable, or relevant;

b. determine the extent to which a program achieves a desired level of
program results;

c. assess the effectiveness of the program anti/or of individual program
components;

d. identify factors inhibiting satisfactory performance;
e. determine whether management has considered alternatives for carrying

out the program that might vield desired results more effectively or at a
lower cost;

f. determine whether the program complements, duplicates, overlaps, or
conflicts with other related programs;

g. identify ways of making programs work better;

h. assess compliance with laws and regulations applicable to the program;

i. assess the adequacy of the management control system for measuring,
reporting, and monitoring a program’'s effectiveness; and

j. determine whether management has reported measures of program
effectiveness that are valid and reliable.
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Government Auditing Standards, United States General Accounting Office, 1994

The qualifications of the auditors and the audit organizations

Purbose

3.1. The standards described below are general standards for conducting
financial and performance audits. These general standards relate to the
qualifications of the staff, the audit organization’s and the individual
auditor's independence, the exercise of due professional care in
conducting the audit and in preparing related reports.

3.2 These general standards apply to all audit organizations, both
government and nongovernment (for exampie, public accounting firms and
consulting firms), conducting audits of organizations, programs, activities,
and functions and of government assistance received by nongovernment
organizations. :

Qualifications

The staff assigned to conduct the audit should collectively possess
adequate professional proficiency for the tasks required.

3.4 This standard places responsibility on the audit organization to ensure
that each audit is conducted by staff who collectively have the knowledge
and skills necessary for that audit. They should also have a thorough
knowledge of government auditing and of the specific or unique
environment in which the audited entity operates, relative to the nature of
the audit being conducted.

3.5 The qualifications mentioned here apply to the knowledge and skills of
the audit organization as a whole and not necessarily to each individual
auditor. An organization may need to employ personnel or hire outside
consuitants knowledgeable in such areas as accounting, statistics, taw,
engineering, audit design and methodology, automated data processing,
public administration, economics, social sciences, or actuarial science.

3.6 To meet this standard, the audit organization should have a program to
ensure that its staff maintain professional proficiency through continuing
education and training. Thus, each auditor responsible for planning,
directing, conducting, or reporting on audits should complete, every 2
years, at least 80 hours of continuing education and training which
contributes to the auditor's professional proficiency At least 20 hours
should he completed in any | year of the 2-year period, Individuals
responsible for planning or directing an audit, conducting substantial
portions of the field work, or reporting on the audit should complete at
least 24 of the SO bouts of continuing education and training in subjects
directly related to the government environment and to government auditing.
If the audited entity operates in a specific or unique environment, auditors
should receive training that is related to that environment.

World Learning, Financial Management .
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3.7 The audit organization is responsible for establishing and implementing
a program to ensure that auditors meet the continuing education and
training requirements just stated. The organization should maintain
documentation of the education and training completed.

3.8 The continuing education and training may include such topics as
current developments in audit methodology, accounting, assessment of
internal controls, principles of management or supervision, financial
management, statistical sampling, evaluation design, and data analysis. It
may also include subjects related to the auditor’s field of work, such as
public administration, public policy and structure, industrial engineering,
economics, social sciences, or computer science.

3.9 External consultants and internal experts and specialists should be
qualified and maintain professional proficiency in their areas of expertise
and/or specialization but are not required to meet the above continuing
education and training requirements.

3.10 Qualifications for staff members conducting audits include:
a. Knowledge of the methods and techniques applicable to government

auditing and the education, skills, and experience to apply such knowledge
to the audit being conduced.

b. Knowledge of government organizations, programs, activities, and
functions.

c. Skills to communicate clearly and effectively, both orally and in writing. |
d. Skills appropriate for the audit work being conducted. For instance:

(1) if the work requires use of statistical sampling, the staff or consultants
to the staff should include persons with statistical sampling skills;

(2) if the work requires extensive review of computerized systems, the staff
or consultants to the staff should inciude persons with computer audit
skills;

(3) if the work involves review of complex engineering data, the staff or
consultants to the staff should include persons with engineering skills; or

(4) if the work involves the use of nontraditional audit methodologies, the
staff or consultants to the staff should include persons with skills in those
methodologies.

e. The following qualifications are needed for financial audits that lead to
an expression of an opinion.
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(1) The auditors should be proficient in the appropriate accounting
principles and in government auditing standards.

(2) The auditors-accountants engaged to conduct audits should be (a)
licensed certified auditorsor persons working for a licensed auditing firm.

Independence

3.11 Audit organization and the individual auditors, should be
organizattonally independent, and should maintain an independent attitude
and appearance.

3.12- This standard places responsibility on each auditor and the audit
organization to maintain independence so that opinions, conclusions,
judgments, and recommendations will be impartial and will be viewed as
impartial by knowledgeable third parties.

3.13 Auditors should consider not only whether they are independent and
their attitudes and beliefs permit them to be independent but also whether
there is anything about their situations that might lead others to question
their independence.

3.14 Auditors, including hired consultants and internal experts and
specialists, need to consider three general classes of impairments to
independence - personal, external, and organizational. If one or more of
these impairments affects an auditor's ability to do the work and report
findings impartially, that auditor should either decline to perform the audit,
or in those situations where that auditor cannot decline to perform the
audit, the impairment's) should be reported in the scope section of the
audit report.

Personel Impairments

3.16 There are circumstances under which auditors may not be impartial,
or may not be perceived as impartial The audit organization is responsible
for having policies and procedures in place to help determine if auditors
have any personal impairments. Auditors are responsible for notifying the
appropriate official within their audit organization if they have airy personal
impairments These impairments apply to individual auditors, but they may
also apply to the audit organization. Personal impairments may include, but
are not limited to the following:

a. official, professional, personal, or financial relationships that might cause
an auditor to limit the extent of the inquiry, to limit disclosure, or to weaken
audit findings in any way;
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b. preconceived ideas toward individuals, groups, organizations, or
objectives of a particular program that could bias the audit;

c. previous responsibility for decision-making or managing an entity that
would affect current operations of the entity or program being audited;

d. biases, including those induced by political or social convictions, that
result from employment in, or loyalty to, a particular group, organization, or
level or government;

e. subsequent performance of an audit by the same individual who, for
example, had previously approved invoices, payrolls, claims, and other
proposed payment of the entity or program being audited;

f. concurrent or subsequent performance of an audit by the same
individual who maintained the official accounting records; and

g. financial interest that is direct, or is substantial though indirect, in the
audited entity or program.

External Impairments

3.17 Factors external to the audit organization may restrict the audit or
interfere with an auditor's ability to form independent and objective
opinions and conclusions. For example, under the following conditions, an
audit may be adversely affected and an auditor may not have complete
freedom to make an independent and objective judgment:

a. external interference or influence that improperly or imprudently limits or
modifies the scope of an audit;

b. external interference with the selection or application of audit
procedures or in the selection of transactions to be examined;

c. unreasonable restrictions on the time allowed to complete an audit;

d. interference external to the audit organization in the assignment,
appointment, and promotion of audit personnel;

e. restrictions on funds or other resources provided to the audit
organization that would adversely affect the audit organization's ability to
carry out its responsibilities;

f. authority to overrule or to influence the auditor's judgment as to the
appropriate content of an audit report; and

g. influences that jeopardize the auditor’'s continued employment for
reasons other than competency or the need for audit services.
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Inter_nal Auditors

3.19 A federal or local audit organization, or an audit organization within
other government entities, such as a public college, university, or hospital,
may be subject to administrative direction from persons involved in the
government management process To help achieve organizational
independence, audit organizations should report the results of their audits
and be accountable to the head or deputy head of the government entity
and should be organizationally located outside the staff or line
management function of the unit under audit. The audit organization's
independence is enhanced when it also reports regularly to the entity's
independent audit committee.

3.20 Auditors should also be sufficiently removed from political pressures
to ensure that they can conduct their audits objectively and can report
thole findings, opinions, and conclusions objectively without feat of political
repercussion, Whenever feasible, they should be under a personnel system
in which compensation, training, job tenure, and advancement are based
on merit.

External Auditors

3.23 Government auditors employed by audit organizations whose heads
are elected and legislative auditors auditing executive entities may be
considered free of organizational impairments when auditing outside the
government entity to which they are assigned.

Due Professional Care

Due professional care should be used in conducting the audit and In
preparing related reports.

3.28 Exercising due professional care means using sound judgment in
establishing the scope, selecting the methodology, and choosing tests and
procedures for the audit. The same sound judgment should be applied in
conducting the tests and procedures and in evaluating and reporting the
audit results. '

3.29 Auditors should use sound professional judgment in determining the
standards that apply to the work to be conducted. The auditors'
determination that certain standards do not apply to the audit should be
documented in the working paper. Situations may occur in which auditors
are not able to follow an applicable standard and are not able to withdraw
from the audit. In those situations, the auditors should disclose in the
scope section of their report, the fact that an applicable standard was not
followed, the reasons therefor, and the known effect that not following the
standard had on the results of the audit.
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3.30 While this standard places responsibility on each auditor and audit
organization to exercise due professional care in the performance of an
audit assignment, it does not imply unlimited responsibility; neither does it
imply infallibility on the part of either the individual auditor or the audit
organization.

Quality Control

Each audit organization conducting audits In accordance with these
standards should have an appropriate internal quality control system in
place and undergo an external quality control review.

3.32 The internal quality control system established by the audit
organization should provide reasonable assurance that it (I} has adopted,
and is following, applicable auditing standards and (2) has established, and
is following, adequate audit policies and procedures.

3.33 Organizations conducting audits in accordance with these standards
should have an external quality control review at least once every 3 years
by an organization not affiliated with the organization being reviewed. The
external quality control review should determine whether the organization’s
internal quality control system is in place and operating effectively to
provide reasonable assurance that established policies and procedures and
applicable auditing standards ate being followed.

3.34 An external quality control review under this standard should meet the
following requirements

a. Reviewers should be qualified and have current knowledge of the type of
work to be reviewed and the applicable auditing standards.

b. Reviewers should he independent (as defined in these standards) of the
audit organization being reviewed, its staff, and its auditees whose audits
are selected for review. An audit organization is not permitted to review the
organization that conducted its most recent external quality control review.

c. Reviewers should use sound professional judgment in conducting and
reporting the results of the external quality control review.

d. Reviewers should use one of the following approaches to selecting
audits for review: (I} select audits that provide a reasonable cross section
of the audits conducted in accordance with these standards or (2) select
audits that provide a reasonable cross section of the organization’s audits,
including one or more audits conducted in accordance with these
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f. A written report should be prepared communicating the results of the
external quality control review.

3.36 Audit organizations seeking to enter into a contract to perform an
audit in accordance with these standards should provide their most recent
external quality control review report” to the party contracting for the audit.
Information in the external quality control review report often would be
relevant to decisions on procuring audit services. Audit organizations also
should make their external quality control review reports available to
auditors using their work and to appropriate oversight bodies It in
recommended (hat the report be made available to the public.



G T N o U W

144

Government Auditing Standards, United States General Accounting Office, 1994

: Work Standards for Financial Audits

Purpose

4.1 This part prescribes standards of work for financial audits which
include financial statement audits and financial related audits.

4.2 For financial statement audits three generally accepted standards
work are:

a. The work is to be adequately planned and assistants, if any, are to
be property supervised.
b. A sufficient understanding of the internal control structure is to be

obtained to plan the audit and to determine the nature, timing, and extent
of tests to be performed.

c. Sufficient competent evidential matter is to be obtained through
inspection, observation, inquiries, and confirmations to afford a reasonable
basis for an opinion regarding the financial statements under audit.

Planning

The work is to be properly planned, and auditors should consider
materiality, among other matters, in determining the nature, timing, and
extent of auditing procedures and in evaluating the results of those
procedures.

4.7 The additional planning standard for financial statement audits is:

Auditors should follow up on known material findings and
recommendations from previous audits

Materiality

4.8 Auditors’ consideration of materiality is a matter of professional
judgment and is influenced by their perception of the needs of a
reasonable person who will rely on the financial statements. Materiality
judgments are made in light of surrounding circumstances and necessarily
involve both quantitative and qualitative considerations.

4.9 In an audit of the financial statements of a government entity or an
entity that receives government assistance, auditors may set lower
materiality levels than in audits in the private sector because of the public
accountability of the auditee, the various legal and regulatory requirements,
and the visibility and sensitivity of government programs, activities, and
functions. '

Audit Follow-up

4.10 Auditors should folliow up on known material findings and
recommendations from previous audits that could affect the financial
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statement audit. They should do this to determine whether the auditee has
taken timely and appropriate corrective actions. Auditors should report the
status of uncorrected material findings and recommendations from prior
audits that affect the financial statement audit.

4.11 Much of the benefit from audit work is not in the findings reported or
the recommendations made, but in their effective resolution, Auditee
management is responsible for resolving audit findings and
recommendations, and having a process to track their status can help it
fulfill this responsibility. If management does not have such a process,
auditors may wish to establish their own. Continued attention to material
findings and recommendations can help auditors assure that the benefits
of their work ate realized.

Irregularities, lllegal Acts, and Other Noncompliance

4,12 Standards require the following:

a. Auditors should design the audit to provide reasonable assurance of
detecting irregularities that are material to the financial statements.
b. Auditors should design the audit to provide reasonable assurance of

detecting material misstatements resulting from direct and material illegal
acts.

C. Auditors should be aware of the possibility that indirect illegal acts
may have occurred. If specific Information comes to the auditors’ attention
that provides evidence concerning the existence of possibie illegal acts
that could have a material Indirect effect on the financial statements, the
auditors should apply audit procedures specifically directed to ascertaining
whether an lilegal act has occurred.

4.13 The additional compliance standard for financial statement audits is:

Auditors should design the audit to provide reasonable assurance of
detecting material misstatements resulting from noncompliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements that have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. If specific
information comes to the .auditors’ attention that provides evidence
concerning the existence of possible noncompliance that could have a
material indirect effect on the financial statements, auditors should apply
audit procedures specifically directed to ascertaining whether that
noncompliance has occurred.

Auditors’ Understanding of Possible Irregularities and of Laws and
Regulations

4.14 Auditors are responsible for being aware of the characteristics and
types of potentially material irregularities that could be associated with the
area being audited so that they can plan the audit o provide reasonable
assurance of detecting material irregularities.
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4.15 Auditors should obtain an understanding of the possible effect on
financial statements of laws and regulations that are generally recognized
by auditors to have a direct and material effect on the determination of
amounts in the financial statements Auditors may find it necessary to use
the work of legal counsel in (I) determining which laws and regulations
night have a direct and material effect on the financial statements, (2)
designing tests of compliance with laws and regulations, and (3) evaluating
the resuits -of those tests. Auditors also may find it necessary to use the
work of legal counsel when an audit requires testing compliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements. Depending on the
circumstances of the audit, auditors may find it necessary to obtain
information on compliance matters from others, such as investigative staff,
audit officials of government entities that provided assistance to the
auditee, and/or the applicable law enforcement authority.

Due Care Concerning Possible Irreqgularities and lllegal Acts

4.16 Auditors should exercise due professional care in pursuing
indications of possible irregularities and illegal acts so as not to interfere
with potential future investigations, legal proceedings, or both. Under some
circumstances, laws, regulations, or policies may require auditors to report
indications of certain types of irregularities or illegal acts to law
enforcement or investigatory authorities before extending audit steps mid
procedures Auditors may also be required to withdraw from or defer further
work on the audit or a portion of the audit in order not to interfere with in
investigation.

417 An audit will not guarantee the discovery of illegal acts or contingent
liabilities resulting from them. Nor does the subsequent discovery of illegal
acts committed during the audit period necessarily mean that the auditors’
performance was inadequate, provided the audit was made in accordance
with these standards

4.18 The term noncompliance has a broader meaning than illegal acts.
Noncompliance includes not only illegal acts, but also violations of
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, standards do not discuss
auditors’ responsibility for detecting noncompliance other than illegal acts
But auditors have the same responsibilities for detecting material
misstatements arising from other types of noncompliance as they do for
detecting those arising from illegal acts.

418 Direct and material noncompliance is noncompliance having a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts
Auditors should design the audit to provide reasonable assurance of
detecting material misstatements resulting from direct and material
noncompliance with provisions of contracts or grants agreements.

4.20 Indirect noncompliance is noncompliance having material but
indirect deck on the financial statements. A financial statement audit
provides no assurance that indirect noncompliance with provisions of
contracts or grant agreements will be detected. However, if specific
information comes to the auditors’ attention that provides evidence
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concerning the existence of possible noncompliance that could have a
material indirect effect on the financial statements, auditors should apply
audit procedures specifically directed to ascertaining whether that
noncompliance has occurred.

Internal Controls

4.21 Standards require the following:

Auditors should obtain a sufficient understanding of internal controls to
plan the audit and determine the nature, timing, and extent of teats to be
performed.

4.22 This provides guidance on the following four aspects of internal
controls that are important to the judgments auditors make about audit risk
and about the evidence needed to support their opinion on the financial
statements:

control environment,

safeguarding controls,

controls over compliance with laws and regulations, and
control risk assessments.

aoow

Control Environment

4.23 Auditors’ judgments about the control environment influence—either
positively or negatively—their judgments about specific control procedures
For example, evidence indicating that the control environment is ineffective
may lead auditors to question the likely effectiveness of a control
procedure for a particular financial statement assertion Conversely, based
on evidence indicating that the control environment is effective, auditors
may decide to reduce the number of locations where they will perform
auditing procedures.

4.24 Auditors’ judgments about the control environment also can be
affected by the results of their tests of other internal controls If auditors
obtain evidence that specific control procedures are ineffective, they may
find it necessary to reevaluate their earlier conclusion about the control
environment and other planning decisions they had made based on that
conclusion

Safeguarding Controls

4.25 Internal controls over safeguarding of assets (safeguarding controls)
constitute a process, effected by an entity’s governing body, management,
and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the entity’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

4.26 Safeguarding controls relate to the prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized transactions and unauthorized access to assets that could
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result in losses that are material to the financial statements, for example,
when unauthorized expenditures or investments are made, unauthorized
liabilities are incurred, inventory is stolen, or assets are converted to
personal use. Such controls are designed to help ensure that use of and
access to assets are in accordance with management’'s authorization.
Authorization includes approval of transactions in accordance with policies
and procedures established by management to safeguard assets, such as
establishing and complying with requirements for extending and monitoring
credit or making investment decisions, and related documentation.
Safeguarding controls are not designed to protect against loss of assets
arising from inefficiency or from management’s operating decisions, such
as incurring expenditures for equipment or material that proves to be
unnecessary or unsatisfactory.

4.27 Standards require auditors to obtain a sufficient understanding of
internal controls to plan the audit. They also require auditors to plan the
audit to provide reasonable assurance of detecting material irregularities,
including material misappropriation of assets. Because preventing or
detecting material misappropriations is an objective of safeguarding
controls, understanding those controls can be essential to planning the
audit.

4,28 Safeguarding controls are not limited to preventing or detecting
misappropriations, however. They also help prevent or detect other
material losses that could result from unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of assets. Such controls include, for example, the process of
assessing the risk of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of assets
and establishing control activities to help ensure that management
directives to address the risk are carried out. Such control activities would
include controls to permit acquisition, use, or disposition of assets only in
accordance with management’s general or specific authorization, including
compliance with established policies and procedures for such acquisition,
use, or disposition. They would also include comparing existing assets with
the related records at reasonable intervals and taking appropriate action
with respect to any differences. Finally, controls over the safeguarding of
assets against unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition also relate to
making available to management information it needs to tarry out its
responsibilities related to prevention or timely detection of such
unauthorized activities, as well as mechanisms to enable management to
monitor the continued effective operation of such controls.

4.29 Understanding these safeguarding controls can help auditors assess
the risk that financial statements could be materially misstated For
example, an understanding of an auditee’s safeguarding controls can help
auditors recognize risk factors such as:

a. failure to adequately monitor decentralized operations;
b. lack of controls over activities, such as lack of documentation for
major transactions;
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C. lack of controls over computer processing, such as a lack of
controls over access to applications that initiate or control the movement of

assets;

d. failure to develop or communicate adequate policies and procedures
for security of data or assets, such as allowing unauthorized personnel to
have ready access to data or assets; and

e. failure to investigate significant unreconciled differences between
reconciliations of a control account and subsidiary records.

Controls Over Compliance With Laws and Regulations

4.30 Auditors should design the audit to provide reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free of material misstatements resulting
from violations of laws and regulations that have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. To meet that
requirement, auditors should have an understanding of internal controls
relevant to financial statement assertions affected by those laws and
regulations. Auditors should use that understanding to identify types of
potential misstatements, consider factors that affect the risk of material
misstatement, and design substantive test. For example, the following
control environment factors may influence the auditors’ assessment of
control risk:

a. management’s awareness or lack of awareness of applicable laws
and regulations,

b. auditee policy regarding such matters as acceptable operating
practices and codes of conduct, and

C. assignment of responsibility and delegation of authority to deal with
such matters as organizational goals and objectives, operating functions,
and regulatory requirements.

Control Risk Assessments

4.31 When auditors assess control risk below the maximum for a given
financial statement assertion, they reduce their need for evidence from
substantive tests of that assertion. Auditors are not required to assess
control risk below the maximum, but the likelihood that they will find it
efficient and effective to do so increases with the size of the entities they
audit and the complexity of their operations. Auditors should do the
following when assessing control risk below the maximum:

a. identify internal controls that are relevant to a specific financial
statement assertion;
b. perform tests that provide sufficient evidence that those controls are

effective; and
c. document the test of controls.
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Government Auditing Standards, United States General Accounting Office, 1894

) Work Standards for Performance Audit
Purpose -

6.1  This are work standards for performance audits. These standards
also apply to some financial related audits.

Planning

6.3 In planning, auditors should define the audit's objectives and the
scope and methodology to achieve those objectives The objectives are
what the audit is to accomplish. They identify the audit subjects and
performance aspects to be included, as well as the potential finding and
reporting elements that the auditors expect to develop. Audit objectives
can be thought of as questions about the program that auditors seek to
answer. Scope is the boundary of the audit. It addresses such things as
the period and number of locations to be covered. The methodology
comprises the work in data gathering and in analytical methods auditors
will do to achieve the objectives

6.4 Auditors should design the methodology to provide sufficient,
competent, and relevant evidence to achieve the objectives of the audit
Methodology includes not only the nature of the auditors’ procedures, but
also theft extent (for example, sample size).

6.5 in planning a performance audit, auditors should:

a. Consider significance and the needs of potential users of the audit
eport.

b. Obtain an understanding of the program to be audited.

C. Consider legal and regulatory requirements.

d. Consider management controls.

e. ldentify criteria needed to evaluate matters subject to audit.

f. Identify significant findings and recommendations from previous

audits that could affect the current audit objectives. Auditors should
determine if management has corrected the conditions causing those
findings and implemented those recommendations.

g. Ildentify potential sources of data that could be used as audit
evidence and consider the validity and reliability of these data, including
data collected by the audited entity, data generated by the auditors, or
data provided by third parties.

h. Consider whether the work of other auditors and experts may be
used to satisfy some of the auditors’ objectives.

i Provide sufficient staff and other resources to do the audits.
j. Prepare a written audit plan.

Significance and User Needs

6.6 Qualitative, as well as quantitative, factor are important in determining
significance. Qualitative factors can include

World Learning, Financial Management
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a.  visibility and sensitivity of the program under audit,

b. newness of the program or changes in its conditions, ;

cC. role of the audit in providing information that can improve public
accountability and decision-making, and

d. level and extent of review or other forms of independent oversight.

6.8 One group of users of the auditors’ report is government officials.
Another important user of the auditors’ report is the auditee, which is
responsible for acting on the auditors’ recommendations Other potential
users are the media, interest groups, and individual citizens. These other
potential users may have, in addition to an interest in the program, an
ability to influence the conduct of the program Thus, an awareness of
these potential users’ interests and influence can help auditors understand
why the program operates the way it does This awareness can also help
auditors judge whether possible findings could be significant to these other
users

Understanding the Program

6.9 Auditors should obtain an understanding of the program to be
audited to help assess, among other matters, the significance of possibie
audit objectives and the feasibility of achieving them The auditors’
understanding may come from knowledge they already have about the
program and knowledge they gain from inquiries and observations they
make in planning the audit. The extent and breadth of those inquiries and
observations will vary among audits, as will the need to understand
individual aspects of the program, such as the following:

a. Purpose and goals: Purpose is the result or effect that is intended or
desired, and can exist without being expressly stated Goals quantify the
level of performance intended or desired. Management is expected to set
goals for program efforts, operations, outputs, and outcomes. Auditors
may use the purpose and goals as criteria for assessing program
performance. )

b. Efforts: Efforts are the amount of resources (in terms of money,
material, personnel, and so forth) that are put Into a program These
resources may come from within or outside the entity operating the
program. Measures of efforts can have a number of dimensions, such as
cost, timing, and quality.

C. Program operations: Program operations are the strategies,
processes and activities the auditee uses to convert efforts into outputs.
Program operations are subject to management controls,

e. Outputs: Outputs are the quantity of goods and service provided
Examples of measures of output are tons of solid waste processed,
number of students graduated, and number of students graduated who
have met a specified standard of achievement
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f. Outcomes: Outcomes are accomplishments or results that occur (at
least partially) because of services provided. Qutcomes can be viewed as
ranging from immediate outcomes to long-term outcomes. For example, an
immediate outcome of a job training program and an indicator of its
effectiveness might be the number of program graduates placed in jobs.
That program’s ultimate outcome and test of its effectiveness depends on
whether program graduates are more likely to remain employed than
similar persons not in the program. Outcomes may be intended or
unintended, and they may be influenced by cultural, economic, physical, or
technological factors external to the program.  Auditors may use
approaches drawn from the field of program evaluation to isolate the
effects of the program from those of other influences.

6.10 One approach to setting audit objectives is to relate the elements of
program to the types of performance audits discussed in chapter 2. For
example, audits concerned with economy could focus on efforts, that is,
were resources obtained at an optimal cost and at an appropriate level of
quality? Audits concerned with efficiency could focus on the program
operations or the relationship between efforts (resources used) and either
outputs or outcomes to determine the cost per unit of output or outcome.
Program audits could be concerned with determining whether program
outcomes met specified goals or whether outcomes were better than they
would have been without the program. Any type of performance audit could
encompass program operations if auditors ate looking for reasons why the
program was successful or not.

Criteria

6.11 Criteria are the standards used to determine whether a program
meets or exceeds expectations. Criteria provide a context for
understanding the results of the audit. The audit plan, where possible,
should state the criteria to be used. In selecting criteria, auditors have a
responsibility to use criteria that are reasonable, attainabie, and relevant to
the matters being audited. The following are some examples of possible
criteria ,

purpose or goals set by management,

technically developed standards or norms,

expert opinions,

prior years’ performance,

performance of similar entities, and

performance in the private sector.

RIS

6.13 Much of the benefit from audit work is not in the findings reported or
the recommendations made, but in their effective resolution. Auditee
management is responsible for resolving audit findings and
recommendations, and having a process to track their status can help it
fulfill this responsibility. If management does not have such a process,
auditors may wish to establish their own. Continued attention to significant
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findings and recommendations can help auditors assure that the benefits
of their work are realized.

Compliance With Laws and Regulations

6.28 Auditors should design the audit to provide reasonable assurance
about auditee compliance with laws and regulations.

6.29 Auditors may find the following approach helpful in making their
determination:

a. Reduce each audit objective 10 questions about specific aspects of
the program being audited (that is, purpose and goals, efforts, program
operations, outputs, and outcomes.

b. -Identify laws and regulations that directly address specific aspects of
the program included in the audit objectives’ questions.
c. Determine if violations of those laws and regulations could

significantly affect the auditors’ answers to the questions encompassed in
the audit objectives. If they could, then those laws and regulations are
likely to be significant to the audit objectives.

6.30 The following are examples of types of laws and regulations that can
be significant to the objectives of economy and efficiency audits and of
program audits.

a. Economy and efficiency: Laws and regulations that could
significantly affect the acquisition, protection, and use of the entity's
resources, and the quantity, quality, timeliness, and cost of the products
and services it produces and delivers.

b. Program: Laws and regulations pertaining to the purpose of the
program, the manner in which it is to be delivered, and the population it is
to serve.

6.33 Auditors should exercise due professional care in pursuing
indications of possibie illegal acts so as not to interfere with potential
investigations, legal proceedings, or both. Under some circumstances,
laws, regulations, or policies require auditors to report indications of
certain types of illegal acts to law enforcement or investigator authorities
before extending audit steps and procedures. Auditors may also he
required to withdraw from or defer further work on the audit or a portion of
the audit in order not to interfere with an investigation.

6.34 The term noncompliance has a broader meaning than illegal acts.
Noncompliance includes not only illegal acts, but also violations of
provisions of contracts or grant agreements. Like illegal acts, these other
types of noncompliance can be significant to audit objectives. The auditors’
considerations in planning and performing tests of compliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements are similar to those discussed
in paragraphs 6.28 through 6.39.
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6.35 Abuse is distinct from illegal acts and other noncompliance. When
abuse occurs, no law, regulation, contract provision, or grant agreement is
violated. Rather, the conduct of a government program falls far short of
societal expectations for prudent behavior. However, because the
determination of abuse is so subjective, auditors are not expected to
provide reasonable assurance of detecting it.

6.36 Auditors’ training, experience, and understanding of the program
being audited may provide a basis for recognition that some acts coming
to their attention may be illegal. Whether an act, in fact, is illegal is a
determination normally beyond auditors’ professional capacity. However,
auditors are responsible for being aware of wulnerabilities to fraud
associated with the area being audited in order to be able to identify
indications that fraud may have occurred. In some circumstances,
conditions such as the following might indicate a heightened risk of fraud:

a. Auditees offer unreasonable explanations to the auditors’ inquiries.
b. Auditees are annoyed at reasonable questions by auditors.
C. Auditees refuse to provide records.

Management Controls

6.39 Auditors should obtain an understanding of management controls
that are relevant to the audit. When management controls are significant to
audit objectives, auditors should obtain sufficient evidence to support their
judgments about those controls.

6.40 Management is responsible for establishing effective management
controls.

6.41 Management controls, in the broadest sense, include the plan of
organization, methods, and procedures adopted by management to ensure
that its goals are met. Management controls include the processes for
planning, organizing, directing, and controlling program operations. They
include the systems for measuring, reporting, and monitoring program
performance. The following classification or management controls is
intended to help auditors focus on understanding management controls
and in determining their significance to the audit objectives.

a. Program operations: Controls over program operations include
policies and procedures that management has implemented to reasonably
ensure that a program meets its objectives. Understanding these controls
can help auditors understand the program operations that convert efforts
to outputs.

b. Validity and reliability of data. Controls over the validity and reliability
of data include policies and procedures that management has implemented
to reasonably ensure that valid and reliable data are obtained, maintained,
and fairly disclosed in reports. These controls help assure management
that it is getting valid and reliable information about whether programs are
operating properly. Understanding these controls can help auditors (l)
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assess the risk that the data gathered by the entity may not be valid and
reliable and (2) design appropriate tests of the data.

c.  Compliance with laws and regulations: Controls over compliance with
laws and reguiations include policies and procedures that management has
implemented to reasonably ensure that resource use is consistent with
laws and regulations. Understanding the controls relevant to compliance
with those laws and regulations that the auditors have determined are
significant can help auditors assess the risk of illegal acts.

d. Safeguarding resources: Controls over the safeguarding of
resources include policies and procedures that management has
implemented to reasonably ensure that resources are safeguarded against
waste, loss, and misuse. Understanding these controis can help auditors
plan economy and efficiency audits.

6.43 The need to test management controls depends on their
significance. The following are examples of circumstances where
management controls can be significant:

a. In determining the cause of unsatisfactory performance if that
unsatisfactory performance could result from weaknesses in specific
management controls.

b. When assessing the validity and reliability of performance measures
developed by the audited entity. Effective management controils over
collecting, summarizing, and reporting data will help ensure valid and
reliable performance measures.

Evidence

6.46 Sufficient, competent, and relevant evidence Is to be obtained to
afford a reasonable basis for the auditors’ findings and conclusions.

6.47 Evidence may be categorized as physical, documentary, testimonial,
and analytical. Physical evidence is obtained by auditors’ direct inspection
or observation of people, property, or events. Such evidence may be
documented in memoranda, photographs, drawings, charts, maps, or
physical samples Documentary evidence consists of created information
such as letters, contracts, accounting records, invoices, and management
information on performance. Testimonial evidence is obtained through
inquiries, interviews, or questionnaires. Analytical evidence includes
computations, comparisons, separation of information into components,
and rational arguments.

6.54 The following presumptions are useful in judging the competence of
evidence. However, these presumptions are not to be considered sufficient
in themselves to determine competence.

a. Evidence obtained from a credible third party is more competent
than that secured from the auditee.
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b. Evidence developed under an effective system of management
controls is more competent than that obtained where such controls are
weak or nonexistent.

C. Evidence obtained through the auditors’ direct physical examination,
observation, computation, and inspection is more competent than evidence
obtained indirectly.

d. Original documents provide more competent evidence than do
copies.
e. Testimonial evidence obtained under conditions where persons may

speak freely is more competent than testimonial evidence obtained under
compromising conditions (for exampie, where the persons may be
intimidated).

f. Testimonial evidence obtained from an individual who is not biased
or has complete knowledge about the area is more competent than
testimonial evidence obtained from an individual who is biased or has only
partial knowledge about the area,

6.56 The auditors’ approach to determining the sufficiency, competence,
and relevance of evidence depends on the source of the information that
constitutes the evidence. Information sources include original data
gathered by auditors and existing data gathered by either the auditee or a
third party. Data from any of these sources may be obtained from
computer-based systems.
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Office of Inspector General, Guidelines for Audits of Federal Awards to Nonprofit
APPENDIX A  Organizations, April 1988

QUESTIONNAIRE TO IDENTIFY AUDIT RISKS
AND PROVIDE AN OVERVIEW OF INTERNAL
CONTROLS

g INTRODUCTION

This questonnaire is designed to help the auditor plan the scope and emphasis of an
engagement in accordance with OMB Circular A-110. Itis an optional tool and should be
adapted to mest the circumstances at a particular organization. The questions arc examples
of areas to be considered; they are not all-inclusive.

This qucsdonnaii: is generally designed for large organizations. For smaller organizations
many of the questdons may not be relevant and should be answered accordingly.

Management

Information

List the names 2nd titles of individuals who have responsibility for financial and adminis-
trative conmol and the approximate dates each assumed his present posidon:

Risks

Are thers management characteristics which could effect vulnerabiliry to disallowance?
Consider:

« High tumover rate in key financial personnel; e
» Lack of supervision'by management;

* Inadequate or poorly trained clerical and "first-line™ supervisory personnel; and

» Conflicts of interest.

World Leamning, Financial Management

- l/



468

APPENDIX A

Organizational Structure

- Information

List the names and locations of the major departments, etc., in which sponsored acivities

take place and indicate the approximate annual operating budget and level of sponsored
acgvity for each acdviry: :

Operating Level
Total and Program
-t

Department

L
/
/

Risks
Are there risks associated with the organizadonal szucture? Consider:

Extzme decenralization of responsibility to individuals not familiar with Federal
reguladons or lacking financial experxise;

» Lack of segregation of duties; or

Is there a single unitary system or are there muldple sy.;.tcms being operated by the
organizagon.

Organizational Activity

Information

Indicate below the office or person who has primary responsibility for accountability for
Federal funds in each of the following areas:

a. Financial repordng

b. Cash managzment

c. Pmcurement
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d. Invoiceclearance and
cash disbursement

e. Labordistibuton

f. Costsharing

g. Property management '

h.  Proposal and accsptance

i.  Organizational prior

approval/rebudgeting

j-  Indirect cost calculatdon

k. Indirect cost negotiation

l.  Gene:z! accoundng and
account reportng

m. Accounting for fringe
benefits

n. Allowabiliry, allocabiliry,
and reasonableness of costs

Risks

Is there evidence that the organization has failed to fix the locus of administrative respon-
sibility for Federal programs? Consider:

..

» Is there an overall ammosphere of control, definition, and organization of Federal
programs?

* Is ther no one person with sufficient knowledge of Federal Regulations, or is too
much reliance placed on a single person?

* Does the organization provide an adequate "pre-audit” of Federal program related
transacdons?



4€ec

APPENDIX A

Financial Position

Information

May include the financial statements of the organizatdon for the past few years. A detailed,
carrent budget might also be helpful.

Risks

Are there questions as to the financial position of the client or any of its deparmnents?
Consider: ’

« Deteriorating trends in current operadng results of the eatity or of pardcular
deparmuments in recent years;

» Increasing reliance on Federal sponforship of key programs;
« Insufficient cash flow to mest operadons or debt payments;
» Impending refunding of debt;
-+ Unusual t.:ircums:anc:s. such as severe liquidity problems;
«  Proceeds of short-term borrowings invested in long-term assets;
» Potendal noncompliance with restricted covenants;

»  Unusual interfund transfers, or interfund balances which are not settled for some
time;

o * Departures from generally accepted accounting principles;
» Inconsistentapplication of accounting principles;
»  Extraordinary items in the past; and

» Unusual adjustments at the end of an accounting period, or significant adjustments
on the basis of an audit.
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Federal Audit History

Information

1. Obtain the following information from the organization, the cognizant audit agency

and/or other Federal agencies which provide funding to the organization:

Year(s) Report Response

Significant
Wezknessas

2. Obtain a copy of: . .
a.  the latest prior audit repors;

b.  the prior cognizant agency transmirtal lexter; and

" ¢. the audit clearance document related to the prior audit report if that report had
findings and recommendations 10 be resolved which related to Federal programs. -

Risks

Is there a history of unsatsfactory findings in past Federal audits? Consider:

« Timeliness of response 1o or program for complying with Federal regulations;

«  Prior audit reports and audit clearance documents indicating the resolution of prior

audit findings:
» Findings of past audits;

« Unresolved present findings;
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Cash Receipts and Program Income

Information

Briefly describe the significant records, documents, files, journals, ledgers, and reports of
the system This may be done either on this form, in an overview flowchart, or in
combinaton. Be sure to include relevant informaton not produced as part of the normal
processing cycle (e.g., on request, quarterly, annually, etc.):

- »3

Quesdons

1. How does the organization ensure that all cash received is deposited prompdly in the
bank  and credited to the proper project?

2. How does the organization ensure the completeness, accuracy, and timely submission
of all pericdic repors, related to cash receipts and disbursements, to the government?

3. How does the organization reconcile cash receipts and control accounts?

4. Does the organizaton have a systematc way of soliciting and accepting Federal sup-
port?  Consider: )

a. Occurrence of "problem” projects:
b. "Gaps" in funding pa.nicul‘a: support persennel;

¢. Establishment of "suspense accounts” to which expenses may be charged before .ants
or conwacts are approved; and
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- d. Lack of control over assignment of grant and contract account numbers, so that ex
penses may be charged to accounts which are not yet funded.

Risks

i Is there a risk that the organizadon is drawing down Federal funds for other than their
intended purpose? Consider:

 "Areadvancesunderthe letter of credit system drawn down as soon as Federal awards
are received?

* Has it been some time since program drawdowns were reconciled with expendi-
turss?

* Are funds commingled with general funds, so that the organization cannot ideadfy

them?
%

»  Are interfund loans made to other programs?

« Are high cash deposits maintained with banks to cover the costs of bank servicss
such as payroll preparation or free checking?

Record Retention

Information

" Briefly describe the major locations of financial and adminijswative records which may be
used in the examinadon:

payroll records

invoices

-

grant correspondence
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Risks

[s there 2 history of difficulty in receiving sufficient documentation fom the organiza-

tion? :
Cost Sharing and Matching

Information

Describe the organization’s cost-sharing arrangement.

organizational

:_ individual projecis

-

. negotated percentage

types of costs cited

most freguently

any special arrangements

Questions

1. How does the organization ensure the completeness, accuracy, and imeliness of cost-
sharing repons?

2.- How does the organization determine that it has fnct cost-shazing goals? Is there 2
periodic comparison of budgeted and actual amounts?

3. Is voluntary cost sharing a significant factor at the organizarion, or are all expenses on
Federal projects accounted for and charged to the projects?



4165

APPENDIX A

Risks

o Is there risk that cost sharing and matching funds cannot be identfied or docu-
mented?

* Doesthe organizadon aim to mest minimum cost-sharing or matching requirements,
or is there some “cushion” of costs voluntarily shared? .

»  Has the organizaton regularly accumulated cost-sharing or matching amounts and
~ compared them with amounts required?

-+ Is there some control which ensures that expenses used for the purpose of cost
sharing or matching are not charged directly or indirectly to Federal projects?
) .

* Does the organizaton have time shests for voluntesr services performed?

+ Does the organization use appraisal values for contributed spacs and equipment?

General Standards for Financial Management Systems

Information

Briefly describe the significant records, documents, files, journals, ledgers, and reports of
the system. This may be done either on this form, in an overview flowchar, or in
combinaton. Be sure to include relevant information not produced as part of the normal
processing cycle (e.g., on request, quarierly, annually, etc.):
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Questions

1. Are there any special procedures to ensure the accuracy and completeness of pericdic fi-
nancial reports submitted to:

Managers

Govemment
officials

2. Do the accounting rcpbns include b‘ﬁdgcz and cost data for each project?

3. Are the reports prepared and diszibuted in a timely manner to assure that they are use-
ful in the management of the projecis? '

Risks
Is there a general lack of control over financial ransacdons?
* Does the ceatral financial office consider the director's signature sufficientevidencs

of thereasonableness, allowability, and allocability of anexpense, before proccs§ing'
the item for payment?

» Does the accounting system lack the integrity to identify receipts and expenditures
by project and type? '

°  Are there excessive journal antries, tzansferring costs from one project 10 another?
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» Does the client’s budgeting system enable the director or adminismator to know the
status of their funds on a timely basis? Or is diszibution of such informaton slow
and ineffecdve? .

* Does the organizaton reconcile its control records (for example, total expenditures
charged to and drawn down from Federal funds) with records for partcular projects

on a regular basis?

« Are expénditurcs processed promptly, or are the departments allowed wide latitude -
in the time they submit ransactions for payment and accrual?

Salary.Distribution

Information

Briefly describe the significant records, documents, files, journals, ledgers, and reports of
the system.  This may be done either on this form, in an overview flowcharn, or in
commbinadon. Be sure to include relevant information not produced as pars: of the normal .
processing cycle (e.g., on request, quarnerly, annually, e:c.): ’

- O
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Quesdons
1. Are there any special procedures (analytical reviews, reconciliations, comparison to

. budget, etc.) w ensure the completeness and accuracy of payroll informaton?

2. Describe how the organization assures that all changes to standing payroll daaare  au-

thorized. .

3. Describe how the organization ensures the accuracy and completeness of labor
dismribution data.

4 Describe how the calculation of pay is checked.

h}

5. Describe how the organization ensures that payrolls are summarized accurately.
Risks

Consider:

Are there a number of projects in which there is 2 risk that an individual may be
paid twice for the same effon?

Do disiributdons of salary as direct and indirect costs, and as costs cited for cost
sharing, come from a single system, or is there 2 risk that more than 100% of an
individual's time can be diswibuted because these charges are made from systems

which are not reconciled with each other?

Are salaries and wages distributed to Federal projects solely on the basis of the
budget?
' Cash Disbursement

Information

Briefly describe the significant records, documents, files, journals, ledgers, and repornts of
the system. This may be done either on this form, in an overview flowchan, or in
combination. Be sure to include relevant informaton not produced as part of the normal

processing cycle (e.g., on request, quarterly, annually, etc.):
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Questions

1. Are there any special procedures (analytical reviews, reconciliations, comparison to
budget, etc.) on which the organization relies to ensure the cornplczcncss and accuncy of
payments to outsiders? N

2. How does the organization ensure that the narure, quantity, and condidon of all goods
and services are checked and recorded at the time they are received?

3. How does the organization easure that invoices are checked befors payment?

4. How does the organization ensure that disbursements have besn properly approved?
That they have been recorded in the proper period?

5. How does the organization ensure that disbursements are reasonable and allowable in
accordance with OMB Circular A-122?

Risks
Is there a lack of procedures which would:
¢ Prevent duplicate payments?

* Prevent missing payment dates for prompt payment discounts?
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+ Prevent the idendfication of unallowable costs for Federal programs?

» Is there a regular reconciliation of bank accounts?

» Prevent unauthorized payments?
Procurement

Information
Briefly dcscribc the means by which the organization procures:

1. supplies and routine services

A
2. consultants and profassional services

3. constucdon

4. oil, gas, ewc.

5.. equipment ard supplies

6. computers

7. subcontractssrvices
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8. other

9. total volume of procurements

- 10. total percentage of volume placed centrally

Questions

1. How does the organization ensure that it has received the best "deal” on each
- procurement action, taking into account both economic and other factors?

2. How does the organization ensure that procurements of restricted items, such as
equipment, renovaton, foreign mavel, etc., have been approved in advance either in the
award budget or in 2 special request?

3. How does the organization ensure that procurements are not for items already on hand
or available at another location?

Risks
Consider:

* Can anyone commit the organization to a purchase, or will it honor only those
purchases placed by a purchasing deparment?

* Isthers a traditon in practice of compedtive bidding or price negodation?

. .A:c purchases of equipment and other charges paid using normal procedures, or
does the organization have some manner by which they require prior agency
approval for these purhases?

T Cost Transfers and Other Journal Entries

Information

Describe the organization's system for cost transfers and related journal entries.

N7/

1 4
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- Questions

1?"_ Does management often have multiple sources of funding, among which they might
™ allocate expenses without sufficient justificadon?

2. Do journal enzies represent a significant portion of Federal ransactions?

3. Is departmental approval sufficient to proczss 2 journal enmy or is there a cental re-
view?

4. Are a significant proportion of expenditure reports and final vouchers submirted late?
~ Do they routinely show expenditures which are exactly equal to budgeted amounts?

5. Isthere a significant number of joui'nal entries processed at the end of the fiscal year?

-~

Risk

Consider the possibility of wansfers made from over-expendad programs to new pro-
grams that are unrelated in purpose.
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Property Management

Information
Briefly describe the systems in place for accounting for:

1. property owned by the government

2. property ownéd by the organization

Questions

1. Are there periodic physical iﬁvcnzorics?

2. How does the organization discourage the purchase of redundant equipment?

Lo
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3. How are disposals and mansfers accomplished and accounted for?

Risks
Is there a lack of accountability for property and equipment? Consider:
« Lackof ccnn"afcquipmcm records;

Failure 1o update such records, or tc reconcile the records with periodic physical
inventories of equipment; and

Poor control over surplus equipment, and commingling of Fedaral equipment with

organizational property.

Revision of Financial Plans

Information

List the official who is responsible for budgetary changes?

Questions

1. Does the direcior regularly rebudget line itemns in order to reflect current circumstances?

2. How does the organizaton ensure that *

'restricted” budget categories, and agrsement
budge:s in totzl, are not overspeat? :

3. Does the organization’s annual budgeting process include dirsct and indirest costs of
projecis?
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Risks
Is there a failure (o attend to line item budget resmictions? Consider:

+ Consistent overexpenditure of certain categories through underexpenditure in oth-
ers; and

«  Absence of agency approval for rebudgeting. '

Indirect Costs

These questions and comments are not applicable for organizatons that do not have an
indirect cost rate.

Information : .

Briefly set forth general information regarding indirect costs:

1. Departments having separate overhead rates and costs allocated to each:

e Cosis
a.
b.
c.

2. DirectCost(______ Jorsalarybase(________Jindollars |

3. Rate

- .

4. Last year audited

5. Carryforward (if any)

6. Method used (negotiated fixed rate, predetermined, etc.) |
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7. Are calculations computerized? |
8. Any major cost studies?

Questions

1. How does the organization ensure that costs allocated through indirect cost pools were
 allowable under the Federal cost principles?

2. How does the organizadon ensure that calculations of indirect cost proposals were
complete, accurate, and in accordance with the regulatons?

3. How does the organization ensure that direct costs were not also included as indirect
costs?

4. Are proposals up to date or was there an unusual delay in submission?

Risks

Were indirect costs calculated consistently and on the basis of up to date data? Consider:

Did the organization have a history of maximizing indirect cost reimbursement?

Were expenses included in indirect cost pools without consideration for their
allowability?

Were proposals submitted without proper supcmsory r:vxcw of judgmcms, as-
sumpnorzs or calculatons?

Was the organizadon aggressive in trying to limit carryforwards, or had actual costs

consistently exceedzd negotiated amounts?
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Had a proportionately high amount of indirect costs been reimbursed by the
govermment?

Were cost studies rudimentary or out of date?

Had the latest proposal bezn prepared in accordance with OMB Circular A-122 or

its interpretadons?

Did the organization include indirect costs in its carryforward which had not been
absorbed because of agency limitations, or because of direct cost overruns on
partcular projects?.

Were allocations to projects mfade on a consistent basis? For example, if the total
square footage of a building, including common rooms, was allocated to projects,
was the denominator of total square footage for the building based on the same
squars footage or is it usable square fest instead?

Were bid and proposal costs and costs of peer reviews included without limitadon?

Was there an opporiunity to chargs costs both as direct and indirest costs (e.g., is it
possible for an individual to charge projects directly for certain time, while the rest
of his activity, which cannot be atributed directly to a project, went into the indirect
cost pool, when a part should be assigned directly to other acdvides)?

Wers eliminations from the indirect cost pool made consistently?

t(
-

-

If direct costs were wransi ferred from one project to another, was there an automatic

adjustment of the related indirect costs?

Was an under or over absorption of fringe benefit expense in 2 particular year
considered in the determination of rates in successive years?

~
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Government Auditing Standards, United States General Accounting Office, 1994
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*  Were there excessive reserves for fringe benefit claims which were incurred but not
reporied? Were these reserves supported by actuarial calculations?

* Does the organizadon’s accounting system assign indirect costs and fringe benefits

only to projects (because it is required), or were these allocated to all the
organization’s
expenses in a consistent manner?

World Learning, Financial Mana gement
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WORLD LEARNING INC.

Founded in 1932 as
The S, Experiment in
Ttermational Living

Section 8
Resource Materials
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THE WORLD OF NON-PROFIT (PUBLIC) ORGANIZATIONS
IN THE USA

It includes: churches, schools, colleges and universities;
researchinstitutions; social services, arts and culture organizations; public
development organizations; charities.

They involve more citizens than the federal and state government
auithorities taken together.

Their combined annual budgets exceed the national budget by about 7
times.

The number of volunteers is over 70 million of the U.S. adults and
teenagers.

70 percent of the U.S. familities make annual donations to the non-profits.
WHAT IS A NON-PROFIT?
1. Profit is not distributed among individuals.
2. It has a certain mission.
NON-PROFITS STATISTICS

About 1.25 million of non-profit (public) organizations are operating in
across the United States.

They employ 8 million people, or 7 percent of the total employment.

Compare this to the following:
Construction employs 5 million.
Electronics employs 2 million.
Textiles employ 1.8 million.

Employment growth in 1972 through 1982 in the following sectors:

non-profit (public) 43 percent
profit (business) 21 percent
government 19 percent
overall 22 percent

In 1982 through 1884 (under President Reagan)the rate of employment
growth declined in the non-government institutions, but somewhat
recovered after 1986.

World Learning/PCC, Financial Management
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VOLUNTEERS

Half of the U.S population, 18 years and older, provide volunteer services

at least once a year.

A quarter of the population volunteer once a week.

Their contribution to economy is assessed at about US$ 150 billion.

NON-PROFITS' IMPLICATIONS FOR ECONOMY

They pay US$ 75 billion to 5.6 million of their employees.

They purchase US$ 52.6 billion worth of goods and services.

They make an equivalent of almost 3.5 percent of GDP.

INCOME SOURCES

US$ hillion %
Contributions, charges, fees 112.5 38
Allocations g2.2 27
Government contracts 81.2 27
Income from investment 15.9 5
Miscellaneous 8.1 3

300
SOURCES OF DONATIONS
US$ billion %
Individuals 77 82.0
Behests 6 6.4
Foundations 6.4 6.8
Corporations 4.5 4.8
93.9

BENEFICIARIES, BY TYPE %
Religion 47
Health care 15
Education 12
Public services 10
Arts and culture 6.8
Social and public workers 2.6
Other 7.3

World Learning/PCC, Financial Management

|

- A u



R Ny emi WR Wy @R ag au

184

Yr1o MoKeT AaThb o0yyeHHe yrnpamieHHI0 dHHaAHCAMH
(YycneluHbIH ONbIT)

Bcemmpnrpii HactatyT no npotnemaM uasamumoctd (World Instittute of Disability) u ero
poccriickuil mapraep Beepoccuiickoe O6mectso MHBaminos paGoTtaioT no mporpaMme, Lelb
KOTOpOii - NaybHeiinee onepallHOHHOE B KOMMYHEKAIIMOHHOE Pa3BuTHAE OM3IHEC-CTPYKTYD,
cBasaHHbIXx ¢ BOW. B paMxax »Toii mporpaMmnl IlaHHpyeTcsA NPOBeACHHE CEMHHAPOB 1O
HanHcaHuio OM3HeC-IIaHOB M MOIFOTOBKE OH3HEC-KOHCYILTATOB B NATH pernonax Poccum.
OcynrecTeAA4 CBOii NPOEKT MO NPoBefeHMIo 06y4YaiollliX CEMHHAPOB Ha TeMy “(MPmuaHcoBoe
yIipaBneHde”, OCEHbI0 STOFO rolia OHH IPOBENI CEMHHAp, OCHOBHOHR 3amadeii KoToporo Gbu1o -
Hay4HTDL IPaBUWILHOMY H TPaMOTHOMY cOCTaBNeHHI0 OH3Hec-IUIaHa.

Hackonpko HeoOXOIAMSI ¥ MOJIE3HBI TAKAE MEPONPHATHS MOTYT CBHIETENBCTBOBATh IpHBEICHHEDIE
HHXe IBa IPUMepa YCHIEMHOro NpHMEHeHAd NONYyIeHHRX Ha 3TOM CEMHHApe 3HaHWH Ha MpaKTHKE.

Tlpumep 1:

Ilo cemmnrapa na Crepmutamakckoii dabpake “Ipyx6a” me Gbmo koMmbloTepa. Yaactue B
ceMmuHape yOemmno mapeKTopa ¢abpHKE B Ee0OXOIMMOCTH €ro NpHoOpHTeRHd. B HacTosmee Bpems
thabpHEKa EMeeT KOMIBIOTED H IporpaMMaOe obecnedenre, HauaTo o6ydeHHE BEXYIHX
cOeqAaJIECTOB o pabore ¢ HAM.

Bnaromaps nony4eHEBIM 3HAHAAM B XOIE CEMHEHapa H ¢ moMommslo nporpaMmel “SUCCESS” 6nut
CaMOCTOATENLHO pa3paboTan OM3HeC-IDIaB Ha IPOM3BOICTBO MATKOI Mrpymkm. PaGoTa Han 6M3mec-
IUIAaHOM YKPETIIa IONydcHAbIE B X0le CEMAHApa 3HaBAA H TO3BOMAIAa IPEMcHUTh BX Ha IIPaKTEKE.
Oco6eHHO IeHHEHIM Ha CEroNHAIARA IeHb I ¢aObpHKE sBigeTcd NpaMeHeHNe [UTAaHa TBHXCHHS
IeHeXHBIX cpeicTB. OH moMoraet Golee 9eTKO H ONEPaTHBHO BIIHATH Ha IPOM3BONCTBCHHLIA
IpoIece B PealM3aldio NPONYKIHHE, a 3HAYHT YIydmacT SKOHOMHYECKHAE Pe3yNbTaTh paboThl
npemnpraras. Ha ¢abpake Takxke ycreHa cryx6a MapKeTHHra.

TlporpaMma cemMmAapa H ero OpaKTHIECKAE Pe3ylBTATH BRI3BAIH CONBINOH HATEpEC Y
PYKOBOIHTEIIEH NOXOOHOro polia HpeIIpHATHR. Y HAX BO3HHKJIA 3aHHTEpECOBaHHOCTH B
nporonxeHAn corpynmmdectsa ¢ BHITH 1 xenamne pacliEpAT: TeMaTAKY CeMHAHAPOB.

IIpumep 2:

Yue6a mo cocTaBleHHI0 OH3HEC-IDIaHA TIOMOITIa HE TONBKO NAPEKTOPY IPEeNIPHITHS
“Xynoxectsennrie xucta” BOW (KupoB), HO H 9acTH ympaBJIeHYeCKOTO NepcoRana. Beuro
ofpameno BHEMaHAC Ha TaKHe BaXHBIE MOMEHTH!, KaK KOHKYPCHIMS, ICHE], CIVIBHHE H cabhle
CTOpOHH IPEMIPHATHI H €r0 IPOXYKIHEHA, OCTARNIAEMOR Ha aKcIopT. Ocofoe BHAMaRHe IpH
cocTareHAR GH3HeC-IUTaHa GBUIO yNeneHO pa3lelly - QEHAHCOBLII IIAH, IPH MONTOTOBKE KOTOPOTro
BO3HAKJIH ONpelle/IEHHEIC TPYAHOCTH.

Tlocne npoBeneHEs BTOPO# 9acTE CEMHAHAPA IPEINPHATHIO YIANOCH Yepe3 HeKOTOPOE BpeMs
IIpeonoJicTh MHOTHE, PaHHee BO3HHKaBmmHAe npotieMnl. Tlocie npaBHibHO COCTAaBIEHROTO OH3IHEC-
IUTaHa PYKOBOACTBO MPENUpPHITHA CMOIIIO ONpPEeNelMThcs C CYMMAaMH H HallDaBJICHASAMH
HHBECTHPOBaHHA. B HacTogmee BpeMms BEEYTCA IIEPETOBOPEI C HABECTOPAMH.

KosnekTHs yBepen B TOM, 9TO pe3yibTaT OpHMECHEHNA NONYICHHBIX 3HAHAM Ha NPaKTHKE HE
3acTaBHT cefs NONMTo XIaTh.

BEST AVAILABLE COPY . . .
World Learning, Financial Management
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3AKOH “Ob OBUWECTBEHHbLIX OB BbEOUHEHUSAX”: SKCNEPTDI
FOBOPHAT

Huga Bemnesa, “MuTtepnuran”™
7 mona 1995

He Bce smTaoT BHuUMaTeasHO “Poccuiickyto
razeTy”, He Bce cmymann QuUaaToBa, KOTOPHIA
OPEACTaBAAN 3TOT 33KOH, IO3TOMY ONHa M3
3agae Hamero GHOHIa H Hac ¢ BaMM — 9TOOM
AI0RM 3HANH, 9TO TAKOM 31KOH €CTh, ITO OH JaeT
MHOTO HOBLIX IpaB.

Hrax, 25 smaq BCTYMIUT B CHITY HOBHIT 3aKOH,
NPOBO3TIIAINAIONANIA HOBBIM HPHHLUAI OTHOINCHHA
TPLKIIHCKOTO OOIIECTBa M rocynapcrsa. Hosoe B
HeM TO, 9TO TCNeph Ipa#kIaHe HMEOT MPaBO Ha
obbeaMHeHHe HE31BHCHMO OT paspeilieHHA HAa 3TO
TOCyBapCTBEHHEIX OPTaHOB, B Tom THcIe MumiocTa.
Q6 3TOM TOBOPHT CTAThA TPETHA, KOTOpPasd PacKphl-
BaeT CORCPIKAHHE NpaBa Ha oObeIHHeHUe. Tam ecTs
Takoe HONOJKCHHME: OPTAHH3ANHUA CIMTIAETCA COINAR-
HOM C MOMEHTa OPOBENeHHA YIPEIUTEIBHOrO Cob-
PaBHA, YTECP)KIEHHA YCTABa H BHIGOPHLIX PYKOBO-
AAIOMX OpraHoB. To ¢CTh OPraEM3ANMA CIHTACTCR
CO3NaHHOA M TaMM 06pa3oM NETUTHMHOR <
MOMEHTa €¢ CO3[aHHA, a HE C MOMCHTA IOMYICHHMA
nevaTH H WTaMna Mumocra.

Mu  cmraem 3TO DpMHDMOMATLACHIIMM
HONOXERHEM, BOXPYT Hero muia ocHossas Sopnba
no 3akouy. Beas T'pakmamcxuft xomexc roBopuT o
IOpUAMIecKHx Munax, [pakganciuit Xopmexc roBo-
PHT O TPOKAABCKOM OGOPOTE, M T2M COBCPIICHHO
ACHO BalMCaHO, YTO HE MOXeT OHTb CyGbexTa
TPOKIAACKOTO 060pOTa 6e3 perHCTpalHH  IOPHAM-
qeckoro AHna. I103TOMy OCHOBHKIM apryMcHTOM CO
CTOpOHE MpaBoBOro yRpasncHid, Munawocra, Cobe-
Ta 6e30macHOCTH, MHIMIHMM G6GLIIO MMCHHO 23TO
NOROKERME: OPraHM3amMA  MOKET  CIHTAaThCA
CO3MaNHOA TONMBKO € MOMCHTa perHcTpanuH. B
PcanbHOA XH3EM 3TO O3Hadaer paspemenHe Mum-
10CTa HIM 3anpeimeEHe Mumocra. ME ke coiTaeM
COBCPIICHHO NpPHMHUWIOHAIBHRIM BCPHYTHCA K
MEXIYHapORHOMY UPMHIIHOY, KOTZa WpPaBo Co3fia-
HWS OPraHM3amuH HE OrpaHHTIBAcTCH HpeABApH-
TeNLHEIM pa3pemcHHeM BacTeR.

B sakome mpomuta Taxax GOpPMYmMIIpPOBKa —
MBI O9€Hb OPH3IHATEABAR JCNYTATAM H MPeanIeHTY,
9TO ORH MOARCPKUTH ITY NO3HIIHIO — CXA33HO TaM
6ykBansHO clrexyiomee: TPKIaHEe HMEIOT IPaBo Ha
o6beIMACHHE B accOUMAlHM, Ha CO3JaHHUEe BE31BH-
€HMOro o6beAMHEHUN, KOTOPOE CUHTAETCA CO3naH-

‘HHIM C MOMeHTa OpOoBeleHMA YIPeIMTEILHOTO

cobpaHus, MPHHATHA YCTAB1 H BLIGOpa pvkoBOAA-
LIHX OpraloB H MOXKeT CyIlecTBOBaThL 6e3 pe-
THCTPAallHH K Npap IOPHINYECKOro IMUA M BHINOA-
HATH CBOM YCTaBHEIC 321a¥H (TO €CTh OpraHM3alMA
He IPOCTO CIHTaeTcA BOOOIUE CO3AAHHOM — OHa
BOKHA HA4aTh PaboTaTh), MMGO — NpOROTKedAHe
¢$pa3sl ~ 3aperHCTPHPOBATLCR, €CTH OHA ITO COMTET
HEOOXONMMEIM, M NPHOGPeCTH OpaBa IOpHaWde-
cxoro muua. To eCThb B OMHOM CTaThe COBEPIICHHO
NPAMO ¥ IETKO rOBOPHTCA, TTO 3TO BHIGOP OpraHu-
331K, OH2 MOXKET CaMa PElIaTh, GYACT OHa PErncT-
PHPOBATHCA HIIM HET, 3TO HE BENACT €€ MeHee 3aKOH-
HOW HIHX McHEE NETHTHMHOMN.

Ecnu opraumsammm co6opuit B cBoeM coapa-
HYH, TO M OpaBoBhle (OpPMu, KOTOpHIE OHX
BHIGHPAIOT, IPEXYCMATPHBAIOT BO3MOXHOCTD CyTIe-
CTBOBaHHMA 3THX GopM 6e3 perncTpauuu. CTaThH ¢
6 mo 12 omucuiBaloT pasmrankle GOpMLI CymecTBO-
BaHHA TaKMX OpPraHM3aNWA — MH OmMCANH BCE
CYMCCTBYIOMHKE HA CCTOMHAIOHUA ACHL H TCOPETH-
9eCKH BO3IMOXHEE GOPME CYIICCTBOBAEHA TAKMX
061MeCTBEHHLIX OpraHM3aLHN, HE3aBHCHMO OT TOTO,
CO3210T OHH IOPUANIECKOE MMIO MO TPAKIAHCKOMY
XOJeKCy, wrH HeT. QOPMHEI 3TO creayomue.

Tpanuusmonnas ¢popma wiescxoh opraHu3a-
HHH, C KOTOPOH BCE 3BAXOMH H XOTOpas Ominma
CAHBCTBCHHOA 1O CMX HMOP BO3MOXGHOA ¢opwmos,
OCHOBaH2 OHAa Ha OPHHUHMIAX ACMOKPaTHIECKOTO
OCHTPAanH3Ma WICHW OPTaEM3amMy BHGupaoT
COBET, COBET OTBETCTBEHCH NEpEN WICHAMH,. WICHH
MOTYT ero Nepexuabpats. Iph 3o dopme cober-
BCHHOCTBIO yUpapmfer TOALKO ofimee co6panue, M
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MMEHHO TOMbKO obmiee cofpaHite BNpaBe peluaTs,
Kak 6yner pacxofioBaTsCA H10IKeT OPTIHHIAMHIH.
Ipyraa dopMa o0GbeIMHEHHA — ABICKEHHE.
TpHEIHIIHANBHOE €TO OTTIfIHE B TOM, TTO 3ACh He
CYIIECTBYeT TWICHCTBA, 3TO OPOCTO YIACTHHKH
OBWKEHIMA, XOTOPHE He JIMCIOT TAKOH OPAMON
CBA3M, KIK WICHB, TO ¢CTh HE HMEOT, CKILKEM,
BO3MOMHOCTH BIHATh Ha (DMHAHCOBYIO MOMITIKY,
He HME:OT OPaB Nepeu3épaTh PYKOBOAALIHE OPTAHEI
M TJ., NOTOMY TO YYACTHNICI, Hanpumep, Oewm-
Poccust, uas Kakoro-To ApYToTo MAccoBOrO ABICKe-
HHMA CIHTIIOTCA TOILKO HPHCYTCTBVIOMIMMH H3
MMTIHIe, X ATKe MOCTHTATL ONeHb TPVIHO, U TeM
6onee HeBO3MOXKHO NepelaTh YYacTHHKAM mpasd
NPHHATHA pelucHIit. B 3Tom cTywae Bee petledns
DPHHMMAIOT pPYKOBOASUIME OPTaHbl [ABICKCHMA.
Ecte ¢opmbl uX mernTitMamuu, B 9acTHOCTH, Ha
Cheane — KOTNA OPOBOIMTCA GOMBINON Cbe3fd MBM-
KeHMA, HX GOPMATLHO YTBEPAKIAUOT, HO MOTOM
OporpaMoi i GI0[LKETOM YIPABAKIOT HMEHHO 3TH

H.BEenaesa xOMMENTHPpYET HOBLIR IKOH.

PYKOBORAIIHE OpraHul. YNACTHMKH ABIDKEHMA He
MOTYT NpeTBABIATH HUKAKMX MPETEHAUI, 9TO
ReCXaTh MOM NpPaBa KaK TAeHA HE YTHTHBAIOTCA —
€CTH OHM XOTAT HMETh WICHCKYH OpraHisaunsio,
OHM TO/KEH paboTaTh B ApYrof TpaBoBOi (opate,
3TO JODKHE NOHHIMATS H YIACTHHKM ABICKEHMA, U
YNeHb O6IECTBEHALIX OPTaRH3AMHA.

Crenylomas ¢dopma —~ obmecTsennoe yipe-
wnenne. K pasvme cymecrsosany coseTckie HIH
rocynapcreenEne  yapexxaermr. Cefrgac y Hac
BOABMNACH BO3IMOKHOCTb CO3NABATH HETOCYNapCT-
BCHEBIC. NO3TOMY HMX BasBantk  ofmecTBeHH:Ie
yipexnerua”. Tairx dopu coanano Ha camom aene
O9CHB MHOTO ~ RI9MHAA OT TACTHOR IIKOAKl H
CTYTHA PpaboTH ¢ NeThMM 0O MECTY AGITCALCTBA,
LWIKOXKI KapaTd, KOTOPYIO CTapH¥f MacTep cnopTa
co3fan B CBOEM IBOPE, M 3aKaHIMBas 61aroTBOpH-
TENLHOM CTONOBOM WIH UPHIOTOM. 3Iech HeT
WICHOB, HET YIACTHHKOB, 3 OOPENCARIOMHM IPHE-
OMOOM ABAACTCA NPeIOCTaBACHME CONMATLHBIX
yoryr. Odenb MHOTO 61aTOTBOPHTENLHLIX, 3KONMOTH-
HECIOLX, HayIHHX M KYNIBTYPHHX OpPraRM3allifi
CO30AI0TCA HMCHHC NO NPHHNUTY YIPOKACHUA,
KOTJa €CTh IMPEXTOP, KOTOPH HARKMACT IWITAT
COTPYNHMKOB, YUNpaBAAIOIIHMX HMYI(eCTBOM,
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KOTOPHIM OH €aM BlaleeT. 34ech [MaBHOe MHIO —
YipeanTenb, KOTOPRIA KMEET COOCTReRHOCTL (MIMbo
5TO MOfl KBaPTHPA, NHOO MOH MAIUHHA, HA KOTOPO#
A Pa3sBOKY FYMaHHTAPHYIO NIOMOLb, THOO 3TO MoAa
MMTHAA WHATE/UICKTYMIEHAaA CcOOCTBEHHOCTh, KOTO-
POft & AEMOCH C MOAbMH, THGO HABKIKK HEXATOrHge-
CKOit padoTHI, HITH METONMKI TPEHUHIA, KOTOPbIC A
K4K TpeHiep MOTY OTIdBAT GeCILIATHO, NPOJRBATS K
T.1.). QopMa yUpeKIeHHA HeoOXOIMMA B TOM
CTy7ae, KOrJa HeT OTHOWSHIf WAEHCTBA, KOrId
monn ofbeIHHAIOTCS He N1f TOTO, YTOOH pelaTh
COBMECTHBIE MPOOGAEMBI, KAK B ‘LIEHCKON OPTaHU3a-
WM MTH B KTyOe, a KOLJA eCTh PAslfeleHie Mekay
TeM, KTO YCTYTY MPeOCTABAALT 3 TeM, KTO eé UOMY-
q2¢T.*3TO MPHHIHIHAALHO PA3HhLIE OTHOLIEH I, M B
3ToM crywae ¢opMa ydpeIesns ropasio Homes
alleXBaTHa, HO3TOMY Offa M ObUIA METHTHMHPOBAHA.
Ecm yape:kaesse npH 3ToM ODMUHAILHOE OPH-
I3riecxoe MHIO, OHO AeHCTBYET B PAMKIX IpakIat-
CKOTO KOfZexXca.

Cnexyloman — cdopma ‘thonaa, xoTopas Towe
ONMHMCaHa B rpakiancxoM koaexce. OTmwmnre donia
B MEpPBYI0 Odepelb B TOM, YITO CHUMALTCA HeoGXo-
AMMOCTb T1eRCTBA, KOTOpanA BC2T1a GhL1a OMOPHBIM
OVHKTOM AnA co3gaHna ¢onia. Huke IacTHHM
doraam, kax Kacmaposa wam Ocunana, opuxoan-
NOCh MPHAYMBIBATL JCCATh KAKIX-TO YipelsTened,
9T00b! Kak-TO OOAACIATBCA MO CYINECTBVIOLIHST
nopanok Mitsiocta. [To BoBOMY 3ax0HY yTpeauTe-
RAMH MOTYT GHITh He MeHes Tpex duanTecar IHlL,
OOTOMY 9TO KEIaHHMA ORHOTO-2IMHCTBEHHOIO
qe10Bexa HEJOCTATOTHO, DOMKEH ORITh MIHIMAIb-
HLIIT COBET MIPEKTOPOB, dxke B donae Kacnaposa msrs
anenon CoBeTa JIMPexTOpPOB. STO MOIYT OblTb TUICHH
CeMBIf, TO ¢CTh HM COGCTBCHHOCTL, Hif YOpaBileHle He
BRIXOAST 32 MpeleThl HHTEPECOB KOHKPETHON CeMbH, HO
TeM He MeHee J0/DKHO GBITH KaK MHHINMYM TPH 9€10Be-
Ka, KOTOPHIE CO3TAOT ;MoGoe OOIECTRENAOE OTbeDiHe-
Hite, B ToM micte H doun. He mymalo, aro Svier
Gonuiniv OpENATCTBHEM VIR YMPeI{TeId HaifTH ABYX
COPAaTHHMKOB, HYCTb IXKE 'WIEHOB CeMbH, KOTOPHIC
MOrM Ol TOAREPAATL €TI0 MEMIMATHMBY CO3NATH
wacTHLDt oun, OTDNMTeIbHEGT DpusHak (oMma —
RamroMe umyniecTsa. Jna yapeiaemma Toke oUcHb
BLKAO HUTHTHE COGCTBEHHOCTH, HO TaM MOKET OLITH
TOPOCTO MHTETICKTYAMLHas COBCTBEHAOCTD, M1 OHIA
e HEOGXOMMMO HalTMe MUTCPHAUTBEHOTO MMYILECTBL
Ho axx nop y nac 06pazosLmsamicy hoHak, KoTOpIe HE
HMETH HH KOMNefiM, TOMBKO XOUM{ C IPOTHAHYTOR
PYXOH M COOMpUIM QeHbIN. 3T0 MecCTeCTBeMHAR Of-
TYAaw®, ¢oHA — 3TO OPrAHM3ALA, XOTOPad ACIHTCA
CBOMMIE PECYPCAMH, Pa3NaET IX, OPEOCTABNAET YCIYTH,
OPENOCTABNACT BO3MOAHOCTH. OHa MOwKeT OGhITH M
nomywarteneM, M “oTnaBaTeneM”, HO TEM He MeHee B
COOTBETCTBID C HOBBIM TP@#CIAHCKMM KOZEKCOM He
MOKET CYIIECTBOBATHL (PORN, HE HMEIOUIM PECYPCOB.
Qonn — yupeokuenMe, KOTOpPOe CO3NIETCH Ha OCHOBE
BIUIAJIOR YIPEXHTENCH, 3TO MOTYT GHITh ¥ HOPHIIIL-
CKue nHna, oSumecTseRHEIE 06 beIHHEHMA, M MIAO
rpakmafe. B moGom cryuae y conna pomxen 6HTH



Hewort ¢GHHIHCOBEDY M MATCPHANBHLIA Pecype, a
HaThile OH OpecHefyeT OOLICCTBEHHO 3HATMMbIC
COMMANBHKIC EAH H NO MPAKIAHCKOMY KOJIEKCY, H 1o
HameMmy 3aKOHY. COOTBETCTBEHRO YIPABIACT MMylNc-
CTBOM COBET AHPEKTOPOB HIH MpaBNecHHe (orna
Haxonen, nocieanas ¢opma — opran odmect-
BEHHOR molesTenbHOCTH  (cornmunity  board),
KOTOPED GHUT Yy Rac, aKTHBHO padoTan, GbUl B COBET-
CKOM 33KOHOJATETHCTBE O MECTHBIX COBETAYX, 3 IOTOM
o HeM 3a6hum, xak 6n notepamu 31y dopmy. 0
H3BCCTHRIE BCCM JOMKOMBI M YIDf1HBIC XOMMTETHI
(cefraac yx cTano 00pazoBLIBATLCA OYeHL MAOTO YiKe B
HOBOM M3MEpEHiM), CTa9KOMEl H PaboTXOME! Ha
TpeIOpUATHAX (MX MeTanM3allMA BhI3BaNa BOCTOPr Y
He3aBUCHMBIX HPO(PCOIO30B), 3TO COBETHI NP3 SHOMIO-
Texax, PONMTEILCKHE COBETHI HPH LIKOMAX, COBETHI
OpM NOMMICIMHMKAX, TO €CThb BCE T¢ OPTaHE!, KOTOpHIC
HENOCPEICTBEHHO Ha MecTe paoThl, YIéOnt KDt Opo-
MMBAHMA 3AAMMAIOTCH HHTEPECHRIMM TOAbMH, CBS-
32HHEIMM C MECTOM PabOTHI, Y4EOL! HITH IPOXHBIHHA.
BnaroycrposiictBo coGcTBEHHON TEPPHTOPHI, CBOLTO

noMa, ¢GyTGONbHAA KOMAHIA, CTYAEHIEQHE KDYAdd,

pa6oTie KaCCHI, KEHCOBETH — CYTh OPTaHE OGLIECT-
BeHHON CaMofieTTebHOCTH. OTmITeMbHAA HX T¢pTa,
TTO Yy HUX TOKC HCT WICHCTBA, BeT WIEHAGIX OHIETOB,
Y HMX eCTh YYaCTHMKH, €CTb OPraHM3ITOphI, Y HMX
DOMHOCTBI0O MHMITHATHBHLO! HPHHIMO M Hal HUMH
HET HHMIAKHX BBILECTOALMX opraHos. OuM cyTb
HHHIOHaTIBA. Temeps 3Ta cdopMa NErMTHMIPOBaHA
NOMHOCTHIO, OPraHhl OOIIECTBEHHOMN CAMOACTTCILHO-
CTH TIO MECTY HUTEABLCTBA MOTYT CTaTh 0PHITIGETH-
MM THOAMS, TPHOGPETaTh HMYIIECTSO H T.J.

3T0 ITO0 KacacTcA HeTOCpeICTSeHHO ofiuect-
BeHHRIX obbeauHexit. Emé ocraHoBMOCH HA CTAThE
17, KoTOpast rOBOPHT 06 OTHOIUCHMAX € TOCYRAPCTBOM.

Onnont M3 3a1a9 3TOro 3akoHa 6n10 pasfe-
muTb cdepy TOCYAapCTBEHHOFO YNpaBiACHHA,
FOCYBApPCTBEHHOTO afMMHMCTPHPOBAHHA H ynpas-
nerua GloLKeToM OT cephl IPAKIANCKON aKTHEB-
HocTH. [leno B TOM, H IpUMEPOB 3TOMY OU¢Hb MHO-
ro, IT0 FOCYNapCTBO, Kak 6kl MONACALBAACH BOJ 06-
NICCTBCHHNC HEMIHATHBEI, ABASCTCA HMHHIMATO-
POM Da3ABIX KBa3HTOCYNapCTBEHHLIX CTPYKTYP, KO-
TOpHe BasnrBaer ofimecTseEHLIMH. Haer Becxon-
TPO/IbHAR MEPEKaYKa FOCYNAPCTBEHHEIX PECYPCOB M
cpeacrs. [Ipuuem ato Bcé mpeacrasaserca “Bes
3T0 BCE Hy:KHO 06mecTBy”, a B PpedynbTare Bcé
AOCTaéTCA YIPaBAAOMEMY MEXaHHIMY.

[To BOROMY 3aKOHY 3ampelleHO TOCYAapCTBEH-
HEIM OpraHaM GHITh YIpeIMTCTIAMH O6IIECTBEHHBIX
OObemMHe I, YIPCIHTEAAMH MOTYT ORITH TOMBKO
¢duzmdeaate mma M oTAebEBC TIpaKiane, mHbo
IOPHIHIECKHE I3, KOTOPHC ABLTOTCA obmecTnex-
HHMH O6beTnHenmamy. Taxum o6pasom, chepu
TOCYZlapCTBCHHOTO YIpaBneHMs M OOMICCTBEHHOR
HMHMIHATHER passencHil. [Ipy 3TOM ecm, cxakeM, Y
IpaBO3AIIMTERIX OPraHH3alMA NOMHOC OTTOPXKEeHME
OT TOCYNapCTBEHHOA CEpLI, CIMTALTCA ADKE HEMPH-
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J{IHEIM HCTIONB3OBAHHE TOCCPENCTB, NOCKOMLKY OMM
CIMTAIOT CMBICIOM CBOEH HNEATENLHOCTH OTIACTH
IPOTHBOCTOSIHHE TOCYAAPCTBY, TO OPralH3aLMH COLH-
ATPHOW TOMONIM, padoTAOIOME C HHBANMHMAAMH,
6cxeqnaMM, NeTbMM, BCEPbE3 PAaCCIMTHIBAIOT H
BpaBe PAacCINTHIBATL HAa NONMEPHKKY rOCynmapcT-
BeriHOro GlomAeTa, MOCKONbLKY 3TO OCYLECTBRACHHE
TeX COUHABHEIX IPOrpaMM, KOTOPHIE FOCYapcTBO
H OOA31HO NpeNOCTaBAATL CBOMM Tpa:kdaHaM. Mul
NpeIycMOTPenH KOHKPETHHE (OPMEI B 3ITOH ke
CTaTbe, OO KOTOPLIM FOCYAApCTBO BIIPaBe OKA3LIBATH
noMowb oDLecTBenBRIM 0ObemMHenyaM. Bor am
dopmL.

BrinetesHe rocylapcTBEHHBX TPaHTOB, KOraa
oOlleCTBEHHOE  OObeMMHEHMe, MPeaCTaBlas  CBOIO
IIPOrpasMy, TOBOPHT: BOT WTO MBI XOTeTH OBl CIETATH, H
MM MPeJOCTARMIOT TaKyl0 BOIMOXMEOCTh. Taxan mpak-
THXA CYLIECTBYET BO BCEX CTpaHax, B Tom wice B CIIIA,
BoT cefrqac USAID drHaBscHpyeT AesTeNbHOCT M pas-
BITHE OOLIECTBEHHEEt ofbemmenstt B Pocapt, mpu-
6m3HTeLHO 70 MIWDIMOHOB JOMNAPOB — 2TO THCTO
TOCYRAPCTBEHHEI TPAHT, H AMEPHKIHCKHE OGLICCTBEH-
Hble OPTAHM3AIMH COPEBHYIOTCA 33 UPaBO YNPaBIATD
STHMH JICHLIAMH U paboTaTs 3fech B Pocam.

Bropan c¢opma — BhmeTenMe XOHKDETHBIX
cy6cHaMA NOANepAKe KOHKPETHHIX CONMATbHEIX
IporpaMM, To ecThb B obnacTu 3dpaBooXpaHeHHd, 8
O6/MaCTH NETArorvKH, paspaGoTKa HOBLIX MCETOINMX,
CO3/laHHE 3KCTICPHMERTUTLHBIX KO, H BOOOIOE eCDH
y MOMeit eCTh HOBLIE TEXHONOIHM, OHH BOpaBe mpel-
NOAMTb CBOH NPOrPAMMH TOCYIAPCTBCHHHIM
OpraHaM, OPOCITb HX MOMHCPAIH, H YKE JEI0 Focy-
Jap<TBEHHOTO OpraHa PelliMTh, HONJEPHATh HIH HeT.

U Tperna — aro dopma xoRTpaxTa, BHIIOMHE-
HHMC YOTYT, T.c. XOrha Yake €CTb TOCYRApCTBeHHadA
nporpamMma, TOCyKapcTBeHAad HHMIIMaTIBa (padoTa ¢
6exennamH, paboTa ¢ MMBAMMIAMH, C IPECTapeNbivy),
M xax 6B Be XBaTacT PYK Y TOCyAapCTBa, He XBaTaeT
HOBLIX METOMMK — TOrAa OHO obpamaetca k Cotosy
HHBATHOOB, X KemcxoMy ¢opymy, k CounanbRo-
3KONOTHIECKOMY COI03Y M NpeanaraeT: MEl BaM
mopyvaeM 3To CiclaTh, BOT BaM KOHTPAKT.
KoHTpaxT 3akmovaercd Tak xe, KaX ecIM OH 3aKo-
qancd 611 ¢ Typenxoi GUPMOA AN PEMONTA 3M3HUA
MIPMH; TaK ke 3aKmoTaeTcd KOHTpakT ¢ Corosom
HHBAUTHAOB JJIl OCYMECTBICHMA KOHKPETHOM CONH-
anbROA nporpammul. Ho npu atoM pasmiua B Tom,
9TO 3TO eCTh He COACPKAHMC OpraAH3alHH, HC
nepekaTxka B Heé KAKMX-TO JEHEr Ba OONICP:KaHHE
IITAHOB ONarOTBOPHTEALHOCTH, a OTBETCTBEHHLIC
OTHOMICHMSA IOPHAMYCCKUX MM, Y KOTOPHIX €CTh
COBCpINCHAO kKOHXPCTHaR mpaBoBas dopma 3THX
OTHOILOCHHA. 3aech COBCPIIICHHO HOBLIC PpaMiH
OTHOILICHMA MEKIY TFOCYNapcTBOM ¥ obuiecTpen-
BHM ofbeNHBCHHEM.

BoT, ecm roBOpHTL XpaTko, T¢ BROBHIC BO3-
MOXCHOCTH, KOTOPHE IPEXOCTABAACT 3akOR 06 06-
DICCTBCRHLIX 00 beAHHCHMIX. Lot

— TS T~

8



4185

npoexm

3AKOH
POCCUNCKOK GEAEPALUM

“ 0 rocygAPCTBEHHOM COLMANBHOM 3AKA3E “

Cratbn 1. npé,qme-r perynupoBaHus

Hacrommnmit 3axom ycramasnmBaer obmEe DpaBOBLI¢ H IKOHOMHEYGCKHe NPEHIANE B MONOMKCHES
dopunpopanns, paMemenas R HCOONHEHAS HEA KOHTPakKTHOH (ZorocBopHO#) OCHOBe 3aKaloB Ha
COIMANLHEIE OpOrpaMMu A% TOCYRBPCTBEHHRIX HYARX DOPCAUPHNTHAME, OpPIaHHIAMEAME X
YYPOXACHRAME He3aBRCAMO oT ¢opu cofCTBEHEOCTH, PACTIONOXEHNEIMHE HA TEPPHTOPRE Poccmiickoi

QDenepamun.

CraTbf 2. 3akoHOAaTEeNbCTBO O rOCYAapPCTBEHHOM COUMaNbHOM
3akKaae,

3axoRonaremscTBo Poccmiickodl (PepepauHd .0 TOCYASpPCTBEHHOM CONMANLHOM 38Kaje COCTOHT B3
HACTOSIETO 3aKOHa, APYTUX 3aKOHOJRTEMLEHX AKTOB, IPHHEMACMHX B COOTBETCTBHE C KorcraTyrmett

Poccnfickod Penepanmm.

Cratbs 3. locynapcTBeHHblif couyManbHbii 3aKa3.

FocynapcreeruLii commamamif 38xa3 - 3TO MEXAHEIM PEANHIANEER 3axay, HAIPABNICHHLIX HA PEMICHHE
CODHANLHO IHRUHMHIX OpOGIEM. MEXTOCYRAapCTBEHROrO, (EACPANLHOrO, PErHOHMANLHOrO B YPOBHA
MECTHOI'O CaMOYNpPAaBICHRS, ONpeACIAeMEIX CONHANLERIME NPOTPRMMAMH,

Tocynapersemuriit conmansanit 3aXa3 ofecnemractes 3a cuer G10LXErAMX cpelcTE B BHeGIOmKeTIRIX

HCTOYEHKOB, DPABACKAEMEIX N peIIeHHY COMBATLHO JHAYHMEIX npoGneu.

Crartbsa 4.'rocy,qapc1'aeﬂublﬁ 3aKa3ymK.

Oprammianuio paGoTh IO BLITONHEHHIO PEIHORANLHLIX B YPOBHS MECTHOTO CaMOYOpaBIeHRS NEJICBRIX

UpOrpaMM  ObecHEYHMBAIOT TrOCYABPCTBCHNLIC 3JBKATUHKH, ONPEACNIEMHC OpraBaMy yupapneEns
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COOTBETCTBYIOIIIBX ypomm‘i. VYxajaunnie TOCYABPCTBEHHLIC 3AXKAIYMKH SBAMOTCH OTBETCTBCHHLIMH a2

BHIONHEHAE MefEBLIX MPOrPAMM B 06eceyen e rocyIapCTBeRHRIX HYXA.

Bumomuesme MexrToCynapcTBeHEHX M deRepamsBEIX " pencBmx gporpaMu  ofecnevmmaroT
rocynapmetmué 3JaKaIyEKH, onpelenteuie [IpapATennerBon Poccmiickolt Pencpanmm.

Tlocynapcreenui Jaxasumk obecmeydBaeT UOAPANYEKA (HHAHCOBLIMH CPENCTBAMH ANA DEANMHIALEM

TocyaapCcTYBEHHOTO KORTPAKTA B COOTBECTCTBEH € YTBEDXACHHEIMHE NENCBRIMA NIPOTPAMMAMHA.

31 roCynapcTBeHHEIM 3aKAIYMKOM 3aKpelNAeIcs NPaBO KOHTPOAS 33 HeNeBHM HCOONBIOBAHIIM

¢danaRCOBLIX H MATepHANLAHX CPEACTB, BHUIENYEMBIX HA OCYIIECTBAECHHE TOCYNAPCTBEHHOIO

CONHANLEOrO J3AKAIA.

CraTtbe 5. I'ocyaapcTBeHHBII NOAPANYHK.

FocynaperBeREEle DOAPAMMMKA - TPeAUPHSTHA, YYPEXJCHHE H OPIaHHIAIAN, He3aBHCAMO OT HX
oprammanaonHo-npasoBo dopumt H dopuH coberBeEmocTm, srmommmiomme pafort Mo
TOCYyNapCcTBCHHOMY COMHANNBHOMY 3aXaly Ha OCHOB€ I'OCYAapCTBCHHOI'C KOHTPAKTa € roCyXapCcTBCHHLIMA

JarKaIyEKaMH.

Noppaxnnm rocysapcTBeHEOro CONMANEHONO 3aKasa (QaNet - NOADANYHKE), OUpeACNAeMHE -
Pe3ynbraTaM KOBKYpPCa SBIMIOTC HEMOCPEACTBeEHEIMH HCIIOMHATENIMY IOCYAaPCTBEHHOTO 3aKaa.

Cratba 6. Ilopanox dunancipoBanns rocyIapcTBEHHOr0 COLMAILHOID

3aKa3sa.

QduBancHpoBaEne rocyAapCTECHHEOTO COMRANLHOIO 3aKa18 OCYMIECTRIZETCA B defepamEoro Gomxera
TYTeM BLUIENCHRS CPEACTB FOCYA3PCTBEEHEIM JAKAIYRXAM, )
Cpencrsa, sunnayEsaeMbple FOCYapCTBCHHLIME JAKAIMAXAMEA HOJPSAYAKAM NpPEXHATHAYAIOTCH TONBKO

JNg BO3MCIICHUS JATPAT, CBIIAHHLIX ¢ BHNOMHCHNEM TOCYIAPCTBEHEEOr0 COIAANLEOID JAKATA,
TIpE yTBepXNcHER MeRTOCY/IapCTBEHELIX, heACPANLHLIX, PETRORANLHRIX B MECTHEIX NENEBEIX IporpaMu,

B TAKXE YiepeyHed JpPYTHX TroCYNapCTBEEHBIX HYXJ TOCYAAPCTBCEHLIM JAKASYAKAM BLIIENSIOTCK

HeoGxoMEMble hAHABCOBLIE CPENCTBa, BIUIOYAN BATIOTHHE.

CraTba 7. Buas! rocynapcTReHHOro cOUNANLHOTO 3aKca3a.
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B cOOTBETCTBRA €O CTPYXTYpoil OPraNOB rocyAapcrBeHHON0 yupasnesnd B OojxeTHrM ycTpoHcTBOM
Poccuiicxof Denepamus YCTaHABNEBANOTCE TPHE YypoBHR <¢opuMupoBamms B pajMemeHdd
FOCYAAPCTBCHERIX COMHANBHRIX 38K2308:

e ans $pexepaTBREIX TOCYAaPCTBCERBIX BYR;

* % PETHORANLHLIX TOCYAAPCTBERHEIX BYKA cyGbextos Poccmifcroii denepamem;

® JUI HyAA MCCTHOIO CaMOYHpABIeHHd.

CTaTtbn 8. DopMUpoOBaHue rocyfapCTBeHHOrO COUUANbHOTO 3aKasa.

ITpoexTHl rocyAapcTBEEHOIO COMHANLEOIO 3AKR12 B COOTBETCTBHEH C NOPSIKOM, ONpeXeNdeMhIM
[pasaremncroM Poccmickod Pemepammu,  paspabarhiBaloTcd TOCYAApCTBEHHBIMH IAKATHKAME
COBMECTHO C TOCYAADCTBCHHBLIMH ODIEHAMH COOTBCICTBYIOUIEND YPOBHS, OCYDICCTBILLON! .MM
TOCYRapPCTBERHYI0 IONHTEKY B OONAcTH CONBANLHOH NONHTEKE HR OCHOBE YTBEPANCHHREIX NENEBHIX

DpOrpaMM H ¢ Y4ETOM YCTAHOBIEHHKIX B FOCYIaPCTBeHHOM blo/IXeTe PACXOA0B RE TH UENH.

Llenesrie mporpamunl paspabarniBaoTc’ ¢ yyetoM ycnoeh# B nopsmxa ¢opumEpopamns broxxeron

COOTBETCTBYIOITAX YPOBHEH.

Mpu paspaboTxe memeBLX NporpaMM EeoOXOMEMO ofecneYmBATH COIMACOBAHHOCTh H KOMIIIEKCHOCTD
PCIueHBS MEXTOCYAAPCTBERHLIX, (eNePANbHbIX, PETROBANbELIX ¥ MECTHRIX COMBANLERIX NpobneM.

_ ‘
Paspabotxa MeaTOCysapcTBeREEX (B kKOTOpEIX yyactsyer Poccmiickas ®emepamms) ¥ denepamnHeIX
LeNEeBLIX IPOrPaMM OCYINECTBAACTCE OPTAHAMHE FOCYARpPCTBCHHEOrO ynpasnerus Poccmiickolt Mepeparunt,
onpenensentide [lpaseTemmcrBoM Poccmiickoli Penecpanss, PperHOHANBHRIX HeNeBRIX OporpaMM -
OpraNaM¥ yIpaBfieHRs CyOBEXTOB Poccnicxoé Denepane @ MYHHUHNANLBERX NOENCBHIX OPOrpaMM -

Opra"HaMpy MeCTHOr0 caMOyDpaBICHRL,

Tlopanox papaboTka A peaTHIAIER MEXTOCYAAPCTBEHHLIX B HecpaNbHLIX NEeNCBLIX NPOTPaMM, & T Ke
nepeyent RpYTEX denepambHEX TOCYAaPCTBEHERX HY®R, ycTaHasimBaerct [IpasrramscTeon Pocemickoi
enepatnn; pPerHORANLELIX MeNEBHX NPOIPAMM B IEPEYCHL APYTHX PErAOHANLHLIX IOCYAAPCTBEBHRIX
ByXJ] - OpTaHaME ympasineHHS cyObexToB Poccmlfickolf (enepamms; MeCTHMX NeneBHIX HNporpaMM H

uepeucHb MEeCTHRIX FOCYAAPCTBCHHKIX HYX] ~ OPIAaBEaMH MECTHOIO CaMOYTIpARNICHHAA.

Me=rocynapcTBerBErle B $eacpaNbELIC ICNeBHe DPOrpPAMMHI B NepeueEh XpPYTBX (elepanbHEIX
TOCYAapCTBEEHNX HYX] YrBepxpatores [ocynapersennoii [ilymoi ®enepamaoro Cobpamms Poccriicroit
Oenepamms Do mpeacrasnexmo [IpasrTemscta Poccmiicxofi Penepammy B ¢Esaucupyores 3a cyer
FOCYASpPCTBERHOID 6romxera Poccniicxof Qenepamar g 8A610IXETHLIX HCTOYHAXOB, NPHBNEKAEMEIX IS

BLINOMHCHAEL TAX IPOrpaMyu B ofccleyelRg By IO F'OCYASpCTBCHELIC FEPARTHE,

A TN AU Gy
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PersoBanbREIE Defestlc NPOrPAMME H HEpEYeHb APYTHX PCrAOHANLHEIX TOCYNSPCTBCHHHX HVKR ,
YTBEpXNAOTCE BHICOTAME OpragaMu BnacTH cybnextoB Poccamifcxkof ®enepamem mo mpeacrabncHEO
nporpaMM OpraRaMy YNpasNeHES yxa3aHHLIX cyGLexToB B (HAAHCHPYIOTCH 38 CYET COOTBETCTRYIOMIAX
6rorxeToB, 2 TarKe BACGIOKETHRIX HCTOMHEKOB, IPHAB/ICKaeMbIX UL ITHX Qened.

MecTabie nenesrie TpOrpasMMiul B MepeieHb MeCTHAIX TOCYAapCTBeHHRIX HYAl, paspaboranniie opranaMu
MECTHOrc CaMOYOPSBICHHY, YTBEPXAAIOTCE MCCTHRIME OpPraHAMY HOpeACTASHTeNLHOH BlacTH H

dARAECHAPYIOTCE 38 CYET MECTHHIX 610/UKeTOB B BHEOIODKCTERIX BCTOYHEKOB.

Cratbsi 9. PasMelleHue rocyiapcTBEHHOro COLMaNbHOrO 3aKasa.

Mopsaok npoBeieHUNA KOHKypca.

Pasuemerne rocyZapCTBEHHHX CONMAMLHLIX 32Ka30B  MPOEIBONHTCY HAa KOHKYPCHOH OcHoBe. B
KOHKYpCe NO PRIMCINSHEI0 IOCYAapCTBEHHOI0 CONMEANBHOIO 3aKa3la MOIYT OpEHMMATL yacTHe mobule
I0pHAYecKRe NHLA HEJABHCHMO OT OPrAHMIANHOHEO-IPABOBHIX HOPM, AMEIONMe MECTOHAXOXACHRES HA

TeppeETOoprE Poccuiickoll PDenepanma,

Trnosoe nonoxerne o OPOBCACHIE KOEKYpca 0 PAIMEHICHAIO MOCYyAapCTBCHHOIO COMBANLEOIO 3aXa3a

(zanee - XOAKypca) yTBEpAEAacTCY HocTapoBnerAeM [TpanuTensersa Poccuiickoit denepanan.

TloGemATema KOHKYPCOB NOMYNAIOT CTATYC MOAPSAYHKOB IOCYA3PCTBERHOIO COMEANLHOTO 3aKaja (fanee
- NOAPANMEKE) H IONIACHBAIOT C FOCYAaPCTBEHABIM J2KATYHKOM NOCYAAPCTBEHHEIA KOBTPAKT.

CraTbs 10. KOHTPaKT 0 rocyjJapcTBeHHOM COLMAanbHOM 3aKale.

locyzapcrseHHbIE EOHTPaKT - AOMOBOP, JAKMIOYACMBIH MEXIY TOCYZapCTBECHHLIM 3aKAIMHKOM H
rocyAapCTBEHHBIM NOJPSTEKOM, PErMAMEHTHPYIOLHN HX IpaBa, 0GSIaAROCTE H OTBETCTBEHHOCThL MO
BAINOMHEHHIO TOCYJAPCTBEHHOrO COMMANLEOrO 3akasa. OH perylMpyeT 3XOHOMHUYECKHE, IPABOBLIE H

OpraHRIaHOHHO-T¢XHICCKAE BJARMOOTHONICHHY CTOPOH.

Tamoebie ¢opMH R BEIM TOCYZRPCTBCHEMX XOHTPAKTOB HAa BHIONHEHME TOCYA2DCTBEHHOTO
CONEATHLEOIO 3aKa’a, HOPLAOK B YCNOBHA HX JAKMIOYCHHS H Peanusanyd onpeaensotes [IpasaTemcraon
Poccaiickoif Penepanun.

Miuenenme ycnopmdl  WIH pacTOpxeHBe rOCYAapCTBCHHOIO KOHTDAXTA OCYINECTBNeIcs IO
COImacopaRHI0 CTOPOH, od)opumlerml JOHONEHTEILHNM COITIamMeRHeM, B cryvyae pacTOpXeHUA
TrOCYynapCcTBCHHON? KOBTPEKTA, YKAIRAHRHOC COTIIAIMCHHEE NOICKET YTBECPXEICHHIO OprafgoM ympaBJCHEHY

COOTBETCTBYIONIEIO YPOBHS.
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Choophl MeXIy NOAPAMMEKOM IOCYNSPCTBEHHOTO COMMANLEOrD 3aKala H IOCYRAPCTBCHHEIM IAKATYHKOM
IPH JAKIOYCHAH, HCUOOTHEHWH, RIMEHCHHR R DPACTOPXCHRAH TOCYNAPCTBEHHHIX KOHTDAKTOB HA
BHITONHEHERE TOCYAAPCTBCHEOrO COMMANLEOrO JaKa’a, 8 Talke 0 BOIMEMICHHNH HMYINecTBeHHOro mebo
HBOro ymep6a paccMaTpRBAIOTCA B YCTAHOBNCHHOM JAXOHOM IIOPANKE CYAOM WA apSETpaxEEnM cyxom.

Ctatbsa 11. OTBeTCTBEHHOCTb 3a HeBbiNonHeHWe rocyaapcTBeHHOro

coLManbHoOro 3akaaa.

Bcro monsoTy IopRmEueckodf  OTBETCTBCHHOCTE 38 HCHCHONHEHHE HIH HeHalnexamee HCHONHEHHE
rocyapcrBENBEOro COMEANLHOrO 3aKasa Nepel TOCYARPCTBOM, B NTHIe OPraHOB €r¢ YOpaBliesHd, HeceT
rOoCyRapCTBeHHLE 3aK8IMUK, KOTOPLIA BOpABC, B MOPSIKE PErPECCHOrO Hcxa, TpeCOBATL BO3McIMCHAS

MATCPEANLHOMND, EMYIMECTBECHHONO HIIH HHOT'O ymepGa OT NOoApAMYRKA.

TocynapcrsenEt moapsAYAK BeceT OTBETCTBCHHOCTL 38 HCIONBLIOBAHEE CPEACTB, BRUENCHHEIX HA
ACNONHEHAE FOCY{aPCTBEHHONG CONEANLEONO JAKAIA B COOTBETCTBHE ¢ MOCYNApCTBeHHELIM XORTPAKTOM H

AeficTBYI0MMM 38X0HOAATeNLCTBOM Poccaiicxoil Meqepamnn.

.

CraTtba 12. Hanoroo6noxenne.

~

(PencpanbEEIME 1AKOHAME MOTYT DPENOCTABNATHCA JNBIOTH IO YIWIATE EANOrOB, TAMOXCHELIX ¥ HHEIX
cbopoB B nnaTexel R EHLIC NBrOTH NOAPLNYAKAM TOCYARPCTBEHEOIO CONHANLEOND 3aKala, ABASOITAMCS
HeOoCPENCTBEHERIMA HCIONARTENMH paboT.

[lo pemreamo opramoe Bnacte cyGbexToB Poccmiickoff @enepamms H MecTHOIO CAMOYNPABICHEL, B
Tpexenax HX XOMIECTEHIHE, HENOCPEACTBEHELIM ucnom-r;:nm roCYAapCTBCHHOIO COMHALROID 3aKAlR

MOIyT GLITh IPENOCTABNEHL! HANOTOBEIC B HALIC ILIOTHL, |
Cratba 13. BBenenite 3aKona B neiicTnie.

B Teyerme 1995-1996 ronor paspaborarts B yTBEpARTS:
“Ilonoxenre o mopamxe pa3paboTKH rocyXapcTBEEHOTO CONMANLHOTO JaKasa”
“TlonoxeHRe 0 NPOBEJCHEE KORKYPCOB OPH PaIMeieHEA NOCYAapCTEERBONO COMMANLHOTO 3aKa3a”

“Ilonoxenne o rocylapcTBeHHOM KOHTPAXTE Ha BLINONHEEHAE CONMANLHOrD 33Ka1a"
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depepanbHblii 3akoH oT 11 aerycta 1995 r. N 135-®3
QO HnaroTBOpUTEnbLHOI [EATENLHOCTN U 61aroTBOPUTENbHLIX
opraHusaunax”
TipunaT FocynapcTeeHHon JymMon 7 viona 1995 ropa

Ctates 1. BnaroTBopuTensHas ResTensHOCTL

Moa 6naroTBOPUTENLHON OEATENLHOCTLIO NOHWMAEETCs A0OPOBONbHAR AEATENLHOCTh
rpaxpaH v lopuoMdeckux  nuy N0 OeckopbICTHOW (6e3r03MesnHon WAK Ha NblrOTHbIX
YCNOBUSIX) Nepepadve rpaxnaHaMm uan I0OpUAKHMECKUM NuuaM WUMyulecTsa, B TOM 4ucne
[EHEXHBLIX CPEACTR, BGECKOPLICTHOMY BbiNONHEHWIO PaBoT, NPEAOCTABNEHNIO YCAYr, OKa3aHuIo
WHOW NOAAEPXKKN.

CraTes 5. YuacTHuku OGnaroTBOpuUTENbHOW OERTEeNbHOCTH
BnaroTBopuTtenn - nvua, ocylwecTsnsiowmne 6naroTBOPUTENbHLIE NOXEPTBOBAHWA B
dopmax:

HeckopbicTHOW (6E3BO3IME3QHOA UMW Ha  ALFOTHLIX  YCAOBWSX) NEpeaayn B
COOCTBEHHOCTh  WMMyWECTBa, B TOM YMCRE [OEHEXHbIX cpeacTte u (unun) obvekTos
VHTENNEKTYANbHON COBCTBEHHOCTY;

6eckopbICTHOrO (6e3BO3ME3OHOrO WAWM  HA NbFOTHLIX YCMOBUSX) HAGENEHWS npasamu
BNaneHus, NONb30OBaAHWA W pacnopsxeHus nobuimn obbexktamu npaea
co6CTBEHHOCTY;

Crtaths 11. PeopraHusauuns U nukeupauns 61aroTBOpUTENbHOW OpraHM3aumu

3. Mpw nukengaummu 6NarcTBOPUTENBHOW OPraHM3aumMv ee WMYLWECTBO, OCTaBLUEecs
nocne ynosneTeopeHns TpeboBaHWA KpeaUTOPOB, UCNONL3YETCs Ha GNaroTBOPUTENLHLIE Lenw
B NOPsAKe, NPefyCMOTPEHHOM YCTABOM, UM MO PELUEHUIO MMKBUOALMOHHOA KOMUCCUKN, ECAn
NoOpPSAOK WUCNONL30BAHUA UMYLWECTBa ONaroTBOPUTENLHOW OPraHuM3aumMm He NpenyCMOTPEH B
ee ycTase.

Crates 12. JeaTensHoCTh GNaroTEOPUTENLHOW OpraHKu3auumn

5. BnaroTBOpwuTEnbHaaA o0OpraHM3aumMna He Bnpase pacxonoBaTs CBOW Cpenctsa w
UCNONb30BaTh CEOE UMYLLECTBO ONS NOAAEPXKKW NONUTUNECKUX NapTUA, [BUXKEHWA, rpynn w
KamnaHun.

CtaTtes 13. ®unuans: ¥ NnpeACTaBUTENbCTBa ONaroTEOPUTENLHOA OPraHM3aumnm

3. ®unnansi v NPEACTaBUTENBCTBA HE ABNRIOTCH IOPUONYECKUMU TNULLAMU, HARENRIOTCH
MMYLECTBOM  CO34aBLIEn wx  OnaroTBOPUTENLHOW OpraHM3aumMei w JeACTBYIOT Ha
OCHOBaHWK YTBEPXAEHHbLIX €10 MONOXEHWA. WMywecTso &unnanos u npeactaBuTensCTs
YYUTBIBAETCH Ha ux OTAEeNsHOM GanaHce v Ha GanaHce cosgaswett ux GNaroTBOPUTENLHOW
opraHusauvu,

Cratea 15. WMcTOYHMKM ¢dopmupoBannus umywectsa OGnaroTBOPUTENbLHOM
opraHu3auumu

WUCTOYHMKaMu (HOPMUPOBaHUS nMmyLIecTBa 6NarOTBOPUTENLHON OPraHu3auwu MoryT
ABNATLCA:
B3HOCH! y4peguTeneit 6naroTROpUTENLHON OpraHu3auuy;
YNEHCKWE B3HOCH! (ans 6naroTBOPUTENbHbLIX OPraHu3auuii, OCHOBAHHLIX Ha YNEHCTBE);

World Learning, Financial Management
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6naroTBOPUTENbHLIE NMOXEPTBOBAHUA, B TOM MUCNE HOCRWMWE UENesof xapakTep
(6naroTBOPUTENLHLIE MPaHThi), NPEAOCTABNAEMbIE rPAXAaHaMKU WU IOPUANHECKVMMU NULAMU B
DEHEXHOM UNin HaTyPanLHON GHOPME;
[0X0Abl OT BHEPEANM3ALMOHHLIX ONepaumin, BKNIOYaR AOX0Abl OT LUeHHbIX Bymar;
NOCTYNNEHNA OT AEATEMBHOCTU NO NPUBNEMEHWIO PECYPCOB (NPOBEAEHME Kamnauuii no
npuaneyeHun GnaroTsopurenen U AOBPOBONLLEB, BKMOYAR OPraHU3auvio pasBneKaTenbHbiX,
KYNbTYPHbLIX, CNOPTUBHbIX N WHLIX MACCOBbLIX MEPONPUATUA, NpoBeneHne kamnauuir no copy
6naroTROPUTENBHBIX MOXEPTBOBAHUIA, NPOBEAEHWE NOTEPEA W  ayKUMOHOB B COOTBETCTBMMU C
3aK0OHOAATENLCTBOM Poccuiickon @egepauun, peann3aumnio MMYLLECTBa W NOXEePTBOBaHWRA,
nocTynnewmx oT BnaroTeopuTeneit, B COOTBETCTBUN C UX NOXENAHUAMM);
JLOX0Abl OT PA3PEWEHHON 3aKOHOM NPEANPUHMMAETENBCKOWN AERTENBHOCTY;
noctynnenws u3  oenepansHoro Oiopxerta, 6Biwoaxetos CyGbexkToB POCCWUIACKONR
denepaumnu, MECTHbIX GI00XETOB 1 BHEGIOAXETHLIX HOHAOB;
[OX0Abl OT AEATENbHOCTU XOIAWCTBEHHLIX ODWECTB, Y4PEXAEHHLIX BNaroTBOPUTENLHOM
opraHusauuen;
Tpya Ao6posonsues;
UHbIE HE 3anpeuwleHHble 3aKOHOM UCTO4YHNKN.

Cratha 16. UMywecTso 61aroTEOPUTENBHON OpPraHM3aunmn

1. B coBCTBEHHOCTM MK Ha UHOM BELLHOM Npase GNaroTBOPUTENLHON OPraHmaaumu MoryT
HaxoOWUTLCA: 343HWURA, COOPYXeHus, OOOpPYAOBaHwWE, AEHEXHble CPEACTBa, UeHHbie BGymary,
MHPOPMaUMOHHBIE  PECYPChl, Opyroe WMyulecTBO, €CnM  MHOE He npeaycMOTPEeHOo
denepansHbiMY 3aKOHaMK; PEe3yNbTaThl UHTENNEKTYANbHON AEATENbHOCTH.

2. BnaroTsopuTENBbHANA OPraHN3auUua MOXET COBEPLATL B OTHOWEHUW HAXOASIWMErocs B ee
coBCTBEHHOCTU MW HA MHOM BELLHOM NPaBe UMYIECTBA Nobble CASNKN, HE NPOTUBOPEYaLInE
3aKoHopaTensCTey Poccuickon ®epnepauvu, yCcTaBy 3TOW OpraHmzauumn, noXenaHusm
6naroTsopuTens.

3. BnaroTeopwTensHasa opraHv3auvs He BNpase WCNONs30BaTh HMa  onnaty Tpyda
aoMUHUCTPaTMBHO-YNpaBneHueckoro  nepcoHana 6Honee 20 NPOUEHTOB MHAHCOBLIX
CpeacTe, PacxoAyeMuix 3TOM OpraHvsaumein 3a GUHAHCOBLIA ron. LaHHOe orpaHvueHue He
PacnpocTpaHseTca Ha ONNaTy TPyha Nuvu, y4acTeylowmx B peanusauvu BnaroTBopuTEeNnsbHbLIX
nporpamm. '

4. B cny4ae, ecnu 6naroTsopuTeEneM unM GnNaroTBOPUTENLHOW NPOrPaMMmon He
yCTaHOBNeHo wHoe, He menee 80 npoueHTos 6GnarOTBOPUTENLHOrO NOXEPTBOBaHWA B
AeHexHon popme A0NKHO ObiTh MCNONL30BAHO HA ONaroTBOPUTENLHLIE LEAN B TeYeHue roga
C MOMEeHTa nonyyeHus OnaroTBOPUTENLHONM  OpraHu3aumein 3TOr0  NOXEPTBOBaHWA.
BnaroTtsoputensHbie NOXepPTBOBaHUA B HATYPaNbLHOA GOpMe  Hanpasns\ioTCR  Ha
BnaroTeopuTenbHbie LEnn B TE4EHUE OOHOMO rOfa C MOMEHTa UX NONYHEHWUS, ECNU WUHOE He
ycTaHoBneHo 6Gnarotsoputenem unmn 6naroTEOPUTENLHOR NPOrPaMMOii.

5. UMywecTso BnaroTBOpUTENLHOA Oprasu3auvm He MoxeT BuiTb nepenaHo (B dopmax
npogdaxwv, onnaTel ToBapos, paboT, ycnyr u B8 ppyrux dopmax) yipeautenam (uneHam) aTon
opraHu3aumm Ha Gonee BhiroAHLIX ANS HUX YCNOBURAX, YEM ONA Apyrux nvuu,.

PenepanbHbiii 3akoH oT 19 Mas 1995 r. N 82-03
"06 obuwecTBeHHbIX 00beauHeHnax”

MpuHsT NocynapcTeeHHor Oymoi 14 anpens 1995 rona

Cratbs 25. Peopranvzauns obuwecteseHHoro o6senouHeHun

...Mmyuwiecteo  ofwecTtBeHHOro  ofweanHeHus, ABNAIOWErocs PUOMYECKUM  NNLOM,
nepexoanTt nocne ero peopraHmsauvn K BHOBb BO3HUKWAWM IOPDUMANYECKUM Nvuam B noprake,
NpenycMOTpeHHOM [paxaaHckuM KO4ekCcoM Poccuickon Mepepauum.

[ 18]
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Cratha 26. Jinkenpauus obwecTeenHoro o6seauHerHuna

I/lMyL.U.ECTBO. OCTaBLIEECR B PE3ynkbTaTe NuksmMaauvn OBWECTBeHHOro o6beauHeHns,
nocne ynoBneTBOpPeHua TpebGoBaHwiA KPEOMTOPOB HAaNPaBNSeTCA Ha Uenu, NpeaycMOTPEeHHbIE
ycTtaBom ofulecTBeHHoro ofbveanHernns, nnbo, ecnu OTCYTCTBYIOT COOTBETCTBYIOWMNE pasfnens:
B ycTaBe o6uwecTeeHHoro OO0beOWHEHWS,- Ha uenu, Oonpenensembie pPeWweHueM Ccbves3na
(xoHdepeHuun) nnu ofilero cobpanna O Avkeugaumm 0BWecTBeHHOro ofveanHenus, a B
CropHLIX CRy4asx - peweHuem cyna. Pewenune 06 ncnone3osBaHun OCTABWIEroCH MMYLWECTBA
NySAUKYETCR AMKBUOAUMOHHOW KOMWCCUMER B NeyYaTtw.

Ctatba 30. Co6CTBEHHOCTh OBLWEeCTREHHOro 06beaUMHEHUS

ObwecTeeHHoe obObeauHeHne, SBNAIOWEECH IOPUAUNECKUM NTMLOM, MOXET UMETL 8
COOCTBENHOCTN 3EMEeNbHBIE Y4aCTKW, 343HWA, CTPOEHWS, COOPYXEHWA, XUAUWHLIA $OoHA,
TpaHcnopT, ofopynoeaHne, WHBEHTaPb, WMYLLECTBO KyNbTYPHO-NPOCBETUTENLHOrO M
0300POBMTENLHOMD HA3HA4eHNs, AEHEXHbIE CPEACTBA, akumu, Apyrue ueHHbie ByMaru n uHoe
UMYLIECTBO, HeoBx0auMOe Aans MaTepuansHoro ofecnedveHus NEesTeNbLHOCTU  3TOro
ofwecTBeHHOro 06beiMHeHUs, yKasaHHOW B ero ycrase.

B cob6cTBeHHOCTV OGLWECTBEHHOrO 06bEANHEHUA MOrYT TAKXKE HAXOOUTLCR YYPEexXAeHWs,
nanaTenscTea, CpencTea MacCoBoW MHGOPMauuK, cosnasaemsie U npuobpeTaeMsie 3a cueT
CPEACTB AaHHOro O6IWECTBEHHOrD 06beUHEHNA B COOTBETCTBUM C €0 YCTABHBIMU LENAMMU.

DefepanbHeiM 3aKOHOM MOMYT YCTaHaBNMBATLCS BWAbI UMYWECTBa, KOTOpbie Mo
coo6paxeHnsM rocyaapcTeeHHoOW n obwecTeeHHon Ge3onacHOCTM nuBO B COOTBETCTBUM C
MexpyHapoaHsiMu  aorosopamu  Poccuiickon  Depepauvu  HE  MOMYT  HaxoguThCs B
CO6CTBEHHOCTM OBLECTBEHHOrO 06beanHEHUS.,

O6uiecTBeHHbie OHALI  MOTMYT  OCYLWECTBNATL CBOK AGATENsHOCTb Ha OCHOBE
DOBEPUTENLHOrO YNPaBAEHUS. .

Co6CcTBEHHOCTL O6LWECTBEHHOr0 06LeANHEHNA OXPAHAETCR 3aKOHOM.

Cratest 31. Mctounmxu GopMupoBaHMs umyllecTesa o6UIeCTBEHHOro 06beauHeHns

UmywiecTeso obwecTeeHHOro o6beanHeHus GOPMUMPYETCS Ha OCHOBE BCTYNUTENLHBLIX U
HYNEeHCKUX B3HOCOB, ecnn ux ynnara npeaycMoTpeHa yCcTasOM; nOGDOBOIIbelX B3HOCOB U
noxepTBosaHuﬁ; nocwnne»—mﬁ OT NPOBOAUMBIX B COOTBETCTBUMU C yCTasOM Oﬁu.leCTBEHHOI'O
O0LEAVHEHUS NEeKUWA, BbLICTABOK, NOTEPEH, ayKUMOHOB CROPTUBHLIX WU MHBIX MEPONPUSTHIA;
AOX0A0B OT NpeanpuHUMAaTENLCKOM  AesTensHocTM  OofBwecTBeHHOro  o6beguHeHus;
FPKRAHCKO-NPAaBOBLIX CASN0K; BHEWHEIKOHOMUYECKON AeATEeNbHOCTH 06LLI.ECTB€HHOI’O
o6beavHenna; Apyrux He 3anpeLeHHbIX 3aKOHOM NOCTYNNEHNNA.

HORMTW-IECKME napTuu, NONUTU4HECKNE NBUXEHNA U 06LU.eCTBeHHb|e OﬁbeDMHeHWil, yCTagbl
KOTOpbIX NpeaycmaTpueaioT yyacTue 8 sbifopax, He BNpase NoNy4aTe GUHAHCOBYIO W MHYIO
MarepuanbHyio NOMOWbL OT WUHOCTPEHHbLIX rocygapcrs, ODFaHMSEuMﬁ u rpaxgaH Ha
AEATENLHOCTb, CBA3aHHYIO C FIO.D.I'OTOBKOI?'I U npoBegeHnem BblﬁODOB.

Cratba 32. Cy6bexTsl NpaBa COGCTEEHHOCTM B OBLIECTBEHHBIX OPraHU3aumnsX

CobcTBeHHMKaMU MMYLLECTBA SBNAIOTCH O6LWECTBEHHbIE OpraHv3auuy, obnapawome
npasaMu KPUAMHECKOro nuua. Kaxneii OTAENbHbIA 4neH OOWECTBEHHOW OpraHv3auumn He
UMEET npasa COOCTBEHHOCTW Ha LONK WMYLLECTsa, NPUHAANEXALWEro OBLEeCTBEHHOM
opraxHuaauuu,

B ofwecTseHnbIx OpraHM3aumsax, CTPYKTYPHbIE NOAPA3aeneHus (OTAENeHMs) KOTOpPbIX
OCYWECTBAAIOT . CBOI0 OBATENLHOCTb HE2 OCHOBE ©AMHOr0 YCTaBsa AaHHLIX OpraHvM3auui,
COGCTBEHHUKAMKU UMYWECTBA ABNAIOTCS OOWECTBEHHbIE OpraHu3aumMu B UENOM. CTPYKTYPHLIE
nogpasgeneHus  (OTAENEHUs) YyKasaHHbIX OOWECTBEeHHbIX DPraHuM3auvii MMelT npaso
ONepaTUBHOrO YNPasNeHUs MYLIECTBOM, 3aKPENAeHHbIM 332 HUMKU COBCTBEHHUKaMMU.

B obuiectBeHHbix OpraHvMsauvsx, 00beavHsIoWmMX TeppPUTOpUansHLIE OpraHvM3aumu 8
Ka4ecTBE CamoCTOsTENbHbIX CYOLEeKTOB B COKO3 (accounauuio), COBCTBEHHUKOM UMYLLECTBA,
CO30aHHOro. U (MnK) NPUOBPETEHHOro ONS MCMONL30BaHWA B WMHTEPECaxX O6WeCTBEeHHOM
opraHuM3aumu B UEenoM, SBAAETCA CO3 (accoumauun). TeppuTopuanbHbLie OpraHv3auuy,
BXOOSWME B COCTas COK03a (accoumauun) B KAYecTBE CAMOCTOSTENbHbIX CyOwLeKTos,
ABNAIOTCA COBCTBEHHUKAMWU NPUHAANEXALLEr0 M UMYLLIECTBA.

L



Cratba 33. CybGbexThl npasa coOCTBEHHOCTH B 06LLECTBEHHbIX ABUXEHUAX

OT UMEHN OBLLECTBEHHBIX OBVXEHWIA Npasa COBCTBEHHWKA UMYLLLECTBA, NOCTYNAIOWEre B
obwecTBEHHbIE OBUXEHUA, a TaKXe CO3O4aHHOro 1 (unn) NPMOBPETEeHHOro UMW 3a cyeT
coBCTBEHHBIX CPEACTB, OCYLUECTBARIOT WX NOCTOAHHO AERCTBYIOWME PYKOBOASLUME OPraH.i,
yKasaHHbie 8 ycTasax 3Tux 0BtLeCTBEHHbIX ABUXEHUA.

Cratea 34. CyObexThi npasa coGCTBEHHOCTH 8 06LECTBeHHbIX (hoHaax

OT umenn o6liecTBeHHbX GOHA0B NpaBa COOCTBEHHMKA MMYLLIECTBa, NOCTYNaIoWero B
obuiecTeeHHble GOHOL, 8 TakKe CO303aHHOro u (unu) NpuvoBpeTeHHOro wWmu 3a cueT
COBCTBEHHBIX CPEACTB, OCYLWIECTBNADT MX MOCTOSHHO AEWCTBYIOLLME PYKOBOASWINE OPrabi,
yKa3aHHbie 8 yCTaBax 3Tux oBWwecTBeHHLIX GoHA0B.

Cratea 35. Ynpasnesne MMyecTBOM B 00LECTBEHHbIX YHPEXAEHUSX

O6WecTBEHHbIE YYPEXOEHWA, CO3f4aHHbie W dUHaHCUpyeMblie  COBCTBEHHUKOM
(cobCTBEHHUKAMU), B OTHOWEHWN 3aKPENNEHHOMD 32 HUMU MMYLMECTBA OCYLECTBARIOT NPaBo
OnepaTUsHOro YNpaBseHWa YKa3aHHbIM UMYLWECTBOM.

OO6LUECTBEHHbIE YUPEXAEHUS, SBNSIOWMNECR IOPUOUHMECKUMU NIMLEMUA WU BNagerolme
MMYLLECTBOM HAa rpase OfEepaTUBHOro ynpasneHus, MOryT ObiTb  coBcTaeHHUKamu
CO3aaHHOra w1 (Mnn) NPUOBPETEHHOro MK WUHBIMK 3aKOHHLIMUK CNocoBammn UMyLECTRA.

O6wecTseHHble YYPEXOEHNA NONYYAIOT UMYLLECTBO HA NPaBEe ONEPaTVMBHOrO ynpasneHus
OT yupeputens (yypeautener). B OTHoweEHUM yka3aaHHOro uUMywecTsa oO6LECTBEHHbIE
YYPEXAEHWS OCYUIECTBNAIOT NPasa BNafEeHWs, NONb3OBaHWA W PACNOPAXEHWs B npegenax,
YCTEHOBREHHbIX 3aKOHOM, B COOTBETCTBUW C UX YCTABHLIMU LUENSMU.

Yupeoutens (yypeputenn) - coBCTBEHHUK (COGCTBEHHWKM) WMYWIECTBE, MEepedaHHoro

OOWECTBEHHBIM  YYDEXOEHUAM, BNPaBe W3bLbATb MW3AWLWIHEE, Hewcnonsayemoe nmbo
WCNONMb3YEMOE HE MO HA3HAYEHWIO WMYWECTBO M PacnopsAuTeCs UM MO CBOEMY
YCMOTPEHWIO.

Mpu nepexope npasa COGCTBEHHOCTN HA UMYLLECTRO, 3aKPEnNeHHOEe 338 OBLEeCTBEeHHLIMM
YYPEXOEHUAMM, K OPYroMy MWLy OaHHLIE YYPEXOEeHWs COXPaHsioT Npasd OnepaTMBHOMD
YNPaBAEHWS YKa3aHHbiM umywecTsoM. OO6wecTseHHbIe YHPEXOEHUS HE BOPaBE OTHYXAATh
WU MHbIM CNOCOBOM pPacnopaxaTbCs 3aKPENAEHHBIM 33 HAMW UMYLLECTEOM W MMYWECTBOM,
NPrMoGPETEHHBIM 33 CHeT AEHEXHbLIX CPEACTB, BhiOENEHHbIX UM NO CMETEe, 6e3 NUCbMEHHOro
paspeweHna cobcTeeHHMKa.

Ecnn B COOTBETCTBUM C Y4PEANTENLHBIMU LOKYMEHTAMWN OGLLECTBEHHBIM YYPEXKOSHNAM
NpepocTaBneHo  NpaBO OCYWECTBARTE NPUMHOCAWYIO AOXOOb AEATENsHOCTh, TO A0X0A4b:,
Nnony4eHHLIE OT TakoW AEATENbHOCTM, U NPUOBPETEHHOE 338 CYET 3TUX AOXOLOB WMYWECTBO
NOCTYNAIOT B CAMOCTORTENbHOE PacnopsikeHne OBWECTBEHHLIX YYPEXAEHWA N YYUTLIBAIOTCR
Ha oTaensHoM Banance.

O6WecTBEHHbIE YYPEXAEHNA OTBEYAICT NO CBOWM OBGA3aTENbCTBAM HAXOLAWMMUCH B WX
PacnopsaXeHun AeHEeXHhIMW Ccpeactsamu. [lpM WX HEAOCTaTOYHOCTM CyGCMAMPOBaHHYIO
OTBETCTBEHHOCTb MO 06sA3aTennCTBamM OOWECTBEHHOrO YYPEXAEHWSs HeceT COOCTBEHHMK
COOTBETCTBYIOLUEND UMYLLECTEA.

Crates 36. CyGbexTni npasa coGCTBEHHOCTHM B oOpraHax oOGWECTBeHHOR
CaMonenTenbHOCTH

CyGvekTamu npaBa COGCTBEHHOCTM B OpraHax OGLIECTBEHHOW CaMOLEATENbHOCTM
ABNSIOTCA CaMu OpraHbl o6LECTBEHHOW CaMOonenTenbHOCTH, 3a KOTOPbIMU noCne wux
rOCYnapCTBEHHOW perMcTpauMu 3aKpennsioTCs Npasa  wpUAMNECKOro nuvua. OpraHsi
O6LEeCTBEHHON CaMOAEATENIBHOCTU MOTYT BbiTh COGCTBERHUKAMW MMYLLIECTBA, CO3AAHHOM0 U
{nnn) NpMoBPEeTEHHOro UMK MHLIMKU 38KOHHBIMKU CNOCOGamu.
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Fnasa |. OBUMHE MNOJIOXEHKS

~ Crarsa 1. IpeaMer Dpery-
auponghug M obascrs Iekor-
BMR BRCTOAIIETO PeNepalb-
HOTo 38X0ED

1. Hacroaupa: Pexepaib-
HLIR 3aKOoR OoUpelelfer Ipa-
Bopoe DOXOMMENHe, DNOPARCK

HeXOMMEPTIecKiry = OpraEuaa-
Wt XAX OPHIDfTIEcKHT JIHI,

A

CORPAHNAIK. yiry. COSHABIEMEIL.
Ha TeppHTOpIL. . POCCMACKOR
Pefepalsy, noCroiLry, NoC-
KOXbKY yHOEe He YCTS8BOBIEHO
HacToAunod DenepabEMM
saxouoM. ¥ wuBMy erepaxn-
HEIMM JBKOHAMK, .

3. Hacroamuot QeRepadb-
HEUE 3aX0 He pacHpOCTPaEdA-
ercqa A norpeduTenbokKe KO-
onepathEsl. JegTelbROCT: OO
TpefUTENLCKNX — KOOORPATH-
BOB DEIYAMPYeTcR HopMaMH
Tpa’iIaHcrarg xofexca Foc-
CHMACKOX PeXepailyi, IaKROH3-
MY o TOTPeSHTENbCKEX KOO
MepaTHBAX, MHELIMY 33KOE3IMA .
K IPaBOBhLIMM ANTAMY,

Crarpa 2. HexoumepgecKkad
ONCAEKIATHA

1. HexoMmepdeckog oOpra-
HK3AUMEH HABIASTCA Opradn-
salyed, He KMelmaa HIBIe
yoyue NpHObUIy p KAUECTEE
OCHORMOj Heny CBOeR:  ped-
TeBLHOCTH 3 He Dacnpenens-
10lag NONYYeHHylo DpHiBIbL
MeX Iy FIACTHMKAMIL

2. Hexoumepgeckue Opra~
HMIALMH MOryT CO3IJABATHLN
Llsg HOCTHIKEHUSA couxaib-
HEIX, 6RarOTBOPHTEIbHLIX,

. KYTLTYPEMIX, 00paloBaTelb-
HBIX, BaydHRIX y yOpaBileH-
yeckyX lejeir, p uenfx 0X-
PaHbI 3X0POBLA rpamciaH, pas-
BHTHR DU3INYECKON KYIBTYPbI

R cROPT3, YRORBJILTRODEHUA
-AYXOBHBIX XM JMNRIX RBexaTe-
PHATBHRIX norpebuocren

-7 rpamzad, JAOATH OpPas, 3a-

KOHESRIX HETEDECOB rpaIaE #

3auMa OPHIWIECKON  DOMO-
oM, 8 TaKame 3 KHAIX UeIAX,
HarpasiedHBIX Ha JOCTHIKe-
Hie Obmect Goar, x -
3. HexoumepTecrHe ODTaM-
341My MOrYT CO3NABATLSA 5
dopue OGMECTBENHMX  MIH
PeAHTHOSHBIX ~ OpraHmdalnk
(o6 benueBRuR), RexoMmepde-
CK¥X DapTHEDPCTrB, yYpedie-
1ui, ARTOHOMELIX HeKOMMep-
weeKUX OPraHudalmyE, Ccoou-
ATLEMKX, GJ4aroTBODKTEILHAIX
¥ wERX QOHJOB, ACCOLIMAITAK
¥ COI030B, B TRXMKe B APYIHMX
dopMax, npenycMoTpeEnX
enepaAMLELIMK MKORAMHM,,
Cramex 3. IIpanonoe nodo-
epms HEXOMMEDTECKOR Opra-

1, HexoMuepieckayg Opra-
WGADMS, CIMTaercR Co3raH-
HORX KAX IOPHMIAMILCKOe JAHUIO
C MOMeHTa €€ IOCYXAPCTBeH-
HOW DerxcYPalnuy » YCTasoB-
JeNToM SaXOHOM DOpaxxe,
yeer B cOGCTRENHOCTH KIX B
onepaTHBHOM FUpaBALERHA
oGocobaexnoe MMYIIECTBO, T~
pevaer (3a pCKMOULEKER T~
PeKIeEKK) N0 cBOMM oSa3a-
TerbCrBAM  2THM  HMyImec™
pOM, MOXer Or CBOEro ¥MeEX
puobperaTs M OCYMECTBIATL
¥MYIOecTBeHHRIe ¥ BeMMYIE-
creéEMRle DpaBa, Hecry oba-
3gHEOCTH, GArTh HCTION ¥ OT-
BeTUMKOM B CY3e,

HexoMMepaecKal OpPragu-

 2anuf NOIWKER MMeTh CAMO-

crosTTeNbERIE  OanaMc | MaIM

cuery.

2. HexoMuepmecxas Opra-
HU3AOKR CcO3RaercH Ges orpa-
N(IEEHKA cDOKE JexTellbBOCTH,
ecly muOoe He YCTAHOBIERO
yUpeANTEILHRINKY — ROKYMEeR-
TAMY HeROMMEDUeCKOK Opra-
HAIANNHS.

3. HexoMMepeckag ORra-
RU3AIIMA plpase B YCTAHOB-
neEHoM pOPSIXe QTKDLIBATDL
cqers, B §BEXAX Ba TEDPHTO-
pH® Pocouiickof Denepainos
3 3@ OpeXenaMyu ee TEPPHTO-

PHH. . . 3 Y

4 HexoMxepIecrkan. oOpra-
BHIANKA JOLeeT DETATH C DOI-
HLM  BAHMEEOBAXEHEW STOMN
BexOMMEDPHecKok- .OPTaHpla-
UK HA PYCCKXOw AUBIKE, -

HexoMuepiecras OpramK-
33ID4R BIDABE MMETS ITaMIrnat
® GIanKy -co: CBOMM mainge-
BOBAHNMeNM, & TAXKNe-33Derucr-

~ PHPOBAREYIC 'S YCTABOBT ey~

EOM DOPARNe IMGIEMT.

" MeHTaMu

. KOit OPraRusaliny yR8IbIBaIOT-

' KyMeRTax,

Crutna 4, HamMenoBagEe x
MECTO- BAXOZNEHENE. HexXoM-
MePIeCKOR OPTREN3AIM)Y

1, HexoMuepwecran- Opra—
HHIAIMK JMeer HAMMEHOBA-
HHe, COXSDIKAMRe yXAIBHHE
Ha' eg OprasgnIamOEHO-Ipa-
BosyIo POPMY 3 xapanTep Je-
RTIbLHCCTH,

Hexoumepuecxag' oprazu-~
3amMud, HINMEeBOB3IHWE XOTO-
RO 3APErHeTPHDOBABO B YO~ -
TEHOBACHHOM NOPANKE, MMEET
HOKTIOYHTEThEge OpPaBo Ero
HMCZOTLIOBAHNA,

2. Mecro mHaxoxIenus me-
KOMMEDTECKOH OPrasx3auMH
ompenenneTCa MecTOM ee 1O
CYIApCTBEHREOR peryeTpanuy,
SCIH B COOTBETCTEMH € 33RO~ )
HOM YYPeLHTEIBLHBIMY HNOKY-
HeXoMMEDPIecKon
OpraNi3aniy He YCTAROBJIEHO
wHoe,

3. HanuuexoBasMe M Mec?o
HaAXORIEHHA  HeXOMMepuec-

C3 B ee ygpemMTenbHAIX 10—

Crates 5, Taxmass n apel-
CTRBXTEILCTRg RCROMMepte-
SRoit OPISBRKIIMAY

1. HexoMuepgecxad opra-

HU3AIKK MOXer  CO323aBaT™
$ungamsl ¥ orxPHIBATSL Npel-
CTaB¥TedbCTR; Ha TePPUTO-
puy Poccupcxoi Defepauny
B COOTBETCTEMM ¢ 3AKOHOR3- |
TeancTBop Poccwitcxon  Pe-
DepeIstn. ... .. .
~2,-PyIvagzon HexoMMepIec-
KJA ™~ 0prawusanny RBJIAeTCA
ee obocodnennce moapadjene-
Hle, paclolomensHoe pge Me-
CTa HaxoXIemEma EHexOMxep-
qecxoit opraMusamut x oc7- .
MecTsaM0Mmee Bce ee QYEX- |
UMM HXK GACTL X, B TOM THC-
Ne  HYHKINA DpeRCTABHTEIb-
cTBa.
-* 8. IIpescraBurenncTBOM HeE-
XOMMEDTECKOR - ppramH3anuK
fBJACTCH -00ocoBneHoe oA~
paaleneH¥e, xoTopoe pacno-
JIOMEHO BHE MeCry HAXOXKIE-~
HHA ReROMMeDtdeckol Opra-
Mu2anKy, IpelcTaBIAeT MH-
repechl HEKOMMEDIECKXOA Op~
TAHM3RIKN 3 OCYINecTBaAeT
UX 38Ty,

4, duauan 3 ppeacTanH-
TEJILCTBg HeXoMMepIerKoH
OpraEudaAlny RBe HABAAWOTCH
IOPHAHYEeCKuM) JHLAMY, KNa-
RENOTCH MMymecTBoM CO3~
JAPMIEN X HeXoMMEDHECKOH
OPraEM3aOuy yu JeRcTBYIT
HAa OCEOBARUH YrReD KIEBHO-




ro eX nonoxeHus ¥MMTecs
Bo thuuana KIu EPEIACTABH-
TenbeTBa YIMThIBAGTCA Ha OT-
lenbuou SanaBce ¥ Ba Gana-
Ce coazaBmiery MX HEKOMMep-
YeCcKOoy OopraNusalny,

Pyxopoauresnyu PKAMATa M
TPelCTABKTENILCTEA Ha3Ha-
YHAJOTCA HeXOMMEDPSECKOo# op-
raHKsanued, ¥ AeHCTEYRDT Ha
OCHOBaHHUK JOBEDENHOCTH,
BHIIAKHOH  HEKOMMepYecko#n
opraxulanuen.

5, ©uayaz u OpeacTaBx-
TEILCTBO OCYMECTBARIOT Je-
ATENBHOCTh or MMeHM  CO3-
IABIDEH KX HEKOMMEpHecROiK
OprakK3ammy, OrBercrBen-
HOCTE ‘33 ReATeRbHOCT) CBOMX
PuaKann y HpesCTABHTEIRCT-
Ba BeCer co3ZaBIIAR X He-
KOMMeDYecKkan OPraRKaAnMa.

° TypHble,

Mnasa ll. @OPMbl HEKOMMEPYECKHKX

OPTAHM3 ALL MM

“

Cratna 6.- OUmecTBCHERIE X
DOANTNOIEBE  OPTRIENIRINA
{obpexwnenns) .

1. O6mecTseEsLINY ¥ pelXy-
THOIHAIME OPragn3anHAMHK
{obbesareHHMAMH) npPK3BAIOT
¢ J00pOBOIbELIE ofbenuEe-
A IPamIaH, 3 YCTAHOBJIEH-
‘HOM 3&KOBOM 'gopAnxe ofbe-
TMUMBIIKXCE Ba ptHoBe ofm-~
HOCTH MX KEHTEpecOB LIR YXO-
BIIETBODERHA XYXOBHLRIX MHIK
MEBIX HeMATePHATLELRX DoTpe-
GHOCTRI.

OGmecTBaHEIE ¥ pelHTHO3-
SThre opraEpu3atuy (00bemze-
HKYA) BOPaABe  OCYIOEeCTBIATH
TIPeIPHENMATETLCKTIO  XeA-
TEXLAEOCTS, COOTBETCTETIONYIO
UeNAM, LIR AOCTHMEHUR KO-
TODLIX OH}M COIRARKL,

2. YRacTHMKK (INeHL!) ob-
TIEeCTBEHNMX y PeNUIrHO3HbLIX
opraHx3annl  (ofnemarenyi)
He COXPAHIIOT ITPAB HA nepe-
‘AARHOe HMMY 3ruM Opragusa-
IUAM B COOCTBERHOCTD HMLy-
WecTed, B TOM UWHCIAe Ha
TAEHCKHe BIBOCHL ° ¥ IACTHM-~
xy (Tlermw) oSMeCcTEeHEMIX #
PETHTHOIRLIX OPre RM3aIIMiK
(ofvenynauuit) He OTBEIAWT
o 00R3aTeNnCrBaM  yXalas-
HLIX Opraexaanuit (ofbpelx-
HeHMH), & YKalaERhle Opre-
Bu3auxy (obpeguHeHHs) He
orBeqalor No obalarenber-
BaM CBOMX QJEHOE,

3. Ocobermoery OpaBoBOrO
nonoMeRyMy ofmecTBeEESLIT X
DENHIKO3HLIX  OPIRMM3IAIMNM:
(obbennBemol) omperenmiorca
HEbIMY elepadbERINK  3a-
KOHAM).

4, Opramusawssf, mOpeche-
XFIOOHe pexuryodshle DexH,
MOTYT cORMABATLCH ¥ B MELIX
$OpMax, IpeATCMOTDEEHMX
3axoHOM. - . .

Cratia 7. ®oBam

1, Xas ueneit ‘Bacroamero

IOM NPK3RaeTCR He  MMeX~
INax wNeHcTBg HeXoMMep9ec-
Kag OpraHu3alMg, ygpex-
NeHHAR TPaMEAHAMy y (MITH)
OPHAWYECKK My IMNAMKU Ha
OcHOBE ROOPOBOILHLIX  HMF-
nlecTeeHHBIX BIHOCOR 31 Ipe-
CreXyILan COLIMATbRKlE,
GaarorsopuTensHile, —.. XY Tb-
obpasoBaTenbimle
MK MHhle OSOIecCTReRHO IToses-
Hble [IeTH.

 denepaspHoro IJAKOHy POH- |

Huymectso, nepelannoe
dougy ero yUpeaMTenaMM
(Yapemrrenen), KBJIALTCA COG-
cTBeHMOCTRI0 (POENA, VIpern-
TENY He OTBETANOT N 00A3a-
TeTLCTBA) COINARHOIO HMH
donna, 8 $OEA He ormenper
0 o0A3RTENLCTBEM cROMX YU~
peauTenesn,

2, DOHI HCUONLIYyRr HMY-
MmecTBO RNIA eney, ompele~
JeHHBIX yCTAaBOM
Doun anpase 3aHKHMAThCR
NPeIIDHHHUMATEILEKON  Jef-~

| TERRHOCTHIO, COOTBETCTEYIO~
oIeRt dTuM LenAM y HeoOxXo~
TAMOM OIS TOCTHMNKEHHA OO~
HIeCTBeHHY MNOIESHEIX IIetes,
paIM KOTOPRIX (HOHX COIMAR.
1A ocyllecrBIesuyg  Opelt-
OTPHHNMATONECKOA JeATelb-
HocT OHIn! BOpPABe COIMA-~
BaTh YO3ANCTBeHERle obmmecT-
Ba MIM yRCTBORaTh 3 ENMX.

Qoux offg3ar  eXeraXEo
oyGankonaTs orzerst o5 mc-
DOIL3OBAEWH cBoerg MMyIle-
cTEa, )

3, Iloneunrenncxiot  coser
tboBAa sKBIAETCH  OPraHOM
oERA 1 OCYUIeCTSIRer Bal-
30p 33 ReATeIsEOoCTbIO (POH-

I3, DDMEATHeM ADFTHMy- OD-

raBaMy. POHZA. DelIeEH. .- 1
ofecnedeBMeM KX HCOOoXHe-
" HKS, HCDONbICBAHMEM CPencTs
' cboBAa, coSmoneEder MOHEAOM
3aKOEORATENHCTBA. -
. IoneuureIhosyi copeT
GOEa OCYIIecTSiAey  CBOKO
- ReRTeNLHOCTL RE ofmecTses-
HBLIX.HA%AJaX,

Hopanok (QOPMHPOBARMS ¥
NeSTETLEOCTY  IONeYHTeNhb-
cxoro coBera (hoHIa onpene-
asercy yeraBoMd (oHIa, yT-
BeDKIeHHRIM ero yIpeRuTe-
DA,

Crartra 8. HexomMepgecrue
TAPpTHEPCTES

1. HexoxMepdeCKuy DapT-
HepcTBOM NODHU3BaeTcH oc-
HOBaHHag HAa TJeHCTBE  He-
XOMMepYecKag oprar{3altms,
FIpexIeHHaa rpaXianaMuy u
(MIIH) IOPHIMGECKHMHK IHMUAMA

OCYImeCTRIEHUK  JeRTEeABHO~
CTH, HANPABJEHHOR Ha mOCTH-
WMeHKe uesed, NPEAYCHMOTPEH-
HbIX IIYHKTOM 2 CTaTHH 2 Hac-

" ronmtera DegepaTbHOrC 3ax0- -

Ha.

L4 -

¢oraa. -

LA CONEMCTBHA €€ WiJerax B

14as5

Y1MYIecTBo, nepenaasHoe
HeXOMMepYyeckoMy napTHep-
CTEY elp wylemamy, ABIAeTCcA
COOCTBEXHOCTLIO APTHEPCTRA,
LreHnl HeKoMMepIeCcKaro
NapTHEPCTBA He orTBedalor mo
ero 0GA3ATeNLCTBAM, 3 ReKOM-
uepYecKoe IapPTHePCTBO He OT-
Bevaer 0 o0ASATENLCTEAM CBO-
¥X ISIEHOB.

2, Hexommepuweckoe napr-
HeDCYBO BHOpase (CYyIecTs-
IATh nPeUIPHHHMATEILCKYIO
AeATEIbHOCTh, COOTBeTCTEY-
OO0 ULIAM, XIR JoCTHMe-
R KOTODLIX OHo CO3RAHO,

3, LreHKW HEKOMMEDIECKOrO
apTReDCTSa BUpase;

YuacrEosaTy B YHpPaBnIemMu
Jegaxmy HEeXOMMeDTecxoro
‘TaorEepersa; -

moXygary HHGOPMAOMIO o
JeATeILBOCTH HeXOMMEpdec-
KOrO DAPTHEPCTBA B YCTRHOB-
JeHHOM y9YpelHTEAbHBIMY XO-
KYMeHTaMy OPAIKE; b

I cB0eMy YOMOTREHMio Bbi-
XOXK7p M2 HEROMMEPYECRONO
71apTHEpPCTBEA; .

ewIn uHoe He yCeTaHOoRBRIeHKO
enepaoHEIM 3aKOBOM HAK
YYPEIUTEIbHRMY  HNOKYMeH-
TaMy FEKOMMepYecxolo QapT~

HepCYTBa, NOXYUATL OPH BHIXO-

Ae ‘U3 BEKOMMEDTIECKOTO TapT~
HenCraa YACTb el MMYIIECcTsa
HIN CTOMMOCTD 2TOr0 MMYIe-
CTEE B OpPEeleNax CroMMOCcTH
MMYIRECTRA, nepenaxsoro
WIeHAMY — HEXOXMEPHecroro
TIaPTHEPCTBa B erg coberpes-
HOCTS, 3a MCKMOReHHEM yieH-
CKXX B3HOCOB, B NODPAIKe,
NPEAYCMOTRENHOM yIperu-
TENLHLIM)E NOKYMEHTAMYy He-
XOMMEDTIECKOrO [NapTEepCTHa;

DOJYIATL B CIydae JIMKBM-
RAaUKK HEKOMMEDTECKOrO
TaPTHEPCTBA YMacTy €rg Muy-
1ecTsa, OCTABIIENOCH nocie
pacyeTon C KPeXHMTOpaMy, nu-
Go cTonMoeTb 3T0T0 MMYmecT-
B& p mperenax CTOMMOCTH
WMYIMeCTsa, .« NepelaxEONo
LIeHAMK HeHOMMEepYecKoro
TAPTHEPCTBA B erg CcobcorBeM-
‘HOCTh, eCl¥ HHOe Re npexy-
tMoTPeHo thelepannrbiM  2a-
KOHOM WJIH YIPeXHTensHBIMY

; ROKYMENTAM)M HexoMMepygec-

Koro mapTHeperna,

4, Yney HeKOMMepYeckoro
MEPTHEPCTBA  MOMET  fSnivy
HCKTOTEH U3 Berg 50 peme-
00 OCTRIOIICXCA HNeHOE &

BEST AVAILABLE COPY

CIYIAAX 1 B [OPANKE, goTo-—— " - LT T e e

Phle  DOREXYCMOTPEHR! FIpe-
ANTeILALBIMY  AOKYMEeRTEMM



HEXOMMEepYecKoro
cTBa.

Lien HeKkOMMePYecxoro
apTHepCTHa, HCRIIOHEHHLIN
M3 Hera, umeer ripago Ha [no-
aydesne  vacry MMyIIecssd
HexOMMepdecxaro rapTHep~
orBa WMIM CTOMMoCTH  ITOTQ
MMYDIECTBI B COOTBETCTBMK C
aboanes mAThly DYHXTa
HacToRle;y CTaTHH.

S. Yaeny; HexomMMepPIeCKOre
napHepeTBa MOryr HMeTh i
IPSFTHe PABa, QpelycMoTpEN-
HBl® erg YUPeXHTeJILHBIMI JO-
KyMeHrasy ¥ He IIPOTHBODE~
yampie 3ax0BORATeIBCTEY,

Carpa 9. YupeaIeEns

1. VupemjesmeM Ipu3IHa-
eTcR HeKoMMepgecxad opra-
EMamMA, coamamEag  codeT-
BEHNWKOM ARS8 oCYIIEcTBIe-
E®A YUPABIeEYeCcKHX, Coou-
ATHEO~XIALTYPELIX MIK WHEIX
dyERONt  HEKOMMEPIECKOro
%apaxTepa y GOrrarcupyeMan
TOMBOCTBIO MIy  WACTHREO
TN cOOCTBEREMKOM,

HyxymecTso  yIpexaIesys
saxpexAeTcy. 33 HMM Ha
OpaBe OOEPaTHBEOIO YOpaBs-
JeHHA B COOTBeTCTBYH C
Tpamaaucxyy xogexcox Poc-
ciorcxoit DepepalUnt.

Hpasa yupPeiclenms Ha 38-
KpennesHoe 33 BUM ¥MYIIe-
CTBO ONpeXelMIOTCX B COOT-
BereTBHY ¢ TpasKIaAHCKHM KO-
Zexcom Poccuickair — Pere-
paunsy.

2. Yapemnenne oTBeYaer no
coouy o0ASATEILCTEAM | Ha~
XOZRIMMUCA B €ro pacaopa-
KeHuy IeHedHslyy CpPexcT-
samyt. py MX HeIOCTATOTHO-
eTn CYGCHIHADHYK  OTBETCT-
BeHHOCTy, N0 OGA3ATEILITBAM
YapeXIewKs Hecer €re cob-~
CTHeMHUX.

3. OcoGerHocTY NIPABOBOLO.
noxoMeNus OTIeIsHBIX BH-
ROB TDCYTAPCTBEHHBIX ¥ WHBIX
YYpexAeHHt  ONPeXeTRIOTCH
3axoROM ¥ MHLIMK HpapoOBhi-
M3y AKTaxY,

Crarba 10, ARTOBOMEAR HE-
KoMMepgecKady OpralHIannsa

1. ABTOHOMHOM HekoMMep-
qetwof OpraHM3aUuern opKa-
HaeTCA He wMeIOMIaR TAeHCT-
Ba HexoMMepdeckaR OPraHH-
3auMA, yQPEMIEHRAA rpak-
ZaHaMu ¥ (MaX) 0DHAMIECKH
My SMmaMy Ha ocKose 106~
POBOALHEIX - HMYIleCTBen-

naprTHep-

HbiXx p3HOCOR B UERRX upeso-.

CTaBIeHMA yeayr B-obaacrs
obpasoBaHuAa, 3rpaBoOXpa~
HEHKA, KYILTYPEL, HayKH, npa-
82, M3WULCKOA KYILTYPB! ¥
CnOpTa ¥ MHBIX YCIYT.
Muymecrso.  nepelanHoe
ABTOEOMHOM HexoMMeEpIec~
KOM oDreEKK33UKXM et y3apeln-
Tenguy (yapemrrelex), =s-
nRercA cobCTBEHHOCTHIO  BE-
TOMOMHROR  HEKOMMEDPTeCKOH -
OpranKsauuK.  JaDemwrend
BBTOHOMHOM HexoMMepgec-
X0 OPraWu3alxK He COXPaAHA-
10T NIPaB HA KMYIIECTBO, ne-
pexaHHoe KMy B cobermen-
HOCTH ITOR OPragu3aImMH. ¥u-
peamreln Me OTBEWalor 1O

]
|

196

06 A3 TELCTBAM colrawRoN
HMH ZBTOHOMBOK HexoMMep-
deckosi ONTAEMIANK, 4 OBa
He orBevaer g ofA3aTemLCr-
BaM cpoux YIpelnrenei.

2. ABTOHOMBAA HeXOMMEep~
weckay OPraHu3alDes Brpase
OCYITECTRIATL npbempHUEH-~
MaTeIbCRYIO ZeATEeSLHOCTS,
COQTBEeTCTHYIOIYIO aensd,
LAR DOCTHIKEMHA xoTOPHIX CO-

3O03Ha Yr4aJAHHAR opraHu3a~ .

UnsA.
3, Hazsop 3a pesTeIbRO~
CTH0  AaBTUHOMHOM  HexOM-

MepYecKon OPraRu3allny oLy~
WeCTEIA0T €e yIpelHTEIN B

nopAIKe, [PelyCMOTPEeHROM
ee YIPeIHTEILHLIMY JORY-
MeqTaAMM,

4-, Yaperureny  ABTOHOM-
HOJ1 HeKOoMMeD9ecxoy OpraHi-
JaUHH MaryT qOab3IOBATHLR ee
‘YonyraMy tonbko Ea PABHMIX
YCIOBHAX ¢ ARYTHMH JTHIAMM,

Cratsa 11, O6hexuHeERg
IOpMANTecENE Jgur (SCCORRA~
ORH W CONOahI)

1. KouMepdeckye ODraEm-
3auuy B QEXAX KOOPIDLHALHY
ux NpeIPHENMATENbCKOR
LeSTEXLHOCTY, A TaKmKe Nped-
CraBIeHMA 3 IAmCrE; 06IIKX
HMYIDeCTEECHRAIX  HKHTCPECOB
MOtTT OO RITOBODY MEXIV

coSoit co3zaBartn, ofbeninue-
wx B QOPMe ICCOTHARMA
Kau COK30B, HBJASIOMIMAXCA
HexoMMepIecKuMys  OpraHm-

Ect 0O petlleHyio y9acr-
HUKos Ha accowmumo  (co-
103) po3naraercy BeJexne
MpeINPHHHMATSILEKOA  Aef-
TeXLROCTH, TAKAR acconmMatMA
(coio3) npeoSpadyercs B X0~
SRIACTBeHHCe OOOIECTBO MK
roBapuINiecTsg B DOpPKiKe,
npedycMorpeutoyn I'paikian-
ey Xofexcom Poccmitexoit
Srenepaltiy, axbo MoXer co-
37aTs RIA  OCYIIECTRIeEMA
MpesnpuENMaTeIbLKOR  ABA-
TETLBOCTH ~ XOBHACTBEEHOe
OSIIEeCTBO 1Ty Y3aCcTB0BaT, B
raxou obmecrse.

2. HexoMMepueckyxe oOpra-

. HM33XHy Moryr RoGDOROMIBLHO

O LESKEATLCE. B ACCOMMATHH

" (cowawl) - HexOMMePTeCcKMX

QprayyIarmai, -

- Accouxanns (Colod) HaroM-
MepTecKHX OPraBMa3alMy AB-
nAeTeA segouepwemﬁ op-
raEK3anHen. :

3. Yreun! accomMallyy (co-
03a) COXPAHAIOT CBOIO CaMoO-
CTOATENLECCTD 34 TPASE JopH-
RHgeckoro Twkla,

4, Accoupanxyg (Cot03) ge
orsegfer po 06A32TENHCOTBAM
CBOUX TISKOB, LIeHy: accoltH~
allyy (cox3a) Hecyr cy6CH-
IMAPHYI0 OTBETCTBEHHOCTL IO
oSA3arenbeTBaNM ITOM ACCOLLM~
atuy (cow03a) B DadMepe ¢ B

nopAake, nNPEAYCMOTPEHHAIX
ee YUpeAUTEMBHBIMHK poKry-
MeHTaAMHA,

5. HauvexHoBaHue accouyma-
LMK (COW3R) NONIKHO CORep-

-JAHROCTH "LICHOB

watb YxadaHWe HA oCHOBHOW
npenMes efAteThHocTy e~
Hop JTOA 3cCOLMARKH (coro
aa) ¢ BRIKOYEHHey CIdy €8C-
COUMALMA? HIH <COHOI>,

Cratna 12. Odpanpa n  ofa-
accooua-
axi 1 00308

1. Yreal acconHamun (coko-
3a) pripaBe §€3803Me3RHO 0Ih-
30BATLCA ee YCTyTaMM.

2 Yaey accoumanyyu (Coio-
Ba) BOpaBe NO cHOEMY yCMOT-
PEHIMI0 BHIXTH N3 aCCOLMAUMK
cowoza) no OKowTAme Pu-
VAHCOBOIO roXa, B 2roM cay-
ae whaeHd acCOUMARMn {col-
3a) Hecer CYOCHIMADEYXC OT
BercTgennoCTs Mo ee 06ada-
rexbeTBaAM OPOROPIOEA L~

0 cpoexy B3HOCY B TEUEHAE |

UBYX mer ¢ MOMeHTA BEIXOLa.
" Ynem accompammt (CoK033)
agoer GhLITR HCRIOTIER HI
Hee [0 DemIeyio OCTRNITHX-
Cx Qnesos B CIVYAAX y.B 0o~
PAIKe, KOTODhE YCIAHOBIe-
am! yapemtrexsEbiMy  HOKY-
aerTaMy accamaimy  (coto-
@a), B ormomesuy  OTBETCT-
REeNHOCTH MCRIOCEHEOO 1ie-
Ha accoltMallyy (colola) npH-
MEeHMIOTCA [paBsiaa, OTHOCH®
yeca K BBIXORy M3 AcCCOMMa-
e (cowaal,

3. C cormzacuA qieHos
copmanuy (coio3a) B Hee MO~
»xer BOMry HOBRIA  TieH,
Berynaedue B aCCOLMBIINIO
{coi03) HOBOIO YaeH; MOMReT
6LrTy O6YCIORIeno ero  Cyd-
CHIMAPHOR OTSETCTIEHHOCTEO
To obA3arTesboTsam accouma-
uxn (cow3a) BOIHHKIDNUM 20
ero BCTYTLIeHHA.

ac-

e s e i e Mt S
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Cratsa 13. Coazamme me-
KOMMEDYECROH  QPLaMKIAGHU

1, HexosMepuwecxan opra-
HU3AIMA MOXer 6urrs cosaa-
Ha 3 DE3YJNILTATE ee yapexle-
HMRA, a TaK¥Xe B pe3yanTarte
peopraHudauny cyMmmecTsyIo-
e HexoMMepyecxgjy Opra-
HUIALUHH,

2, Cozpanmue Hexommepyec-

KO/t OPrasy3aumu s pe3yiIhL-
TaTe ee YYDeKIeHMg ocymIe-
CTSNARTCR Qo pelllenup yupe-
:m-uem'(memrena)
- Crarbg M; YuDerureasmnie
AOKYMEHTH] HEKOMMEDIECKOH
OPTABRUIATIMK

1. YupeanrembmmiMu IOKY-

MTAMY HEXOMMEepPIecKH X op-

t . AHHMBRIDT ARILIOOTES:
¥CTaB, YTBepHLleHMbly Y4~
peauTenaMy (YHACTHHKAMHK),

ans oSINeCTBeRHONM mMA¥ De-
IUTHOIHRON OpraNu3amuu (05b-

e ZAMeH KRy OHNA, HexoMMep-

qeckon&“:ap'mepc-na yu asTo-
HONMHOIT HEeROMMepRecKojt OP-

! ranuzaumy;

YUpenMTeXLHbLIA BOTOBOP,
2aKTIOTEHHBNT UX WIeRaMK, U
yeTaB, yrBepIKIeHMBl; MM,
Flg accomManMy My cOolo3a;

pemmeHye COGCTEERHMER o
CO3TABHY FYPERALHHA 32 YC-
TaB, FrBeDIKISEELNT
BEEEMKOM, g memms.

VHaperreny  (YIaCTHMRM)
HEKOMMEeDIEeCKHX TaPTEEPCTS,
2 TakXKe aRTONOMHLIx HEKOM-
MEPYeCKHX Opralu3alnait
BnpaBe 3AKMOTNTL yIpeIH-
TEeJILHBEIR ROTOBOP.

B caywesax, npesycMorpes-
HRIX J3KOHOM, HexoMMeplec-
KaA OPraHM3aUuR Moxer

- ZeHCTBOBATL Ha OCHOBAHEMK

ofmero noXoxeExA of opra-
HU3AIMAX JAEBOND pHIa.

2, Tpebomamy yupexurelb-
Hbly OOKYMEYTOB HEKOMMep-
qeckof OpraNu3auuy obAsa-
TeNbHbLI LA HCIIONHeHMs ca-

MOji HeKOMMepJecxa® Opra-
; HM3ausen, ee ygpemMTenAMu
¢ {(yHaCTHHKIMK),

3. B ywpeluTedbHRX  AO-
KyMeHTaX  HEXOMMepdIecxon
OpPraHHIauMU AODKYn Ofpe-
JeXATLCA HaKMeHOBaHMe He-
KOMMEPYECtKgji OPraHK3allMy,
cojepiammee YyxasaHMe Ka
X3APaKTeD e NeATEJLHOCTH M
OPraumM3alMONHg .. KPaBOBYIO

HapMy, MecTo HaAXCHICHUS
HEXOMMEPYECKOt OPraHH3a-
UK, MOPAJIOK YNPABICHME
JeATeIbHOCTLIO, nNpelMer i

e ARATENBHOCTH, - - CBeje-
HHR 0 OUIHATIX H TIPelcra~
BHTEILOTBAX, NPABA H  obsA-

3aHHOCTH 9Y-IeBOB, YGIOBHA y -

NOpAIOK NpHexXd B LreHn:
HexoMMepweckot  OPramuya.
iy # pbix0d2 x3 Hee (3 ey,
. qaer--ecIn- Eeﬂoﬂxep‘!&“x
:)cragxsal.'t'l A!e“" levnes.

CO3AHME,

LHS WU JIMKBMOALIMS HEKOMMEPYE.
CKOH OPTAHHM3ALMKM .

S

. VIeHHUSA,

PEOPTAHM3A-

BQ), MCTOTHMKY OPMHPABA-
HUA MMYIUIECTBa HexoMmeDd-
YeCKoil OpPraMK3auMM, nops-
Jok BH2CeHuA HIMEHeHu; B
yupeuTeTbHble | ROKywMesTh
HeROmMMEPYECKOX  Oprapnaa-
UuY, NTOPAIOK MCITONB3IOBAHMA
HMylIecTBa B CAYvYae JUKBEH-
RalUMM HeROMMEeDYecKoOX op-
TAHMTIAUKK M HHble NOJ0MKe-

HUA, OPelyCcMoOTpexHbhle Bac- :

rormIMy PexeparbELM SaKo-
HoM p WHLIMK PelepalbERIKH
FaxoHaAMH.

B yYpemMTENLHOM JOTOBO-
Pe vupemurTenu ofgIyiored
Co3MaTL, HeROMMepqdecryo op-
raEu3alnio, onperesTcy Io-
PAJOK COBMeCTHONX JEeRTelb-
HOCTH mo CO3NANII0 HEXOM-
MepYecKod Opraymamdy, yc-
JOBUS NEePesavH et  CRoero
MMYIDeCTBA 3 YIACTHR g ee
ZesTENTbHOCTH, YCIOBHR M NO-
PAdpk BWIXOZA Yapenyrrenes
(y9acTEMKOB) H3 ee cOCTRBE.

VeraR poHZa TaRKe IoN-
Key eONepKaT), BANMEHOBa-
Hye (POHZA, BrILIOTAIOmESs
CII0BO «DOHI>, CBEIEHAR O e~
ny couna; yKA3IAHME o6 Op-
rafax (OHIZA, 3B TOX THCIe O

nonegurenbCcroM COBETE, 3 O
Q OPAZKe HATHAYEHUR KOTK-
HOCTHEIX any $aEza u X oc-
‘BoboMIesTHA, O Mecre HAXRDK-
Jewnsg GOBBA, o cyxpbe MMy~
mecyra OEIM B caYUde ero
TURSHIALHH,

YupeuTenbHple SOKYMeH-
THI accouMammy (Co33), He-
KOMMepIeckorg IapTHEPCTRY
raxaKe JOAKHRI CcOREpXaTs,
FONOBEHg O COCTame ¥ KOMIIe-
TeHKy VX OPragos yupas-
fIOpAAKe OPHHEATHR
HMy De ., B TOM 9THC]IE
0 BOIIpoCaM, pelleHHUR I0
KOTODPRIY IIPHEHMRIOTNCT eli-
HorJacso mMity Ksamuduam-
POBANHEBIM CTBOM IO-
VIOCOB, ¥ O HOPAIKE Daerpe-
ReNeHUs MMYIUIECTEd, 0oCTar-
mIerocg Ioclle JIHKBHIAMNMHK
acconyaum (COI3R), HeKOM-
MepuecxOro DAPTHEPCTBA.

YapeauTenbible JOKYMeN-
ThI HEKOMMepdecwxop opra-
HHU3AHMY MOTYyT COREPHATL H
Hukle . He OpoTHBOpevamue
3AKOHOTATENLCTRY  IIOJIOXKe-

Ae

4, UameHeuns  yCran He-
KOMMEDTECKOR ODTaNMIAIIH
BHocATCA N[O pPelleHM)y  ee
Bnicaierpy ppraHa FUpPABISHUSA
82 MCKTIOYEEHeM yerana GoH~
‘ma, KOTODLIR MOMer OhiTy M3~
MeHer opraHaMi DoOHZA, ecawm
yorapox (POMZA IpesyeMor-
pesa BO3MOXKKOCTL  HiMene-
HKXR 3TOrD YCTZBA B TAKOM
mopaaxe.

Ecxx COXpaHeHHe ycTama
oHza B Heu3MeHHOM BHIe
arever 3a cofor  [rocaencr-
pHR, KOTODhle MHesO3MOXHO
npeIBXIETh NPH FUPeKILEHH

GouIa. 3 BOAUGKHOCT, H3Me

HeNuA ero yCTaBa He Mpely-
cMoTpeda aubo yemap He U3~
MEHALTCA YITOJHOMOICHHBIMN
RHUAMH, IPaBO BHeceHMA K3~
MEHEHHH B COOTBETCTBUM C
I’p?ﬂ(l%ﬂcxnu Roxexcom Poc-
cuitckoit Degepamuy MpuEAI-
NEMHUT CYRY IO 38 ABICHMIO Op-
raHop OHzZa MaIM  oprama,
YTUOMHOMOWEHHOT0 OCYINecTB-
JATL HaZI30p 3a ReATeJLHO-

" oTBLK HORIZa.

[N —

Cratbn 15 Yuapeamrenn
HEXOMMEPILCKROin opragx-
Jammu

1, YupernnreraMy Hexoxm-
MepYecxoy OpramdIalyuy B 3a-
BHCHMOCTIt OT 8€ Opragmad-
UMOHHO-IPABOBLIX DoOPM yO-

TYT BLICTYNIATHL TrpaXIgde M

(Hay) opuniIeckyue-gmoa.

2. Yucne y9pezmrenei ‘me- -

KOMMepTIeCKo OpraExaaiuu
He QrpaHMYIEeHO, eCIi HHOe He

YCTAHOBACHO  henepahEbiv
3aKOHOM. .
HenouueDIecxan  opraxu-

3amny MoXer Sarvn yopemze-
HAa OBMM JaumaMm, 3a HCHIO-
YeHHEM CIyYden YIPeRICSHA
HewOMMePIeCKHX mapTHepCeTs,
2CCORHALIMA (COIO30B) M HHREIX
wIygIaes,
enepaThEbiM AAKOHOM.

CraTten 16, Peopraduasmus
HeKoMMeDIEeCKOK OpLaHEH3a~
oHH

1. HexoMmepdeckar opra-
HH3AUMA MOXKer Ohity peop-
TaAM30BaHa B NOPARKe, IIpe-
OYCMOTPeRNOM IPpamIaHCKRym
xomexcom Poccuitckon Dene-
DALMY, HACTORMMM  Pene-
PATBHHBIM 3aKOHOM M HAPYIH-

My GelepanbHLIMY  3JaKOHE-
MH.
2, PeopraHuzalMA HexOM-

MepueCKojt OPranH3aln{H MO~
#er GRITL oOCymIecTrsieHa =B
opue CIMABHA, IpHCOeIM-
HeNUs, DadRelleHUR, pbilele-
o y npeofpa3oBariA,

3. Hexomuepyecxas Opra-
HM3AUMA CYHTASTCR peopla-
H¥30BAHHOA, 3a MCKIIOYEEH-
eM ClIydaeB peopraHul3allH¥ B
hopMe nPUCOETITHEHNA, C MO~
MeHT2 roCYRAPCTBENHOMA pe-
rUCTpallyy BHOBR BOAHMKIIEH
OpPrarRK3alyys (OpragMsammi).

IIpy peopraHEMsalyy EHe-
KOMMEPYECKOX OpraNK3amuyu
" Epopue OPHCOEIMBEMMy K
HeX ZDYroR OPTaEKIAIMK mep-
BAA ¥3 Hux CUXTaercH Neop-
TAHM30BAHHOR ‘¢  MOMeRT:a
BHEeCeHM g B eRMHElX rocy-
AapCTBEKHEIY peecrD OPHRH-
HeCHHX JHIX 3ANMCH O IIPex-
pamenyy XEATEILHOCTH TUPH-
COSXMEAEHON ODrAEMIAIMA.

4, TocymapCTBEHHAR PECHCT™-

Pall¥E pHOPp BO3EKEIIEH B,

PeSyapTaTe  PEOPraEX3AmMA
opraEusamiy (OPraFM3amkii)

K BHeceHWe B eXMERIy rocy-.

FapCrBeBHLIE Peecrp IODHIM-

nPeXyCHOTPeHERIX.

BEST AVAILABLE COPY



-

YeCKUX JNHIL 3&OHEK O OpeK-
PaleyH 3 ASRTEILHOCTH peop-
DPaHKIOBAHHOM  ODramRu3ammyu
(opraEu3anuy) OcymIecrazA-

10TCA B MOPDALKE, YCTAROBIER- .

HOM 3aKOHOM (@ OCYIapCTueH-

HOH DECHCTDRLMM 1oDKIIec-:
KHX auil. e

a

Crarsx 17, IpeoSpasoBarse-
HEKOMMEPICC R OPragn3a- *

oMK
1. HexoMMepuecxoe mepr-

, HepeTBO Bhopape npeobpado-
! Bateer B ofinecrsennyo uau
_ PRIHTHOSHYIO  gpraRu3amiio

(obbemrHeHne), dorg wim as-
TOHOMHYI0O MeXOMMendeckyio
opragu3auyia,

2, YapexIeHne moer OLITh
npeo6pa30BaHo B GORA, BBTO-

© ‘HOMNYIO HEXOMMepweckyio op-

raHusaimo, XO3AACTEERHO
ofutecrso,  IlpeoSpasoBanne
FOCYJAPCTBEMMEIX uay MYHK-
INTIAILELIX  yupeIemiit B
HEROMMEDPISCHye opraHitia-
Oly MHBIX QOpM MIK XO3ft-
GBeHHOe o6Mectno xomycwa-
€Tch 3 CIYYaRX y B mopAXke,
KOTOphle YCTAHOBIeHy; 38K0-
HOM,

3. ABTOHOMuAR HexoMMep-
decxaq OPraRM3auusg BOpasme
npeofpadonarnes 3 o6Mect
BeHEYID MIKH PEIMTHOIEYIO
LOpreagudamne  (olnemunesus)
.5fu50 » dorx

gz 4. Accommaints way coma
#paBe npeoSpascpeTsCy B
ADOHI, aBTOHOMEV HexoM-
Mepgeckyio opraEm3amo,
XO3AVCTReEHDe . OOMIecTSO
Han roBapHIRecTsO.

- 5. Pemesite o gpeobpasoBa-
HHy HeXOMMEDYetKOrg mIapT-
depersd UpuRMMAeTcH F9De-
SHTENAMy eJUHOIIACED, Ac-
-SOUMATNH  (c0i03a) — BCEMH
TeRAMY, JARTOTHBIINMY 30~
TOBOD 0 ee CO3ZABKH,

~ Pemienite o0 npeoSpasoBams
yIpemienns OpHEMMaeTcs
ero coberBemEyeoM,

Pemerme o ppetSpasopamym
A TOHOMEOj?t HexoMMepgec-
KOit Oprauxu3auns nDpPUEXMa-
RTCH ee BLICTINM OpraBoM FIi-
DaRIeAXs B COOTBETCTEMY C
HACTOADKx DesepasIbEARIM
3aKOHOM p mnopAIxe, [pexy-
CMOTDERHOM YyCTaBOM  3BTO-
HOMHOM HeXOMMeD9YeCKOi Op-
raEU3aAuKH,

8. Ipu npeaSpascBakuy He-
KOMMeD9ecKO®  OpraBEx3aATA
K BHOBL BOINMKINe OPraHM-
GallMy nmepexozAT npaRa M
©0A3aBHOCT K PEOPraHKI0-
BAHHON HEKOMMEDPTecKoi op-
CAWHIAUHY, B COOTBETCTBUM
C NePelaTONHEIM aKTOM,

. Crarea 18. JIuEBsKIAIOIR HE-
KOMMeERTecKOR OPraEHIARKH

1, Hexoummepaeckar opra-
Bu3anua Moxer ObrTn gUKBKH-
KXpOPaRa Ha OCHOBAMMY M B
ROpPAZKE, ROTOPLIE TPexyCMOT
peHB! ['paxpaHCKKM  KOZex-
com Pocenficxos; Pelepalxuy,
HACTOAIMMM DenepabERIM
38KOHOM y JIDYrHMI  (ele-
PARbHLIMNY 3BKOHAMK,

2. PemeHne 0 IHKBHIALAH
doBR2 MOKeT NPHAATL TOML-
KO Cyx No 3ampiIeHuic IaHMH-
TEDECOBAKHMBIY THIL

1.9%

Doz Moxer OmiTh AMKBU-
Iuposan:

eCTH  HMYMecTsa coHia
HEIOUTATOYHO IR OCymIecT-
BaeRuR eroc Uejeji M BepoRT-
HOCT, MOJYYeHUR HeolSXoRW-
MOIU MMYINECTBA HepeasbHa:

e TemM DORIA He MUryT
ObiTy, JOCTHTHYTHL, a ReolXo-
TRt WINEHETOMR geten
DOoRzZa me MOrYT SmTh fUO-
MIBexeHELT

B caywAe YRIORCHHA DOHIA
B &0 IERTEILROCTY Or Oeles,
NpeIyCcMOTPeRHLIxX erg YCTa-
nox; | .

B-APYTHX CAYIAAX, npexy-
CXOTPeHHLIX  QenepashRbiM
3aXOHOM.

3. Yapezureyy (reacrmuxy)
HEROMMEDIECKO) opramMag-
LMK Wiy ODrax, pURSBMING
Pellletiye O AUKBHRAIGIN He-
koMMepYeckoR oprammamios,
HAa3HAYAIOT NO COrnacoBaNINg
£ OPraHOM, OCYWIECTBIMOMIM
“+ocyapersensyio pemerpa-~
100 WOPHIMIECKUX M3, - JOIK-
BHIANHOHHTIO KOMHCCHIO
THXBMZATOPR) ¥ yeranapmn-
-B210T B COOTBETCTBMY ¢ I'pask-
RAHCKMM xORexcoM Poeocwii~
Txoft Pemepamuu y wmacrTon-
Dix PeReDATLHAIN 3axOBOM
NOPAROK ¥ CPOKM auxBUza-
THMH HEXOMMepwecKoi opra-
H(3aUK, .

4. C MoMemra hasmevemus

HBeKOMMeDPYecKoX opramEM3a-
OKHK, JMKBHIATMOHEAS  Xo-
MHCCHA OT KMEHK TMXBUXKPY~
MO/ HeXoMMepweckos: opra-
JOSAIMKM BRICTYDAGY B CYRS.
. Cratag 19, opxxox smrx-
BHIAIDNY HexoMMepRecxok
OPrAENIAXy )

1. JomszamoEmna Rowe-
CHA DOMemaer B OPraEax Ile-
TATH, B KOTODRIX TYCIRRY-
107TCR NaMFLIe 0 MOCTAADOTYREH.
HOX Dermcrpaltym JODHINTEC-
RMX Iu1l, ryGasEanyg O-aMK-
BHIAIH HEXOMMEeDIecKyst Op-
TaHMIAONY, DOpANRE ¥ CDOKe
3aABIeEHR Tpefonamri: ee
KpeTuropany. Cpox -samnnre-
My tpeSoBamuit xpemIrropa-
MK He mo¥ReT ‘GHITL"" Memes
9EM Ipa MecAUa co REs ryt-
“AHRADMY O JHXBICIANL " Be..
KOMMEDYeCKoH Oprasusatyny,

2. IyEsHmEOHOREA S KOMNC-
CHA TPHEHMAST MEDLT DO Bhl-
ABIEEIN0 KPEDITODOR M TO-
JydeRino HeSHTOpCROR 3anoxn-
MeHEHOCTH, & TRARME YBOIOM-
Jder B OUCLMEEBOR  opue
KpeITODOR o JHURBIXAOHK
HeXoMMepYecXOR  OpPramiag.
KK,

3. To oxoEwamm cpoka ”

LIR ODeRbABISHMS 7TpeloBa~
Bufi KPEXXTOPAMY JIHXBHIA-
UUOHBAR KOMHCCHg COCTABISN-
€r OPOMeXKFTOYEW JHMEBH-
IRCHMOKEENT GANaHe, xOTOPLIR
COTePKHAT CBENSHHR o COCTA-
Be MMYMECTBA JHRBMAKPYe-
MO/ REROMMEDTeCKoj; opra-
HM3aOKH, IIepeMHe NpeThAn-

e

JAeHHbIX xpelnropaMu Tpedo-
BAHMIL, 3 TaKke n DeIyabra-
rax #X DACCMOTNEHHUR, -

[Ipoxex vyrouHhiy AMKSE
23uMOMMBIN BagaHe yrmepac
R2aeTCA yypelntelAady (y9a:
CTHHKAMHK) HexommepUecxoit
OPraHM3AUKKH  HaH 0praHoM,
NMPUHABUINY pelledne o ee
IHKBHIANKYK, o corfIacoBa-
HHIO C OPraHoM, oCylIecTsSad-
IOWNM rOCYIapeTseMHYIO pery-
CTPAUHKIO IOPMIIECKAX JHal.

4. Ectn umeomstecs v Iux-
BUAMDYENMOR BexOoMMeDIecKon
OPraHu3auny (32 HCRIOYe-
HHMEM YIPexIeHuA) INedek- .
HbLI€ CDeIcTBa ReXoCTATOTHR! |
LIg YAOBJIeTBOPEedHA Tpefo-
BaHFl KDeXropaB, JTHKBHIA-
DHUOHHAA KOMMCCHy OCyINeCT-
BARST DPOZANKY HMYIecTRa
HeKOMMepYecxoiX  OpramM3a-
WA ¢ OYGAAYHLIX TOProB B
NOPHIKE,- FCTAROBILHHOy 118 |
MCTIOIHesy ¢y3leCRLIX pente-
mﬂ‘ . . . M

IIpr wenocrarowmocTy ¥
AUXBAINDYEMOrD  yUpeXIe.
HUA JeHeXHnIX CPEICTB ITR
JRoBleT20peHKA TpPeGOBaAHMI
KPeIMTOnosS flocIexsMe BHpa-
Be 06PaTHTLCA B CFX C MCKOM
o6 yACBIEeTBOPEMMK  OCTaB-
Meits Yacry epeSoRaHMi 2a
Cier COOCTBeHID(RA ITOPg Y-
PeXISHNS,

5. Bmmuaara NRHEeNCHDLIX
CYMM Xpeaw=opav JTHUKBEXIW-
PyeMoRt HexoMMengecXoji OD-
rasmu3alliay NDOKU3IBOZMTES
AUKBATAUNONHOWN OMUCTHEN
B NOPAIKE oueResHOCTH, YC-
TaroBIeydon I[pamIaHCKHM
konerkcoM Poccuiiexort Pene-
PalMK, B COOTBETCTSMM ¢ _
NPOMENTTOIHBIM  JHKBUIA-
UnOHHBIM Gaxaycom #aan-
HaR CO IHR erg YTBEPIKISHMRA,
33 HCKIONEeHHEM KPEIUTOPOB
9700 OYepenK. BhIMIATHE KO-
TOPBiN IPOUIBOIRTCH [0 MC-
TeYeHMH wecsla co IHA yT-
BEDHAEHHA NROMENYTOYHQIO
NHKBUIALUNOHBOr0 Gaaanca.

8. Hocxe 3amepmenus pac-
eToB ¢ KpennMropamy SIHKSH~
BaUMOHHAR KOMMCCHA COCTAB-
NIRer IUKBKIAUNOHHBIA  Ga-
JNaMc, xOTOPLIR  yrBEepMIaeT-
CH yypeaureaady (yvyacrHHU-
KaMu) uexoMMep4ecxoi opra-
HAS3AUMK MK opraHoM, mpu-
HRBUWNM Pellewke O TUKBU-
Jauuy HexoMMepuecxoR op-
TAaHASAUNY, NIn COrIaCOBAHMIO
C OPraHoM, OoCYIRecTsSIRIOLLIMM
FOCYJAPCTBEHHYI0  perucTpa-
QU0 PHIATECKAX JHLL :

Crateg 20. UsymeerBO JTHX-
BHIXDYeMOt BexoMMepdecxon
ODraBEM3aAnM;

1. IIpn  auxsugamo He-
KOMMEDYHECKON ORrAHMIALMKN
ooTaBiyeacn Iocie yaoBALTBO-
PeHNA rpeboBamuixz xpeasTO-
POB HMYINeCTBO, €T MHOE
He YCTaHOBJICHp HacTOANLMM
Pegepamunin 3akoHOy W
HHbIMy (DeZepanbHEIMY 32KO-
HIMH, HanpaBasgeTcd p COOT-
BETCTEMM C YYDeIHTeNbHLIMMU
JOKYMEHTAMM HexOMMepuec-
KO/ ODraHK3alluy Ha uenu, p

HHTePecaX KOTOPLIX OHa Gble ~—ieie .

a3 codtaxa, x (MoM) Ha Gga-



rOTBODMTE AL HblE
c1ysae, eCaIH HCIOMIb3OBAHMeE
MMYyllecTsa
HEeROMMEPUeC KO
UMy B COOTBETCTBHH C ee yu-

PEANTEIbHBIMHY DOKYMeMTaMU-

ueasn, B:

JMKBHINDYEMOH-
opraHu33-

He NpelcTaBNIAeTCA BOIMOXK-,

HbIM, OHO ofpammaeTcs B J0-
XO0n rocyRapeTBa.

2, [IpH nuxBHIALHKYK HEeKOM-
Mepueckoro NapTHepCTrsz oc-
TaBllleecR [oCJde YAOBJeTso-
PeHMA TDeDOBaHMA KDeIHTO-
POB  HMYIDECTHBO [TOLTEKAT
paciipeleneruio MEXly Y.ae-
HaMHU HEKoMMepYecKoro nMapT-
HEDCTBA B COOTBETCTBHUH C
MX MMYMlecTBeHHbly BIHOCOM,
PadMep xoroporo He pesbi-
ides pa3mep UX MMYIIECT-
BeHHLIX B3HOCUB, eCiu KHOE
He ycTarQanewo delepalb~
HbBIMY 32xoraMM YA yIpeln~
TeAbLHBIMK ODOKYyMeRTraMi{ ue-~
KoMMepYecKoro gapraepcTBa.
opazok
HMYIlecTRa
Io DAapTHeDPCTSA, CTOMMOCTSH
KOTOPOIY peBLlmaer Pa3Mep
HMYIMeCTBeXHBIX BIHOCOB ero
TaIenoB, onpenengeres B o~

OTBeTCTBMY ¢ ITYRKTOM 1 mace |

CTOMIeR CTATHLM.

HCITONBIOBAHNA |
HeRXOMMEepIecKko~ |

4199

3. Ocrasureecs nocile yzos-
JderBopewty Tpedovatit kpe-
- IATOPOB UMYMIECTBO JIPeMH-
JeHMA nepelaeTca erg codcer-
BeHHMKY, eciiy MHoe He Ipe-
IFCMOTPENO 33KOHaMKU y MHbI-
MY pPasoBbIMHM axTaMy Poc-
cuncxonn Pedepamtuu KiIn yd-
PeAMTETLHBIMH  JOKYMeHra-
¥y yupeMcleNusa.

Cratha 21. 3apepmenue JH-
KBHIAOHK  HeXOMMepDYCCROA
OpPrimM3amuH

JIHKBHIAUKA HeXoMMepYe-
CXOR  OpraHHJaLMKM  CYMTa-
eTcs JapepluewHOd, 3 HexoM-
MeDYeCKaA OpraHM3aUXd =
IpexpaTMBllelt CyLIecTBEOBA-
Lue 0Cle BReCeHMR 0 IToM
3ANKCH 2 eAUHBIY Trocyaap-
CTSEeMHLI} peesTp IOpHIMYec-
KMAX JAL,

CraTeg 22, 3aoucs o OPER-
PAIIeRNHY JeATeNLHOCTH He-
XoMMEPIECKOR OPIAEHIADHHM

3anyucy o mpexpalleNsu le-
ATEIBHOCTH HeXOMMepYeCKOoi
OpraHxlauxyu BHOCHTCR Opra-
HOM, OCYIReCTBJIRIOUINM IMOCY-
RapeTBentryio  perucTpauuio
IODHUINYeCKy THIL, P Ipe-
JOCTABJIEHUH CJIAVIOUIMX X0~
RYMeHTOB:

Fnasa IV. BESTEABHOCTb HEKOMMEP:
YECKOH OPTAHM3ALLMM
e

Crarpa 24, Brau: pemresms-
HOCTH HEXOMMEPYECKOR opra-
HU3ATHH

1, Hexomuepweckas

HK33UMA MOMer

opra-

ocYllecrs-

AT ORKWH BMI AEATEIBHOCTH.

WX HECKOJILKO BHIOB Jed-

T2ABHOCTH, He 3anpeleHHEIX

JakoHolaredscysOoM  Poceust-
cxoit Denepaiun 1 coorserce-
SYIOIMKX UedRM JeATeILHOC-
TH HeXOMMePYECKON ObDraHMu-
3almy, KOToDble NpesycMoTpe-
Hbl e€ yYDeIHTEeNSHBLIMH Jo-
KYMEHTAMM,
3aKoHORATEIRCTBOM
CHMACKOK Dedepalimn
YCTaBaBIMBATLCA  OrpaMuYe-
HKR Ha BMIOLI geaTelIbHOCTH,
KOTOPLIMM BIIpaBe SAKHMaTh-
CA HeXOMMepYecKye OPradp-
3allMy OTIENLHLIX BHIOB.

Orlenbyble BHILI HEATETb-
HOCTH MOILyT OCYIIECTBRATLCR
HeXOMMEDYECKHMy  Opradm-
3alKAMY TONIbKe Ha OCHOBa-
HMy COeUXAJILHRIX paapemie~
Bt (STHITe B3HI), ITepeaeHs
ITHX BHIOB  ReATEIRHOCTH
OmpenenAeTCA 3AKOHOM,

2. HexomMepweckag opra-
MU3ALMA  MOKET OCyIecTB-
JATL, [DeINPMHMMATENLCKYIO
JeATeIbHOCT, JMIly MOCTOIL-
KY, MOCKOMBKY Tp CIAYHHUT
JOCTHKEMHIO Ilesler, PAaIM xo-
TOPAIX OHa codzaHa. Taxof
ARTLIbHOCTLIO OTPHIHAIOTCA
mpHHocRmIee npMSBIdL
H3IBOICTRO TOBAPOB M yCiIyT,
OTBEYAOLWINX LEeJRX ¢O03Za-

Poc-
MOryT

A TIDO= - e

. ycTaBoM,

HUE HexXOMMEDHerxon opra-
HH3aUAHK, a TakXKe mpucdpe-
TeMHe ¥ DeadIMIAUMSA LeyHhIX
Oyxar, AMyIecTBeHHEIX y He-
UMYyOIecTREHNBIX [1pas, yda-
cTHe B XOJIRACTBEeHMHBIX 06~
urecTsax ¥ ydacTme 3 TOBa-
pHIrecTsax Ha Rege 3 xaye-
CTBe aKSIaguMKa.

3aKoHOIATEBITSOM Poe-
eircxon Pezepainu MoryT
vCoaHaBIXBATHCA  OrpaHAve-

HHA HA [OpelIpMHHMaTeTb-
CXYH0 JEATEILHOCTL  HEKOM-
MepuesKkAX opraEA3aluy Or-
ZeXLHBIX BUIOB.

3. Hexommepyeckada opra-
HU3IAUMA Bejer yder J0X0108
K Pacxofos [10 npelnpHHu~
MATEIHCKOA AEATEIBHOCTH.

4 B mrepecax JoCTHIKEMMA
meaen, IpelycMOoTReHEbLIX
HekoMMepYyecxas
OPTaHMlaLHA XOXer co3aa-~
BaTh IPYTHE HexoMMepdecxue

-OpraMu3aluMM M peTynaTt, =B

ACCOUMALHH ¥ COIO3BI.

Crarsa 25. Mmymecrno me-
KOMMEDUYECKOH opraBM3adKy

1. HexomMmepyecxan opra-
HAJALAA MOXer HMers B cob-~
CTHEeNHOCTH KN B OmepaTHB-
HOM YTIpPaBleHMM 3ZaHuA,
COODRYHEHHA, HIALIHDIN
¢oxz, ofopYIOBaHMEe, HHBEH-
Tapy, JeHeXHLle cpeicTsa B
pv&iIAX M MHOCTDAHHOM  Bd-
aicTe, UeuHsie Svxary £ ®Hoe
dmyucecTnO. HexoMMepuecxas .
STTAKSOALHA MOKET AMeTS I

3aAadeHUA O BHeCewxy 3a-
IHCH o aIMKBHIALSE (B CaY-
Yae 100poBOJLHOR IMKBHIZ-
UMK Hau o npexpatleHumn Je-
aresbdocTH HEXOMMeDYecxon
ODraHM3auuA, MOIMHCAHHONO
aUUOM, YIIOTHOMOUEHHbIM He-
KOMMEDYECKON  opraHx3aun-
en;

petuedmaA COOTBETCTIYIoWeE-
rp opraHa © IHMKBHAIALHH
#AaM o MDeKPALUEHKHKU aed-
—TeTLHOCTH  HeXxoMMeD4ecCxoft
opradxaai; .

wcraBa HeXOMMEeDHeCKOs
op'raHuaaunu A csn:e‘re:_:bc':'-
|3 A ee "OCY ADCTIEMMOR nDe-
rUCTPALHK,

.. aukBkiaumommore  Ganas-
~m. Mny NEPeRATOWNMOrO aKTA.

My padiemureabHorg Bagan- |

.ca;

ZokymeHTa 00 yHMYTOME-

HMM nredaTy HEeKOMMep4YecKow
\opratuaaluu.

Crarpsn 23. TocyxapcTaes-
Raf PEerucrraluxa HIMEHEHHH
JUpPeIHTEITIHEBIX ROKYMERTOB
JIEKOMMEDPIECKOH OPraHEM3a~
auu
. 1 TocyzapcTseMmaa Deru-
cTpallu® M3MEHEHMR yupenw-
relbHLIX QOKYMEHTOB HEXOM-
MepuYecKoR OPraHK3IalKK ocYy-
~IiecTENASTCA B MOPAIKE, YC-
; “TaHOBIEHHOM 3AKOHOM O racy-
'nancﬁeanoi perxerpauuy
o-xoummqecxxx UL
-~ 2. HadeHeuua YupeauTelb-
® HbIX HOKYMEMTOB HeKOMMeD-
YyecxXOopn OpPraHu3alUMK BCTyTIa-
10T B CHNV C MOMeHra UX ro-
£YyJapCTBeHHOA DErucTpalKK.

COOCTREMHOCTY  MIn H% DEC'
CPOUYHOM 1QIb30BAHHKH
MATLHME FTIRCTENA.,

2. Hexommepwecxan opra-

HHU3IUHMA OTBEYAEST IO CHBOMM
06A3aTeNLCTBAM Te€M  CBOMM
MMYLUIECTBOM, H3 XOTOPOE MO
32X0HOIATEILCTBY Poceuii-
ckoj; Pezepalnot MOMer OuITH
oSpalllieHp pB3LICKaHKe,

CraTea 26. McrowAuxk dop-
MHDOBAHHE KMYIleCTBa He-
KOMMEDQECKOH OPTAHHIANUM

1. Mcrownnkaun OpMHpPoO~-
BaHus uMYIlecrBa HeKOMMep-
YeCxop OPraHu3alyMu s Je-
HeMHON U WHbIX PopMax SB-
SIAIOTCR:

peryispHsie y E&IKHROBpe-
MeHHBIe MOCTYNXeHMA OT Yy-
peaureneir (YHacTHUKOR, YXe-
HOB);

BOGpOBOJIbHbIe uMyLIeCT-
BeHHble BOHOCH! ¥ NOXKEPTRO~
BaHHUS;

BLIPYHYKa Or Dpeanwaauuyu
TopapoB, pabor, weayr;

OMBHOEHTIL! (MOXOILI, IIpo-
LeHTRI), nOSIYHaeMble Ilo aK-
DuAM, OOAUTALMAM,  APYITHM
ueMHbiM OymaraM M BKI3-
ZaM;

IOXO0Xbl, fOAYHaeMple OT
Co6CTBEHHOCTH HeXOMMepYec-
KOW OpraHu3auuH;

o e e e e

BEST AVAILABLE COFYy
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APY¥THe He JanpeileHHLIS
I KOHOM™ moCTYNIeH S

JakoH3IMKM MOTYY voraHAB~
SIMBATLCA OrpaAHMUEHUA HA MC-
TOYHMKy JOXCIop HexoMMer-
HecKuX OPraHMlalMi orledb-
HblxX BMIOB.

2, IHopazox peryaapHsix
MoCTYTIIe it Or yypeaure-
aed  (YHacTHMKOB, 4y3eHOB)
ornoelearerca YHDeINTETh-
HbIMy JOKYMEHTAMHM HEKOM-
MEDYECKOR ODraHuIalHH,

3. TloayvenHans mexomMep-
qecXon OpTraHMlaumen apu-
Gblah He nMOLIeKUT pacrnpe-
TENeYU0 MENKIY YHACTHHKE-
My (YIeHaMy) Hexommepyec-
KOft OPraHM3alinas.

Craroa 27. HoBtuawxy »=-

- TepecoB

1. DTag uedes Bacrosmero
DegepagrHOTD 3aKOHa auua-
MH, J2MHTEDECOBAHHLIMM B
coseplmeduy  HexoMMepwec-
KO®t OpraHMusauMeid Tex iIX
YHBEIX JeMCTBHA, p TOM gUCIe
cIenoK, ¢ JIPYPKMM OoplaHu3a-
IAMKM ®ay paxIanaMn (Xa-
fleg — 3aHETEPECOBANHLIE JIH-
Ua), NPHIAHAIOTCA DYKOBOIM-
TEIL (3AMECTHTEN:, PYROPOIK-
TEIR) HeXOMMEepUeCcKoit opha-
HHIZLOHH, 3 TaKHe JTHING, BXO=-
JAllee B COCTAR OPraHOB yTI-
panjIeNMR  HEKOMMEeDTecwoi
oprasxaaliMey uIX  OpPraHos
Hal30Pa 34 ee JeqTelhHO-
CTHH., 8CTy yRalaHHuIe JuULa
COCTOAT € ITHMH Opramaa-
UKMAMy MIM TpakIAHAMK S
TPYIOBLIX OTHOMIEHHUKX, go-
JAOTCR YHACTHMKAMH, Kpe-
IuTODaMM ITHUX OPraHm3almet
anbo COCTOAT ¢ ITHMy IPaMm-
JaHaMy B GIHIKAX POICTBEH-
Hb{X OTHORIGHHAX WIK ABIA-
OTCA  KpeIuTopaMy  3THX

S
8

rpaxzad. [IpH JTOM ywkasau-
Hble OPraHmM3aLtM HIM rpa-
AaNa ABJAAICTCA [OCTaBLUMKE-
vy ctoBapoB (yeiyr) ang me-
KOMMEDHEeCKOR OPrakudauvH,
RPYTTHbLMH rorpedureaadu
TOBapog (YC:1yT), TpOMIBO IN-
MbIX HEXOMMeDYecxoH opra-
HK3aumnen, BIAZeT uMyllle-
CTBOM, KOTOPO€ [ONHOCTHIO
M yacTHYHo  ofpazosado
HEKOMMEPYECHOR oprapgnusa-
Wwien, LI MOIYT  H3IBJIEKATH
BbIrQSy M3 NMOJIbLJIOBAHMA, pac-
nopAskeHNA KMYILLCTSOM He-
KouMMepyeckoll OpramMoalu.

SauxTepecoBamiocTs g C0-
BeplieHHy HEXOMMepuecxon
OPrakulausen Tex WIM KMMBIX
JeAcTouA, B TOM yucle 3
CoBefWIeHNH clrenox, BJaeYeT
Ja cofod xordange HHTEDe-
Con JasKTrepecoBatHbiy JxU
4 Hex0MMANYeCcKOR Oprauy-
3Jaiznu,

2. 3aMHTePDeCOBAMMble JNIUA
06A33HE 000a0IATL HHTEpe-
Chl NexoMMepYecxoA OpraHhn-
3aluKK, npeskle BCErD B OTHO-
LIeHH¥ Leney ee AeATENLHOC-
TH, ¥ HBe IQJNKHR! HMCIIONLIO-
B2Th BO3MOMHOCTH HeKOMMeD-
YecCKor OPraHMlanmMmM MIAKM I0-
ITYCKaTh MX MCTIOAL30OBaMMe B
MHBIX UeJAX, TIOMMMO npely-
CMOTREHHLIX YNIPeIUTeNbHLIMK
AOKYMeHTaM¥  HexOMMepYec-
KOt OPraHUIALNH, '

.Ilon TepMUHOM «BOIMOMKHO-
CTy HexoOMMepYecxon  opra-
HM3IAUUN> g UETIAX  HACTOH-
el  CTaTL¥ noMHMMaloTes
NMPHUHAZNENAUTHe HeKOMMeD-
YeCKod OPrAHM3AUMK HMyMIe-
CTBO, MMYWecTBeHHLIe ¥ He~
KMYIIecTBeMIble NIpaBa, BO3-
MOXKEOCTH B 06Jacry mpen-
OPHHEMNMATEILCXON  AeRTelh
HOCTH, MHOODMALMR ¢ Jed-
TEILHOCTH Y RIIHAX Hexou-

fnasa V. ¥YMPABNEHWUE HEKOMMEPYE-
CKOH OPTAHM3ALIMEH.

“

CraToa 28. OcuoBy; ympas-

SHEHA HEXOMMEPUecKoy opra~

HH3IAIHeA

Crpyxrypa, woMmeresmimg,
TNOPANOK DODMHMDOBamma y
CDOK [TOTHOMOTH OpraxoB
YIIPaRTIeNHMA HexOMMenyecxo
OPraHM3IaUMEs, MOPAIOK TIPH-
HATHA MMH pelleyujs U Bhic-
TYIJIRHKA OT WMEHM HexoM-
MepYecKxOA ODralMlallel  Yyc-
TAHABIAXBAKTCE YYPEIHTEIL-
HBIMH JOKYMEHTaMH MHeXOM-
sepwecxos‘;_ OPFaHK3aAUMy B
COOTHETCTBHHK ¢ HACTOAIUMM
DezepanpHEIM 3aKOHOM K
WHBINK (Pelepa.ibibiyy 3axo-
HaMH,

CraTeg 29, Bulamouir opraw
YODaABIEHUR Hexommepgec.
KOK OpraBM3anuen

1. BolciinMy OpraxaMu yrr-
PaBNeMA HEeXOMMEDYeCKHMH
OPraHU3AUNAMH B COOTIETCT~
BUU ¢ KUX YUPEINTENLHLIMH
AOKYMEHTAMH ABAAIOTCA:

OPTaH YpaBIeHMR A aBTO-
HOMMOA HexoMymepyecwo® OpP-
raHMIAK

17 kQdLternanbublit — --BBHICHDBAN - ... .

ofitee cobpanwe wieHOB
218 HeKOMMepYecKorg naprT-
RepeTsa, accouramy  (cow-
3a).

Ilopralok ynpastemmus HoH-
JoM ollpeleadeTcR erg YyCra-
POM.

Cocrap ¥ XOMIeTeMUMA op-
rados YTPaBneHus odllece-
seHHbiMy W PEIUTHMOIHBIMK
opranuaaumaMy  (obveanme-
HAAMH) YCTAHABIMBAKOTCR B
CoOTBETCTBHY C JaKkoHaMy o
orux oprapManusx (ofwesx-
HeMHAX). .

1. Oéidakan dyrruma ssic-
JIero OPraMda YmIJaBIeMHN we--
KOMMBPYECKOK Oplarnoc..,.
et — obecnevenrue cobnone.
HHZ HEKOMMEDIeCKO  Opra.
Hu3aUuKey; UENEH, B  asrepe-
€aX KOTOPBbIX OHA 6GhLina cos3.
naHa,

3. K xouMneTerinty Bhicierg
opraHa ynpaBieHXAa HeKom-
MepIeckon OPraHMlauMeR oy
HOCUTCR pellieHMe clexyo-
LMX BOMDOCOB!

K3IMeHeHMe YCTaBa ~HEKOM. -

MepyYeckon ODPraHM3auXK;

Mepuecikon oprammam,
MMEOUWAaAa TR Hee LeHHOCTS.

3. B cayuae, ecai aammoe-
DECOBAHHOE JHUO HMESy 33
HHTeOeCOBAHHOCTh 3 Cle.lke,
CTOPOHO; KOTODOf ARBIKETCSH
Ky HamepeBaercsy GuiTh He-
KoMMeDueckag OPraMM3auusA,
4 Taxme B IY4Hae  KHOrO
IPoTHROpEYHA HHTepecoB

YKA3AHHOCG JIHUA 1 HexOM-
MedYecxoi QpraHM3arsa B
OTHOWe sty  CYleCTBYIOUen
WIH Tpeantosiaraeyos clenki:

OHO 0JA33aHO cooSliuTy O
CB0eR  JaMHTeNeCcIBAHHOCTH
OPrary yrnpamieHHA npexoM-
Menyecxon ODraAHA3AUUER UIH
oprany HB3J30pa 33 ee nef-
TEILHOCTHIQ 10 MOMeNTa NDH-
HATHA pellfedHMA o 3aKIHOwe-
HAY cIednA:

Cleaka ZoNIdHa 6bdry oo~
fpexHa opraHosM yTpaRTerms
HeXOMMEPHerKon  ODTaMyu3a-
LIMEH WIH ODraHOM HAJJ0pa 32
€e JeATeILHOCTSIO,

4. Czenxa, s comepmeumyu

kOTODOM MMeeTCa 3JamHrepe-
COBAHNOCTS §1 KOTOPAA CcOBED-
Wexa ¢ Hapymenuem tpelo-
BaHMA R3CTOAUIeR CTaTLA,
MOxer OblTs NPUIHARA CYIOM
He e HCTIMTeLHOMR,

JanHTepecoBaHtOe U0
HeCgr nepex HexoMMeDUeC-
KOA OpPraHMaalmest orsercr
BEHHOCTS 3 paduepe YOLITKOR,
NIPMWIMHeHHLIX KM ITOX He-
KOMMEDYeckosr opraHmM3almu,
Ecau y6eiTxst npuaurenny ue-
KOMMEDIECKO)y OPradu3anuy
MECROILIOHMIH 3ayrrepeco-
BAHNLIMH JHaMM, HMX oTEReT-
CTHEHHOCTE mepel] HexoMMep-
YeCKOH onraHulaumen ABIA-
eTCA CONUIADHON,

onpelenewue  QnpHOPKTST-
Hblx HanpaBJedMyd QesTenb-
HOCTy  HEeKOMMEDPYeCKo# OD-
raMu3auxy, NpPBRuUMnes Qop-
MUDOBAKKA ¥ HUCIOTEIOBARMA
ee MMYIlecTsa,;

ofpadoBaKue MCIIOAHUTANE-
HbIX OPraNoOB HeKoMMeDuec-
KOW OPraMM3aluu y J0Cpov-
HOe TPexpalieHKue UX moOdN-
HOMOYMHA;

YTBEDMIeHHe TOROBONG OT-
Yerta y romosore Oyxralilrep-
cxoro Ganaxce;

yTBepHIeHe HHAHCOBONO
nNaHa HEKOMMEDYeCKOR opra~
HM3AUKXM y BHECEHME j Hero
HIMEHEHHK;

co3laH¥e PUIMATOR ¥ OTKDBI-
THe NMPEeRCTABHTENBCTE HeXOM-
Mep9IecKoy OpraMM3alIvy;

y4acTHe p EPDYTHX OprasaM-
3amax;

Peopramusanmms u  JKeu-
Jalliq HekoMMEpwecKoj op-
FaNxu3aliiy (33 wowmovedrem
SIHKBMIAUMK choxaa),



YupeznTeabHbIMy ZoKY -
MeHTaMH HeXoMMeDYecKOH
OpranulapmupK MoXer npe::y;

CMaTDHBaTHCA COdRaHKe MNOC-
TOAHHO zeWCTBYIOWErp KO-
SerKannBono opraHa ymnoante-
HMA, K seZerBii0 KOTOPOro MO-
er Oprry OTHECEHO pelllexne
BOGPOCOB, nPelYCMOTDEHHLIX

adparamy NATHIM — BOCHMbIM

HacTosmero NMYyHKTA.

Bonpocs, NPenycMoTDeH-
Hble af3auaMu BTOPBM —
YergepThiy M JeSATHIM Hac-
TORIIErp [YHKTA, oTHOCATCA
K HMEXTIOUMTEILHOR xoMTIe-
TeMUAy pbiclliero opraHa
YIIDaBJICHKA HeKOMMepyec-
KOR opraxHudallnest,

4, Ofinee cobpaHue y1eHOB
HexoMMepUecold QpraHu3da-
UMy WIK 3aceladie KOdNEru-
anpHOro pbicillero OpraHa yri=
paBieHuR HexoMMepiecKon
oDraHM3alMelt  [TPaBOMOYHO,
ecau Ha yxasamwoM  cobpa-
HHy WM 3acelaHuwy npucyT-

<«gyer Gojlee [IONOBKHHLI erd

.eHOoB,

PemeHpe Yxa3aHBOTO o0~
ilerg cobpaHus xiIu Jacexa-
HMA OPHHIMAeTCA OOMLIIHH-
cTBOM T[OROCOB “1eMOB, Ipy-

204

CYTCTIVIOWHX  Ha codpamict
WaH 3aceaHmu, PewedNmne 5.
wero CoOpaHKA HaIR Jaceza-
HItR MO PONPOC3IM HCKTIOUK-
TEALKROK KOoMOeTeMHy BhiC-

" wero opraHa yrpaslIedHR He.

“OMMes9eCcxO¥ OpraHuIatxen
oMMANALTCA eJMHOrIacHo
Axn KBAIHOHLHDOBAYHL X
JoAbLUMNCTRAM ™MAOCPY § SO-
QTBET Tonn « HalTORLUN Vo=
JeDasbHhbiy 3AKOHOM, WENIMY
elepasbHhIMH 3aKOHaMyu X
yyYpelanTeNpbMM  ROKYMEH-
=aMu. .

1Ty aBTOHOMHOR HeXOM-
MEpPIeCKHON . DPragM3almun K-
13, ABAAIOWMECHK paborHuxa-
My ITOI HeKOMMeEpP4eCcxon OP-
rasMlaumMu, He MOryT COCTaB-
Jarh Gonee wem OLRY TPeTH
obllero YwCI3a YIEHOB KoOJTe-
IMaJLHOTO Bbiclllero  OpraHa
YNpaBaeHUA aPTOHOMHOA He-
KQMMepYeckoit opraHudaumedr.
¥HexoMmepueckan OPraHu-
3anusa He BOpaBe OCYIIECTB-
JMATH  BHULIATY BOIHATPANIE-
HIA 4ieHay ee pbICIIEro ov-
reEa ymnpaBaeuus 2a BLINOJ-
HEHME MM} BOIJOKEHHBIX Ha
muX GYHKIIOL a3a uCKIIoYe-
HMEey KOMIEHCAUMH DACcXOZO0B,
BETNOCPENCTBEHHO CBAJIAHIbLIx
¢ yuacTuen B palore Bbice~

CTaTha 30. HCOOMEUTENE HBIN
OpPraB MexOoMMEDTIECKOH Opra-
BH3IAOMK

1. McrmoauurenpHhii  oprad
HexoMMepyYecKon opranu3a-
uns mg:}—_ﬁm KONIerH-
ATLHBIWH (MK} €IMHOIHY-
HBIM. yHIecTBNAeT reKky-
Ilee PYKOBOACTBO RERTENbHO-
CTbia HeKOMMepYecxkosn op-
ragusaumy fonorveren
BbiCilledY OOFaHy YIpasie-
HMR HeKOMMep4ecCxkos; opra-
HH3aLKeH.

2. K xoMOeTeHUMH uCImoga-
HUTEeNpHOro OPraHa  HewoM-
MepuecKon gpraHmdalyry OT-
HOCHTCA pellledwue pCex BOMfI-
pOCOB, HOTODble He COCTABIA-

10w HCKTIOUHMTENBHY1y KOMITE-
TEHUMIO APYrux OPraHgos ymu-
paBJIeHHA HEeKOMMEeDPIecKoHr
oprasgMlatiues, onpenenes-
Hyio HacToRmuM Degepagn-
HblM 3aKOHOM, MHbIMK Qere-
PalsHBIMKM 3aKOHAMH ¥ yd-
PeIHTENbHELIMH  JOKYMerrra-
My HexOMMepyecKOit opra-
HU3a A,

o Oprada yIpasBJIeHEnd.

Fnasa V. HEKOMMEPYECKHE OPTA-
HU3ALMHM M OPTAHBI NOCYLAPCTBEH-

HOW. BJIACTH

CraTtna 31, OxomoMHIecxag
TONIEPIKKD WEKOMMEPTECKKX |
OPraHH33OHHA OPraEaMH IO-.:
CYRADCTBEHHOK BJIACTH x Op=-
ragaMy MECTHOLG OAMOYHODAB- !
deanus :

1. Oprare] rocylzapcrBeH-
HOJ BJIACTH X QPraxbl MetT-
HOl'o CaMOYIIPaBIeHHA co3ja-
IOr [OCYZapCTEeHHEIE M MY-
AUMIZAIbHBle  FYPeKIeHus,
JaAKTATIAAIOr 33 HUMHU pyyIDe-
CTE A npaBe OMNEPATHBHOIO
VIIDIBIEHMA B COQTBETCTHIGA
¢ TIpaxkzamcxuM  KOZEKCOM
Pocsumcxon Derepaliuy H
OCYLUIEeCTBIAAIOT Mx  IIOJHOe
MU HaCTHUHOe (HHAHCHDO-
BaHMe.

OpraHsi rOCY 1A PCTBEHHON
BRACTH y OPraHsl MecTHOIC
caMOyIIpaBiIeHHA B ITpeneIax
CS0e5 KOMIIeTeMU H MOTYT
OKAJblpaTs, HEXOMMEeDPYelKAM
opraHM3alMAy SIKoHOMHYEC-
KYIO [TOLIeDHKKY B PAITHYHBIX
opMax, B TOM 9Txciae:

npesocrasiiede g cooTseT-
CTBHMH C 3aKOHOZATENRLCTBOM
Abror 10 yiiJaTe HAIOMoB, vad-
MOMEHHBIX y MHBIX C60DOB M
naTemer HeKOMMepYecKHM
OPraHK3alKAM, COARAHMHbIM B
61arOTBOPHTENbHLIX, obpa-
30BaTENLHLIX, KYALTYPHBIX X
HaydHbIX UeJAX, g UexAx OX-
PaHnl IMOPOBLA IPa)miaH, pas-
BIeTHA DUIMYECKONR KYABTYPSL
H CIIOpTA, XPYTHX yCTAHROBAEH-
HbIX S3aKOHOAATENLCTEOM Lie-
JAX, ¢ YYeTou OPraHK3aIHoH-

HO-NPAaBORLIX OPM  HEKOM-

mepYeckux OpraHu3alng,
pelocrasieNne HexoMMep-
HeCKHM OopraMmMl3alHAM HHbIX

WAM HacTHWHpe ocsoSoNCe
HAe Or [MiarThl 3a [OAL3OBA-~
e [OCYZADCTSEHHBIM K XY~
EAUICMATIRREy HXYDIeCT3OM!
Taduemedye cpe=y REXOM-
MeDTeCKIX OPram(danxi  Ha
OHKYTOCHOR 0CHOBs rOCYSAD-
CTREHHLIX M MYHEMIHIIAILERDL
COUMHAIBHLIX 3aKaAJOB;
mpefacTaggeNMe. B CooTERET-
CTEMHM C 3aKOHOM JSIOT 110
yTLlaTe Hagoros I'paxIanmaM
H IOpAIMYEeCKMN JTHlIAM, OKa-
SRIBACLDEN HexouMepIec-

KMX ODraKAIALMAM MaATEPH- |
! HHIANNH -

ANBETX NOLIEPIKKY,

2, E: Jonycxaercs mpelo-
crazgedHHe abror o yuIJaTe
HAJOTOB B MHIUBHIYITHHOM
TIOPSZXe OTISNLEBIM HEKOM-
MepYeCKyM opraHm3alvMad, a
TaxKKe OTAENLHbIy [PaKIA~
HaM X ODUEMYECKHMM JHLAX,
OKA3LIBAKLIKM ITHM HeKOoM-
MepyecKuu OpragM3alUuAy:
MaTepHANLHYo NMOKIEPHKKY.

Crarsa 32. Koarpoa, 33 Je-
ATeILBEOCTHIO HeEXoMMepJec-
KOH OPraEH3AUHH

1. HexoMuepueckaa oOpra-
HXzamna Berer Oyxrarrep-
CKHA vyeT K CTATHCTHIETKYIO
oTYeTHOCTL B MMOpPRIKE, yCTa-
HOBIIeHHOM J3aKOHOIATESTIL-
cTBoM Poccuiicxon Pelepa-
pad i oy
HexoMwepyuecxaq  OPranu-
3aUKA mpezocTaBiaer WASID-
Mallylo o cPoeq FeATEIbHOC-
TH oPraHaM roCY3IapCTBEHHOR
CTaTHCTHKHM H HAJOroBbly OP-
raKay, yypemMTeXRM y HHBIM

HuaM p COOTBETCTEBHK C 3a-.
KOHOZaTelbCTBOM POCCHHCKON -

Denepaunn y ywpeauTeIbHbi-
MK JOKYyMeHTaMy HexoMMeD-

2. Pa3mepsl 3 CTPYRTYDA
DOXDNOp HexoMMepyecxod op-
raHMIALNH, A TAKIKE CZeleHHA
0 paddepax ¥ COCTaBe UMY
olecTsa HEROMMEDWEeCKOH oP-
ragK3anMK, o ee Pacxonax.
YHCIIeHHOCTH H CcOCTaBe pa-

50TuuKOB, o ormaTe #X TPY-
2a. 06 McroaL3oBaHKy Sedsos-
Me3ZHOro TpyZa [paXiIax 3
JeSTEnIbHOCTH HekaMmepwec-
KO opraHm3aiity He  MOTyT
Gblpy, mpesMeroM XOMMEDUeC-
KOW T3AHB.

crnasa vi. 3AKJHOYHTEABLHLIE ONC.

WEHMSA

”

Cratha 33, .OxmercrmeR- .
pelle Ko

HocTy, mexoMMepReckoi dpral,

1. HexomuepHecxan opra-
Hm3alig B caydae Hapyme-
EXg HACTORWIerc SPelepasn-
HOTO 3aKHOHA HeEceT oTBeTC™
BeHHOCTL B COOTBETCTBMH C
3aKOHOZaTeNLCTBOM  Poceun-
cxoir DemepallHn.

2. B cayqae, eciI¥  HEKOM-
mepyeckans OPraHH3aIMA cO-
BeprIMia HAeACTBMA, MPOTHBO-
peyallige ee UETAM ¥ HaCTO-
AlleMy DelepanbHOMY 33aKO-
HY, HeXOMMep4YecKoH OpraHu-
sanuy poxer OblT, BRIHECEHO
npelyTmpexKieHKe B ITHCbMeH-
Hoit (popMe QPraHoOM, ocylle-
CTBIIRIOMINM roCyRapcTBeH-
V10 PerucTpalyio opuIindec-
K¥xX KLU, KIM ITPOKYPOPOM
BHeCceHo nnpencTaBiAeHHKE
ycerpaHeHuH HapylleHHR,

3. B cnyyae BbIHEGEHHA He-
KOMMEPYECKOH ODraHM3aLnK
Gollee HABYX npeaympedie-
gyt B DNHCbMeHHOR  dopue
wuau rpeicrasneHui of  yeT-
PaHeHHH HapyWIeHH HeKoM=
Mepueckasg OPFaHHIALMA MO-

ket GblTh MMKBMIHPOBAHA IO
cYZa B NOpALKE.
NOPeRYCMOTPENHOM craTbhen 19
HACTOAIZErD DelepP3TbHOrO
3aKOHA y I'pPaIaHCKMM KO-
nexcom Poccuiickoit Pelepa-

LMK,

Crarha 34, Berynemxe B
cuay HacToamero deaepaiin-
HOro JaRCHEa

1. Hacroaumit Pelepanb-
HbIj{ 38KOH BCTYIaer B CHAY
o XHR erp ODMUMANBHOTO
onySAUKOBAHNA.

2 Tlpeanosxuts Ilpeauaen-
Tv Poccurcxon Degepamuy M
MODY9IHTL IIpaBKUTEaBLCTBY
Poceuitexox Penepaliuy npH-
BecTH CBOM IrpasoBhie akThl
B COOTBETCTBHE C HACTORIUMM
PeepasIbHbIM IAKOHOM.

Tpe3unernT
PoccHitcEoir DeXEDPANHU
5. EXbIINH

Mockea, Kpexom
12 gysapg 1998 rona
Ne 7-23

" BEST AVAILABLE COPY
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Munmncrepcrso JocTHUmMy Poccniickoi @eaepauu

3aperucrpuposaHo
21 wonr 1893 1.
Perucrpaunonnsii Ne 282

.

FocyYAaPCTEEHHLIE HANQrOBLIC HHCNEKLWM 10 pec-
nybGnnkam B cocTtase Poccuickon Denepauwmw,
kpasm, o6nacTAM, aBTOHOMHbIM ©0OpaloBannam,
ropoaam Mocxse v Cankt-Mevepbypry .

MunucTtepctaa duHancos pecnybnux a coctase
Poccuinckon Depepaunn, guHanCcoesie ynpasne-

-HWA (OTAENLY) aaMUHUCTPaUNI Kpaes, odnacTen,

2BTOHOMHBIX 06pas’oBanunii, [nasHbie QuHaHco-
8bie YyNPaBnexun anAMUHKCTPauKKA roponos Mock-
8bl, CaHxkr- nerepﬁypra u Mockoscxoit obnactu

O nopsiaKe HAaNorooBHoXeHNUS FPaHTOE, nosy4aembIx
OT MHOCTPaHHbLIX Gr1ar0TBOPUTENLHBIX OpraHnu3aLmii

B cBAIn C NOCTYNAIOWmMMKU 3anpocamMu No BONPOCY
nanoroofnoxexus rpasTos OCyLapCTsgHHan Hanoro-
gan cnyxfa Poccuiickoi @eaepauny v MUHUCTERCTEO
¢unancoa Poccuickon Oenepauny coobwaoT cnenyo-

ee,

m.’1:':;1 TCPMUHOM -rpam- AnA Uenen Kanoroobnoxexus
noMMMaDTCR UENesule CPeacTsa, NpeaocTasnremsie
6e3803Me3AH0 MHOCTPaHHBIMK GNarOTBOPUTENbHBIMKU
OPraHHaUMUAMK NPEANPUATUAM, OPranU3aUuaM W ¢u-
ANHECKVM ILIAM B AEHEXHON WK HATYDANLHOR ¢opue
Ha3 MpOBEAEGHUE KayuHbiX WAU APYrMX MCCNEnQBaHui,
ONBITHO-KOHCTPYKTOPCKNX PaboT, 0byuenue, nesexve u
APYTUE UEAK C NOCNEAYIOWMM OTHETOM 06 ¥x UCNONB3O-
BaHuU.

B cooTteetcTaun ¢ nywxtoM 10 cTateu 2 3axoWa
Poccunckoir Denepaunn 0T 27.12.91 <O nanore Ha
Apubhifis NPEANPURTHA M OpranMn3aunis SIAXeTHuE
y4peXAEKUA ¥ APYIHE HEXOMMEDYECKNE OPraHn3auwn
YONaunsawT Hanor Ha Npubbifib, €CAN OHM wMeKT
00X0AL OT NPEANPURMMATENLEKON ABATENLHOCTH, B
3TOM CAyXae OKW YANaYMBaK T HANOT C NONY4aeModn oT
TaKOW AGATEALHOCTH CYMMb! NPEBLIUIEHUR 20X0L08

 Haa pacxofamun.

He asnmoTcs 06LexTOM 06N0XEHWA HANOCOM Ha NPK-
6Lt rPaHTH, NONYMEHHBIE OT UHOCTPaHHLIX GnatroTea-
MTENAbHBIX ONraHan3auni S10 AKETHBIMY YIDEXAEHUAMK
U APYruMu !gexommepuecmmu OpraduaatmamMu ana
CYWecTaNe MR UENLELIX NPOrPamMM, OTHOCRLLMXCR X HX

Ta8HOW DeATeNbHOCTN. ™ -

Opranusaumm, NONYNMBIINME FPaHTH, NO OXOMMaHWW
OTYETHOrD FoQa NPeACTasAMIOT B HANOrOBLIA Oprax no
MECTY CBOEI0 HAXOXKACHUA OTHET O MOCTYMBLUMX CYMMAX
# 06 mx pacxoposanun. B caywae wenonsaosanng npen-

OCTEBNEHHLIX CPRACTB HE NO HaZHAUSHWIO CYMM3 3TUX

CpEenCcTE B3ILICXMBAETCR B YCTARHOBNEHHOM NOPRAXE B
noxon denepansHoro Goaxera.

B ocTansHux cnydasx COrnacHa NyWkty 6 cratew 2
YX233HHOr0 33K0OHA CyMMbl CPEACTB, NONyMeHHuix §e3-
803ME3AHO OT APYrHX NPELNPUATHIA U OPraRn3aumi, Npu
OTCYTCTBUM COBMECTHON ORTENLHOCTW BXMOvAIDTCR B
COCTas AOXOLOB OT BHEPEaNM3ZUMOHHBLIX ONEepauvi w

i

nognexar uanoroo&noxeumo 8 YCTBHOBAEHHOM NODAA-
Ke.

Mo cubicny cTaten 3 (noanyHxT «3» nyHkTa 1) 33x0M3
PCOCP o7 07.12.91 <0 noaoxogHoM HaNore ¢ dusnuec-
XWX Avue FPaHTH, NPeaocTasnnemMsie HuInyeckuM an-
UBM MHOCTP3HHbIMK GNaroTEOPUTENLHEIMU OPraHK3aUM -
AMK, HE BKNIGHAIOTCR 8 COBOXYNHLIA FOA0B0H ROXOR 3THX
mu u, cnenoea*renbuo, uanorooﬁnoxenmo He noane-
Xart.

Ecnu rpaum nony«euuue NPERNPUATHAMHK, QPraKHu-
3aunsmu (B TOM wncne SiomxeTtHbiMu), Goinu uenons-
30BaHL! UMK HA MATePHansHOe nooulpeHwue (8 aeHex-
HOW WNW HaTypansHOW GOPME) CBOUX COCTPYAHMKOB,
TO BuINAAYENHbIE CYMMBI noanexar obnoxeHuk noao-
XOQHBIM HANOrOM 8 COOTBETCTEHK ¢ YKa3aHKeiM 3ako-
HOM,

flonyuenve rpaHTOs NPEANPURTMRMK, OPrakn3aurammv
n GrInyecxnmMut NUUaMU 0T MHOCTRaHHbIX BnaroTeocu-
TensHsIX OPraHM3auwi QONAXHO ObiTe NOATBEPXREHO
€IPAsKOA KOMNETEHTHOrO OPfaHa WKCCTPAHHOro rocy-
£3pCTBa {C 328EPEHHBIM NEPESOAOM Ha DYCCKMA R2WK) O
TOM, 4TO RaHHan 6AaroTsOPUTENbHER OPraKuIauMf 3a-
PerucTpupOBaHa B YCTAHOBNSHHOM NOPRAXE B COOTBET-
cT8vK C 3axouonarenu::'raou 3TOrO MHOCTPAHHOTO FOCY-
Aapcrsa. ) e

Cpeactea s neuexnom MK HATYNANLHOM BLIDIXEHUK,
npenocTagnsembie §83803MeIAR0 MHOCTPIHHBIMK 1OFK-
OVMECKMMU NMUEMM, HE ABARIOWUMUCR GNaroTecpHTEN,-
HBIMY ODraHU3AUMAMM, 3 TIICKE FPZKOAH3MK, HE RBARIDT -
CS FPAHTaMK W MOANEXAT HANOrOO6NOXENMIO HA OOCLLIMX
OCHOBAHWAX B COOTBETCTBMM C ABWCTBYIOLINI wanoro-
6biM 33X0KOAATENLCTEOM,

Samecm'renu Pyxoaonwrenu rocuancrcnyxcGu
. JaPoceiu - rocynapcraennuu
coseTink Hanoroeok cnyxGul 1 panra

e g 0. M. ¥ nnunoe

3amec*m1'enh Muuucrpa ¢vnancoes Poccuite-
Kon Qeaepaunmn
. C.B.lfopBaues
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: N - MPOIPAMMA ) ' .
‘ FTOMOULI H PA3BHTHS A ' ’
_ P MI R HELP AND DE© EL()P.\H-'.\.'N
} A PROGRAM

-— KPATKOCPOYHbIN KPEAWT PA3BUTHA"

- Hata

1. ®.N.0. depmepa

2. PericTpauiioHHsIi HOMep
3. Paiion KILIaK COBX03

4. ObpeM 3emun depmMepa ra

5. TlpaBo Ha semmo

A. CobctBeHHocTs epmepa b. Apenna nert

I. Kpemut IIITPII

1. CeMeHa B KOJHYyecTBe
2. Foproyee J/I13eb N/6eH3NB
3. MinepanbHoe ynoGperie ceanTpa KT, ammothoc KT

I1. Ycnosna BosepauieHns KpemmTa

1. Bo3spat ceMsH, BKIIoYas NAaTy 3a KpeIHT B pasmepe 10% oT XonnydecTBa, NepelaHHOTO B Ka4ecTBe
KpemuTa
2. 3a _ n HeH3uHa
3. 3a _ n mazenn
4. 3a _ KT ceaMTphl
5. 3a _ xr amModpoca
Hroro x Bo3spary

ﬁaﬁﬁﬁa

I11. O6ume npasmia

1. HesaBichMo oT BceX NpHYMH, CTOPOHE! JOMXHE! BbINOMHATL CBOM 06s3aTelIbeTBa. B cayyae MX HeBHIIONHEHNA
HapyllilTeNb NpHBAeKaeTcH K cyaAe6HON OTBETCTBEHHOCTH.

2. IIITPIT c HapyumTensMM, He BEMIOQIHMBLUINMY CBOM 0613aTehCTBa, NOBTOPHLIX JOTOBOPOB He 3aKJIIOYAET.

Tlonyqare.s Onpextop ITITPII

* DT0T noKyMeHT - obpasell KOTOBOPa, KOTOPhI HEKOMMepyecKas opranusainia “ITporpamMMa noMolm W pa3suTHa
Hampa-TITIPIT” sakniodaeT co CBOMMM KiMeHTaMH. [Iporpamma Ha Ilammpe opHeHTHpoOBaHAa Ha pa3IBHTHE
He3aBHCHMBIX (pepMEePCKHX X03iiCTB, cnocobHuIX ofecneyiTh cHabXeHHe pernoHa npoxyktamu nuramd. TTTIPI1
npenocTapiseT thepMepaM KPeIHTH! B Billie CeMAH, TOIUIMBA H ynobpenuii. [Liata 3a KpeMTH npeacTaBnaseT coboit
QacTh ypoxad ¢epMepoB B HaTypalbHoi ¢opme. CxnamsiBaloutiiics TakMM ofpa3joM pe3eps 3epHa M IpYTHX
CEJIbCKOXOMMCTBEHHEIX KYNLTYP MCTONbIyeTcs AAS CO3NAHMA ceMeHHoro n obMenHoro ¢onnos. 3TH ¢OHIH
TNpenTionaraeTcA HCMONB3OBATh MUIA TIPOAOAXeHHS W pacumpedns nporpamMM IITIPI1 B GymyuieM Kax omMH M3
MHCTpyMeHTOB ofecriedeHHs YCTORYMBOCTH OPraHI3alii Nocse 3aBeplleHMs (HHAHCHPOBaKMA No IpaHTy “Yopin
Jleprnur”. :

o R an A S D B G o0 WS an = e !
LA |
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AKT N

BCKPbLITUA ALUMKA AN NOXEePTBOBaHUNA,

r. “ " 199 r.

Komuccus B cocTaBe
1.

{DamwNuA. JOMKHOCTL 8 ODFAHRIAUNK)

2.
3.

npouasena BCKPbITUE AWMKa NS NOXKEPTBOBaHWA, YCTaHOBNEHHOO MO ajpecy

ana cbopa cpepcts 8

Nonbay

{H33asaHue ODraHK3aUWM)

ANS peanuaauunu nporpaMmmel

(y¥33aTo HAIBAHME NDOMPAMMbI)

BoillueHa3BaHHbIW  AWMK  ANS  NOXEPTBOBAHWA  YCTaHOBNEH MO pelleHuio

oT

{yx33aTb KauMENOBAMMS OPrana)

Mpu BCKPbLITUK B ALLnKe ANs noxepTBOBaHWUA HaxoAunocob

pyb6new.

YKaaaHHasn Bbllle nporpamMma ocyujecTenaeTca HenpaBWUTeNbCTBEHHON
(HerocypapcTBeHHOW M HeMyHULWNaNbLHOW) HEKOMMEpPYECKOW opraHuaauyuveid M uyenu
3TOW Mporpammbl COOTBETCTBYIOT LenAaM BnaroTBopuTenbHOW AeATenbHOCTH,
onpeaeneHHbiM B CcT. 2 ®enepansHoro 3akoHa "O GnaroTBopuTenbHOW AEATENbHOCTH

v BnaroTeopuTEeNbHLIX OpraHnaayuax”, a UMeHHO:

(¥K33aTh XOMKDETHME HACTH CTATMK 2)

UneHbl koMuccuu:
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AKT N

npuemMa fleHeXHbiX cpeACcTB OT aHOHMMHOTO XepTBOBaTenA

Meol, Hmxenognucaswnecs,

1.

189 _r.

(yrazaTe QaMuNu0. IOFOXKHOCTL B OPFaHM3I3UNK)

2.

3.

cocCTtasunnu HaCTOﬂLLLMﬁ akKT B8 TOM, 4TO HaMW Ccero

6nar0TBopwreanoe noxepteoBanHwWe AnsA

4yucna

ObiN0  MPUHATO

{yxa3aTs ODrann3IaUMOHHO-NDABOBYIC (ODMY, HAIBAHUE ODFIHUIAUNN)

Ha ocCyulecTeNneHue nporpamMmmebl

{YXa3aTe HaIsanue NDOFPAMMbI. MK KOHKDETHLIE NYHXTW NDOTPaMMBl, #CNK TAKDBD GuiNo noxenanue GnaroTeoputenn)

B CymMMe

OT uanueckoro vya, noxenaswero ocTaTbCA HEUIBECTHbIM.

Yka3zaHHas Bbille nporpamMmMa ocywlecTBnaeTCA

HenpasWUTeNbCTBEHHOW

(HerocyfnapcTBeHHOW U HEeMyHULMNanbHONW) HEKOMMEpYEeCcKoW opraHusauweir v Lenu

3TOA nNporpaMMbl COOTBETCTBYIOT UenaM OnaroTBopuTenbHOW [LEeATenbHOCTH,

onpepenexHeiM B cT. 2 ®epepansHoro 3akoHa "O GnaroTsopuTentHoin ResTenbHOCTH

v BnaroTBOpuTENbHLIX OpraHn3auunsx”, a UMEHHO:

{yxa3aTh xOMKDETHLIE YACTH CTTBM 2)

Noanucu:
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1
AOroBOP N
r “ " 199__ r.
, UMeHyemas B AanbHeviiem
{RAWMER0B3NWE OprannIauvng
Bnarotsoputens, B nuue , AencTayloulero

(ROMXHOCTb. DamMANnR]

Ha OCHOBaHWW ’ , C O4HOWM CTOPOHEL, U

(ycTaBa.npwnala J0BEPeHHOCTH)

, UMeHyemas B flanbHellueM Bbnarononyvartens,

THaWMENGBaNWE OPranwWIauving
B nute ' , DEWCTBYIOLLEro Ha OCHOBaHUK

VAO/THHOCTR. @aMHNwA)

, C APYroi CTOPOHBI, 3aKMOYUNKY HACTOALNA

(V384 NpWKA1a. Q0BC0ENFOCTH)
AO0rosop o HWXecneaytouieM:

1. bnaroTeoputens 6essoamesgHo nepenaet Bnarononyyarenio AeHeEXHbIe
CpeAcTBa AN\ peanvaauuu 6naroTBOpUTENbHBLIX NPOrpamMM:

(Haisanwe Nporpamm)

{yXE33T0 XONADBTHEIE NyRKTEl NDOTDANMGI, 8C/TH NEOGXODAMO)
2. CymMa nepBoro nepeyncneHus cocTasnser

{yka3aTe Cymmy)

u nepeuvcnaeTca bnaroTsoputenem Ha cyeT BnarononyvaTtens 8 TeyeHue 10
AHeW nocne noanucaHUs HacTosLero 4orosopa.

3. Obuwas cymma Ge3so3ame3gHOW NOMOLWM U CPOKW ee NpefocTaBneHus
CornacoBbLIBAKTCA CTOpoHamu NO Mepe npepocTasneHus bnarononyuyartenem
OTYETOB O pacxoAo0BaHUU CPeACTB.

4. bnaroTsopuTens Bnpase yka3biBaTb NepevucneHHbie Bnarononyyartenio
CpeAcTBa B CBOWX OTYeTHbIX [JOKYMeHTax B  KayecTBe B3HOCOB Ha

GHEFOTBOPMTeﬂbele uyenv s .
» (F¥azaTs OpFanMIALMOHAO-NDABOBYI0 (BOPMY LRATONONyaTensy

Mpy ncuncneHun Hanora Ha npwubbinb, obnaraeman 6a3za ymeHblwaeTCcs Ha
Cymmy B3HOCOB Ha GnaroTsopuTenbHble Lenu, Ho He Gonee Tpex npoueHTOs
obnaraemoit Hanorom npubeinu. Mpu Nepegavye BIHOCOB Ha 6naroTBopUTENbHBIE
uyenu 6onee, yem ogHomy Bnarononyuartento, obujas cymma ykasaHHbIX Bbille
B3IHOCOB He MOXEeT npesbiWaTh NRTU NpoueHToB obnaraemoit Hanorom nNpudebinu.
(n. 1 cT. 7 3akoHa Poccuiickon Pegepayumn “O Hanore Ha Npubbinb NPeAnpUsTUiA
W opraHusayuia™).

5. bnarononyyaTens 06R3yeTcA UCNONbIOBATE NONMYYEHHLIE B3HOCH! CTPOro
B cooTaeTcTaumn ¢ 6naroTBopuTenbHLIMU LIeNAMU, YKa3aHHbIMU B N. 1 HACTOALWEro
forosopa. '

YKaszaHHble Lenv cooTBeTCBYIOT Uensm OnaroTsopuTensHOW AeATENbLHOCTH,
onpegeneHHbiM B cT. 2 ®epepanbHoro 3akoHa "O 6GnaroTBopuTenbHow
LeRTenbHOCTU U BnaroTeopUTEnbHBLIX OpraHusauunax” oT 7 wions 1995r, a UMeHHO:

{yxaxath KOMKDETHME NICTW CTATEH £ TedEpansHorn 33K0Ha)
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to

6. bnarononyyaten obs3yeTcR ykaabiBaTb B CBOUX  oOTdeTax,
npefocTaBnsemMeix 06UeCTBEHHOCTY U FOCYAapPCTBEHHEIM OpraHaM, MHdopMayuio
O NOCTYMNMBLUMX Ha CBOW CYeT B3IHOCAx B COOTBETCTBMU C HAaCTOSWMUM JOTOBOPOM,
Kak B3HOCkl Ha BnaroTsopuTensHbie Lenw.

7. HacToswmi forosop AewcTByeT € MOMeEHTa ero nojnucaHums obeumm
CTOpOoHamu no .

8. Bnarononyyatens obssyeTcn eXeMeCAYHO npeacTaensaTh
BnaroTeopuTenitc  nucbMeHHbiE  OTYETHI O  pacxofoBaHUK CpeacTs,
nepeuvcneHHsix bnaroTsoputenem no HacTosLLemMy 40rosopy.

9. HacToAwwin poroBop cocTaBneH B 2-X 3KIeMnnspax, No oAHOMY ANSK
Ka)X[ o CTOPOHSI.

10. Aapeca v pekBU3UTblI CTOPOH:

BnaroteopuTens: Bnarononyuatens:

Moanucu cTopoH:
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Poccuitickoe 3akoHOpaTensCcTeo 0 dannpan3Ivire.

DegepansHbii 3akoH “06 obulecTseHHbIX o6beanHeHusx"
NpuHaT NocynapcTeenHon lymon 14 anpens 1995roaa.

Cratbs 10 O6GwecTBeHHwt HoHA

O6uwiecTeeHHbit doHA ..... Leslb KOTOporo 3akn4yaetca B QOPMUPOBAHAKM  UMYyLLECTBa Ha
OCcHOBe NOOGPOBOMEHBIX BIHOCOB, UHBLIX HE 3aNPELLEHHbIX 3aKOHOM NOCTYNEHUA

Cravba 17 FocynapcTsBo v obuwecTseHHbe 06beJMHEHNS

focypapcTBeHHas NOALEPXKAa MOXET BbipaxaTbCs B BuAe Lenesoro (PUHAHCUPOBAHMA
0TAENbHLIX OBLIECTEEHHO NONE3HLIX NPOrpaMM OBLECTBEHHBIX 06bEAUHEHUA NO UX 3aRBKaM
(rocypapcTBeHHbie rpaHTh)

Cratbs 31 UcTouHrkn HopMrpoBaHua UMyLiecTBa o6LLECTBEHHOrO 06beANHEHN]

WUmywiecTeo obuiecTBeHHoro o6veauHeHns GOpMUPYETCS Ha OCHOBE  ..... 206poBONLHLIX
B3HOCOB W MNOXEepTBOBaHWWA, NOCTYNNEHWA OT NPOBOAMMBLIX B COOTBETCTBUM C YCTAaBOM
obwecTBeHHOro 06beAUHEHNS NEKUMA, BLICTABOK, NOTEPEN, ayKLIMOHOB, CNOPTHUBHLIX M UHBIX
MEPONPUARTHA......

..... .O6uwecTeeHHbie 06beaUHEHNS, YCTaBbl KOTOPbLIX NpefycMaTpusaloT yvacTue B Buibopax,
HE BMpase MNONy4aTh (WHAHCOBYIO W WHYI0O MaTEPUafbHYI0 NOMOWb OT WHOCTPaHHLIX
rocynapcTs, OpraHudaunin U rpaxjaH Ha OefATenbHOCTh, CBA3AHHYI0D C MOArOTOBKON W
npoeeaeHvem BuiGOPOB. '

Crates 35 YnpaBneHne uMyLLeCTBOM B OGLUECTBEHHLIX YYPEXOEHNUAX

EChn B COOTBETCTBUM C yypeaUTENbHBIMU AOKYMEHTaMn OOGWECTBEHHLIM YYPEXOEHUSIM
nNpenocTaBNeHO MPaBoO OCYWECTBAATL MPUHOCAWLYIO A0X0Ab AEATeNbHOCTb, TO AOXOAb,
NonyYeHHole OT Takon AENTENbHOCTH, .... NOCTYNAaloT B CAaMOCTORTENLHOE pacnopsXeHue
06LIEeCTBEHHBIX YYPEXAEHUA Y YUUTHIBAIOTCH Ha OTAENLHOM GanaHce.

DenepansHbiii 3akoH *0O 6:1aroTBOPUTENLHON NEATENLHOCTH U 6NaroTBOPUTENLHBIX
opraHunsaumsx”
MNpuuaT MNocypapcTeeHHon OyMon 7 vions 1995 roga

CratbR 5 YuyacTHukun GnaroTsopuTenbHon AEATENbHOCTH

Mon yvyacTHUKaMn GNaroTBOPUTENLHOM  AEATENbHOCTM  MOHMMAIOTCR  rpaxgdaHe W
1OPUAMYECKME NKUgE, OcyulecTensiowmne 6naroTBOPUTENBHYID AEATENLHOCTb, ......8 TaKxe
rpaxaaHe v lopuanyeckne nuua, B UHTepecax KoTopbiX ocywecTanseTcs 6naaroTsoputensHas
AesTensHoCTL: GnaroTeopurenu, aobpoeonbunl, Gnarononyyaren.

BraroTsoputenu - nuua, ocywecTanRwWwme 6NaroTBoOpUTENBHLIE NOXEPTBOBaHUS B hopMax:
GeckopuiCTHOR (6e3B03ME3NHOR MAW Ha NBrOTHBIX YCAOBWMRAX) nepesauv B COGCTBEHHOCTb
MMyllecTsa, B TOM uMCNie [JEHeXHbiX CPeacTs wu (Mnu) OGLEKTOB WHTENNEeKTyanbHow
COGCTBEHHOCTH;

GeckopbicTHOro (6e3BO3ME3AHONO WMAM Ha NbroTHLIX YCNOBMURAX) HafJeNeHWs npasBamu
BA3AEHNS, NONL30BAHNA U PAaCNOPSXEHNA NobuIMN 0O6bexTaMu NpaBa COOCTBEHHOCTY,
6eckopuicTHOro (6e3B03ME3AHONO WMAWM  HAa NbrOTHBIX YCNOBWSX) BbINOAHeHus paboT,
npepocTasneHunn ycnyr 6naroTBOPUTENAMU - IOPUAVHECKMMW finLIamM.
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BnaroteopuTtenn BnpaBe onpenensitb  uenM U NOPRAOK  WMCMONL3OBAHWUA  CBOWIX
NoXepTBOBaHUA.

Bnarononysatenu - nuua, nonyqarowme 6naroTBOPUTENbHBIE MOXEPTBOBAHWS  OT
6GnaroTsopurenei, NOMoLLbL AOBPOBONLUEB.

CraTtb 12 LesTensHOCTb 61aroTBOPUTENBLHOM OpraHn3aumnu

SﬂaFOTBODHTeﬂbHaR opraHn3auva BNpase 3aHMMATbCH LAEeRATEeNbHOCTbLIONO MNPUBNEYEHWIO
pecypcos n BeAeHUo BHEPEaNN3auMOHHbIX ONepauuvn.

Cratbs 15 cTouHnkn GopmrposaHna uMmyliecTea 61aroTBOPUTENLHOR OpraHvusaumm

McTounnkamn  GopmuposaHMa  vMywecTsa OnaroTBOPUTENbHOW  OpraHv3auun  MoryT
SBNATLCA:

GnaroTeopuTENbHLIE MOXEPTBOBaHWA, B TOM 4YUCNE HOCAUIME UEeNeBOR xapakKTep
(6naroTeopUTENLHLIE MPaHTH), NPenoCcTaBNAeMbie TPpaXaaHaMu W KPUANYECKUMU NULAMU B
AEHEXHOW 1 HaTypanbHon dopme;

NOCTYNNEHNA OT AERTENbHOCTM MO NPVBNEYEHWKD PEecypPCoB (MPOBEAEHWE KamMNaHwi no
npusneyeHnio BnaroteopuTeneil  ROOPOBONLUER, BKKOYAA OPraHU3aLmIio Pas3sneKkaTenbHbIX,
KYNbTYPHBIX, CTOPTUBHBIX ¥ MHBIX MACCOBLIX MEPONPUARTUNA, NPOBEAEHWE KaMnaHwi no cbopy
6naroTBOpUTENbHLIX NOXEPTBOBaHWA, NPOBEAEHVE NOTEPER N aYKUMOHOB B COOTBETCTBUWN C
3akoHopaTenbcTBOM Poccuitckon Pefepaumu, peanvsaumio MMyLWEeCTBa U NOXEePTBOBAHWA,
nocTynNuBWNX OT BRaroTeopvTenei B COOTBETCTBMN C MX NOXENAHURMMN)

Cratbs 16 UMyuwiecTBO 6naroTBOPUTENLHOR OPraHn3aLmm

B cnyuae, ecnn Gnarotaopvtenem vnu 61aroTBOPUTENLHOW NPOrPaMMOR HE YCTaHOBJIEHO
nHoe, He Meree 80% npouexToB 6NaroTBOPUTENBHOrO MOXEPTBOBAHUA 8 AEHEXHOW ¢dopme
DOKHO ObiTb MCNONL3OBaHO Ha OGNaroTBOPUTENLHBIE UENW B TeveHwe rofa C MOMEeHTa
nonydenna OnaroTBOpPUTESNIBHON OpraHu3auvend aToro NoXepTBoBaHuRA. BaaroTsopuTencHuie
NOXEPTBOBaHUA B HaTypanbHOW (OpPME HANPaBNATCA Ha GnaroTBOPUTENbLHLIE UENV B
TEYeHne OaHOr0 roAa C MOMEHTa WX NOMydeHWs, €eCi  WHOe He YCTaHOBNEHO
6naroTeoputeneM unu GnaroTBOPUTENLHON NPOrpaMMon.

Cratbs 17 BnaroTBopuTensHan nporpamma

BraroTBopuTeNbHOM NpOrpamMmon  RBNRETCA  KOMNAEKC MEPONPUATUA, YTBEPXASHHLIX
BLICIUMM OpraHoM YyNpasneHWs ONaroTBOPUTENbHOWM OPraHu3aumMen M HanpaBNEHHLIX Ha
peLlleHne KOHKPETHLIX 3a4a4, COOTBETCTBYIOWMX YCTaBHBIM LENSM 3TON OpraHn3auuv.
BnaroTeoputencHas nporpamMma BKlONaeT CMeTy npeanonaraeMbix MOCTYNNeHWR u
nNNaHVpyeMbix PacxofoB (BKOuYad - onnaTy TpyAa vy, YYacTBYIOWMX B peanvsauvu
6naroTBOPUTENEHOM NPOrPaMMLl), YCTaHaBNMBaET 3Tanbl 1 CPOKW ee peanvsaumm.

Cratbs 18 MMomnepxka 6naroTBOPUTENLHOW AEATENbHOCTM OpraHaMu rocynapcTBEHHON
BRacTn v opraHaMmv MECTHOro CaMoOynpaBneHnn

Oprans rocyfapcTBEHHOW BRAacTM W OpraHel MECTHOr0 CaMOYNPaBREHUA ..... MOCYT
oKa3blBaTb YyvacTHMKaM ORaroTBOpPUTENbHOM OERTENBHOCTV MOANEPXKY B CRSAYIOWMX
dopmMax:

..........

MaTepuanbHO-TexHuYecKoe obecnedeHve [ cybecunamposaHue 6naroTBOPUTENBHBLIX
opraHusauvn

¢drHaAHCMPOBaHWE HA KOHKYPCHOW OCHOBE GnaroTBOpUTENbHLIX NPOrpamMM, paapataTbiBaeMbix
6naroTBOPUTENbHBIMKA OpPraHU3aLNAMM.



210

Cratea 19 KoHTpOns 3a ocyuwlecTaneHnem 6naroTBOpyTENLHONR AeATENBHOCTH

BnaroteoputennHas opraHvM3auMs exerofHo npeaccTaBnseT B PErMCcTPUPYIOWMA OpraH
OTHET 0 COBEI AeRTeNsHOCTH, COAEPXALUMIA CBeAeHNS 0!
cocTase UM codepxaHun BnaroTBopvTenbHbix MAporpamM  BnaroTBopuTenbHOW
opraHMsaumu (nepevyeHb U oNNcaHne ykasaHHbiXx Nporpamm)
CpeactBa, 3aTpaveHHble Ha MyOoAMKAUMIO eXerodHoro oTyeTa W uHdopMaumm o
DERTENbHOCTU 6NaroTBOPUTENLHON OpPraHn3auvM, 3ac4MTLIBAIOTCH B KavecTse pacxoAoB Ha
dnaroteopuTensHbie uenu,
CaepeHns o paamepax v CTPyKType OOXOA0B ORaroTBOPWTENbHOM OpraHvusaumm ....... He
MOMYT COCTaBARTL KOMMEPYECKYID TanHy.
Hanoroseie oprabi OCyWEeCTBARIOT KOHTPONL 3a UCTOYHUKaMKU 80x0008 6naroTBOPUTENbHbIX
oprasusauvi, pasMepamMu nonyvyaemMbix M1 CPeACTB W yNNaTorW HANOros B COOTBETCTBUWN C
3akoHopaTenbcTBOM Poccunckon Peaepaumn o Hanorax.

Cratbs 20 OTBeTCTBEHHOCTL 6NaroTBOPUTENLHOM OPraHn3aumu

...........

Cnopei Mexay 6naroTBOPUTENLHON OPraHU3aumen n rpaxaaHamMmn v KPUOMHECKUMKU NNLAMM,
nepeynciMBLUMMKU e CpeacTsa Ha 6naroTBopvTenbHbie uenn, 06 WCNoNb3oBaHWM 3THX
CPeACTB paccMaTpUBAIOTCR B CyAeOHOM nopsaxe.

Crates 21 OcywecTeneHue MexXayHapoaHOA 6NaroTEOpMTENLHON AERTENBHOCTH

BrnaroTaoputensHan oOpraHv3auMs uvMeST Npaso Ha NonyueHwe 6NaroTBOPUTENbHEIX
NOXepTBOBaHWUA OT MHOCTPaHHLIX MPAXXOaH, NWyY 6e3 rpak1aHcTsa. a TaKke OT MHOCTPaHHLIX
M MEXAYHapOAHLIX  OpraHn3auuvi, WcrnoneaoBaHMe  yKasaHHBIX  MOXEPTBOBaHWA
OCYWECTBNNETCS 8 NOPAAKE, YCTAHOBAEHHCM HAcToRWMM DeaepantHeiM 3aKOHOM.
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TMPHTJIAIUEHHUE HA YYACTHE B KOHKYPCE
Mo NOJYYEHHIO BE3BO3ME3JHbLIX CPEACTB-T'PAHTOB
POCCHHMCKOIO ®OHOA MHPA

l.Poccuiickuii  ¢douag Mupa -  HEKOMMEPUYECKHH, HE3aBHCHMBIH,
MHPOTBOPUECKHH, 61aroTBOPHTEBHBIN ®oun, cospaH B 1990
rony, 3apeructpuposan B MuuuctepctBe HOctinunn PO (CenpertenscTso
0 perucTpauuu N 6), OCYILeCTBASET MHPOTBOpUYECKHE H
6.1aroTBOpHTENBbHBIE IpOrpaMMbl B P, CBA3aHHBIE C YKpeIUIEHHEM H
Pa3BUTHEM MEKHAUMOHAIbHBIX OTHOLUGHHH, OKasaHHeM MOMOMMHM eTepaHaM
M MHBAIMIAM, MHOrOAETHHIM CEMbsIM, JETCKHM [OMaM H¥  IIKOJaM
HHTEpPHATaM, T[OCNHTANIMM JHETCKHM KJIHHHKAM, [OMOWbL OAMHOKHMM H
HENMYIIHM,  VYHaCTBYET B BOCCTAHOBJEHHH  MNAaMATHUKOB  HCTOPHH U
KVJbTVpPEl, CNOCOOCTBYETPa3BHTHIO MEXAYHAPONHBIX HEIPABHTEIBCTBEHHBIX
CBSI3€A U KOHTAKTOB.

"BnepBuie Poccuiicknit  ¢oHm MHpa DPOBOAMT KOHKYPC (payHO)
nopacnpeae1eHiI0 rpaHToB.

Tembl FPAHTOB:

1.Ykpemnienne MHDa, ApVXOHI H coriacus MeXIY
HaponaMH,cTabiIH3alMs MeXHAMOHATbHBIX OTHOMEHHIA.

2.ConeiicTBHe pelieHHI0 COUMATbHBIX npolaem PO.

3.PasBuTHe MILTOCEDONS M r'yMaHHU3Ma.

4.PasBuTiie MEXIVHAPOAHOTO COTPVIHMYECTBA Ha
HENPaBUTE/IbCTBEHHOM YPOBHe, OOMEHHBIE NPOrPaMMBl.

Ofmas cyMMa rpaHToB, Bbij€/€HHEX Ha JaHHBI paven - 100
MIH.pyGned.

T[IponoxuTe1bHOCTD Nporpamu - He 6osee OaHOTO roza.

MuHuManbHas cymMMa rpasTa - 1 MiH. pyGaeit.

Makcumanpnas cymma rpaurta - 20 M. pyoseit.

QoHA BLIIEJASIET FPAHT NpPH YCIOBHHM, YTO COMCKATEIb HMEET He
meHeee 30 mnpoueHToB cpeacTs OT ob0mei cymmbl, HeoGxoauMoil ass
peau3aunii nporpaMmsl.

IIporpamMmbl, Ha BBINOMHEHHE KOTOPHIX NOTPeOYIOTCS CYMMbI CBBIIE
MAKCHMa/IbHOK CYMMbl [PaHTa, paccMaTpuBaThCs He OyayT.

Ilpeanoxenus Ha paccCMOTpPEHHE TPAHTOB NPHHMUMAIOTCH TOJIBKO OT
HEKOMMEPYECKHX, OJar0TBOpHTENbHBIX, OOMIECTBEHHBIX OpraHM3aluil  H
O0beIMHEHHMA, 33aPErMCTPUPOBAHHEIX B COOTBETCTBUM C  YCTAHOBJICHHBIM
NIOPSAKOM B OpraHax MOCTUUMM (KOIHMS CBHIETEJbCTBA ° O PErHCTPaLHH
[O/KHA OBbITh NMPIIOXKEHA K 3asBKE B BUAE MPWIOKEHHS).

3asBkM OyayT npHHMMaTbCS OT OOMECTBEHHBIX OpraHuW3alMit
ToMbkO Poccuitckol  Qenepaumu.  3asBKM  Ha  TIpaHT  OT  JApPYIHX
OpraHM3anui, pacrno/JIOXEHHBIX Ha TEPPHTOPHM APYIHMX TOCYNapCcTB OblBIIErO
CCCP, npunuMatecst  He  Oymyr. K paccMOTpeHHMIO  MOrvT  ObiThb
NIpPEICTaBIeHbl COBMECTHblE  3adBKM  POCCHMCKUX B 3apybexHbIX
g%x)‘aﬂusaunﬁ, PEAIH3AUHA KOTOPHIX OCYMECTBASETCH TOJIbKO HAa TEPPHTOPHHU

2.0cHOBHbie TpeDoBaHMS K 3a8BKE.

B cooTBeTCTBMM C TeMaMM TIPAaHTOB, YKA3aHHbIX B N.l., TNpOEKTH H
nporpaMMmbl,  OpEACTaBAsieMble Ha KOHKYDPC, MOJXHB cnocoGCTBOBAaTh
YYacTHI0  OpraHM3auuMH B  YKpeIwIeHMH MHpa, Apy%Obl M comiacud
MexnyHapoaamu PQ®, copeficTBHIO pemeHHs counaabHhX Tnpobnem PO,
Pa3sBHTHIO MWIOCEDAMS M TYMaHu3Ma, pasBUTHIO  MEXIAYHapOAHOTO
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COTPYAHMUECTBA Ha HENPAaBHTENbCTBEHHOM YpOBHe, pasBUTHIO  OOMEHHBIX
IPOrpaMM.
B  3asBkax pgoaxHB  ObiTb  mpexacTaBJeHbl IIPOrPaAMMHI,
TNpenycMaTHBAIOMME [TPOBEAEHHE KOHKPETHEIX MEpPOTIpHSTHI 1/ WM aKuUHM.
3asBKH paccMaTpHBalOTCH TOJMLKO OPH YCJIOBHH HMX ODOPMIEHHS B
COOTBETCTBHH C TpeGOBﬂHHHMH, YKA3aHHbIMH HHXE.

©OPMA 3ASIBKH HA I'PAHT.

1. THTYIbHBI} AHCT.

2.00wue cBeaeuns of opranu3aunu-conckarene I'panta.
3.KpaTtkas aHHOTauUHs MpoekTa (MporpaMmbi).
4.IToctarnoBka npoGieMsl.

5.lenu v 3azaumn.

6.MeToamt pemenus.

7.01€HKa K OTYETHOCTb.

8.brogxer (cMeTa pacxonos).

9. JanbHeiwee dbUHAHCHPOBaHNE.

10.T1Ipuioxernus.

Pexomennauun mno odopmieHnio 3agBk¥  jgawTcs B PoccHiickoM
¢onae mupa. KonrakTHbie Tenegonni: 202-4240, 291-71535, dakc 202-9648.

3.¥YTBepxaeHne rpaHTos.

Poccuiickuii  ¢orx Mupa Oymer npuEMMAaTh 3asBKH, W3Y4aTb
H 1aBaTh 3aKTOYeHHS NO HUM. - CrnipaBKY MO NMpeIBapUTEIbHBIM PE3Y.IbTaTaM
paccMOTpeHMs MOXHO OyIeT NOAYYNUTb He paHee OHNHOIO Mecsua <o AHA
NOCTVIL1EEUS 3aaBKH B Poua.

3agsku He OvayT  paccMaTpMBaThCs B payHAe, €CH  OHHM
NpeIacTaBeHbl Nnocsie 00bSBIEHHOTO CPOKA MpHEMa 3asBOK.

[TpeumymectBo 6yAYT MMETb OPraHU3aLNH, KOTOPHIE:

-CMOTYT y6eanTeNnbHo NpOAEMOHCTPHPOBaTh B 3asBKe
HanpaB/IEHHOCTb MPOEKTA HAa TEMAaTHUKY TPaHTa;

-UMeeroT OIBIT MHPOTBOPYECKOMU H 61aroTBOPHUTEIbHOIM
AeqTeIbHOCTH;

-KMEIOT AONOJIHHTE/IbHBIE HCTOYHHUKH TS pean3aluy NpoeKTa.

Pemerre o BoigedeHnM rpanta npuHmrMaer bioopo Ilpapnenns
Poccuiickoro donna mupa.

Ilocne npuHATHS pElIEHMS O BHIOEJEHMH rPaHTa MeXay PocCuiickuM
¢OoHZOM MMpa M [oOnydaTeseM TpaHTa MOANMCHIBAETCS O€3BO3ME3nHBIi
morosop Ha npepocrasienue I'panra Mexnmy Ilpasnennmem Poccuiickoro
¢onna mupa u nosyuartesaem 'paHra.

Opranusanum,  3astBKH  KOTOpHIX  OyayT OTKJOHEHB, TNOJAVYAT
MHCbMEHHOE YBenomsieHHe. OHM MOryT NpiHEMAaTh YYacTHE B CJIERYIOMIEM
pavHae couckarenei.

4.Tlopsgok nogagun 3asBKH.

[lakeT  NOKYMEHTOB,  mNpeiCTaBASeMBIA HAa COWCKAHHE TpaHTa,
O(OpPMJIEHHBIH B COOTBETCTBMM C n.2. momxen ObITb He Gosee 5 meuaTHBIX
/ucToB.  [IpUNOXeHMS HOMXKHBL MMETb HENOCPENCTBEHHOE OTHOMIEHME K
Tpe6oBaHNAM, NPeObsBASEMbIM IAHHBIM KONKYPCOM NpPOEKTOB. MaTepuansi u
DPWIOXEHHS, HE HMMEKLINE HEMOCPEACTBEHHOTO OTHOIWIEHWS K NPOEKTy, HE
paccMaTpHBAOTCS.
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OpurnHal  3asBKH  Ha  [PaHT  AOMXHEH  OwbiThb MNpeacTaBleH
HEMOCPEACTBEHHO B Poccuilckuil dpona Mupa.

Cpoku npeacTaBneHus 3asBOK:
1-mift pavua no 1 uwoHg 1995 .
2-0it payua no 1 Hosibps 1995 r.

Briesienne rpaHTOB [0 NEpBOMY payHOy ocyuwecrsagercs ¢ 1
asrycra 1995 r., no BTopoMy - ¢ 1 sHBaps 1996 r.

Sagska noskHa ObiTh agpecoBaHa:

[Tpasnenue Poccniickoro donna mupa

Poccus, 119889, Mocksa, ya.Ilpeuncrenka gom 10 cTpoenue 2.
IpoexTt "T'pantet Poccuiickoro ¢orna mupa’.

3asBKH, OTHpaBJeHHbiE MO (AaKCHMIUIBHON WJIM 3JIEKTPOHHOH MouTe, a
TaKXKe MPEICTABICHHBIE M03X€e YKA3aHHBIX CPOKOB, HE PAcCMaTPHBAIOCH.

I'panTst He MOryT ObiTb HanpasieHbl Ha TOAIEpKAHHE MOIHTHHECKHX
napTvil WIM opranM3auuil, a TakXe Ha npeABHIGOPHYH GOpEOY OTIENbHBIX

IOJIMTHKOB, OObeIHHERHIl W11 OpraHu3aunui.
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TIpunoxenne k 3agBke
Ha 'paut Poccuiickoro ¢honaa Mupa

PEKOMEHIOALHNH
no noaroroske 3aspky HA I'paHT Poccui’:qxoro ¢onna munpa

¥3 gero cocrout 3asska?

1. TUTYJBHBIN JIMCT - 3anonHseTcs B COOTBETCTBHM C MpHIaraeMoil
dopmoii.

2.0BIIHE CBEOEHMWHA - comepxar cBemenuss o0 opraHusauuu -
3agBuTesie. OObsSICHSET KTO nojaer 3asiBKy, KTO OyAeT BLINOJHSTb MPOEKT, H
noueMy 3agBHTEJH (UCNOJHUTENH) (B CWly CBOoeil KBaaudHKAUUH, ONbITA,
ybexnesnii, penyTauun...) HauaydwnM o0pasoM BLINOJHAT 3ajauy MPOEKTA.

3. KPATKAS AHHOTALIUA - copepXHT sicHOE ¥ KPaTKOe ONHUCAHHE
CVTH 3as1BKM. BkJilowaeT mo OQHOMY-JBa NpeIOXEHHS, OTBEUAOIIMX Ha
BOTIPOCHI:

-KTO OVIET BBINO/HSTb NPOEKT

-[OYEMY M KOMY HYXEH 3TOT NPOEKT

-qTO MONYYHTCH B pe3y/LTaTe

-KaK IMpOEKT OyleT BLINONHATHCS

~CKOJIbKO noTpebyercs neHer

4.TIOCTAHOBKA TIIPOBJEMBI - onwuchiBaer, No4eMy BO3HHK.JA
Heo0XOAMMOCTb BBHIMOJIHEHHS TNpPOEKTAa, M KaK MOCTaBACHHAs npobiemMa
COOTHOCHUTCS C LeIIMK M 3aiauaMn DoHAa ¥ OpraHK3auHK-3asdBHTE NS,

S.HOEJIM U 3AJ0AYM - mawoT npeiactaBieHus, KakoBbl OVIYT HTOTH
BBLIOJIHEENS TpoeKTa. lleab - 3T0 BO WMS 4YEro mpeAnpHHMMAETCS MPOEKT.
3amaun - KOHKpPeTHblA 3ddekT, AOCTUIHYTb KOoToporo TpefyeTcs B xone
BBINOJIHEHHS MpoekTa. M3 pasnesna noskHO ObiTh $ICHO, WTO MOJYYHTCS B
pe3ynpTaTe  BLINOJHEHHS MNPOEKTa, KakWe H3MEeHeHHs NpPOH30HIYT B
CYHOECTBYIOLIEN CUTYyaUMH.

6.METOIbl PEIUEHUS - yxasblBaioTcs MeponpusTHs, KOTOpbIE
HeoOXOAMMO TPOBECTH AN AOCTHXEHHS HAMEUEHHBIX pPe3V/IbTaToB H IS
pelIeHusl NoCTaBJEHHbIX 3anad. IIpHBOASTCS CxeMbl OpraHu3auMu paboThl M
KaleHaapHeli wiad. M3 paspesna nosmxHo ObITh siCHO, 9TO 6yneT CIenaro, KTO
GyneT OCYmecTBASTb HEHCTBHS, KaK OHM OYAYT OCYIECTBASTbCH, KOTHR K B
KaKo# NOC/Ne0BaTENbHOCTH, KaKHe pecypchl OyAyT NpHB/IEUEHHL.

7.0IEHKA M OTUETHOCTD - 13 pasgena nosxHO ObITb SCHO, Kak
NpPEACTaB/ISIETC OLEHKAa opraHu3alieii-3asBHTeIEeM B KOHLE, HNOCTHI JH
NpOEKT NENTH, ¥ KaK OyneT KOHTPOIMPOBATHCS NPOLECC BHIMOJHEHMS NPOEKTa.
B kakoit ¢opMe OTUHMTHIBAaETCS OpraHK3aUMs-3asBHTENb NEpel POCCHICKMM
¢doxrnom MHpa 06 NCTPaueHHBIX CPEACTBax.

8.BIOJIXKET (CMETA PACXOHOB) - pasgen comepXuT nepedeHb

BCEX PECYpPCOB, HEOOXOAMIMbIX LIS NPOBEAEHHS IUIAHHPYEMbIX MEPONpPHSTHM,
OTBEYaEeT Ha BONPOCHL:

-CK0JIbKO neHer Tpebyercs ot Poupa
-H3 KaK¥X HCTOUHHKOB OyIyT MOJYdeHHl OCTaibHEE Tpebyrommecs nas
BLUIO/HEHHS NPOEKTa Pecypchl ¥ Ha uTO OyRyT moTpadessl.
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Cpencrtsa 'panta He MoryT ObITb MOTpaueHsl Ha:
-3apaboTHYIO INATY COTPYAHHKOB OpraHu3auiiu-3asaBuTeis
-HA aIMMHHUCTPATHBHO-XO3SHCTBEHHbBIE PACXOLb

-Ha apeHapyo Iarty 3a odwuc.

9. JAJBHENIIEE OUHAHCUPOBAHME - comepxuMoe pasgena
obbsicHseT, KakuM o0Gpa3oM, 3a CueT KaKUX PECYpCOB 3a9BHTENb HANEeTCH
COXPAHNTb W PacIIMPHUTb JOCTIDKEHHS JAHHOrO NpoekTa; ybexnaer Poccnitcknit
¢oun MHpa B TOM, 4TO MOC/ie M3PacXOHOBaHMA CPEACTB TIPaHTa HaHAyTCH

PECYDPCHI AJI1 NNOAAEPXAHHA NAHHON WHHIIUATHBLL.

10.TTPHMJIOKEHUA - Bk1owarT [OONOJHHTEAbHbIE MAaTEepHaJbl,
NOSCHSIIOIINE CONEPXAHHE 3adBKHM, PEKOMEHTATeJbHbl€ MHCbMa B MOAAEPXKKY
npoexta (oT OTneiesuit WK NpelcTaBHTENbCTB Poccuiickoro ¢onza Mipa,
NPaBUTE/NILCTBEHHBIX W HENPABUTE/NIbCTBEHHBIX, KOMMEpPUYEeCKHX OpraHM3aumi,
aiMMHMCTPAUMI,  OpPraHOB  COLMAJIBHOK  3aUMHTH,  COOTBETCTBYIOINNMX

ACNApTAMEHTOB, YUEHBIX, CICUHATHCTOB H I'Ip)
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JOroBOP
0 BblaeneHHH Ge3Bo3mesnHbix cpeacts-I'panTa
Pocwuiickoro ¢onna mupa

r.Mocksa ” " i99_r.

Poccuiickuit poHA Mupa - uMenyeMbiit B fasbHelimem "MoHA", B suLe
Ilpencematens Ilpasaenns @onga MamineeBa [Omutpus @exepoBuua,
HelicTBytomero Ha ocHoBe Ycrasa Qomma ¢ OpHO#L  CTOpPOHBL H
- HMeHveMm(as) B
JajfbHeRmeM "[losyuaresnp” B JIHLe
, HEeWCTBYIOMEro Ha
OCHOBE YCTaBa, C Apyroiti CTOpoHbl 3aKTOWLIH HKactosmii [lorosop o
HIXEC1eAYIOLeM:

I.IIPEIMET JTOTOBOPA

A LQoux o ocootoetetii © sassroil [0AVUATCIN, KOTOPas Ha5aoiiu
ISCTLOLLIINMON MIITLIC wacToamire JOroBGpa  (GpiLidikcHiie N1y,
TRyt pogerrr e o ~~svgenne Ipapta - rovHA N, nO pemeHiic
Times Denzaiurs N cr 120 _ I. nepeuynciaseT cpeacTsa 2
pa3mepe MiAH.pyOsieil Ha pacueTHml! cuer
Tem=orian o 2227I27omsinl © rpadiedl, SoIAICTIHMCH  KeCTheNMIeMe:

YaCTbIO HACTOSWIErO Jorosopa (mpuioskexie N 2).

1.2.Iloayuate b cornacHO 3asiBKe HCNOAb3yeT cpeiactBa (oHna Ha
peanH3anuil0 nOporpaMmbel 7 ” B TEUEHHE

OCYIIECTBJ/ISIET €€ peain3aluio.

1.3.Mcnonb3oBanue cpeacts I'panTta HE N0 Ha3HAUEHHMIO HE JOMYCKAETCH
M Bieder 3a cobo# Bosspar Domny nepeuncrensmx [lonyuartenio cpeacTs,

npexpameHue AafbHERmeEro (HHAHCHPOBaHHS M pacTOpPXEHHE HaCTOSIIEro
Jorosopa.

2.0B543ATEJIBCTBA CTOPOH

2.1.ITonyuartens:

2.1.1.Mcnonbsyer cymmy Ipanta Qonza B CTPOroM COOTBETCTBMH C
3asBKo# K Temo# [panra.

B cnyuae mawaza peanmsauuu npoekTa NO3ZHEE CPOKA, YKA3aHHOIO B
3asBKe, BCS OpubbLIb OT HCmosb3oBanus Ilosmywatenem cpencts Domza,
IEPEYACICHHBX [0 Havyala €ro peaN3aluH, SBJISETCS COOCTBEHHOCTbKO
®orpa.

2.1.2.B xone peamM3alMH TPaHTd DPEKJAMAPYET MHpPOTBOPYECKVIO M
GnarotBopuTeNbREYIO AesTesbHOCTE DoHaa Kak Cpelll YYaCTHHKOB IpPOrpaMmbl,
TaK # B CPelCTBAX MacCOBOM MH(GOpPMALIMH.

2.1.3.He memee onHOro pasa B NOJYrOZHEe C MOMEHTA NOJYUEHHS
cpencts  QPomma mH@opmupoyeT MOHA O pACXOAOBAHHM CpPEeACTB Ha
BBINOJIHEEHE TIPOEKTA. ‘

Ilo okonuauuM mpoekta npeacrasnser B (POHA NOJHLIA OTdeT O
npozesaHHOH pafoTe M HCHOJAb30BAHUK CPEACTS.

"2.1.4.B xXone peanusauuMu npoekta He MoXeT obpamatbcst B DoHn 3a
AONOJIHHUTE/IbHBIM (HHUHAHCHPOBAaHHEM MPOEKTa.



247

2.2.Qoun

2.2.1.0cymecTBaSIET NMPOMEXYTOUHBIH KOHTPOJb 33 HCIO/b30BAHHEM
cpeactB D oHAA HA BLINOJIHEHHEME MPOEKTA, HO HE paHee 4eM 4epe3 TpH Mecsua
C MOMEHTa HX NepedncyeHns.

2.2.2.To Mepe cBOMX BO3MOXHOCTe## oOKasbiBaeT Ilosyuaresmo
COHEeiCTBHE B PEIH3ALNH NIPOEKTA.

2.3.Ctopous! 00s13y10TCS HE3aMeLIMTEIbHO HHGMOPMHPOBaATL APYT Apyra
O BO3HHKAIOMWX 3aTPYAHEHHSX, KOTOPbi€ MOTYT MPHBECTH K HEBLINIOJIHEHHUIO
Hacrosmero JLorosopa B UEJIOM WIN OTAEAbHRBIX €r0 YCJIOBHH.

3.BCTYILJIEHHME B CHUJIY, CPOK OEHCTBHS JOTOBOPA

3.1.HacTtosiumii JloroBop BCTynaeT B CHIY C MOMEHTA €ro NOINHUCAHHS
CTOpOHAMH M JeiCTByeT B TEeYEHH!I CPOKAa peaiu3aluud MNporpaMmbl B
COOTBETCTBHH C 3asiBkoi Ilonyuarens.

4.TIOPSIOK TIPEKPALLEHHSA KENCTBHNY NOTOBOPA

4.1.Hacroamuii JloroBop NOMIEKHT NPEKPAMERHIO MO:

- OKOHYaHHM CpPOKOB MpoOBeldeHWs NpoekTa (nporpaMmbl) - HIH B
cJlydae MCIOJIb30BAHMS CPeICTB IPAHTA HE 110 HA3HAYEHMIO.

4.2.B cavuae, ecaM B Te4eHHM CpOKa AelcTBHS Hacrosmero Ilorosopa,
He OyOyT BHINOJMIHEHBl YCJIOBHS M TOJIOXEHHS, COCTABJSIOMME Ero MPEIMET,
Horosop mMoxer OuiTh pacTOpPrEyT mo TpeboBaHHIO M000H U3 CTOPOH.

4.3.Hactosumit [orosop MoxeT ObiTb PpacTOpPrHYT IO PEIIEHHIO
apOUTpaxkHOro cyaa B CJydae, €UIM OOHa H3 CTOPOH CHCTEMaTHUECKH
YMBIOUIEHHO HapymaeT ycioBus [lorosopa, 49TO NPHBOAMT K YIIEMICHHIO
3aKOHHBIX NPaB H MHTEPECOB APYTOH CTOPOHbI.

S.APBHUTPAX

5.1.Bce cnopsl u pasHOTacHs, KOTOpble MOTYT BO3HHMKHYTb MEXIY
CTOPOBaMM IO BhLIMOJIHEHMIO Hactosmero JoroBopa u B CBSI3H H HHM, IO
MO3MOXHOCTH pa3pemmaioTcs NyTeM NepPEroBOPOB MEXIy CTOPOHAMH.

5.2.B cayuwae, ecaM CTOpPOHbI K COMJIaCHI0 HE NPHULTH BCE CIOPHI

NOMIEXAT PAacCMOTPEHMIO B YCTAHOBJAEHHOM Nopsaake B ApOMTpaxXHOM cyne
PO.

6.3AKJIIOYHUTEJIbHBIE IIOJIOXEHHN A

6.1.Hacrosmu#i JoroBop COCTaBAEH B ABYX 3K3eMILISApax, KaXObiA U3
KOTOpHIX MMEET ONMHAKOBYIO IOPHAMYECKYIO CHJIY H XPAaHHTCH Yy KaXIoHd H3
CTOPOH.

6.2.Bce u3MeneHms ¥ JONOJHEHHS K HacrosmeMy Jorosopy

oOpMASIIOTCS B NHCbMEHHOM BHIE W SBJASIOTCS HEOTbEMJIEHHOM YAaCThIO
Hactrosimero Joroeopa.

7.PEKBHM3HWTbI 1 IOPUIAHYECKHNE ANPECA CTOPOH

"QOHn"

Poccniickuit onp mupa: pacuetHnlit cuer 705001 B Kommepueckom
6anke "Opbura”, kop.cuer 161227 PKI I'Y LIB PO MDO 44583001, yu.83.

r.Mocksa, 119889, yxa.llpeuncrenka pom 10 ctpoenme 2 (ren.291-
7155 ,akc 202-9648).
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TPEBOBAHHS K HAIIMCAHUIO 3AAABOK
B PaMKax PernoHajiLHOro KORKypca B IlenTpanbnoii Poccuu

3anexu Goaxcunl ompaxcams 6CH0 UHPOPMALUID, NPUEOOUMYIO HUNCE. 3GAGKU HA NOIYHEHUE 2paHmog He
6ydym paccmampusamsca o mex nop, noka ne 6ydem npedocmaenena 6CA 3GNpaUGAEMA’ URGOPMALUR.
3aneru mozym nod0agamvcs Kax HQ PYCCKOM, MAK U HA AMeAUICKOM A3bIKAX.

I. Turyabnbtit auct (1 cTp.)

Ha3panne npoekta.

OprauM3auAs-HCOOJHHTEIb - Ha3BaHWe OpraHH3allMM, BLIMOJIHAIONIEH TMPOEKT, - ee
JOPHINYECKMil cTaTyc, ampec, TenegoH, ¢akc, 3neKTPOHHasi MoyTa, HOMEP PacyYeTHOro
cyeta M Ha3paHue GaHKa.

Oprannzauun-3aaBuTeb (B TOM Cyyae, €C/iM NpoeKT OyneT BLIMOJHATLCA WHUMATHBHOM
rpynmnoil MAM opraHMsalueil 6e3 cTaTyca IOpHOHYECKOTO JiMua - "MCMOJHMTEnEeM®, a
3aBKYy TlonaeT M OQMUMANbHBIM TpaHToroflyyaTeieM OydeT Ipyras opraHM3auUus -
"3a9BUTEJIb") - Te Xe NaHHble.

IMonnepRupaloman opranysanug (eciu ecThb).

PykosoauTens mpoekta - @®.M.0., 3BaHMe, IOMKHOCTb, anpec, TeaedoHbl, dake,
3NeKTpoHHass noyrta. bByxranrep mpoekta - @.M.O., 3BaHHe, NONXKHOCThH, ampec,
TenedoHbl, pakc, 31eKTPOHHAN NoyTa.

Teorpadns npoekra - rae OyneT NpoXoZUTh paboTa N0 NpPOEKTY.

CPpoOK BbiNO.JHenia NPOeKTa - Hayalo U OKOHYaHHe, NPOLOJIKHUTENBHOCTL B MecsLax.
3anpamuBaeMan cyMma, HMEIOIIHECH CPeACTBa H NOJHAA CTOMMOCTL NPOEKTa.

I1. KpaTras annorauus 3aaBk (He Oosiee 1 c1p.)

KpaTkoe, He 601ee 1 cTp., H3NOXKEHHE MPOEKTa, NOBTOPAOLEE BCE YaCTH NOJIHON 3asgBKH
(M0 HECKONbKO MpeWIOXEeHWH Ha Kaxaylo uacTh). OTBeyaeT Ha BOMpoChbl: KTo OyneT
BLINONHATL NPOEKT, NOYEMY ¥ KOMY HYXEH 3TOT NpOeKT, KaKoBbl LUeNH W 3anayM, yTo
NONAYYUTCS B pe3ynbraTe, KakK TNpoeKT OyaeT BhIMONHATBLCHA, CKOJbKO BpeMeHH OH Oynmer
NpONOJIXAaThCsl, CKOABKO NOTpebyeTcs HeHer.

II1. Onncaune opranu3zauny (He 6osee 1 cTp.)

Kpatkoe onmucanue uened M 3amay, MCTOPHN H OCHOBHOH mesTesbHocTH Baiwelt
OpraHu3allMM UM ee NEpCrneKTHB Ha nmocjenyiouide 2 rona, UMEIOIUHXCS B paClOpsKEHMH
OpraHMzallM¥  TIOOCKHMX, MaTepHaJbHbIX M MHBIX pecypcoB, HeoOXxoolMbIX 1A
BbINOAHEHHA npoeKkTa. TIpyM HaaMuYMM HCMOJHMTERs M 3asaBUTeNs HeoOxomMmma
HH}opmMauus ob oberx opraHHu3aLHaX.

IV. Onncanne npoekra u ero obocHoBanne
[TpoexT - 3T0 NporpamMma, xotopas 6yneT ¢GHRaHCHPOBaTbCA NONYYEHHBIM IPAHTOM.

ITocTanoeka npobnembl/onncanne norpebHocTH (He Gosblie OOHOM CTPaHMLBL) -

3a4em HyXKEH 3TOT NPOEKT M Kaxyio Npobiemy oH GyneT pewaTs?

He nyraiite npobneMy ¢ MeTonaMu ee pelieHUs!

Liean (6onee oOnine) » 3anayy (KOAKPETHBIE) NPOCKTA.

Oxunaemple pe3yabTaThl (Pe3YJIbTAaTh! ONMCHIBAIOTCS MaKCHMallbHO KOHKPETHO,

B KOJHYECTBEHHO H3MepAMbIX BeIMYHHAX) - Kakux Pe3YNbTaTOB B UTOTE NMPOEKTa
HaMeyeHo NocTHYL? YTO KOHKPEeTHO M3MEHUTCS O OKOHYaHMIO npoekTa? OnuceiBaiTe
He To, YTo OvIeT caeNaHO B XOle NPOeKTa, a KaK H3MEHMTCA CUTyallMsl (onMcaHHas B
pasznene “NocTaHOBKa NpobneMbl”).

Onucanue NPOEKTa: CTpaTerns B MeToldbl 1OCTHXCHHSA NOCTABJICHHBIX Hene N MexaHi3m
peanK3aluuy NpoeKTa - Kax OyIyT pealM30BHIBAaTbCA LEJH H 3a0ayM, xmo OyneT
OCVILECTBAATb NEiiCTBUA, Kakue pecypchl OYIYT MCNIONb30BaHbl, Kak OydeT NpoN3BOINTLCS
oTOOp YYaCTHIKOB yyeGHOII NporpaMMsl WK nojayyaTeneil yonyr, kak n xKoay 6yaet
pacnpocTpaHATLCA NHTepaTypa M T.4.7 3Ta yacTb AOMKHA ObITh NOAPO6HOI.
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Kanennapusiii rpadnk/paGounii mwian peanusauuy npoexra. ONULIMTe OCHOBHBIE 3Tambl
NpoeKTa No HelensAM/MecsillaM - Kko2da M B KakKoll 110CJ1e10BaTelbHOCTH GYIYT NpPOXOAUTH
MepONpHATHA B paMKax npoekra? [IpencraBbre Takke Tabnuiy-rpaduK 1o MecsiiiaMm.
Ouenka NOCTIGKERHS HaMeYennbiX Pe3yAbTATOB B OTIETHOCTD: KaK U NO KaKUM KOHKDPEMHO
Kpumepusm OyIeT olueHHBaThcad 3(PGEKTUBHOCTb M YCIIEWHOCTb NPOEKTa, KIMO U KaKuM
obpasom OyleT oleHHBaTh JOCTHXEeHHE NOCTaBNEHHLIX Leseil W 3a0a4 ¥ HaMeYyeHHbIX
Pe3ybTaTOB KaK B XOl€ BbINOJIHEHUSA NpoekTa (MOHUTOPUHI), TaK M NO ero oKOHYaHHK?
Haneneiiniee pa3pHTHe NPOEKTa NOC/E OKOHYaHUA (PHHAHCHPOBAHMA NO IPaHTY: KaK
npanosaraeTcs pa3BHBaTh 3TY NeATENbHOCTb 110 OKOHYaHUIO YUHAHCHUPYEMOTO TIPOEKTa.
Hanbneiiniee (hHHAHCHPOBaNKeE: 3a CYET KAKLX PECYPCOB NMpelNoNaraeTcs COXpaHUTb U
PaclIMPHTDb JOCTHXEHNA JAHHOrO NpoeKTa (eciay npenycMaTpuBaeTcsi MPONODKEHNE
paboT no NpoeKTY NO OKOHYaHUM CpOKa NeiiCTBUA IpaHTa).

[Ipumevarue:

Ilpu cocTaBneHuM 3as1BOK Ha MHaHCHpPOBaHKe o6yYalOLIMX NporpaMM (CeMHMHapa,
KoHbepeHUHH, YyeGHOTO Kypca), pelloCTaBbTe, NoXanyiicTa:

a. Y4yeOHbIl M1aH (nporpaMMy MeponpHsaTHS);

0. KpaTKy1o OGHorpadHio JIKL, KOTophle OYAYT NpoBOAKTb 00YYeHHe M COOBIUNTE, Kakoi
KBaJH(pHKalKei OHH obnanaior s NpoBeneHMs NaHHOTO OOy4YeHHs;

B. KpDMTEpUH U MexaHH3M oTOOpa y4YaCTHHKOB.

®oun Eppa3ns 3aiHTepecoBaH B NOLLEPKKE COTPYNHHYECTBA PasIMYHbIX OPraHN3aLHii 1
COBMECTHBLIX NpoeKToB. [loXanyiicTa, YKaXure, xKaxue KOHTaKTbl Bbl MMeeTe ¢ APYTMMH
HEMNpaBUTEJIbCTBEHHbIMH W MHBIMH OpraHU3allMaMU B 3To# 00/1aCTH M C Kem BbI OyneTe
COTPYAHHYATh B XOd€ pealH3alliK npoeKkTa. [IpHUBETCTBYETCA COTPYAHMYECTBO M OHanor
HeNnpaBHUTENbCTBEHHBIX OPraHU3aUui C NpaBUTENbCTBEHBIMU CTPYKTYPAMM M YaCTHbBIM
KOMMEPYECKHUM CEKTOPOM.

Ecny 6ynet Heobxonnm nepeson, noxanyiicra, coobuinTe, kaxusm obpasom Bol
cobupaeTech pelHTL 3TOT BOMPOC. '

bromxer (B mosnapax CIIA)

OO1was cToMMOCTb NpoeKTa M 3anpalliiBaeMbiii y PoHaa o6beM (PHHAHCHPOBaHHA.
CmeTa: noapoOHas pa3bubKa 610IKeTa MO CTaTbAM: ofllaTa Tpyna (BKmoyaeT 3apaboTHYIO
ILIaTy INTATHBIX M BHELUTAaTHbIX COTPYAHHKOB, FOHOpaphl - C YKa3aHUeM IOJIH paboyero
BpPeMEHH OT NOJIHOMN CTaBKM B %, OIUIaTa pasoBbIX YCJIYT KOHCYJLTaHTOB N0 JOTOBOPY, a
TaroKe 00s3aTebHble HANOTH M CTpaxoBaHHe - 41% oT ¢oHna 3apaboTHO MIaThl;
NOJOXONHBIA HANOr B GIOIKET He BKJIIOYAETCS M BbIILIAYHBAETCA M3 3apIulaThl WIHN
TOHOPapoB). OCHOBHbIE TIPAMBIE pacxolbl (apeHna noMelueHuit, obopynosanue, opUCHbIE
PacXolHble MaTepHasibl, KOMAaHAHPOBKH, CBA3b, TUNOrpa()CKUE PacXodbl U Op.; HEMpPAMbIE
pacxonst (ecau uMelotes). Ioxanyiicta, ykaspiBaiiTe pasMep BKJIanoB B HaTypaJbHOM
¢opme (BKII0Yas HOGPOBONBLHBIN TPYA) M yKe H3bICKAHHBIX DEHEXHbIX CPEACTB M3 IpPYTHUX
MCTOYHHKOB B 10/UIapOBOM 3KBHBaleHTe. CpencTBa Ha "HenpeABUAEHHbIE pacxonbl”
BbLIENATLCSA He OVIyT.

JleTanbHble KOMMEHTapHUH K OIOIKETY, B KOTOPBIX:

- NPHUBOAMTCA 000CHOBaHHE pacxonos (Npu HeoGXONMMOCTH NPUNAraloTCA Npaiic-IUCTb
WY MHbIe IOKYMEHTHI, 1O0roBOpPLI);

- YKa3blBalOTCH HCTOYHHMKHM MOCTYTIIEHHA MMEIOUIMXCA CPelCTB (I€HEXHBIX U B
HaTypanbHoOi ¢opme). IlpunaraloTcs DOKYMeHTHI, NOOTBEPXAIOIIHE HATHYHE ITUX
CpeICTB MJH TapaHTHHY HX NPenOCTABJIEHHSA,

- TIpHBOANTCA HHaf HeobxomuMas uMHbopMaLia.

lpusmewanue:
biomxeT nonxeH 6bITh YeTKO CBA3aH C OMMCHIBAEMBIM NPOEKTOM, KaXAas CTaThfl PaCXOLOB
JOJIXXHa HENOCPEACTBEHHO obecneyMBaTbh TOJILKO TlOTpCGHOCTH NpoOcKTa.

Ha caedyrowei cmpam)ue npueodumcs obpasey bodxcema.

6
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Opaze ieT

Bam Omomxer ne posmken

NOJIHOCTLI0  COOTBEYCTBOBATH
npunaraeMoMy obpasuy (B HeM JOJDKIBI OTPANATHLCH Peanbible HYKIM Baliero NPpoeKTz), HO OF QOJIKEH
ObTh TakMM ke nonpoGumm. Konkpernbie na3sauns R0JUKNOCTel COTPYMNHKOB, THNOB PACXONOB BHYTPH
NpHBEREHHLIX Pa3nenos cMeTH OyayT, ckopee Bcero, oTAngaThes. TlpuBenennnii moke GlOMKET sRIAETCH

Omnucanre npoekra: Obyuatollas nporpaMMa No rocynapcTBEHHOMY YIpaBieHNIo WIS
COTPYAHMKOB allMMHUCTPaliMK ropona. IlporpaMMa BKJIlouyaeT pa3paboTKy obyyaromux
MaTepHaJioB, Co3NaHHe OUOBIMOTEKH U NpoBeacHHe CEMUHApaA.

JlupexTop mpoekra:
Cpoku McnoNHeHNS:

1. OILJIATA TPYIIA

A. Tlepcounan

KOJH-  ROJOKHOCTD

9ecT- $/mec
BO

1 Onpexrop ﬁpocm $ o
2 ACCHCTEHT npocKTa $ xxx
1 byxrairep $

2 Crapuwisit cneunanuct $ xxx
Hmoeo no nepconany:
B. KoucyasTanTsl 1 ApyTHe YCIITR:

KonH-~ OIL12Ta Tpyaa
YyecT- $/nenp
BO

1 FOpicT-KoHeyabTant  § 40
3 OKkcneprhl: paspaboTka
TPEX OCHOBHBIX KYPCOB
¥ coaraHne obyvalolnx
MaTepHaNOB NO NaHHBIM
Kypcam:
1) MMKpO3KOHOMMKA;
2) ¢inancosoe
VTIpaRAcHHE B
0D1ECTBEHHEIX
OpraHi3auuax K
3) BonxeT 1
TUIaHHpOBaHe $ 30

2 Tpenepbi-Beayine
cenHHapa $40

1 Cneunaniet no

pa3paboTke MakeTa
M3DaHKA $20

Hmozo no xoncyasmanmanm:

ontaTa Tpyna

WBan MBanosny HBanos
1 suBapa 1995 r. - 31 nexabpsa 1995 1.

MeNr  HOCTH
patoTn

100% 12 mec.
80% 12 Mec.
30% 12 mec.

100% 12 mec.

KOJIMYECTBO  BCCrO
nHCit

20 $ o
90 $ o
7 8 oxxx
30 $ xxx
5 xex

7

% Bpe- IIHTENb- BCETo

HMEETCS
3o -
$ xxx -8 xxx
§oxoxx Paoxx
$ xxx Sxxx
$ ocx Sxoox

umeeTes Tpebyerca

- $ xx
$xax $ o
$oox § xaxx
$xxx § xxx
Sxox F xox

Tpebyercs

$ xxx

5 oo



222

B. Coumanmnoe, MERNUMHCEOE CTPAXOBAREE, NPYTHE 00K3IATENLALIE BRIATHI:

41% ot ¢oHna zapaboTHONR rtaTH $ xxx $xox
HUTOI'O HA OIUIATY TPVIA: § xxx Exxx
2 1 AMBbI

A. Apenga noMewnenns A KOMMYHAIbNLIE YCHYTR:

TomeimteHne nna opuca - 1 Komuara 30 KB.M. $ xox $xxx
$ 200/mec, Ha [2 Mec.
KomMyHanbHble yeryry - $20/Mec Ha 12 Mec. § xxx S
lloMelneHKe 1A npoBeneHns ceMUHapa:
yuyeOHbIi 3an 200 k.M. $ 50/neHb Ha 5 OHCR $ xxx $xxx
Hmoeo: 5 xx $xcx
B. KoMaHIKPOBKE ¥ TPACNIOPTHBIE PACXOMIAL:
X/n 6unetTt 114 3 3kcnepToB M3 MOCKBH -
3 61nera B 06a KOHua no $ 35 Kaxablit ' $ o Ixxx
Ipoxupanue 3 akcnepToB 13 MocKBL! $ xxx $xxx
ABiabmneTsl Ang 2 TpeHEpOB -
2 6incra B 06a konua no $ 100 Kaxastit $ xxx $xxx
IpoxukBaHue 2 TpeHepoB $ oo $xxx
MecTHble KOMaHAMPOBKK L18 NPHRICYCHHA
CTYACHTOB K paboTe NaHHOH NPOTPaMMbL:
1 noe3anka anpeKkTopa NpoeKTa B 5 oGnacTHLIX roponoB
XKenesHonopoxubie 6uaeTH - 5 @ SXxX Kaxablit $ xxx S
Tpoxneanue B rocTitHiLe - 10 Hoyell @ $XXX 32 HOYb $ ox Sxxx
CyToyHbre M3 pacyeta 10 aHei @ $XXX B ICHb $ xx $axx
Hmoeo: 5 ox Sxx
B. OGopyaosanue:
Komneotep IBM-486DX ¢ kommnekToMm
PacXOoHLIX MaTepHaNoB $ xx -
®akc Panasonic BX-50 - $ xxx -
Mounem Courier 2400 . $ xx Saxx
Hmozo: . 5 ox Sxx
. CBR3b A KOMMYHHKaLMH:
TenedonHbie neperosops!
MEXIVIOPORHbIC $ xxx $xxx
3NeKTpOHHaAn noyTa $ xxx Sxxx
TouroBbie ornparneHmns § o $xxx
Hroro: $ xxx $xxx

$ oo

$ xx

$ xxx

$ o

3 xxx

S xxx

$ xxx
$ xxx
$ xxx

5 ox

$ wx
$ xxx

$ xxx
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J. Hananne nocoGuii:

TMoxynika Bymary - S TOHK no $0x 3a TOHHY $ $xxx $ xxx
Tunorpadckue pacxonw $ xx xxx $ xx
Hmoeo: 5 xx S 5 xxx

E. bubanoTteannle MaTeprann

Tloxkynka KHur ans 6M6IHOTEKH, B BOTIONHEHHE

K yucGHBIM mTocoBuaM, paspaboTaHHbLIM LA NporpaMMbl

o61CeCTBCHHOTO ANIMHUHKCTPHPOBaHUS COrNacHo yyebHOMY Tnany.

1. Noxynka yye6HuKOB - no 10 3K3eMILIAPOB KAXIOTO
(CaMmyanbcon, MuKpoaKkoHoMHKa)

@ $xxx 32 axzemMpnap x 10 $ xxx Sxom $ xox

(boitz, Tpununnp OdwecTrcHHOro PUHAHCHPOBAHHSA)

@ $ox 3a axkseMmmasp x 10 ‘ $ xxx $xxx $ xxx
(TIu6oan. broaxeT ana ObwecTeeHnoro MeHelxepa)

@ Sxx 33 3kzemmasp x 10 $ xxx $rox $ o

2. locTaBka yuye6GHHKOB
Camya1bCOH - MOKYIIKa Ha MEcTax
NOCTaBKH He TpebveT - -

Boita - noxvnka npu coneiicTein ®ounaa Copoca $roxx $x0o0 -
T1nGoan - 50 kr. aBnarpysa @ $xxx 3a | kr. $ xxx $xxx $ o
Hmozo: $ xx Saoox 5 xo0x

K. OdncHnie npARALNIEAKHOCTR

bymara. 6ymara ons dakca, KOHBepTH $ xxx $axx $ xxx
Tanku $ axx $xox $ xxx
Hroro: $ xxx Sxxx $ xx
U TOTO OCHOBHbLIX INMPAMbBIX PACXOAQR: $xxx $xoxx C Sxonx

3. HETPAMDIE PACXObI:
(Y4HTHIBAIOTCR TONBKO apryMCHTHPOBAHHLIC HETIPAMBIE PACXOIb B TeX CIY4asX, KOrda NPoeKT HCNob3veT ofune

PCCYPChi OpPraHH3allii, YTO HE HALWIO OTPAXEHIN B HHBIX CTaThax BionxeTa)

Iloanas cmowumocmob npoexma: $ ox
Hmeemcs: $ xx
Ipebyemca om Donda "Eepasus™: $ xxx

Buumanne! [Tocne cMeThl Heo6xooUMO NpeNoCTaBUTL NonpobHble kommenmapuu k Grodxcemy
¢ 0bocHOBaHHEM HeOOXOOMMOCTH PacXONOB MO CTaThM DIOIKETa, HCMOAb3OBAHUA
of0opynoBaHuA, KOMaHINPOBOK, THROrPaCKUX pacxonos, MyTeil NOAYYeHHS CPeACTB M3
APYTUX HCTOYHHUKOB, B TOM YHCJIE YXKE MMEIOILHXCA y cCaMOit oprasM3aliii (BKJ110Yas BCe
BHObI - NEHEXHble, B HaTypalnbHoil (popMe ¥ AOOPOBONALHBIM TPYIOM).
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" V1. ¥YnpaBnenue ¢pHuancama

HMmeer nu Balua opraHH3alMs OnNuIT ynpasneHHs rpaiTaMud? Ecam pa, pacckaxuTe o6
3TOM NoapobHO: HCTOYHHK, CyMMa U obluee onMcaHHMe NPOEKTAa.

KopoTko onuiunTe Bally Oyxrantepckylo CHCTeMY, a Taloke, Kak Bbl ruianupyete
panopsXaTbCA NMONYYeHHBIM IrpaHTOM. KTo OyAaeT HapneneH NMoOjJHOMOYUAMH pacXOLOBAaTh
cpeactBa? Krto OyneT roTosuTh pHHaHCOBbE oTYeTh? Bam HeobxonuMo 6yneT BeCTH
OTYETHOCTb IO TPAHTY OTAENILHO OT ApYTrux cpeactB. JliobGble pacxonbl B paMKax I'paHTa
JOJUKHBI ObITh MOATBepXIeHH ()HHAHCOBOI OTYeTHOCTbIO. Bce pacxonbl, KoTopele OyoyT
npesbiliaTh CYMMY B 10 nomnapos CLIA, nokHbB KMETh MUCBMEHHOE NOATBEPXIEHHE.
Ecny BO3MOXHO, NPWIOXKHTE K 3asBKEe Ha NOJNyJYeHle rpaHTa KollMlo NocaelHero
¢MHaHCOBOrO WK ayJUTOPCKOTO OTYETa.

[Noxanyiicta, coobuinte GamMminy ¥ TeneoHHbie HoMepa IBYX YeNOBEK WIH
OpraHK3alMii, ¢ KoTopbiMu Bbl Mni Balua opranu3auusa pabotana nocneiHue asa roza.
OTH cnpaBKM He obs3aTefibHO JOJUKHBI ObITh peKOMeHAaTeIbHBIMU MHCbMaMH.

VII. IIprnoxenne

Buorpadus pyKOBOIMTENA MIPOeKTa ¥ OPYTOro pYKOBOASIUETO COCTaBa,

Konus cpuaeTenbCTBa O perMcTpPallMi U VCTaBa;

Komna GanaHca 3a rmocneaHui roa ¥ Ksapran;

KonuH ayIHTOPCKUX NpoBepokK (ecsii NPOBOINTHCE);

TlvcbMa noanepXKM OT APYTHX OpraHU3auMii (eCny HMeIoTCH);

Jorosopbl 0 COTPYOHUYECTBE C IPYTUMH OpraHU3alMAMK (ECNH UMeIoTCA),
CtaTbM, HHbIE MaTepHaibl 06 opraHU3alliy;

OO6pa3stibl 1eATeNIbHOCTH OpraHu3auiy (ecni HeoOxolMMO: HalpuMep, 3K3EMILIAPLI
Olomnerensn);

MHble MaTepuansl.

10
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ATTACHMENT 2

Page 2
GRANT APPLICATION FORMAT

4. PROJECT CONCEPT/MANAGEMENT PLAN

a) Describe the project and what needs it is expected to meet and how it will accomplish
meeting these needs. Discuss the geographic location of project activities and how it was
selected.

b) Describe how the proposed project fits the goals and objectives of this solicitation.

¢) Discuss the nature of the partnership between the Russian and American NGOs, including
any past, current or planned activities.

d) Describe the role of the Russian NGO in the planning of this project.

e) Describe proposed monitoring and evaluation plan and specify key indicators. Include an
Implementation Plan which highlights the timing for carrying out major project
activities.

f) Discuss how the proposed project is to be/could be replicated once this funding commitment
ends and the anticipated lasting impact of the project.

g) Describe how the project will be managed, in the US and in Russia, and the qualifications
of key personnel, including language ability.

h) If the proposal is submitted by any subgrantee, US or Russian, currently funded under the
PVO/NIS Project, describe accomplishments to date under the current grant and realistic
expected accomplishments at grant-end. Discuss previously planned objectives which

will not be met and why. Describe how this proposed project will complement but not
duplicate previously funded activities, if at all.

5. COST PROPOSAL

(FINANCIAL PLAN):

a) Submit a complete, detailed line item budget following the format provided in Attachment

3; include a detailed narrative description supporting the costs budgeted. Costs must be

attributed to sources of funding, clearly indicating which costs will be covered by
PVO/NIS Project funds.

Describe the plan for obtaining the private match contribution. Indicate if these funds are
in hand or planned, and the timetable for securing them if applicable. Describe how
in-kind contributions are recorded and valued. ‘

¢) Describe general procedures for reporting US and Russian office expenditures.

d) Describe familiarity, if any, with USAID reporting requirements.

e) Provide an annual institutional budget of the US PVO partner for the last fiscal year, the

current year and the next year, which indicates major sources of support.

f) If the US PVO partner is not registered with USAID, provide explapations and attach

documents that may be required, as described in Sections I'V and VI.

g) Clearly delineate in budget notes costs for US and Russian expenses.

b)

World Learning/PCC, Financial Management
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PVO/NIS PROJECT---COST PROPQSAL FORMAT---ATTACHMENT 3

BUDGET

1.
Il.
111
1v.
v.
vi.
vil.
vill.

TOTAL

SUMMARY: In U.S. dollars (30)

FUNCTION (specify)

Personnel:

Procurement:

Travel & Transportation:
Communications:

Other Direct Costs:
Evaluation:

A-133 Audit Costs:
Indirect Costs:

** PVO Match = ** X

A.l.D.

(a) (b

YEAR 1 YEAR 2

PYO TOTAL CONTRIBUTION
(c) (d) (e) (49) (8-})

YEAR 1 YEAR 2 A.1.D VO TOTAL

*» pyo Match = PVD Contribution divided by the Total Contribution (column “f* divided by colum ®g*);

25X cash/in-kind match is required.

World Learning/PCC, Financial Management
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PYO/NLS ) PROJECT---COST PROPOSAL FORMAT---ATTACHMENT 3

LINE ITEM BUDGET: In U.S. dollars (30) PAGE  OF
Year 3 Year 2 TOTAL - Years 1-2

(a) (b) (c) d) (e) ) ($-H)
A.l1.D. PVO A.1.D. PVO A.1.D. PYO TOTAL

(a)+(c) (bi*(d)

1. PERSONNEL

A. Program - N1S

B. Program -~ US

C. Aduinistration - NIS
D. Adainistration - US
E. Benefits (A-D)

SUBTOTAL

11. PROCUREMENT

A. Office Equipment & Supplies (Specify)
1.

2.
3.
4.

SUBTQTAL

B. Consultants (exclude evaluation costs)
1. Local

2. External

aswns swens wasoe cosme eense

SUBTOTAL

C. Services (exclude evaluation costs)
1.
2.
3.

SUBTOTAL

.. Other (Specify)
1.
2.
3.

---------- LT T T ssvss cnome socas vomns

SUBTOTAL
111. TRAVEL & TRANSPORTATION
(Personnel and Consultants only)
A. Airfare
B. Per Diem

C. Local
D.

SUBTOTAL

World Learning/PCC, Financial Management
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PVO/NIS PROJECT~--COST PROPOSAL FORMAT---ATTACHMENT 3

LINE ITEK BUDGET: In U.S. dollars (30)

PVO:

IV. COMMUNICATIONS

A. Printing/Reproduction

« Postage/Courier
C. Telephone/Fax

V. OTHER DIRECT COSTS (Specify)

A.
B.
c.
D.

VI. EVALUATION

A. External Personnel
B. Airfare

C. Per Diem

D.

Vil. A-133 AWIT COSTS

VIIl. INDIRECT COSTS

A. Overhead/Administration

B. Other

Year 1
(a) (b)
A.1.D. PVO

PAGE OF

TOTAL - Years 1-2
(e) (f)

A.1.D. PVO

(a)+{c) (b)+(d)

(¢
TOTAL

SUBTOTAL

SUBTOTAL

SUBTOTAL

SUBTOTAL

SUBTOTAL

TOTAL

World Learning/PCC, Financial Management
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NGO health program or activities, demonstrate effective interventions and facilitate replication;

(ii) Provide training and technical assistance, and/or equipment and commodities, to enhance the
administrative, management and service delivery capacities of Russian HC NGOs. To the extent

possible, this assistance should lead to cooperation/joint programming among regional Russian
HC NGOs;

(iii) Support commodity and equipment costs linked to the strengthening of local HC NGOs; and

(iv) Leverage, to the extent possible, private sector resources over and above the 25 percent
minimum matching requirement.

Total funding for this solicitation will not exceed $6.5 million. Proposals may request funds for
a maximum of two years and the USAID contribution should be limited to between $375,000
and $750,000. All proposals must include a private (cash or in-kind) match of no less than 25 %
of total project costs. Approximately 10-20% of the USAID-funded budget for each subgrant
should be allocated to the procurement of commodities such as equipment, medicines and

supplies for use by the Russian HC NGO. All awards will be made subject to the availability
of funds.

Proposals must be submitted in the format outlined in Attachments 1, 2, and 3 to this
solicitation. Proposals which request more than the $750,000 maximum grant award level will

not be considered for funding. (See Section VI. PROPOSAL REVIEW AND GRANT
APPROVAL PROCESS for additional details.)

Please note that in-depth information is being requested about the Russian NGO partner.
Proposals are expected to:

(1) reflect honestly the differences in experience and capacities of Russian and American

partners, and (2) outline appropriate roles for the partners which strengthen the Russian NGO
while respecting its abilities.

b) COST PROPOSAL

Budgets should include sufficient detail and explanatory notes to facilitate review. They should
conform to the instructions in Section V (below), indicating clearly which costs are to be
covered with USAID funds, which costs are covered by private contributions, and, where

applicable, what funds are covered by another US federal agency. Note that the latter funds will
not be counted as "matches.”

Budget notes should clearly identify which cost items are earmarked for the Russian NGO and
which items are US activities and expenses. Funds may be requested for a maximum period of
two years. Cost proposals should include funds for an external mid-term evaluation and an
OMB A-133 audit (See Section V). A format for the budget is provided in Attachment 3.

Organizations which budget for indirect costs should include a copy of the most recent Indirect
Cost Rate Agreement as negotiated with their cognizant US federal agency. Organizations not

3
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having such a rate agreement with the federal government should describe how the indirect cost
rate is derived if one is to be used. No profit or fees are payable under grants.

All US PVOs, whether registered with USAID or not, must submit a copy of their most recent
audited financial statement.

c) PROGRAM RESTRICTIONS

In addition to the limitations indicated in Section II. PROGRAM OBJECTIVE, above, PVO/NIS
Project grants will not finance projects which are academic or research-oriented (including
feasibility studies), sectarian or politically partisan, or which indicate that a disproportionate
share of grant funds will favor US activities over Russian activities. Proposals designed
primarily to establish a US PVO’s presence in Russia will not be considered. Projects based on
short-term exchanges of individuals and shipments of commodities will not be considered.

As noted in Section II, above, this solicitation is for projects in Russia only. Projects for other
NIS states are not eligible for this particular solicitation. Final grant awards are subject to
the availability of funds.

IV. MATCHING REQUIREMENTS

All grant activities will be cost-shared by the proposing partner organizations, with USAID
support not to exceed 75 percent of the estimated costs of the project. Priority will be given to
proposals which meet project guidelines and demonstrate ability to leverage substantial private
resources over and above the 25 percent minimum. The match may be cash or in-kind
contributions. Funds received from the US Government or USAID intermediaries are not
allowable sources for the match.

Grant applications must identify all critical sources of support for the project including private
and public cash receipts and in-kind contributions of goods and services which directly support
project activities. Applications must specify whether matching contributions are in hand, or
when they are expected, and/or include a plan for when over the two-year life of the proposed
project the minimum 25 percent private contribution is to be in place.

Criteria for eligibility of the non-federal contributions are set forth in OMB Circular A-110,
Subpart C. OMB Circular A-110 is available from: The US Government Printing Office,
Superintendent of Documents, Washington, DC 20402; OR Publications, OMB, New Executive
Office Building, Room G-236, Washington, DC 20503. (tel. 202-395-7332).

V. ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

The lead US PVO partner must be a legally incorporated not-for-profit organization with US -
501(c)(3) Internal Revenue Service status. Organizations not registered with USAID must:

- submit a copy of their IRS determination letter;

4
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- indicate which type of tax-exempt status held; and
- indicate financial capacity and ability to comply with USAID regulations (including the

provisions of OMB Circular A-133, available at the address given immediately above)
and reporting requirements.

Proposals may be submitted by coalitions of US PVOs. In such instances, the proposal must
clearly detail members’ roles and responsibilities, and indicate which organization is designed

as the lead organization. Note that subgrants will be negotiated with, and awarded to, the lead
PVO.

VL. GRANT APPROVAL PROCESS

World Learning is responsible for soliciting and reviewing all proposals submitted for
consideration under the PVO/NIS Project. During the course of review, applicants may be
asked for clarifying information on either the Technical or Cost Proposal. During the review
process, priority will be given to those applicants demonstrating the following:

a record of providing development assistance to indigenous groups through domestic or
international projects;

experience working with grassroots organizations, fostering voluntary community action;

capacity to leverage private sector resources over and above the 25 percent minimum
required "matching” contribution;

awareness of HC NGO activities already underway in Russia, and willingness to build
on these activities;

ability to field staff persons with local language capability; and

full involvement of the local partner in the planning and execution of the project,
including exchanges of financial information.

Based upon reviews for respomsiveness to project guidelines, financial feasibility and
organizational capacity as outlined in this solicitation, World Learning will present a slate of the
most responsive and feasible proposals to USAID for final review and decisions.

Grant agreements will then be negotiated with successful applicants. Agreements will be signed

by the US PVO directly with World Learning and wil! specify the level, terms and conditions
of the grant. Unsuccessful applicants will be notified in writing.

‘World Learning/PCC, Financial Management



i

7N\
ll( | )
W»’
\'/
WORLD LEARNING INC.

Founded in 1932 as
The VS Experiment in
International Living

Section 9
World Learning
General Materials

World Learning/PCC, Financial Management



-

l

P\
1€\
W n

\\ 4

WORLD LEARNING INC.

Founded in 1932 as
The US Experiment in
International Living

WORLD LEARNING

Private and Voluntary Organizations Intitiatives to the
Newly Independent States (PVO/NIS)

GENERAL MATERIALS

World Learning, Moscow

13, Volkov Pereulok

4th Floor, Room 8

123242 Moscow

Tel./Fax (095) 255-3001
255-9724

956-5003

e-mail: widlearn@glas.apc.org

T



Table of Contents

Welcome Letter to the Workshop Participants
World Learning : FACT Sheet

World Learning : FACT Sheet on the Private Voluntary Organizations Initiatives
to the Newly Independent States (PVO/NIS)

World Learning - Moscow : Statement of Priniciples -
World Learning - Moscow Staff
Tentative Training Schedule - Institutional Strengthening Program

What is the Third Sector? .

World Learning, Institutional Strengthening Program - General Materials }%(_r/ I



Fact Sheet O

» School for International Training WORLD LEARNING
» Citizen Exchange and Language Programs ﬂ':‘:‘{']‘;‘c:x ;:‘E:“:::m*‘m
» Projects in International Development and ‘Iraining International Living

* The U.S. Experiment in International Living

!

HisTory

MISSION

SCoPE

STAFF

World Learning was founded in 1932 as The U.S. Experiment in International Living, a pioneer in people-to-people
exchiange. It is one of the oldest private, nonprofit, international educational services organizations in the world, and
the oldest institution of its kind in the United States. For more than sixty years, it has sustained its founding concept —
learning the culture and language of another country by living as a member of one of its families —
while it hias also pioneered new initiatives in response to a changing world.

" The scope and diversity of World Learning's programs have grown well beyond the institution's original homestay

exchanges, but its mission remains intact: fo enable participants to develop the knowledge, skills, and
attitudes needed to contribule effectively to international understanding and global developmeni.

Today, World Learning’s broad range of international expertise is represented by its three operating divisions: iis
accredited coliege, the School for International Training; its traditional Citizen Exchange and Language Programs;
and its private voluntary organization activities administered by Projects in Intemational Development and Training.
World Learning currently operates over 260 programs in 110 countries, providing direct program services to more than
265,000 participants.

World Learning's School for International Training was established in 1964 as an outgrowth of the institution's role in
providing the original language training and teaching materials for the U.S. Peace Corps. Today, the School offers a
bachelor's degree program in international studies, master's degree programs in intercultural management and the
teaching of Janguages, and academic study abroad programs in more than thirty-five countries.

Citizen Exchange and Language Programs is World Learning's cornerstone division, operating the institution’s
Summer Abroad program which was pioneered in 1932. For sixty years, World Learning has been dedicated to a simple
approach known as the homestay, the best cross-cultural learning laboratory. Families and individuals of all ages from
all over the glabe participate in World Learning’s various exchange and language programs.

Building on its pioneering efforts in international educational exchange and training, World Learning applied its
expertise to institutions and individuals working in development. Through the Projects in International Development
and Training division established in 1977, World Leamning has become a prominent private voluntary organization
(PVO) dedicated to furthering world peace through econoinic and social development initiatives.

World Learning is one of more than twenty-five member organizations of the worldwide Federation of National
Representations of The Experiment in International Living, which was incorporated in Switzerland in 1954. The
Federation has held consultative status with the United Nations Educational, Scientific, and Cultural Organization
since 1958, with the United Nations Economic and Social Council since 1978, and with the Council of Europe since
1981. The United Nations recognized the Federation in 1989 as a Peace Messenger organization. The Federation is
composed of member organizations that are private, nonprofit, nonpolitical, and nondenominational.

World Learning employs more than 1,600 staff, of which about twenty percent are dispersed among its headquarters in
Brattleboro, Vermont, and its offices in San Francisco, California; Greenwich, Connecticut; Washington, D.C.;
Jacksonville, Florida; Boston, Massachusetts; and London, England; and about eighty percent are dispersed among its
field offices around the world.
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o Masler of Arls in Teaching Program - A graduate program that prepares language teachers committed to
professional development and service in their field. Participants concentrate in French, Spanish, or English to
Speakers of Other Languages.

* Masler's Program in Infercultural Management - A graduate program that provides competency-based,
professional-level training for intercultural managers. Participants concentrate in Sustainable Development,
International Education, or Training and Human Resource Development.

* Bachelor's Program in World Issues - A two-year, upper-division bachelor’s program offering a degree in
international studies. Participants concentrate in at least one of these studies: Peace, Social and Economic
Development, and Environment.

* College Semester Abroad - Over fifty study abroad programs in more than thirty-five countries in every part of the
world for college and university students.

. ® Summer Abroad - Programs for high school students that offer homestays, travel, language training, ecological

adventure, and community service in Africa, Asia, Australia, Europe, and Latin America.

* Elderhostel™ - International homestay and education programs for participants age 60 years and older, offered in
cooperation with Elderhostel, Inc.

* Homeslay/USA - A homestay program that welcomes international participants, age 13 to over 80, into U.S. homes
for several days, weeks, or months.

* infernational High School Program - A traditional academic exchange program for 15- to 18-year-old students
from around the world to live with host families and attend high schools in the USA. A similar reciprocal program for
U.S. high school students is offered in several European and Latin American countries. '

* AuPair Homestay - A yearlong cuitural exchange program that offers a practical solution to child care for U.S.
families and a cost-effective way to work and study in the United States for European @z pasrs. A similar reciprocal
program is offered for U.S. au pairs to live with host families in several European countries.

* International Siudents of English - An intensive English language training program for college-age and older
students, featuring small, four-week classes on U.S. campuses.

* Execulive English Programs - Intensive language and cross-cultural training for business and professional clients,
tailored to the global marketplace and custom-designed to meet the needs of the individual, small group, or entire
company.

* Development Management - Projects that strengthen local institutional capacities, primarily in the nongovernmental
sector. These projects focus on democratic governance, participatory natural resources management, AIDS education
and prevention, nongovernmental organization (NGO) legal and social enabling environments, voluntary sector
social services, NGO strategic planning and management, and health and population. PIDT also provides a full range
of grant award and management services to NGO, private voluntary organizations, and educational institutions.

® Human Resources Developmen! - Projects that develop individual capacities, Activities include needs assessment,
training design, curriculum and materials development, job skills training, NGO leadership training, degree and
nondegree participant training, nonformal education, teacher/trainer training, and English as a Second Language.

World Learning, Kipling Road, P.O. Box 676, Brattleboro, Venmont 05302-0676 USA
Tel (802) 257-7751 Fax (802) 258-3248

Itis the policy of World Leaming to provide, in an affirmative way, equal employment and educational epportunities for all persons
regardiess of race, color, religion, genuler, sexual orientation, national or ethnic origin, age, disability or handicap, or veteran’s status. -
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World Learning

. SUBGRANT MANAGEMENT
. MONITORING AND EVALUATION
. INFORMATION SHARING

ALLOCATING PVO/NIS PROJECT FUNDS

In May 1992, the U.S. Agency for International Development (AID) selected World Learning to manage the
Private and Voluntary Organizations Initiatives to the New Independent States of the former Soviet Union
(PVO/NIS) project. :

The PVO/NIS Project is mandated to fulfill three functions. The first is to award subgrants to US nonprofit
organizations, focusing on NIS NGO development accompanied by respective service delivery. The second
is the monitoring and evaluation of subgrantees. The third mandate of the PVO/NIS Project is to provide
"lessons learned” to AID and the broader PVO community on collaborative US PVO/NIS NGO work in the
NIS.

FUNDS GRANTED BY SOLICITATIONS

The first round of competitive solicitations under the Project was held in June 1992. Invitations for
Applications (IFAs) were sent to over 300 US nonprofit organizations. Over 60 nonprofits answered the call
and submitted proposals. The main focus of this round of solicitations dealt with humanitarian aid and
health care delivery in order to strengthen the social safety net -- a general void since the breakup of the
USSR. Total funding for the first round amounted to $3,550,000 awarded to 8 organizations.

in October 1992, a second smaller solicitation was held, focusing on the impediments to voluntarism.
Developing legislation and NGO advocacy were the main criteria sought. Under this solicitation, $483,350
was awarded to 3 organizations.

In January 1993, a third solicitation was held with two due dates, in January and March. This efiort focused
on NGO institutiona!l development as an aid to civil society building and ensuring the survival of NGOs and
their service delivery. Sixteen (16) organizations received funding totaling $6,670,500.

in February 1994, a fourth solicitation, which originated at the AlD-Moscow office, was held. This
solicitation, which was for Russia only, emphasized support to Russian non-governmental organizations to
improve administrative, management, and communications capabilities. Funding totaling $2,000,000 was
awarded to 7 organizations.

A fifth solicitation, originated at the AlD-Moscow office with a proposal submission deadline of July 14,
1994, distributed funding to US PVOs and their local Russian partners working together on projects that

promote the development of NGOs involved in health care in Russia. Grants were recently selected and
range from $375,000 to $750,000, from a total funding of $6.5 million.

PVO/NIS PROJECT * ALLOCATING FUNDS * SUMMER 1994 » PAGE 1
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FUNDS ALLOCATED TO GEOGRAPHIC REGIONS

To date, most of the funds have been awarded to US nonprofit organizations working in Russia. However,
groups working in other countries of the NIS, or in more than one NIS country, have also received support. -

Following is a breakdown of funding to the NIS regions.

Russia $15,836,350
Western NIS (Moldova, Belarus, Ukraine) $ 2,055,000
Central Asia (Kazakhstan, Kyrgyzstan,

Tajikistan, Turkmenistan, Uzbekistan) $ 1,137,500
Caucuses (Armenia, Azerbaijan, Georgia) $ 175,000

TOTAL $19,203,850 :

PVO/NIS PROJECT * ALLOCATING FUNDS * SUMMER 1994 » PAGE 2 .
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WORLD LEARNING MOSCOW

1. STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES

World Learning Moscow seeks to be a dynamic force in the development of the NGO community in the
former Soviet Union. In so doing, World Learning's principle priority is providing quality service, in the
form of training, technical assistance, and information dissemination to the 46 Subgrantee organizations
involved in the PVO/NIS Project. This function of support extends to all 46 subgrantees regardiess of their
current grant status, albeit active or closed.

In further support of the development of the Subgrantee organizations, World Learning Moscow endeavors
to promote and advocate for the strengthening of the broader NGO community in the republics in which it
operates. This effort is enhanced through forming appropriate linkages and coalitions with other concerned
organizations, implementing publiic education campaigns on areas of common concern to organizations and
communities, and by taking leadership in identifying and addressing important and often complex issues
which have significant impact on the prospects for successful NGO development.

in carrying out its mandate, World Learning Moscow recognizes that its greatest resource, first and
foremost, is its thoughtful, committed, capable, and unified professional staff. This supportive relationship,
characterized by its integrated and mutually respectful operational style, is furthermore extended outward to
join in cooperation with other key participants in the NGO development process including World Learning
Washington, the Subgrantee organizations (PVOs/NGOs), and other organizations and individuals working
on behalf of the emerging NGO sector.

While the historic developments leading to the formation of what has come to be known as the New
Independent States (NIS) and the subsequent inflow of international organizations and resources can have
an intoxicating effect on those involved, World Learning Moscow recognizes that the only true measure of
its success is the growth of healthy programs and organizations capable of meeting community needs on
an ongoing basis. As such, it is substantive action rather than rhetoric that counts, and as World Learning
Moscow conducts its daily affairs it strives to put these principles into practice and never lose sight of the
well being of the Subgrantee organizations and the people they serve.

2. PROGRAM PRIORITIES

. Project Monitoring and Technical Assistance to World Learning Subgrantees;

Il. Organizational Development Training, specifically in the areas of human resource development,
financial management, strategic planning, public education through the media, and the external
environment;

Ill.  Public Education and NGO Advocacy.

World Learning, institutional Strengthening Program - General Materials
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WORLD LEARNING

PVO/NIS OFFICE - MOSCOW

Moscow Field Director - Scott Charlesworth

Scott Chariesworth joined World Learning at the beginning of March, 1995, afler feaving his position of
Associate Director of the International division of the YMCA of the USA. Most recently, Scott managed the
YMCA's international development grants, including the World Learning-funded program to assist emerging
local YMCAs in Russia, Belarus, Georgia, Armenia and Ukraine. Based overseas for more than six years, he
served as Country Director of Covenant House, Panama, working with street children in' Panama City, and
was the founder/director of the YMCA in Belize. He trained NGO youth leaders in Papau New Guinea and
was Peace Corps volunteer in Honduras. Mr. Charlesworth has a BA in Economics from Rollins College
and a Masters degree in Public Management from Carnegie Mellon University.

Project Officer (Health) - Donna Barry

Donna Barry joined the PVO/NIS Project in December, 1994 and spent the first month in Washington as the
Project's Health Officer. In February Donna moved to Moscow, where she will take on the position of
Project Officer, monitoring a number of the Project grants. Donna formerly worked as a Program Officer for
Family Health International for the former Soviet Union, organizing, implementing, and evaluating
reproductive health related projects. Proficient in written and spoken Russian, Donna lived and worked in
Russia and the FSU for three years. In the fall of 1993, she organized and coordinated a training of trainers
workshop on reproductive health for physicians in the Central Asian Republics. She has Master’s degrees in
Public Health and international Affairs from Columbia University.

Project Officer {Operations Management) - Alexander Borovikh

Alexander joined World Learning in 1993. He deals with the overall functioning of the PVO/NIS office in
Moscow, and is responsible for logistics for World Learning's conferences and workshops. He reports on
financial aspects of the Moscow office, provides information on World Learning’s activities in the NIS, and
participates in designing articles for the newsletter, as well as maintains and develops the database.
Alexander graduated from Moscow Linguistic University and for several years worked as an interpreter in
different institutions in Russia and abroad. Recently Alexander received his degree from Moscow State
University Law Department.

Program Associate (Training/Information) - Tatiana Galkina

Tatiana joined World Learning {Moscow Office) in June 1995 as a Program Associate. Her responsibilites
are organising and coordinating World Learning’s training program and assisting in information collection
and dissemination. Tatiana formerly worked at the Carnegie Endowment for International Peace/CEIP
{Moscow Center) as a Project Coordinator - a joint CEIP and IREX project. Her focus at Carnegie was
publishing a guide of Russian research organizations {institutional Map} working in the international
relations and foreign affairs fields.The Guide was published both in Moscow and Washington DC in Russian
and English (February-March, 1995).Tatiana has previous experience at the Canadian Embassy maintaining
and developing immigration data base files within the Immigration Section. For two years Tatiana was an
freelance correspondent at INTERFAX News Agensy. Tatiana is finishing her degree at Moscow State
University's History Department in Cultural Ethnography.

World Leaming, Institutional Strengthening Program - General Materials
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Project Officer (Information) - Ekaterina Greshnova

Ekalerina joined PVO/NIS Moscow staff in January, 1994. She handles publication issues, colliecls and

coordinates project information, maintains the database, and establishes contacts with mass media and
NGOs. In addition Ekaterina coordinates designing and publishing the Moscow Newsletter, "INFOHELP".
Ekaterina graduated from Moscow State Institute of International Relations and undertook postgraduate

course work at the Institute of African Studies of the Academy of Sciences. For seven years she worked as
a journalist and participated in setting up the first Russian independent news agency “interfax”. Ekaterina
has been involved in Russian-American humanitarian projects as a program coordinator for the Citizens
Democracy Corps.

Project Officer (Training) - Jeff Jacobs

Jeff joined the PVO/NIS Moscow staff with his experience working for CARE as a sub-office administrator in
Alma-Ata, Kazakhstan, Baku, Azerbaijan, Ekaterinburg, Russia, and a project assistant in Togo. Jeff
graduated from World Learning’s School for International Training and participated in a homestay program
in France with The U.S. Experiment in International Living. Moreover, Jeff worked in the lvory Coast as a
program manager in charge of developing rural, micro enterprises and also was an assistant at the African-
American Institute in New York.
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WORLD LEARNING
PVO/NIS PROJECT

TENTATIVE TRAINING SCHEDULE

Public Education through the Media

25 - 27 May 1995 - Ekaterinburg, Russia
15 - 18 January 1996 - Kharkiv, Ukraine

9 - 13 April 1996 - St. Petersburg, Russia
16 - 20 April 1996 - Georgia

June 1996 - Moscow, Russia

External Environment

21 - 23 June 1995 - Nizhnii Novgorod, Russia

30 October - 2 November 1995 - Dniepropetrovsk, Ukraine
13 - 16 March 1996 - Georgia

13 - 16 June 1996 Petrozavodsk or St. Petersburg, Russia
19 - 21 September 1996 - Ekaterinburg, Russia '

Strategic Planning

14 - 16 September 1995 - Lviv, Ukraine

28 - 30 September 1995 - Novosibirsk, Russia
26 - 28 October 1995 - Borjomi, Georgia

10 - 12 November 1995 - St. Petersburg, Russia
22 - 24 February 1996 - Moscow, Russia

Financial Management / Financial Sustainability

7 - 9 December 1995 - Georgia
14 - 16 December 1995 - Nikolaev, Ukraine
8 - 10 February 1996 - St. Petersburg, Russia

Human Resource Development

4 - 7 October 1995 - Yaroslavl, Russia
All Subgrantee Conference

- complete
- complete

- complete
- complete

- complete
- complete
- complete
- complete

- complete
- complete

- complete
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Author: N. Belayeva
President of the International Charity Foundation
"INTERLEGAL"

What is the "THIRD SECTOR"?

The Third Sector is a reality that has long been in existence not only in the West but in this
country [Russial as well, although it might not necessarily be aware of being called so. This is a
huge sphere, sector, of a society’'s life that is no part of either state structures, or business but
makes up an independent sphere of organized civil initiatives directed at improving the society’s
life and being implemented independently of the personal material advantage from this kind of
activities.

The Third Sector is all the spheres, directions and organized forms of implementing collective
non-profit initiative, all types of organized public activities -- from organizing mass social
movements to creating charity canteens, homes and doss houses.

The Third Sector is all professional associations and artistic unions; it is voluntary societies and
organs of independent public activities as well as associations, councils, guilds and clubs.

The Third Sector is joint realization of common interests -- from philately and cacti-growing to
studying the cultures of Northern peoples or mastering the Japanese martial arts.

The Third Sector is organizing regular aid to those who need it -- disabled and sick adults and
children. It is also preparing "breakthroughs” in science and culture and technology. It is
methods of upbringing and development of mentally handicapped children and campaigning for
the human rights of convicts, as well as organizing a tourist club for the teenagers in your
neighbourhood.

The Third Sector is your creative initiative or a problem you are concerned about that can only
be resolved by forming a team since the state does not want or is unable to address it and
business circles disregard it as not-cost-effective.

The Third Sector is "third™ exactly for the reason that there is no room for it either in the first,
state, or second, private, sectors; it is that sphere of life, those tasks and problems that cannot
be resolved either by virtue of authority or by the power of money.

The Third Sector, therefore, is equally needed to the state and to business as it complements
them, makes them more "human™, creates an opportunity for a more gradual transition from the
overall "state” interest, via a collective form of interest, to individual, private interest and does it
independently of the authorities.

Besides, the Third Sector is a testing ground for making large-scale experiments as well as for
state and profit-making programs; it is an inexhaustible source of businessmen and politicians,
the "forge of the cadre” as the popular Russian clichi has it; it is a faultless indicator or public
interests. But the main thing is that the Third Sector is a huge reservoir of social energy, when it
is efficient and ensured with resources, is needed to the society itself so that it could address
the emerging problems and needs by means of civil initiative where and when it is necessary
today without waiting for state budget allocations and independently of the financial reliability of
the local businessmen and their wish to be "understanding”.

A\

World Learning, Institutional Strengthening Program - General Materials \'E
%



